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(Note 1)
(mEF)
(Restated)
B\ IThE 3% 3% “g-If
W EEETIST HK$ Million 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
kREse Shareholders’ funds 9,892 11,396 14,156 15,315 17,792
RERER Subordinated notes 5,269 4,602 4,644 3,654 3,936
ZFEH Deposits from customers 80,418 88,370 96,127 11,629 116,527
BRINERE Certificates of deposit issued 4,655 2,060 4,746 3,164 5,752
FREs Total deposits 85,073 90,430 100,873 114,793 122,279
BELE Total liabilities
(BIEEEER) (including subordinated notes) 108,243 108,397 125,088 140,002 150,644
XFEH Advances to customers
(TBEE55E) (excluding trade bills) 60,550 56,817 71,900 80,867 86,174
EEER Total assets 120,180 122,576 142,742 159,194 172,981
e yagl Profit attributable to shareholders 106 626 1,006 1,021 1,236
2FRS Total dividend 176 - 304 313 350
LA HK$
SHREXEF (F=) Basic earnings per share (Note 2) 0.40 2.30 3.67 3.49 4.20
HRERE Dividends per share 0.68 - 1.06 1.07 1.18
HEARIT Percentage %
ERHERLE (D) Loan to deposit ratio (Note 3) 712 62.8 713 70.4 70.5
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Note:

The Group has adopted the Amendments to Hong Kong Accounting
Standard 12, “Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets”, which
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012,
and has applied this change in accounting policy retrospectively with
consequential restatements of the comparatives for the year ended 31
December 2011.

Basic earnings per share for 2008 to 2009 have been restated to take
into account the effects of the rights issue of the Company completed in
December 2010.

Loan to deposit ratio is calculated as the ratio of total advances to
customers (excluding trade bills) to total deposits (including certificates
of deposit issued).
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

REGISTERED OFFICE

36th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre
108 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong
Tel: 2507 8866

Fax: 2598 5052

S.W.I.LF.T.: DSBAHKHH

Web Site: http://www.dahsing.com

SECRETARY

Doris Wai-Nar Wong Fcis, Fcs

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong

SOLICITORS

Herbert Smith

SHARE REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
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Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Aged 72. Appointed as the Chairman of the Company in 1987.
Chairman of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”), Dah Sing
Bank, Limited (“DSB”), Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing
Life Assurance Company Limited (“DSLA”), Dah Sing Insurance
Company (1976) Limited, Macau Insurance Company Limited, Macau
Life Insurance Company Limited, New Asian Shipping Company,
Limited and various other companies. Honorary President of Hong
Kong Guangdong Chamber of Foreign Investors and Guangdong
Chamber of Foreign Investors. Member of The Hong Kong Association
of Banks, The Chinese Banks Association Limited and The Hong Kong
Shipowners Association. Vice President of The Hong Kong Institute
of Bankers. General Committee Member of The Chamber of Hong
Kong Listed Companies. Over 45 years of experience in banking and
finance. Father of Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong, the Managing Director
and Chief Executive of DSBG, Vice Chairman of DSB and DSLA, and
an Executive Director of the Company’s other key operating banking
and insurance subsidiaries.

Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze
Independent Non-executive Director

Aged 72. Appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company in 1997. Also an Independent Non-executive Director
of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”), Dah Sing Bank,
Limited, Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited and Dah Sing Life Assurance
Company Limited. Currently the Chairman of the Audit Committees,
the Nomination and Remuneration Committees of both the Company
and DSBG, and a non-executive Director to a number of Hong Kong
listed companies*. Fellow of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Also a former partner of an international firm of
accountants with which he practised for over 20 years.

Note (*): Apart from the Company and DSBG, Mr. Robert Sze also holds/
held directorships in other Hong Kong listed companies during
the last three years, namely, Asia Satellite Telecommunications
Holdings Limited, China Travel International Investment Hong Kong
Limited, Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited, Min Xin Holdings Limited,
Nanyang Holdings Limited, QPL International Holdings Limited and
Sunwah Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited.
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Dr. Tai-Lun Sun (Dennis Sun) B.B.S., J.P.
Independent Non-executive Director

Aged 62. Appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company in 2002. Member of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Currently Chairman of China-Hongkong
Photo Products Holdings Limited and Fuji Photo Products Company
Limited. Vice Patron of the Community Chest, a founding member
of the China Charity Federation and Chairman of the Hong Kong
Management Association. Independent Non-executive Director
of Hanison Construction Holdings Limited. Awarded the Bronze
Bauhinia Star by the Government of Hong Kong SAR in 1999.
Appointed as a Justice of The Peace by the Government of Hong
Kong SAR in 2002.

Mr. Lon Dounn (Lonnie Dounn)
Independent Non-executive Director

Aged 60. Appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director and
member of the Audit Committee of the Company in April 2012. Also
an Independent Non-executive Director of DSBG between December
2010 and March 2012. Over 30 years of extensive experience in the
banking industry and had assumed various senior executive positions
in credit and risk management in a number of banks, including HSBC
and Bank of China.

Mr. Seiji Nakamura
Independent Non-executive Director

Aged 70. Appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director and
a member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company in June 2012. Also an Alternate Director to 2 Non-executive
Directors of the Company during 1998 to 2003. Joined Mitsui O.S.K.
Lines, Ltd. (“MOL”) in 1965. Assumed various senior positions of MOL
before appointed as the President of MOL Ferry Co., Ltd. in 2008.
Over 40 years of extensive experience in the shipping industry, in
addition to the 5 years’ financial sector and regulatory experience as
a member of the Policy Board of the Bank of Japan during April 2007
to April 2012.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |
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Dr. Yuan Shu
Independent Non-executive Director

Aged 63. Appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director and
a member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company in December 2012. Currently the Dean and Professor
of Economics of the International Business School of Sun Yat-
Sen University, Vice Chairman of the Board of Trustees of Lingnan
(University) College of Sun Yat-Sen University, and the Chairman
of the Board of Zhongda Venture Capital Limited. Over 36 years
of extensive experience in the academic sector in the Mainland
China and overseas, and also rich international exposure and active
involvement in business and investment.

Mr. Takashi Morimura
Non-executive Director

Aged 60. Appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Company
in 2011. Joined The Bank of Tokyo, Ltd. (now becomes The Bank
of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. (“BTMU”) after several mergers in a
decade completed in 2006) in 1975. Served and managed various
divisions in BTMU before appointed as the Senior Managing
Executive Officer and the Chief Executive Officer for Europe, Middle
East and Africa in 2009. Currently, the Deputy President and the Chief
Executive Officer of Global Business Unit of BTMU and the Managing
Officer and the Group Head of Integrated Global Business Group
of Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc. Possessed over 35 years of
experience in corporate banking and finance.

Mr. Hidekazu Horikoshi
Non-executive Director

Aged 51. Appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Company in
August 2012. Joined The Bank of Tokyo, Ltd. (now becomes The Bank
of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. (“BTMU”) after several mergers in a
decade completed in 2006) in 1984. Assumed various senior positions
in BTMU mainly responsible for corporate and strategic planning and
development in the different regions including Asia, Europe and the
Americas over the last 20 years before appointed as the Executive
Officer and General Manager of European Business Division in
London, U.K. in 2011. Currently the Executive Officer, Regional Head
for Hong Kong and General Manager of BTMU (Hong Kong Branch).
Also a non-executive Director of Chong Hing Bank Limited. Over 28
years of experience in banking, mainly in corporate and strategic
planning and development.
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Mr. John Wai-Wai Chow
Non-executive Director

Aged 63. Appointed as a Director in 1994 and currently a Non-
executive Director and member of the Audit Committee of the
Company. Managing Director of Winsor Industrial Corporation
Limited, Executive Director of Wing Tai Properties Limited and Non-
executive Director of ARA Trust Management (Suntec) Limited
(manager of the Singapore-listed Suntec Real Estate Investment
Trust). Former Managing Director of Winsor Properties Holdings
Limited (now renamed as Vanke Property (Overseas) Limited). Over 30
years of experience in textile, garment and property business.

Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Managing Director and Chief Executive

Aged 60. Appointed as a Director in 1993 and promoted as the
Managing Director of the Company in January 2002. Joined Dah Sing
Bank, Limited (“DSB”), a key operating subsidiary of the Company’s
Banking Group, in 1977 and has served and managed various
departments before appointed as a Director in 1989 and Managing
Director in 2000. Promoted as Vice Chairman of DSB and Dah Sing
Banking Group Limited in April 2011. Chairman of Dah Sing Bank
(China) Limited and a director of various major subsidiaries of the
Group. Director of Great Wall Life Insurance Company Limited, and a
non-executive Vice Chairman and Director of Bank of Chongging in
which the Group has a 20% equity interest. Associate of The Institute
of Bankers (U.K.), Founder Member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers and The International Retail Banking Council of the U.K. Over
35 years of experience in banking.

Mr. Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Executive Director

Aged 52. Appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in 2001.
Joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”), a key operating subsidiary
of the Company, as the Group Financial Controller in 1995 and was
promoted as a Director in 1997, responsible for the overall financial
management and control, operations and IT functions of the Group
for a number of years since then. Promoted as the Managing Director
and Chief Executive of DSB in May 2011. Also a Director of Banco
Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited and Dah
Sing Life Assurance Company Limited. Qualified accountant, Fellow
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the U.K. and
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Over 25 years of experience in financial management and banking.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |
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Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew
Executive Director

Aged 45. Joined the Company in 1998 and currently an Executive
Director of the Company, Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited,
Macau Insurance Company Limited, Macau Life Insurance Company
Limited, Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”) and Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited. Deputy Chief Executive of DSB, and Head of Treasury and
Corporate Finance of DSB, responsible for its treasury and corporate
finance activities. Over 20 years of experience in financial services
both in the U.K. and Hong Kong.

Mr. Takami Onodera
Alternate Director to Mr. Takashi Morimura

Aged 56. Appointed as an Alternate Director to Mr. Takashi Morimura,
a Non-executive Director of the Company, in August 2012. Joined The
Mitsubishi Bank, Ltd. (now becomes The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi
UFJ, Ltd. (“BTMU?”) after several mergers in a decade completed
in 2006) in 1980. Appointed as the Managing Executive Officer and
the Group Head of Corporate Investment Banking Group in 2010.
Currently the Managing Executive Officer and Chief Executive Officer
for Asia and Oceania in BTMU. Over 32 years of experience in
banking, corporate planning and investment.

Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Managing Director and Chief Executive of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited

Aged 43. Joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited, a key operating subsidiary
of the Company, in 2000, and appointed as an Executive Director
in 2005 and as the Vice Chairman in March 2010. Currently also the
Managing Director and Chief Executive of Dah Sing Banking Group
Limited (“DSBG”). Also a Vice Chairman of Dah Sing Life Assurance
Company Limited, and a Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited
and Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. Qualified solicitor in England
and Wales and in Hong Kong. Son of Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong, the
Chairman of the Boards of DSBG and the Company.

Ms. Wing-Kay Chow (Eleonore Chow)
Director and Chief Executive of Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited

Aged 47. Appointed as a Director and the Chief Executive of Dah Sing
Life Assurance Company Limited in 2010, responsible for overseeing
the operation of long-term insurance business. Fellow member of
Life Office Management Association (FLMI) USA. Over 20 years of
experience in insurance industry in Hong Kong, China and Taiwan.
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In 2012, Asia remained the most dynamic region in the world. We
benefitted both from our location in Asia, as well as from a strict focus
on our core businesses to deliver record results for the year.

We made significant progress in our core businesses in 2012, and
after 25 years as a listed company, we look forward to further growth
in our banking and insurance businesses, broadly in line with the
strategy developed by the current management team in 2011 and
adopted by the Board.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |
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In view of the generally better than expected
business conditions, the Hong Kong stock
market performed better in 2012 compared
to the previous year.

percentage.

REREIA AR

BANKING BUSINESS

DSBG reported a strong performance in 2012,
with a record profit attributable to shareholders
of HK$1,411 million for the year. Loan growth,
including trade bills, was just under 10%, funded
mainly by an increase in customer deposits and
certificates of deposit. All major operating income
items reported growth. Net interest income grew
both due to higher volumes of interest earning
assets, and due to a higher net interest margin
during the year. We made significant progress
during the year in improving our non-interest
income, driven largely by improvements in wealth
management and bancassurance revenues,
treasury, securities services and general banking
related fees.

Although headline operating expenses grew by
around 20%, it should be noted that a major
portion of the year on year increase relates to
the effect of the write back of certain provisions
relating to settlement of Lehman Minibond
cases in 2011, which were not repeated in 2012.
Eliminating the impact of these operating expense

provisions, normalized operating expenses grew by a high single digit

Loan impairment losses and other credit provisions fell, indicating
the benign credit quality of our loan book and the generally robust

financial positions of our customers during the period.

Bank of Chongging continued to perform very well with a contribution
of HK$491 million for the year, an increase of 39% over the prior year.
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Our insurance business reported a reduction in net insurance
premium and other income, due mainly to changes in rates, whilst
gross premium income was slightly higher than 2011. New business
volume was at a similar level to 2011 following efforts to move from
lower value shorter-dated products to higher value longer-term
products, which we believe will be in the longer term interests of the
Company. A strong investment performance for the year helped to
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offset higher expenses and an increased transfer to reserves driven
by interest rate movements during the year. We saw an encouraging
performance from our bancassurance business, demonstrating the
strength of our customer relationships in the bank channels. We
are also pleased that further growth and stronger profitability were
achieved in 2012 in our general insurance business.

Our capital position remained strong, with the overall capital
adequacy ratio of our Banking Group at 14.9%, and our core equity
tier 1 at 10.3%. Based on the capital rules including the transition
arrangement consistent with the Basel lll capital standards prescribed
by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority, we are confident that we will
be able to operate at capital levels in 2013 meeting the HKMA and the
new Basel Il capital rules that have come into effect from 1 January
2013.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |
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On 1 April 2012, Mr. Akimitsu Ashida, Chairman of Mitsui O.S.K.
Lines, Ltd., resigned as a Non-Executive Director with Mr. Shugo Aoto
ceasing to act as his alternate; and Mr. Nicholas Robert Sallnow-
Smith resigned as an Independent Non-Executive Director and
member of applicable board-level committees, and Chairman of the
Risk Management and Compliance Committee of the Group’s banking
and insurance businesses. On the same date, Mr. Lon Dounn was
appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director and a member
of the Audit Committee of the Company.

On 1 June 2012, Mr. Seiji Nakamura, previously a member of the
Policy Board of the Bank of Japan, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director and a member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Company; and Mr. Roderick Stuart
Anderson retired from his office as an Executive Director of the
Company.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

On 8 August 2012, Mr. Hidekazu Horikoshi of The Bank of Tokyo-
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. was appointed as a Non-executive Director of
the Company, succeeding Mr. Hidemitsu Otsuka and Mr. Takami
Onodera was confirmed, in place of Mr. Takashi Morisaki, to act as an
Alternate Director of Mr. Takashi Morimura.

On 4 December 2012, Dr. Yuan Shu was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director and a member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Dr. Shu is an academic
who holds a number of positions including Dean and Professor of
Economics of the International Business School of Sun Yat-Sen
University, Vice Chairman of the Board of Trustees of Lingnan
(University) College of Sun Yat-Sen University of Guangzhou, China,
and the Chairman of the Board of Zhongda Venture Capital Limited.
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The Board extends a warm welcome to Mr. Dounn, Mr. Nakamura,
Mr. Horikoshi and Dr. Shu in joining the Board, and expresses its
appreciation to Mr. Ashida, Mr. Sallnow-Smith, and Mr. Otsuka
for their contributions, and in particular to Mr. Anderson for his
long service and contributions to the Board’s deliberations and
the Company’s development during his tenure of service with the
Company, and conveys its best wishes to him for his retirement.

Whilst global growth remains somewhat below trend at present, we
are fortunate to be located in Asia, the most dynamic region in the
world. Mainland China’s economy has experienced a ‘soft landing’,
and with Mr. Xi Jinping as the new President and Mr. Li Keqiang
as the new Premier in 2013, we are much encouraged by the new
policy measures of China to further promote urbanization, sustainable
economic development, tackling pollution and improving people’s
quality of life, and we are hopeful that stability and growth will
continue for the foreseeable future.

New leaders in Japan and Korea were also elected in late 2012 and
early 2013, and more stimulative monetary and economic policies
are being pursued. In particular, the resolve by the new Japanese
leaders to adopt new policy measures to stimulate economic growth
and implement actions to help defuse deflationary expectations
have already caused a marked weakening in the Japanese Yen,
which will likely bring about significant impact to the Japanese
economy in the near to medium term, and also new challenges to
the global and regional economies. Similarly, the Korean Won has
weakened in 2013. These, together with the internationalization and
gradual strengthening of the RMB, will bring both challenges and
opportunities to Asia in general, and to our business.

Quantitative easing implemented principally in the US had helped
stabilize economic performance in the recent past. Concerns
going forward include the challenges that would be caused by the
withdrawal of the quantitative easing measures, as the developed
economies gradually recover, in addition to the challenges brought
about by the on-going low interest rate environment, new regulations,
and the increase in compliance and risk management costs.
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Prospects in the Pearl River Delta and Macau remain good in the
long term, and we look forward to solidifying the foundations that
we have built. Whilst in Hong Kong, economic growth this year is
forecast to remain modest in the range of 1.5-3.5%, we believe that
the underlying conditions are stable, and with low unemployment, will
provide opportunities for growth in the years to come.

We are therefore cautiously optimistic about the economies in which
we operate for the coming year. Nevertheless, we remain vigilant
as to any risks arising, particularly in terms of any sustained rise in
bad debts in the Mainland market, and market volatility that could
affect the investment return of our insurance business. Local liquidity
conditions remain good, and we do not see any major signs of stress
at present in Hong Kong or Macau. We continue to implement the
medium term strategy for our banking businesses, with a focus on
core customers, deposit cost management, service quality, wealth
management and bancassurance, and the development of our
Mainland China and cross-border businesses, in addition to our core
Hong Kong hub.

Although internationally, Basel lll remains challenging for many banks,
we believe that the Hong Kong banking market, including ourselves,
is well prepared for the changes to the capital regime introduced
with effect from 1 January 2013, and that this should not present
major issues. Indeed, internationally, we feel that Asia is the area
which will most readily be able to accommodate the increased capital
requirements, bearing in mind the relatively high levels of capital held
by banks in the region.

Finally, | would like to thank my fellow directors for their valuable
contribution and extend, on behalf of the Board, our appreciation to
all of our colleagues for their hard work and dedication over the past
year, and also our appreciation of the support from our customers and
shareholders.

David Shou-Yeh Wong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2013
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the year are summarised in the table below:

The highlights of the Group’s consolidated financial performance for

—B——F —T——%5 k)
2012 2011 Variance
=7
Restated
BEETT HK$ Million
HBRRE B BRI 2 & & A Operating profit before impairment losses 1,282.0 1,093.4 17.2%
MERREEEE 2 2 &R Operating profit after impairment losses 1,138.3 912.3 24.8%
R A A Profit before taxation 1,773.7 1,452.9 22.1%
FE i Profit for the year 1,598.8 1,304.1 22.6%
P B PE A 5 Profit attributable to shareholders 1,236.4 1,020.8 21.1%
AEAE Total assets 172,981 159,194 8.7%
BEEE Total liabilities 150,644 140,002 7.6%
RES Shareholders’ funds 17,792 15,315 16.2%
FRIBUWA, S EBUA Net interest income/operating income 74.7% 77.9%
BRSO L & Cost to income ratio 61.6% 61.0%
T & E R R Return on average total assets 0.7% 0.7%
FHRRE S B Return on average shareholders’ funds 7.5% 6.9%
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Against the backdrop of the somewhat better than expected business
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and market conditions in 2012, our Group reported significantly
improved profitability, with profit attributable to shareholders
increasing by 21% from HK$1,021 million to HK$1,236 million, and
total loan growth, including trade bills, reached 9.8% compared with
2011.

Net interest income was up by 14% from HK$2,186 million to
HK$2,494 million, on the back of higher interest earning assets and a
widening in the net interest margin (“NIM”). NIM was up from 1.41%
to 1.54% during the year.
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Net fee and commission income increased by 23.4% from HK$383
million to HK$472 million and net trading income increased from
HK$232 million to HK$793 million. The improvement in fee income
was driven largely by improvements in wealth management and
bancassurance revenues, increases in our sales of treasury products
to customers, securities services and general banking related fees.
The increase in trading income was driven mainly by a significant
improvement in the mark-to-market valuation of financial instruments
designated at fair value through profit or loss, a substantial portion of
which is held by our insurance business in its investment portfolio.

The improved operating income items led to an overall increase in
operating income net of insurance claims by 19.0% from HK$2,804
million to HK$3,336 million. Whilst overall operating expenses
increased by 20.1% to HK$2,054 million, a major portion of the year
on year increase relates to the effect of the write back of certain
provisions relating to settlement of Lehman Minibond cases in 2011,
which were not repeated in 2012. Eliminating the impact of these
operating expense provisions, normalized operating expenses grew

by a high single digit percentage.

Loan impairment losses and other credit provisions fell from HK$181
million to HK$144 million, and the impaired loan ratio down slightly
from 0.48% to 0.35%.

Our insurance business reported a slightly lower net profit when
compared with 2011, with modest growth in gross premium income
and strong investment returns more than offset by adjustments
in the value of in-force policies of the life business and transfer to
reserves driven by interest rate movements and changes in actuarial
assumptions, and higher operating expenses. New business volume
was at a similar level to 2011 following efforts to move from lower
value shorter-dated products to higher value longer-term products.
Our bancassurance business generated strong sales, and our general
insurance business achieved stronger growth and higher profitability
compared with 2011.

Our associate company in Mainland China, Bank of Chongqing,
continued to perform well with a contribution of HK$491 million for the
year, an increase of 38.9% over the prior year.

Total assets of the Group reached HK$173 billion, an increase of 8.7%
over 2011. Shareholders’ funds as of 31 December 2012 stood at
HK$17.8 billion, up by 16% on 2011. Return on equity increased to
7.5%, compared with 6.9% in 2011.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |
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Restated
FEE Net interest margin 1.54% 1.41%
BEATT HK$ Million
MR EEER 2 & iE R T Operating profit before impairment losses 1,127.3 978.3 15.2%
MBRREEERE 2 2 &R Operating profit after impairment losses 983.6 797.2 23.4%
R A& A1 Profit before taxation 1,565.2 1,227.1 27.6%
FEHF Profit for the year 1,410.5 1,092.4 29.1%
% R (5 A Profit attributable to shareholders 1,410.6 1,093.2 29.0%
BEFEXR Advances to customers 86,174 80,867 6.6%
BES Total assets 158,586 147,229 7.7%
EPFR Customers’ deposits 117,936 113,369 4.0%
BER{ITNFEHGE Certificates of deposit issued 5,753 3,164 81.8%
FRast Total deposits 123,689 116,533 6.1%
BEITHEBRE Issued debt securities 2,713 2,718 -0.2%
%EER Subordinated notes 3,979 3,698 7.6%
[RERE S Shareholders’ funds 17,897 15,003 19.3%
ER(TBEBZER) Loan (excluding trade bills)
HER(BECET to deposit (including certificates
K150 ) LR of deposit issued) ratio 69.7% 69.4%
AR ST AL Cost to income ratio 61.9% 61.0%
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All major operating income items of our Banking Group reported
growth in the year. Net interest income was up by 15% from HK$1,919
million to HK$2,204 million. Net interest margin (“NIM”) was up from
1.41% to 1.54% during the year, and the sequential improvement was
encouraging, with NIM increasing from 1.47% in the first half of the
year to 1.60% in the second half. The sequential increase in margin
was driven largely by lower deposit costs, resulting from improved
market liquidity and a sharp focus on deposit cost management, and
higher asset yields, including Treasury business investment yields, as
well as upward repricing of our loan products in general.

Net fee and commission income increased by 27.3% from HK$417
million to HK$531 million and net trading income increased from
HK$132 million to HK$178 million. The improvement in fee income
was driven largely by improvements in wealth management and
bancassurance revenues, increases in our sales of treasury products
to customers, securities services and general banking related fees.
The increase in trading income was driven mainly by a significant
improvement in the mark-to-market valuation of financial instruments
designated at fair value through profit or loss.
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The improved operating income items led to an overall increase in
operating income by 18.2% from HK$2,505 million to HK$2,961
million. Headline operating expenses increased by 20.1% to
HK$1,833 million, as the write back of certain provisions relating to
settlement of Lehman Minibond cases in 2011 was not repeated in
2012.

Loan impairment losses and other credit provisions fell from HK$181
million to HK$144 million indicating the benign credit quality of
our loan book and the generally robust financial positions of our
customers during the period. The impaired loan ratio dropped slightly
from 0.48% to 0.35%.

Performance in terms of volume growth was however slower than the
much stronger improvement in profit in 2012, although loan growth
was still encouraging. Including trade bills, overall growth was 9.8%
over 2011, largely driven by our Commercial Banking and Mainland
China related businesses, particularly cross-border trade finance, as
we continued to expand our cross-border and RMB related business
in Hong Kong, and also our Mainland business.

Overall deposit (including certificates of deposit) growth was up 6.1%
year on year, as we steadily worked to reduce our deposit cost to
improve our NIM, amidst the more liquid market conditions and less
severe deposit competition during the second half of 2012. With
the general easing in the term funding cost in the wholesale market
especially after mid 2012, we made more new issues of certificates of
deposit, resulting in a notable increase in the balance of certificates
of deposit issued as of the end of the year. Our loan to deposit ratio
and liquidity ratio were maintained at very healthy levels at the end of
2012.

Our capital position remained strong, with the overall capital
adequacy ratio of our Banking Group at 14.9%, and our core equity
tier 1 ratio at 10.3%.

2012 was the first full financial year in which we implemented the
medium term strategy adopted by the Board in 2011, with a focus on
core customers, deposit cost management, service quality, wealth
management and bancassurance, and the development of our
Mainland China and cross-border businesses, in addition to our core
Hong Kong hub. We are thus far encouraged by the results of strategy
implementation, both in the financial performance of 2012 and the
overall work done to further improve our prospects in the medium
term.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |
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Personal Banking

Our Personal Banking business, serving the consumer finance, retail
banking, VIP banking and private banking market segments of Hong
Kong, achieved a strong and encouraging growth in operating income
in 2012. Operating expenses were however much higher than 2011,
as a write-back in the cost provision relating to Lehman retail bond
investments booked in 2011 was not repeated in 2012. This, coupled
with the higher loan impairment provision charged on the growing
balance of unsecured consumer lending, led to a reduction in the
overall net profit of our Personal Banking business when compared
with 2011.

Loan balance was modestly up on 2011, mainly contributed by the
growth in unsecured personal loans. Customer deposit balance, with
the keen effort to manage down higher cost deposits, was slightly
scaled down when compared with the 2011 year-end balance. With
the steady improvement in loan yields and gradual reduction in the
cost of deposits in the year, net interest income of our Personal
Banking business increased by 12%, continuing the upward trend of
net interest income growth achieved in the past few years.

It was particularly encouraging to have recorded another year of
strong non-interest income growth, with the increase coming mostly
from our wealth management activities and bancassurance sales and
distribution. New VIP Banking Centers were set up at branches with
improved ambience, and served by our VIP relationship managers.
New on-line unit trust platform was launched, making it more
convenient for our customers to conduct their unit trust transactions.
Additional financial planning sales and services officers were added to
strengthen our life insurance sales in branches.

In the year, we expanded and also upgraded the retail securities
centres in our branches which enabled us to meaningfully increase our
market share and achieve a modest revenue growth despite the lower
market transaction volume in general. We launched mobile securities
trading “Easy Trade” platform, which is running as a native app on the
mobile devices. We are the first bank in Hong Kong to provide this
type of mobile securities trading platform, offering our customers fast,
simple, easy and secure trading services via mobile devices.
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Personal Banking (Continued)

Excluding the impact of the non-recurring write-back of Lehman
related cost provisions in 2011, the operating expenses of our
Personal Banking business only recorded a mild increase in 2012,
which was mainly brought by the further expansion of our retail
business sales and services staff, upgrade of our branch network,
expansion and upgrading of our VIP and retail securities centres, and
higher premises cost.

The asset quality of our retail lending portfolio remained benign with
loan delinquency rate and actual loan loss rate staying at relatively
low levels. Due to the continued increase in the balance of unsecured
personal loans of Dah Sing Bank, and the gradual build-up of the
consumer loan portfolio of our new consumer finance subsidiary, OK
Finance, a higher amount of collective impairment provision, when
compared with 2011, was recorded.

OK Finance was launched at the end of 2011, targeting a segment
of the Hong Kong consumer finance market different from that of our
own mainstream retail banking operation. After building a foundation
in its first year of operation, we expect to see improved contribution
from this line of business in the coming years.

We put in additional effort in growing and improving the contribution
of our credit card business, including promoting spending programs,
launching new card services, and investing in TV and media
advertising to raise our card profile and brand awareness. During
the year, we were the first bank to announce the introduction of the
innovative Pay@Mobile service, a mobile point-of-sale service in
Hong Kong that will be launched soon. This new service will provide
merchants and card customers greater convenience when making
credit card purchases. We are pleased to have received different
card awards in the year, a recognition of our card development and
promotion efforts in 2012.

We continued our branch network upgrade programme in Hong Kong
with the objective to improve our services to customers. As of the
end of 2012, our branch network includes 45 retail branches in Hong
Kong under the name of Dah Sing Bank, of which 16 have VIP centres,
and 31 offer retail securities centres for retail customers’ securities
trading.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |
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Commercial Banking

Commercial Banking, which includes trade finance, commercial
lending, syndicated lending, equipment finance and vehicle finance,
reported stronger loan and deposit growth, and much higher net profit
when compared to 2011. The stronger profitability was brought mainly
by significantly higher net interest income and non-interest income,
and a higher write-back in loan impairment provisions.

Net interest income was up by 29%, driven by higher loan and
trade bills balance, improvement in asset yields and reduction in
the cost of deposits in the year. The increase in non-interest income
was underpinned by higher customer transaction volumes, and the
stronger contribution generated by the provision of treasury products
and services to our commercial customers.

The overall loan balance of our Commercial Banking businesses,
including trade finance, trade bills and commercial loans for use
outside Hong Kong, but excluding commercial banking loans booked
by our subsidiaries in Macau and China, was up 12% relative to
2011, with cross-border trade finance (mainly through trade bills),
local wholesale and retail trade commercial lending, and equipment
finance were the main growth drivers. We continued to develop our
cross-border RMB business concentrating on trade finance and other
financing products to support the financing needs of the Hong Kong
trading arms of PRC enterprises.

During 2012, Commercial Banking continued its focus on providing
value-added banking services to small and medium enterprises
(“SME”) in Hong Kong. With the launch of the enhanced version
of the SME Financing Guarantee Scheme (“SFGS”) by the Hong
Kong Mortgage Corporation (“HKMC”), we had partnered with
HKMC to hold seminars for various trade associations in Hong Kong
including the Federation for Hong Kong Industries and The Chinese
Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong. As a result of our effort, we
achieved a meaningful market share in the SFGS program as of the
end of 2012.

The asset quality of our Commercial Banking loan portfolio remained
benign in general, with low overdue and impaired loan ratios. Overall
impairment provision was a net write-back, mainly caused by the
write-back in collective impairment provision, a reflection of sound
asset quality and strong financial positions of our commercial
customers.

Our Commercial Banking business is one of the key contributors to
the profit increase of our Banking Group in 2012.
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Treasury

Our Treasury division, on the back of stronger net interest income and
non-interest income, achieved significantly higher profitability when
compared with 2011.

Global investment and money markets were generally more stable
relative to 2011, as the market in 2011 suffered from renewed
concerns relating to Europe during the third quarter, causing higher
market volatility and uncertainties during the second half year in 2011.
The improved market conditions in 2012 enabled our Treasury to
invest surplus funds at higher yields, even though the overall pool of
assets deployed by our Treasury only increased modestly. Liquidity
continued to be managed in a conservative manner, with liquid asset
balance and liquidity ratio maintained at prudent levels.

All major areas of our Treasury business outperformed 2011, including
the investment book, money market business, trading, marketing and
sales.

Working with our Commercial Banking division, our Treasury division
provided more treasury transactions and services to Commercial
Banking customers in 2012, and was able to generate higher non-
interest income when compared with 2011, in addition to the normal
foreign exchange and other trading income.

To manage down our risk exposures on some of our securities
investments, we continued to make securities disposals during the
year, and realized a higher loss on disposal. An additional impairment
provision for a credit investment was also made. Total charge of
impairment provision and securities disposal loss was broadly similar
to 2011.

Banco Comercial de Macau

Banco Comercial de Macau (“BCM”) is a wholly owned subsidiary
bank of Dah Sing Bank offering a comprehensive range of commercial
and retail banking products and services in Macau, and operated a
total of 14 branches in Macau as of the end of 2012.

BCM'’s loans and deposits grew 10.4% and 5.5% respectively relative
to the end of 2011, with a loan to deposit ratio of 73.8% at 2012
year end. Loan growth was driven mainly by mortgage loans. It is
encouraging to see growth recorded in trade finance, vehicle finance,
credit card and personal loan, although these loan balances remained
relatively small in the BCM loan portfolio.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |
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Banco Comercial de Macau (Continued)

With higher asset yields and an increase in interest-earning assets,
BCM recorded 18% increase in net interest income. Although its cost
of deposit increased year-on-year, competition for deposits in Macau
generally moderated in 2012, and BCM was able to lower the average
rate of its cost of deposits during the second half of the year, and
a steady improvement in its net interest margin, during the course
of 2012, was recorded. Total operating income grew by 10% when
compared with 2011, as its loan fee and foreign exchange income
were below 2011.

BCM’s profit in the year was boosted by the gain on fixed assets
disposal, even though higher collective impairment charge, due to
loan growth, was incurred.

BCM'’s 2012 net profit, measured on Macau local book basis, was up
by 25% on 2011. Adjusting for the amortisation of intangible assets
(recognised at the initial acquisition of BCM) and some Group level
adjustments, the 2012 profit of BCM recognised in our Group level
financial reporting was 36% higher than 2011.

Dah Sing Bank (China)

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited (“DSB China”) is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Dah Sing Bank and was locally incorporated in China in
2008.

DSB China recorded a strong growth in both loans and deposits in
2012, and ended the year with a healthy loan to deposit ratio at 67%.
Reporting under the Hong Kong financial reporting standards, DSB
China recorded a modest net profit contribution in 2012.

During 2012, DSB China expanded its customer base and industry
segments to further diversify its businesses, risk exposures and
deposit sources. In addition to the core commercial and retail banking
products and services, DSB China stepped up its development and
lending to SME and equipment finance customers.

DSB China now operates in 6 major cities in China, with a network
comprising the Shenzhen headquarters, and branches in Shanghai,
Nanchang, Zhenjiang and Guangzhou (with a sub-branch in Foshan),
offering a variety of services to our commercial, SME and equipment
finance, and retail banking customers in China.
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MEVAS (1931) (formerly MEVAS Bank)

The former MEVAS Bank (“MEVAS”) ceased its banking business in
2012, and the remaining customer relationships and business were
transferred to Dah Sing Bank. MEVAS’ banking licence was revoked
before the end of 2012, and its name was changed to MEVAS (1931)
Limited.

Bank of Chongging

Bank of Chongging (“BOCQ”) is the leading city commercial bank
in Chongqging. Chongqing is the largest city in Western China with
a population of over 32 million people, and is one of the 4 leading
municipalities in China reporting directly to Beijing. BOCQ operates
a branch network of over 100 branches and sub-branches, including
branches and sub-branches in Chengdu, Guiyang and Xian.

Benefiting from China Western Development and particularly the
strong economic performance of the greater Chongqing region,
BOCQ achieved another set of record results in 2012 with stronger
profitability.

BOCQ continued to record strong growth in loans and deposits, and
very benign asset quality with a low non-performing loan ratio and
high loan loss reserve coverage. Net profit in 2012 reached RMB1.93
billion, with a return on average equity of 26%. Total assets increased
to RMB156.2 billion, up 23% relative to 2011.

Our interest in BOCQ remained at 20%, and our share of BOCQ net
profit is incorporated in the Group’s profit on the equity accounting
basis and reported as the share of results of an associate, which
had risen from HK$353 million in 2011 to HK$491 million in 2012, an
increase of 39% including the effect of foreign exchange translation
gain.

Insurance Business

Our insurance business, consolidating the results of the life and
general insurance businesses in Hong Kong and Macau, reported
slightly lower profit when compared with 2011, due mainly to the
unfavourable impacts of changes in rates assumptions (interest rates,
valuation interest rates, long-term investment returns) affecting the
value of in-force of the long-term life business, and our provisions for
claims and reserves, despite the much stronger investment returns in
2012.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |
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RERZEF (| Insurance Business (Continued)
TRAERRBEN - ZE——FR_T—F2 The following provides a summary of the profit and loss of our
BaE Insurance Group in 2012 and 2011:
—gB-=F —ZT—F
BEER HK$ million 2012 2011
FIRE R EAA Net insurance premium and
(BERBE RMASKWAR other income including fee
RHSRERKZ and commission income,
BERREEBEZES) and the change in the value of
in-force long-term life business 1,562 2,044
REBRERZHFE Net insurance claims and expenses (2,094) (2,108)
& AW Investment and related income
FLEHA Interest income 284 264
FEERA Net trading income 583 126
LEMEZ NTE Net gain on fair value adjustment
PR F WS on investment properties 159 76
REAHIEERS Net gain on disposal of
2R E available-for-sale securities 18 103
HAitn g ERA Other operating income 32 20
NEt Sub total 1,076 589
B ST R H AR Operating expenses and other costs (218) (182)
RRBE AR Profit before taxation 326 345
B8 Taxation (19) (17)
FaA Net profit 311 328
TRARZZE—ZFR_ZE——FEERREZ The following is a summary of the net worth of our Insurance Group
BEFERNEBRTZEASRBIBARZEN and the solvency ratio of our key life insurance subsidiary in 2012 and
BN R 2011:
=F--F —T—F
BEER HK$ million 2012 2011
BRES Shareholders’ funds 1,812 1,501
BREBZAMREESE Value of in-force of life business 1,771 1,787
EEFE Net worth 3,583 3,288
RIFASRBZEAREN LR Solvency ratio of Dah Sing Life
Assurance 332% 279%

AremEEFRAR |
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Insurance Business (Continued)

Net insurance premium and other income was HK$1,562 million, lower
than the HK$2,044 million reported in 2011. Net insurance premium
remained at similar level with premium increase from new business
having been offset by the drop in renewal premium due to a block of
limited-pay policies becoming fully paid up in 2012. New business
sales were at a similar level relative to 2011, with our bancassurance
business including sales generated from the financial planners in
our retail branches particularly strong, offsetting lower sales from
the agency channel. Other income dropped by HK$487 million, due
mainly to a modest reduction in the change in the value of in-force
policies of the long-term life business caused by actuarial assumption
changes, against a much significant increase booked in 2011.

Our liabilities to policyholders under long-term insurance contracts
were determined on an actuarial basis including adjusting the
valuation rates with a consideration of the medium to long-term US
Government yields as the risk-free rates. In 2012, interest rates for
the medium to long-term further eased, resulting in the need to set
aside additional reserves to reflect the increase in our liabilities to
policyholders in the year.

Investment performance was strong for 2012, with significantly
higher trading income and fair value appreciation coming from the
investment portfolio and investment properties of our Insurance
Group. Net trading income jumped from HK$126 million in 2011 to
HK$583 million in 2012, with gains coming from both equity and bond
investments, which were very helpful in mitigating the increase in the
required reserving caused by the lower medium to long-term valuation
interest rates.

Operating expenses and other costs increased from HK$182 million to
HK$218 million, mainly due to higher staffing and IT system costs for
supporting the expansion of our insurance entities.

As at 31 December 2012, the total value of our Hong Kong and Macau
in-force life assurance businesses as calculated in conjunction with
the independent actuary was HK$1,771 million (relative to HK$1,787
million at the end of 2011). With profit retention and increase in
the investment revaluation reserve of our insurance subsidiaries’
available-for-sale investments, the shareholders’ funds employed in
our life and non-life insurance businesses increased, giving an overall
value for the insurance business in the accounts of the Group of
HK$3,583 million, up 9% when compared with the balance at 2011
year end.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |
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Insurance Business (Continued)

Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited (“DSLA”), the Group’s
key life insurance subsidiary in Hong Kong, continued to maintain a
healthy overall solvency ratio, which stood at 332% at 2012 year end
(relative to 279% at 2011 year end), well above the minimum required
regulatory level.

DSLA furthered its program to champion the “Can Do” Hong
Kong Spirit in the year through a series of marketing campaigns,
new insurance services and products to achieve service quality
improvement. In 2012, its marketing and branding campaigns
continued in generating positive responses, with recognition by
Metro Radio Broadcast, POAD and the Hong Kong Council of Social
Services for its work and effort in branding, marketing performance
and commitment to the betterment of the community and the
environment.

2012 was a year of substantial growth for our general insurance
business, particularly in commercial and liability businesses. With
higher gross premium income, we are pleased to report that our
general insurance business recorded higher and stronger profitability
in the year. It is also very encouraging for Dah Sing Insurance
Company (1976) Limited, the Group’s Hong Kong general insurance
subsidiary, to be recognized with “The Outstanding Brand Award”
under the category of Household Insurance by Hong Kong Economic
Digest, a leading local financial magazine in Hong Kong, in 2012.

During the year, we continued our strong focus in managing different
types of risk, and spent additional effort in strengthening our credit
risk management process including credit committee operations. We
also made further effort in refining our risk management governance,
development of new risk policies and oversight, including the work on
developing our new risk appetite framework, which will be put in place
in 2013.

We successfully accomplished the relocation of our data centre
in 2012, a complex project affecting our IT, businesses and
operations, with a higher degree of technology and operational risk.
With meticulous planning, close coordination and strong project
management, our data centre relocation was smooth, and was
achieved on time and within budget.
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RITEE Banking Group 2012 2011
MBS ERTT 2 & (B ARER Combined capital base of banking

(LLE&&Ta) subsidiaries (HK$ million)

—-RN+=-A=+—8 - at 31 December
— LB R - Core capital 10,510 9,363
— K anEA - Supplementary capital 4,665 4,252
MR 2 EARERERE Total capital base after deductions 15,175 13,615
BT R R Capital adequacy ratio*
— 1z - Core 10.3% 10.5%
— B - Overall 14.9% 15.2%
BB ELE (FEFY) Liquidity ratio (average for the year) 50.1% 44.7%

* RZE——F+ A=+ —AZELRRRLLETY
REBITER AT ([ KFRT]) (RIERPIEE
RITRMDBRRA ([RPIFERIT RAFE
T(RBE)BRAT ([AFHE])) & ZHH(1931)
BERAR([EHA931)] - AIBLRARITERA
Al BRZE—ZF+— A+ ARAKRER
R IEABBIFRIRITE H) 2R EMRBERT
¥ (ER)BRADSEERER N EPRATTEmE 6
thR e RZB——F+-A=+—HB2EAXKER
LRI RFRITZ AR AL E - L EARFT R EH
FTEBEERTISRBRARERR o

ERRZBITEBR B FR_ZB——F#
FRERRZEARFTELLE - ER _—FT—FM
RERIT ([RFIRTT ) EAHEBTHIEIRA
(ARHIRITEBMARQT(TAFRITER ) 2
TEATHBRARERR B FHBE T —EETX
Fo R -_F-FTFTFFRM) R - KHRT
SRR T —FTHEFRAFBITEAREIN
POEETTR A - AR BB AR IRTTHEARE

it o

AEBAELOERFESRMERE BRBECER
ZNNWEREARABBELFLE —FT—=F
— A BREAERZ ZE M 111E R BIFIK
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The capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2011 represents the
combined ratio of the consolidated position of Dah Sing Bank, Limited
(“DSB”) (covering Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. (“BCM”) and Dah
Sing Bank (China) Limited (“DSB China”)) and MEVAS (1931) Limited
(“Mevas (1931)”, formerly known as Mevas Bank Limited which had
ceased to be a licensed bank in Hong Kong with effect from the close
of business on 22 November 2012) computed on Basel Il basis with
reference to the Banking (Capital) Rules. The capital adequacy ratio as
at 31 December 2012 represents the consolidated ratio of DSB. These
capital adequacy ratios take into account market risk and operational
risk.

The Group’s banking business maintained relatively healthy capital
adequacy ratios in 2012 and 2011. Further to the injection of HK$1
billion new equity to Dah Sing Bank (“DSB”) in 2011 supported by Dah
Sing Banking Group Limited’s (“DSBG”) HK$1 billion rights issues
and also the Company’s own rights issue at HK$1.2 billion, both
concluded in late 2010, DSBG injected an additional HK$400 million
new equity to DSB in late 2012 to help bolster DSB’s capital base.

Based on the capital rules including the transition arrangement
consistent with the Basel Il capital standards prescribed by the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority, we are confident that we will be able to
operate at capital levels in 2013 meeting the HKMA and the new Basel
Il capital rules that have come into effect starting from 1 January
2013.
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During the year, DSB issued a new Lower Tier 2 subordinated debt at
S$225 million (approximately US$180 million at the time of issue) in
February 2012, and after receiving the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
approval, DSB exercised its call option to fully redeem US$150 million
Lower Tier 2 subordinated debt in August 2012.

Our Banking Group continued to maintain throughout the year a
very high liquidity ratio backed by a strong pool of liquid assets
including cash and placements with banks, and diversified marketable
securities held for investment and liquidity purposes.

The Group’s banking business adopted its new medium term strategy
and a set of updated guiding principles and values in 2011. During
2012, a series of corporate value building training and programs to
deepen staff members’ understanding of our mission and vision,
guiding principles and values were conducted. These helped foster
a stronger organization culture, with the emphasis on customer
commitment, service quality and operational excellence. To support
the Group’s commitment in enhancing staff’s competence and
professionalism, we continued to invest in staff training.

We continued our effort to ensure that our remuneration system and
practices are consistent with the requirements set out in the Guideline
on a Sound Remuneration System issued by the HKMA, including
our risk management framework, and proper review mechanism to
support the achievement of long-term financial soundness of the
Group while remaining competitive in attracting and retaining talents.

We continued our work to improve the service excellence, teamwork,
caring and trust culture throughout the organization. Our staff social
club continued to promote staff and family well-being, and organised
different social and sports activities to help promote wellness, affinity,
friendship, health and community services. We are also among the
very first group of companies that participated in the Caring Company
Campaign initiated by the Hong Kong Council of Social Services.
We have been awarded as a “Caring Company” for more than ten
consecutive years since the recognition was launched, and have
become a member of the first group of Hong Kong companies to have
the “10+ years Caring Company” recognition.

The Group’s headcount increased in 2012 as a result of our business
growth and increasing demand for human resources to strengthen our
capabilities in both business units and support functions. The total
number of employees of our Group, including our staff in Macau and
China, increased from 2,385 at the end of 2011 to 2,451 at the end of
2012.
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The Group is committed to high standards of corporate governance,
and observes all of the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) under Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

This report is issued in accordance with Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules, and explains how the Company applies the principles of the
Code.

The Company has adopted its code for directors’ securities
transactions on terms no less exacting than the prevailing required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers under Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.
Following specific enquiry, the Directors of the Company confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the year.

The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company so as to promote its success and continued growth.
The Board is also responsible for ensuring that the Company has
sound systems of risk management, internal control and regulatory
compliance. The Directors, collectively and individually, have a duty to
act in good faith, and to take decisions objectively in the interests of
the Group. The Board sets the business objectives for the Company,
and monitors the execution of those objectives by the management of
the Company.

Board Composition, Meetings and Board training

The Board is made up of Messrs. David Shou-Yeh Wong (Chairman),
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) (Chief Executive), Gary Pak-Ling Wang
and Nicholas John Mayhew as executive directors, Messrs. Takashi
Morimura, Takami Onodera (alternate to Mr. Takashi Morimura),
Hidekazu Horikoshi and John Wai-Wai Chow as non-executive
directors, and Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze, Dr. Tai-Lun Sun (Dennis Sun),
Mr. Lon Dounn, Mr. Seiji Nakamura and Dr. Yuan Shu as independent
non-executive directors. Brief biographical details of the directors are
set out on pages 6 to 10.
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Board Composition, Meetings and Board training (Continued)

Board meetings are held at least four times each year at
approximately quarterly intervals, and additional board meetings
are held as necessary. Details of Directors’ attendance at the Board
meetings and the annual general meeting (the “AGM”) in 2012 and
training on the roles, functions and duties of directors organized by

the Company on 4 December 2012 are set out in the following table:-

BEaiEi

BHER

Exgg [ES Board

Board BEXE training

meetings AGM attendance

—E-—FREEEAHEREARE Total number of meeting(s) held in 2012 6 1 -
BUHITEE Independent Non-Executive Directors

B Robert Tsai-To Sze 6/6 1 =

Yes

YN Tai-Lun Sun (Dennis Sun) 6/6 0 <3

Yes

EEE Lon Dounn 4/4 0 3

(R=—F——FH—HEZE) (appointed with effect from 1 April 2012) Yes

PREIR Seiji Nakamura 2/3 TEA = (f5E1)

(R=F——FNH—HEZL) (appointed with effect from 1 June 2012) N.A.  No (Note 1)

#7T Yuan Shu 1/1 TEMA I~

(R=F——F+ = AIHEZ(E) (appointed with effect from 4 December 2012) N.A. Yes

#JKEA Nicholas Robert Sallnow-Smith 2/2 TiEA i

(R=F——FpF—HRF) (resigned with effect from 1 April 2012) N.A. N.A.

HHTEE Non-Executive Directors

SNE Takashi Morimura 2/6 0 K( fizE2)

No (Note 2)

HER John Wai-Wai Chow 6/6 1 3

Yes

BB — Hidekazu Horikoshi 3/3 TEA % (KI5E3)

(R=F—=—F)|H/\HEZT) (appointed with effect from 8 August 2012) N.A.  No (Note 3)

FHER Akimitsu Ashida 1/2 TEH B

(R=ZF——F/A—HFHF) (resigned with effect from 1 April 2012) N.A. N.A.

ANEET Hidemitsu Otsuka 3/3 0 TNER

(R=F—=—FNANNHLEE) (resigned with effect from 8 August 2012) N.A.
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Board Composition, Meetings and Board training (Continued)

BEx=gdl
ZE1ER
Exgel S Board
Board BEXE training
meetings AGM attendance
HITEE Executive Directors
TF¥ David Shou-Yeh Wong 6/6 1 I
Yes
a3 Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) 6/6 1 3
Yes
Tk Gary Pak-Ling Wang 6/6 1 p3
Yes
EhEE Nicholas John Mayhew 6/6 1 I~
Yes
ZEE Roderick Stuart Anderson 3/3 1 i A
(RZFB——FNA—HZEMNL) (retired with effect from 1 June 2012) N.A.
i3 Notes:
1. FMRBEREER S —F2 N EEREEEL 1. Mr. Seiji Nakamura attended training courses on various subject

HAIERIE - BREEREERER - AAKERS
EHWHOR -

2. THEXERZT-_F2MEBEIEREIE
JIERIE - BREUREERMEEE - AR ARRE
BIE| o

3. BEFS—EER-_ZT-—_FRNZFEIEFEREZ
EAIERIE - RERELEERTTR - BELINE
ZRARBEBE  UERRESETIS °

THARCESEEERTURD THRELE
HoNERBEESARERNRF - EBAEE
=Y NELAASEAM EZAETIR
TRAIAEEE AR RAMERLE RERIIAE
FEEHERRE L ANER AR WERER
ZEEZNERTESSNESZER ZTHEL
¥ RESILBEEEMESRLSEBMR
EEAAEFEAEER -

matters including Global Economic Developments, Outlook of Japanese
economy and Monetary Policy in 2012.

2. Mr. Takashi Morimura attended training courses on various subject
matters including World Economy and Financial Review, and Human
Rights Enlightenment training in 2012.

3. Mr. Hidekazu Horikoshi attended training courses on various subject
matters including Direction of China’s Economy, Hong Kong External
Trade and Internationalization of Renminbi, and the Financial Market of
Tokyo in 2012.

Notice of at least 14 days is given of regular Board meetings to give
all Directors an opportunity to attend. For all other Board meetings,
reasonable notice is given in advance. Directors may submit to the
Company Secretary, in writing, and at least seven days in advance,
matters that they would like to include in the agenda for regular Board
meetings. Minutes of the Board and committees of the Board are kept
by the Company Secretary or the secretary of the relevant committee,
and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
notice by any director.
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Board Composition, Meetings and Board training (Continued)

Directors may, upon reasonable request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expense. In circumstances where Directors believe that independent
advice is needed, they should approach the Company Secretary or
the Chief Executive in the first instance with their request. No such
request will be unreasonably denied, and the Company Secretary
or the Chief Executive will endeavor to identify and engage an
appropriate professional adviser at the expense of the Company. The
Company maintains appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal
action against its Directors.

All directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject
to election by shareholders at the first general meeting after their
appointment. Every director, including those appointed for a specific
term, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility of running
the Group to the executive management, and has delegated
responsibility for certain matters to a number of committees, which
are described more fully in the following sections. There are a number
of matters which require the deliberation of the full Board, and may
not be delegated to the committees of the Board or the executive
management. These reserved matters include:

° Transactions that a substantial shareholder or a director has a
conflict of interest;

° Material acquisitions or disposals at an amount that exceeds
10% of the lower of the Company’s net asset value or market
capitalization at the relevant time;

o Material investments or disposals of investments (except for
normal investment or dealing in securities in the ordinary course
of deploying the surplus funds or investment funds of the
Group);

o Any material change in the nature of the Group’s business;
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Board Composition, Meetings and Board training (Continued)

° Appointment of new directors;

° Approval of relevant policies; and

o Approval of annual budget.

The Company acknowledges that there are two key aspects of its
management — the management of the Board and the day-to-day
management of its business, and that there should be a clear division
of these responsibilities at the Board level to ensure a balance of
power and authority, so that no one individual should have unfettered
powers of decision. The roles and objectives of the Chairman, Mr.
David Shou-Yeh Wong, and the Chief Executive, Mr. Hon-Hing Wong
(Derek Wong), are therefore separated and have been approved
by the Board. The Chairman mainly provides leadership for the
Board to ensure that the Board works effectively and discharges its
responsibilities, and all key and appropriate issues are discussed by
the Board in a timely manner. The Chief Executive is responsible for
the day-to-day management of the Company to provide business
direction and operational leadership for the benefit of the Group’s
businesses, enhance shareholder value and ensure sound internal

control.

The Company has four non-executive directors and five independent
non-executive directors. Each of the independent non-executive
directors has provided to the Company confirmation of independence
as required by Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company has
complied with Rule 3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10A with sufficient number
of independent non-executive directors who possess the appropriate
professional qualifications and experience.

Non-executive directors are appointed for a specific term, subject
to re-election. The term of appointment of non-executive directors
is normally for a term which coincides with their expected dates of
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |
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Non-executive directors, as equal Board members, give the Board
and any committees on which they serve the benefit of their skills,
expertise and varied backgrounds and qualifications through regular
attendance and active participation. They attend regular and special
Board meetings, and are encouraged to attend the general or special
meeting of the shareholders of the Company. The non-executive
directors make valuable contribution to the development of the
Company’s strategy and policies through independent, constructive
and informed comments and suggestions.

Nomination of Directors

The terms of reference of the Board sets out the requirement for a
formal, considered and transparent procedure for the appointment
of new directors to the Board. The terms of reference also explicitly
prohibit the delegation of decisions regarding the appointment of
new directors to sub-committees of the Board or to the management
of the Company, and require that such appointments are made after
deliberation by the full Board.

Remuneration of Directors

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Company in
August 2005 with specific written terms of reference setting out its
role and responsibilities. The Committee was reconstituted as the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company in August
2006 with a set of updated terms of reference. It is responsible,
among other things, for the review of the nomination of new directors,
approval of the remuneration of directors and senior management.
In December 2010, the Committee’s terms of reference were further
updated to cover the following additional roles and responsibilities:

- To assist the Board in discharging its responsibility for the
design and operation of the Company’s remuneration system;

- To review and make recommendation in respect of the
Company’s remuneration policy and practices to the Board;

- To be delegated with the responsibility of the Board to
determine the specific remuneration packages of Senior
Management as defined in the Group Remuneration Policy; and
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Remuneration of Directors (Continued)

- To ensure that regular review of the Company’s remuneration
system and its operation is conducted.

The majority of the members are independent non-executive
directors. The terms of reference for the Committee are available for
inspection at the Company’s registered office and website.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee held three meetings in
2012. The current members of the Committee and their attendance
records in 2012 are set out below:

Number of meetings held in 2012 3
Robert Tsai-To Sze (Chairman) 3/3
Tai-Lun Sun (Dennis Sun) 3/3
Nicholas Robert Sallnow-Smith 11
(resigned with effect from 1 April 2012)
Seiji Nakamura (appointed on 1 June 2012) 1/2
David Shou-Yeh Wong 3/3
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) 3/3

The work of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee during
2012 included:

- Determining and approving the remuneration levels for
executive directors and senior management

- Reviewing the nomination of directors to the Board and senior
management of the Company and of the Group

- Reviewing the terms of reference of the Committee

- Reviewing the Group’s remuneration policy and related systems
and practices

- Reviewing the disclosure on the Company’s remuneration
systems and practices

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |
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The Group Remuneration Policy

The Group’s policy on remuneration is to maintain fair and competitive
packages for its employees, which are commensurate with market
terms, and are based on business needs, expertise and quality of
the individuals, and with proper reference to industry practice and
regulatory guidelines.

For determining the level of fees paid to members of the Board of
Directors, market rates and factors such as each director’s workload
and required commitment will be taken into account. The following
factors are considered when determining the remuneration packages
of executive directors:

- Business needs and performance

- The economy and business conditions in general

- Each individual’s contributions to the Group

- Risk related performance

- Reference to market pay level commensurate with the
individual’s responsibility

- Consideration of regulatory guidelines

- Retention considerations and each individual’s potential

During the process of consideration, no individual director will be
involved in decisions relating to his/her own remuneration.

Auditors’ Independence and Remuneration

The Company has reviewed and is satisfied with the independence of
the Company’s external auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”),
for performing the audit of the Group’s financial statements.

The Company will use the non-audit services of PwC only when
the Company can benefit in a cost-effective manner and the
independence and objectivity of PwC as the Company’s external
auditors can be maintained. Otherwise, professional services from
other firms are used.



BBz B LIRS @)

BRAEBMBZBREIN  BEAKEABTRERFRZ
T FFERNRAEEREFZUINRE N
WRMEREGELER  RHTBERRS - FHAX
%l¢%%ﬁ“ﬁ$ﬁ ERNFRAFIETHE

NRIZHEETBNM ST R EEER
@Zﬁﬁo

FAREZMMERE XN TR IGEZER
HBHRMBIRRMEE12 -

MARREEERIZEREZES  AEREY
BaE 2 BB RAMEN - AT A RREESE &
EEERARE - HEEZTE REHAEEI
BREMIEREREME  ARARREMmE
B MREEFCREIRTLERE BER
REPTEIEREE 2 @5 R B E AR -

ZEERNEZTEMINERBEN 265 - BRI
SREES ZEERBERZEERTMESR
SN RZERED 2 B R BB URBRERFZ
B o

ZRUBMRERAQA L FERPHHGRE
2B - BIEEURRES FIRE 2 B

ZEERAARRZAREE  YAEESRSE
HIBRaaRRIEHER - AR A5 ERES
F&TE@?E@%}ZEATX C EREREE RN I
BEHAZRERERR  RFEEMBREMEN
BEREER MaE 2 B LM HRE -

ERZEG REREA R AR MR ER
WELER -

X
DJHW

\

Auditors’ Independence and Remuneration (Continued)

In addition to audit related services, PwC, based on agreed-upon
procedures, provided the Group non-audit services during 2012
by rendering review of tax returns and computation, tax advisory
services, review of the Group’s interim financial disclosure, and review
of the update on the offering circular of Dah Sing Bank, Limited’s
US$2 Billion Euro Medium Term Note Programme.

Details of the fees payable to PwC for the year for audit and audit-
related services are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

The Audit Committee, established by the Board of the Company, is
responsible for ensuring the objectivity and credibility of financial
reporting, reviewing the internal control system and compliance with
regulatory requirements, and approving audit plans and reviewing
findings and reports of the internal and external auditors, and that in
presenting results to the shareholders, the directors have exercised
the care, diligence and skills prescribed by laws, and that appropriate
accounting and financial reporting standards are followed.

The Committee makes recommendation to the Board on the selection,
oversight and remuneration of external auditors. The Committee
reviews and monitors the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards.

The Committee reviews and monitors the integrity of the Company’s
annual and interim financial statements, including significant financial

reporting judgements used in producing the financial statements.

The Committee reviews the Company’s internal controls and reports
its major findings and comments to the Board. Descriptions of the
Company’s internal control system are set out below, whilst for
risk management, these are shown in the Supplementary Financial
Information under Risk Management and described with appropriate
financial quantification in the Financial Risk Management sections as
notes to the annual financial statements.

The terms of reference for the Audit Committee are available for
inspection at the Company’s registered office and website.
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The members of the Committee are Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze
(Chairman), Mr. Lon Dounn and Mr. John Wai-Wai Chow. Majority
of the members of the Committee are independent non-executive
directors and the remaining member is a non-executive director,
and the members have extensive experience in banking, finance
and business management. The Committee’s chairman, Mr. Sze,
is a qualified accountant and was a partner of a predecessor firm
of PricewaterhouseCoopers up to June 1996. None of the other
committee members are employed by or otherwise affiliated with the
former or existing external auditors of the Company.

The Committee members meet at least three times a year with the
Company’s senior management, the head of internal audit and the

external auditors. In 2012, a total of three meetings were held.

The attendance record of individual directors at the Audit Committee
meetings in 2012 is set out below:

Number of Audit Committee meetings in 2012 3

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Robert Tsai-To Sze (Chairman) 3/3
John Wai-Wai Chow 3/3
Lon Dounn (appointed with effect from 1 April 2012) 2/2
Nicholas Robert Sallnow-Smith 11

(resigned with effect from 1 April 2012)

To enable directors to be informed of the discussions and decisions
of the Audit Committee, the minutes of the Audit Committee meetings
are included in the board papers of regular board meetings sent to
directors.

The following is a summary of the work of the Audit Committee during
2012 in discharging its responsibilities:

a. Review of, and providing advice and recommendations to the
Board for the approval of the 2011 results announcements and
audited financial statements of the Group, and the 2012 interim
report;

b. Review of external auditors’ findings and comments, and
management’s reports on major accounting and financial
disclosure matters in respect of 2011 audit and financial
statements;
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Review of the Corporate Governance Report of 2011 for
inclusion in the Company’s 2011 annual report and the key
changes to the Corporate Governance Code of the Listing
Rules;

Approval of the reports to the Board providing a summary of the
issues, focuses and discussion reviewed and dealt with by the
Audit Committee in the second half of 2011 and the first half of
2012;

Review of connected party transactions and disclosure;

Review and approval of the appointment and remuneration of
external auditors;

Review of the findings and recommendations of the external
auditors;

Review and approval of the external auditors’ audit plan;

Review and approval of internal audit plan;

Review of the internal audit’s work, findings and recommendations;

Review of update from Group Legal and Compliance on the
Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”) examinations and
regulatory concerns, management’s actions in implementing the
HKMA'’s recommendations;

Review of the highlight of major new accounting and financial
reporting standards and guidance issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and impact to the
Group on their adoption; and

Review of significant accounting treatments for the preparation
of 2012 financial statements.
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Accountability and Audit of Financial Statements

It is the responsibility of the Board to present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospects.

Management is responsible for providing such explanation and
information to the Board to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the financial and other information put before the
Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. As at 31 December 2012, the
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. The Directors have prepared
the financial statements of the Group on a going-concern basis.
The responsibility of the Group’s external auditor on the financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report attached to
the Group’s financial statements.

The Board is also responsible for providing a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment to annual and interim reports, other
price-sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules, as well as to information required to
be disclosed pursuant to statutory or regulatory requirements.

Internal Controls

The Board has delegated to management the responsibility to
develop and maintain a sound internal control system. The internal
control system, operating through a framework of management and
operational controls, and risk management systems, is intended to
allow the Board to monitor the Group’s business performance and
financial positions, to control and adjust risk exposures, to adopt
sound business practices, to obtain reasonable assurance on controls
against fraud and errors, to ensure compliance with applicable laws
and regulations, and to exercise oversight on and provide guidance
to management in achieving the Company’s objectives. However, it
should be recognized that the Group’s internal control procedures
can only provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance against material
errors, losses or fraud.
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A clear management organizational structure is set up with well-
defined lines of authority, accountability and responsibilities.

- Specialized committees are formed to oversee and control
significant risk factors, such as credit risk, liquidity and interest
rate risks, operational risk and compliance risk.

- Regular reporting of the performance of the Company’s
businesses to senior management and management
committees including the Executive Committee. Actual
performance results against budgets are closely monitored. The
Board reviews the Group’s business and financial performance
on a quarterly basis.

- Written policies and procedures are established to facilitate
proper assessment of customers, services to customers,
segregation of duties, accuracy and completeness of
transaction processing, safeguarding of assets, credit control
and risk monitoring, control of business exposures, compliance
control and monitoring (including anti-money laundering),
staff training, IT development, IT governance and information
security, business continuity planning, financial control
(including accounting, regulatory reporting, financial reporting
to comply with regulatory and financial reporting standards,
management accounting and budget control, reconciliation of
accounts), and system of management oversight including the
operations of various functional committees.

- The independent internal audit function monitors compliance
with management policies and procedures, and regulatory
requirements; and will conduct a wide variety of internal
control reviews and audit activities such as compliance audits
and operations and systems reviews to ensure the integrity,
efficiency and effectiveness of the systems of control. The Head
of Internal Audit reports functionally to the Audit Committee and
administratively to the Chief Executive with direct access to the
Executive Committee.
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Internal Controls (Continued)

- The independent group risk function monitors and reports the
Group’s risk positions and analysis to the Risk Management and
Compliance Committee, Executive Committee and the Board,
and operates to sustain a sound asset quality in the portfolio of
the Group’s businesses with due consideration of a proper risk
and return balance.

- The Group’s business continues its ongoing upgrade of risk
management framework and capabilities to strengthen its risk
control and effectiveness, which are key to the maintenance of
sound internal control process of the Group.

- The Group Compliance Committee at the management level
serves to uphold a high level of awareness and accountability
of compliance requirements and is responsible for overseeing
and guiding the development, maintenance and enhancement
of compliance system, policies and practices to ensure
compliance with all statutory requirements and regulatory
guidelines. The Legal and Compliance Division of the Group
performs an independent on-going monitoring role on the
Group’s compliance with relevant rules and regulations.

Assessment of Internal Control System

In assessing the effectiveness of the internal control system, the
Board has considered reviews performed by the Audit Committee and
executive management, and the findings of both internal and external
auditors.

The 2012 reviews included an annual assessment of internal control
system with reference to the provisions of the Code regarding internal
controls. Under the direction of the Audit Committee, the Group’s
Internal Audit in the year conducted an assessment covering all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management practices. The Group will continue to
work to enhance its internal control system and processes.
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(1) Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Shareholder(s) holding not less than 5 percent of the paid-up capital
of the Company may put forth requisition to convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting of the Company.

The requisition must (i) state the objectives of the meeting, (ii) be
signed by the requisitionist(s) and (jiii) be deposited at the Company’s
registered office at 36th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 108
Gloucester Road, Hong Kong. It may also consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more requisitionist(s).

The requisition must also state (i) the name(s) of the requisitionist(s),
(i) the contact details of the requisitionists(s) and (iii) the number of
ordinary shares of the Company held by the requisitionist(s).

The Directors must proceed to convene an Extraordinary General
Meeting within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the requisition.
Such meeting should be held on a day not more than 28 days after the
date on which the notice convening the meeting is given.

If the Directors fail to convene the Extraordinary General Meeting
as aforesaid, the requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene the meeting. Any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months from the date of the deposit of the
requisition.

A meeting so convened by the requisitionist(s) shall be convened in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are
to be convened by the Directors.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) by reason of

the failure of the Directors to duly convene a meeting shall be repaid
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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(2) Putting forward proposals at general meetings

Shareholders holding not less than 25 percent of the paid-up capital
of the Company, or, not less than 50 shareholders each holding
specified number of shares in the Company, may:

- put forward a proposal at a general meeting

- circulate to other shareholders a written statement with respect
to matters to be dealt with at a general meeting

Shareholders may refer to Section 115A of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for further details on the
shareholder qualifications and the procedures and timeline in
connection with the above.

(3) Submission of enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board’s attention
to the Company Secretary at the Company’s registered office.
Questions about the procedures for convening or putting forward
proposals at an Annual General Meeting or Extraordinary General
Meeting may also be put to the Company Secretary.

The Company has not changed its Memorandum and Articles of
Association in 2012.

The Company Secretary of the Company possesses the relevant
qualifications and experience pursuant to the requirements of rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. She
has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the financial year ended 31 December 2012.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2012.

The principal activity of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is investment holding. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries are shown in Note 33 to the financial statements. An
analysis of the performance of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year by business and geographical segments are set
out in Note 5 to the financial statements.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 67.

The Directors declared an interim dividend of HK$0.29 per share and
a total of HK$85,992,725.02 in cash was paid on 26 September 2012.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.89
per share in cash, totalling HK$263,908,707.82.

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
shown in Note 49 to the financial statements.

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 50 to the financial statements.

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$1,494,000.

Movements in the fixed assets of the Group during the year are shown
in Note 35 to the financial statements.
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The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

David Shou-Yeh Wong

Chairman

Robert Tsai-To Sze*

Tai-Lun Sun (Dennis Sun) B.B.S., J.P.*

Lon Dounn*

(appointed with effect from 1 April 2012)

Seiji Nakamura*
(appointed with effect from 1 June 2012)

Yuan Shu*
(appointed with effect from 4 December 2012)

Takashi Morimura

Hidekazu Horikoshi
(appointed with effect from 8 August 2012)

John Wai-Wai Chow

Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Managing Director and Chief Executive

Gary Pak-Ling Wang

Nicholas John Mayhew

Takami Onodera

(confirmed to be an alternate to Takashi Morimura with effect from

8 August 2012)

Nicholas Robert Sallnow-Smith*
(resigned with effect from 1 April 2012)

Akimitsu Ashida
(resigned with effect from 1 April 2012)

Hidemitsu Otsuka

(resigned with effect from 8 August 2012)
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Shugo Aoto
(ceased to be an alternate to Akimitsu Ashida with effect from 1 April
2012)

Takashi Morisaki
(ceased to act as alternate to Takashi Morimura with effect from 8
August 2012)

Roderick Stuart Anderson
(retired with effect from 1 June 2012)

* Independent Non-executive Directors

In accordance with Article 110 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, one-third (or the number nearest to but not exceeding
one-third) of the Directors being those who have been longest in office
shall retire by rotation at each annual general meeting. The Directors
retiring under Article 110 are, however, eligible for re-election.

In accordance with Article 114 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, any Director who is appointed at any time shall retain his
office until the next following annual general meeting of the Company
at which he shall retire and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

The Company has received an annual confirmation from each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors as regards their continued
independence while serving as members of the Board of Directors
during the year, and the Company still considers all the Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent.

Pursuant to the recommended best practice no. A.4.3 under the
Corporate Governance Code (Appendix 14 of The Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “SEHK?”) (the “Listing Rules”)), an independent non-executive
director serving more than nine years shall be subject to a separate
resolution of shareholders for re-election. The Company is aware that
Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze and Dr. Tai-Lun Sun (Dennis Sun), each in their
capacity as an Independent Non-executive Director, have served the
Board for a period of more than nine years. The Board holds the view
that Mr. Sze and Dr. Sun are able to provide valuable independent
advice and role to the Board in its deliberations and decision-making
process. Related shareholders’ approvals at the last annual general
meeting held on 25 May 2012 were received to continue the terms of
directorships of both Mr. Sze and Dr. Sun, and which shall however be
subject to retire on the regular basis.
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As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the Chief Executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the SEHK pursuant to Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they have taken on or
are deemed to have acquired under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required pursuant to the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or as otherwise required to be notified to the
Company and the SEHK pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers and the code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions adopted by the Company
were as follows:

a) Interests in shares of the Company and associated
corporation

MR

HEEC R

RABSH

Percentage

of share

ROHE interest

Number of shares in the

BARER EEER Hitgs BitER relevant

Personal Corporate Other Total share capital

= Directors Interests Interests® Interests Interests in issue
EAAARSREE Number of ordinary shares of
2BTEBRRR A HK$2 each in the Company

FFE David Shou-Yeh Wong - 9,070,114  111,671,848% 120,741,962 40.72

[EEE John Wai-Wai Chow 1,082,505 - - 1,082,505 0.37
EAAHBTRERRAR Number of ordinary shares of

SREE1ER HK$1 each in Dah Sing
ERRRAG Banking Group Limited

FFE David Shou-Yeh Wong - 933,447,896 - 933,447,896 74.59

[AEE John Wai-Wai Chow 186,376 - - 186,376 0.01

KB Nicholas John Mayhew 22,000 - - 22,000 0.00
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Interests in shares of the Company and associated
corporation (Continued)

The corporate interest is in respect of shares held by a company in which
the director has an interest of one third or more.

Such shares are indirectly held by HSBC International Trustee Limited, a
trustee of a discretionary trust established for the benefit of David Shou-
Yeh Wong and his family members.

Such shares represent an indirect corporate interest of David Shou-Yeh
Wong in Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”) under Part XV of the
SFO by virtue of his beneficial share interest of 40.72% in the Company
which currently holds a controlling interest of 74.59% in DSBG as at the
record date.

In addition to the interest in DSBG disclosed above, Nicholas John
Mayhew is also beneficially interested in all of the preference shares in
issue totalling HK$700 of DSE Investment Services Limited’s (“DSE”), a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company which is currently dormant.

Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and associated corporation

i) Share option scheme of the Company

The shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of the
new Share Option Scheme (“DSFH Option Scheme”) on 28 April
2005.

In accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, a
summary of the DSFH Option Scheme is disclosed as follows:

(1)  Purpose of the DSFH Option Scheme:

The purpose of the DSFH Option Scheme is to provide an
incentive and/or reward to grantees for their contribution
to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests of, the
Group.

(2) Participants of the DSFH Option Scheme:

Any director, manager, or other employee holding an
executive, managerial or supervisory position in the Group
as the Board may in its sole discretion determine to be
eligible to participate in the DSFH Option Scheme.
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(b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and associated corporation (Continued)

i)
3)

Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

Total number of shares available for issue under the DSFH
Option Scheme and percentage of issued share capital as
of 31 December 2012:

The number of shares available for issue under the DSFH
Option Scheme is 11,071,512 shares, representing 3.73%
of the total issued share capital of the Company as at 31
December 2012.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the DSFH
Option Scheme:

No options may be granted to any eligible person which, if
exercised, would result in such eligible person becoming
entitled to subscribe for such number of shares as, when
aggregated with the total number of shares already issued
or to be issued to him under all options granted to him in
the 12-month period up to and including the offer date of
relevant options, exceed 1% of the shares in issue at such
date. Any grant of further options above the limit shall be
subject to the provisions of the DSFH Option Scheme and
the Listing Rules as amended from time to time.

Period within which the shares must be taken up under an
option:

The exercise period is determined by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee on behalf of the Board
of the Company, and is specified when related options
are granted. Shares under the options must be taken up
within 10 years from the date of grant. All the existing
share options under the DSFH Option Scheme shall be
exercisable upon vesting in varying amounts between the
first and sixth anniversaries from the date of grant.
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(b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and associated corporation (Continued)

)
©6)

Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

Minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised:

The minimum holding period is determined by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of
the Board of the Company, and is specified when related
options are granted. None of the existing share options
under the DSFH Option Scheme shall be exercisable
within one year from the date of grant.

Amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments or calls must
or may be made or loans for such purpose must be repaid:

The amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1
and must be made within 28 days upon offer of granting
of options or such period the Board may determine from
time to time.

Basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price per option share is concluded by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of
the Board of the Company on the basis no less exacting
than the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the Listing
Rules and is determined as no less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the Company’s shares traded on the
SEHK on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing prices
of the Company’s shares traded on the SEHK for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iiiy the nominal value of the shares of HK$2 each in the
capital of the Company.
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(b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and associated corporation (Continued)

i) Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

(9) Remaining life of the DSFH Option Scheme:

The DSFH Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a period of 10 years commencing from 28 April 2005 and
expiring at the close of 27 April 2015.

Pursuant to the DSFH Option Scheme, certain Directors
of the Company and its major operating subsidiaries were
granted options under the DSFH Option Scheme. Details of
the movements during the year ended, and the status as at, 31
December 2012 of the Company’s outstanding share options

FREGZFBOT ¢ which have been granted under the DSFH Option Scheme are
as follows:
IREREZALARAEE
Number of the Company’s shares in the options
R-F-2f R=B-ZF
-f-B %2R ZF-ZFR TZAZT-H 8
b b X% %8 k8 Exercise period
Held at Granted Lapsed Held at Exercise RYEH ] B
ERA Grantee 1172012 during2012  during 2012 31/12/2012 price  Grant date From To
Bt (B/A/E)  (B/RE)  (BIAVE)
HKS (d/mry) (d/msy) (d/mry)
Bz Director
KEE Nicholas John Mayhew 104,475 - - 104,475 59.280  28/9/2007  28/9/2008  28/9/2013
Eaage Aggregate of employees®? 104,475 - - 104,475 50287 28/9/2007  28/9/2008  28/9/2013
750,000 - - 750,000 4000 1212011 12122012 121122017
- 400,000 - 400,000 3825 21422012 21/12/2013  21/12/2018
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Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and associated corporation (Continued)

i)
Notes:

)

Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

As a result of the rights issue completed in December 2010,
adjustments in the share option exercise price and the number of
shares in the options outstanding are required to be made under
the terms of the DSFH Option Scheme in accordance with Rule
17.03(13) of the Listing Rules and a supplementary guidance
issued by the SEHK on 5 September 2005. The calculation of the
adjustments in respect of all the existing share options granted
by the Company had been performed in accordance with the
regulatory rule and guidance, and reviewed and confirmed by
external professional persons pursuant to Rule 17.03(13) of the
Listing Rules. The key summary of related adjustments had been
announced by the Company on 16 December 2010.

Set out under this sub-paragraph are particulars and movements
during the year ended 31 December 2012 of the Company’s
outstanding share options which were granted to certain eligible
employees who are directors of the Company’s major operating
subsidiaries and are working under employment contracts that
are regarded as “continuous contracts” for the purpose of the
Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong.

None of the grantees under the DSFH Option Scheme were
granted share options exceeding respective individual limits.

No share options under the DSFH Option Scheme were granted
to the Company’s or the Group’s suppliers of goods or services.

No share options under the DSFH Option Scheme were exercised
or cancelled during the year ended 31 December 2012.

Value of options granted during the year ended 31 December
2012:

Details of the computation of the value of options granted during
the year ended 31 December 2012 are shown in Note 54 to the
financial statements.
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(b)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and associated corporation (Continued)

ii) Share option scheme of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited,
a majority owned subsidiary of the Company

The Share Option Scheme (“DSBG Option Scheme”) of Dah
Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”) was initially approved
by the Company, as the sole shareholder of DSBG, on 12
June 2004. With the approval of the SEHK, the terms of DSBG
Option Scheme as disclosed in DSBG'’s initial public offering
prospectus remained valid after its public listing commencing
from 30 June 2004.

In accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, a
summary of the DSBG Option Scheme is disclosed as follows:

(1)  Purpose of the DSBG Option Scheme:

The purpose of the DSBG Option Scheme is to attract,
motivate and retain high quality executives to contribute
to the Group’s business and growth.

(2) Participants of the DSBG Option Scheme:

Eligible participants of the DSBG Option Scheme included
directors and employees holding supervisory positions in
DSBG and its subsidiaries.

(8) Total number of shares available for issue under the DSBG
Option Scheme and percentage of issued share capital as
of 31 December 2012:

The number of shares available for issue under the DSBG
Option Scheme is 28,695,000 shares, representing
2.29% of the total issued share capital of DSBG as at 31
December 2012.
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(b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and associated corporation (Continued)

ii)

)

Share option scheme of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited,
a majority owned subsidiary of the Company (Continued)

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the DSBG
Option Scheme:

No options may be granted to any eligible person which, if
exercised, would result in such eligible person becoming
entitled to subscribe for such number of shares as, when
aggregated with the total number of shares already issued
or to be issued to him under all options granted to him in
the 12-month period up to and including the offer date of
relevant options, exceed 1% of the shares in issue at such
date. Any grant of further options above the limit shall be
subject to the provisions of the DSBG Option Scheme and
the Listing Rules as amended from time to time.

Period within which the shares must be taken up under an
option:

The exercise period is determined by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee on behalf of the Board of DSBG,
and is specified when related options are granted. Shares
under the options must be taken up within 10 years from
the date of grant. All the existing share options under the
DSBG Option Scheme shall be exercisable upon vesting in
varying amounts between the first and sixth anniversaries
from the date of grant.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised:

The minimum holding period is determined by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of
the Board of DSBG, and is specified when related options
are granted. None of the existing share options under the
DSBG Option Scheme shall be exercisable within one year
from the date of grant.
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(b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and associated corporation (Continued)

ii)

@)

Share option scheme of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited,

a majority owned subsidiary of the Company (Continued)

Amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments or calls must
or may be made or loans for such purpose must be repaid:

The amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1
and must be made within 28 days upon offer of granting
of options or such period the Board may determine from
time to time.

Basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price per option share is concluded by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of
the Board of DSBG on the basis no less exacting than
the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the Listing
Rules and is determined as no less than the highest of
(i) the closing price of DSBG shares traded on the SEHK
on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing prices of
DSBG shares traded on the SEHK for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of DSBG shares of HK$1 each in the capital
of DSBG.

Remaining life of the DSBG Option Scheme:

The DSBG Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for

a period of 10 years commencing from 12 June 2004 and
expiring at the close of 11 June 2014.



Z) EXRLRARMEBARMERARERS

(&)

i) ARFEBREEE - KERTEE
BRA A2 B IEAE ()

RIEBARFIRIT R ERRIERT B - RIERAT
SEREFEZEENBARNSETESE
BT R - EAFIRITEBRRAE S
TRTEZ T RERNRITEE R
MBEEZZT——ZF+_A=1T—HLFE
N2 BB R RFEFREGZFHBOT ¢

e
Ht
i
—|>_;IKU|+
DfF
i

(b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and associated corporation (Continued)

ii) Share option scheme of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited,

a majority owned subsidiary of the Company (Continued)

Pursuant to the DSBG Option Scheme, certain directors
of the Company and its major operating subsidiaries were
granted options under the DSBG Option Scheme. Details of
the movements during the year ended, and the status as at, 31
December 2012 of DSBG’s outstanding share options which
have been granted under the DSBG Option Scheme are as

follows:
ARETSAFRTEARGHA
Number of DSBG shares in the options
RZ%-ZF e St
-B-B ZE-Zff ZF-ZHp +2AZt-H s
b Rt % b e Exercise period
Held at Granted Lapsed Held at Exercise RFEH # Z
ERA Grantee 112012 during2012  during 2012 31/12/2012 price  Grant date From To
Bt (BIA/E)  (BIRIE)  (BIA/F)
HKS (DIMFY) (DIVAY) (DIMFY)
£ Directors

TR Gary Pak-Ling Wang 2,600,000 - - 2,600,000 925 12122011 12/12)2012 1271202017
- 900,000 - 900,000 821 21122012 21/12/2013  21/12/2018
e Nicholas John Mayhew 2,400,000 - - 2,400,000 925 121122011 12/12)2012  12/12/2017
- 800,000 - 800,000 821 21122012 21/12/2013  21/12/2018
R Aggregate of employees” 2,800,000 - - 2,800,000 925 12122011 12/12)2012  12/12/2017
- 2,300,000 - 2,300,000 821 21122012 21/12/2013  21/12/2018
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(b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and associated corporation (Continued)

ii) Share option scheme of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited,

a majority owned subsidiary of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

(1) Set out under this sub-paragraph are particulars and movements
during the year ended 31 December 2012 of DSBG’s outstanding
share options which were granted to certain eligible employees
who are directors of DSBG’s major operating subsidiaries and
are working under employment contracts that are regarded
as “continuous contracts” for the purpose of the Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong.

) None of the grantees under the DSBG Option Scheme were
granted share options exceeding respective individual limits.

3) No share options under the DSBG Option Scheme were granted
to DSFH’s and the Group’s suppliers of goods or services.

(4) No share options under the DSBG Option Scheme were exercised
or cancelled during the year ended 31 December 2012.

(5) Value of options granted during the year ended 31 December
2012:

Details of the computation of value of options granted during
the year ended 31 December 2012 are shown in Note 54 to the
financial statements.

All the interests stated above represent long position. As at 31
December 2012, none of the Directors of the Company held any short
positions as defined under the SFO as recorded in the register of
directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions.

Apart from the above, at no time during the year was the Company or
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
of the Company nor their spouses or children under 18 years of
age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

The Directors do not have any service contracts with the Company.

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business
to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.



RZBE—ZF+ZA=+—H UTAL(ER
REERITHAHR o HRZER EXHBRIN) R
RARRGD RBERDF - HARNRRIREES
R EAE D155 XV 5058 336 (5AR B 17 B HEm B R
i F AR SRS SR B - SIBARN R B AE 248
RS SOAR ©

e
“Ht
i
—|>_;IKU|+
DfF
i

As of 31 December 2012, the following are the persons, other than
the Directors and Chief Executive of the Company whose interests are
disclosed above, who had interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register of
interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336
of Part XV of the SFO or otherwise known to the Company.

REHEATER
wEsASLe
Percentage of
FiERGHAEE interest in the
&l 54 Number of total share capital
Shareholder Capacity shares held of the Company®
ITBREE HHEEGHREETHEER
MR AR
Christine Yen Wong Deemed interest by virtue of her 120,741,962 40.72*
spouse having a notifiable interest
LB AR AR ErEAREE#ER
HSBC International Trustee Limited Trustee and corporate interest 111,671,848 37.66*
ErEAREE#ER
DSI Limited Trustee and corporate interest 54,164,233% 18.27*
ErEAREE#ER
DSI Group Limited Trustee and corporate interest 39,883,977@ 13.45*
ErEAREE#ER
DSI Holding Limited Trustee and corporate interest 17,623,638% 5.94*
“ZURJ &R EE EEER
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc. Corporate interest 45,018,387 15.18
ZERRUFJRTT EE#ER
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.  Beneficial interest 45,018,387 15.18
Aberdeen Asset Management Plc REKE
MZEPER MR
Aberdeen Asset Management Plc and Investment manager 24,018,803 8.10
its associates on behalf of
accounts under mandates
REKE
Aberdeen Asset Management Investment manager 18,048,000 6.09

Asia Limited
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* Each of the interests of HSBC International Trustee Limited, DSI
Limited, DSI Group Limited and DSI Holding Limited forms part of the
120,741,962 shares in the Company in which David Shou-Yeh Wong
has an interest as disclosed in the section headed “Interests of Directors
and Chief Executive” on page 52. The interest of Christine Yen Wong
represents the whole of such shares. Therefore, these shareholdings
should not be aggregated, and rather form part or whole of the same
interest of 120,741,962 shares in the Company disclosed by David
Shou-Yeh Wong.

Notes:

1) Such shares represent the deemed interest of Christine Yen Wong
by virtue of her spouse, David Shou-Yeh Wong being a substantial
shareholder of the Company having a notifiable interest in the relevant
share capital of the Company (under the interpretation of section 316(1)
of the SFO). This interest comprises the same shares held by David
Shou-Yeh Wong under the heading of “Interests of Directors and Chief
Executive” above.

2) Such shares are mainly comprised of the interest indirectly held by
HSBC International Trustee Limited in trust for a discretionary trust
established for the benefit of David Shou-Yeh Wong and his family
members. Related shares have been included in the “Other interests” of
David Shou-Yeh Wong as disclosed under the heading of “Interests of
Directors and Chief Executive” above.

3) Such shares are mainly comprised of the interests indirectly held by
DSI Limited, DSI Group Limited and DSI Holding Limited in trust for
a discretionary trust established for the benefit of David Shou-Yeh
Wong and his family members. Related shares have been included in
the “Other interests” of David Shou-Yeh Wong as disclosed under the
heading of “Interests of Directors and Chief Executive” above.

4) Percentage of interests held by each named shareholder was calculated
with reference to the total number of shares of the Company currently in
issue as of 31 December 2012 being the record date.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31
December 2012, no short positions were recorded in the register of
shareholders’ interests in shares and short positions maintained by
the Company.

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year
ended 31 December 2012. Neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares
during the year ended 31 December 2012.
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No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2012.

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2012,
calculated under section 79B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
amounted to HK$1,384,505,000 (2011: HK$1,458,945,000).

Details of other transactions with related parties of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2012 have been set out in Note 53 to the
financial statements.

The published results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five years are included in the section of the annual report under
“Financial Summary”.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group derived less
than 30% of interest income and other operating income from its five
largest customers.

The Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company.

The accompanying financial statements comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |
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The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The Company has not changed its auditors in the
preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board
David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2013
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(LABEET TALYIR)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

=

N

R &

KB
Restated
Mzt Z=T—ZF ZZ——%F
Note 2012 2011
MBHA Interest income 4,148,636 3,568,506
e Interest expense (1,655,072) (1,382,942)
BRI EWA Net interest income 6 2,493,564 2,185,564
AR & KA WA Fee and commission income 691,833 606,088
R & KAE Fee and commission expense (219,371) (223,298)
FRBERASKA Net fee and commission income 7 472,462 382,790
FEBEWA Net trading income 8 792,959 232,038
FIRE REAMWA Net insurance premium and other income 9 1,547,589 2,027,739
HAn & E A Other operating income 10 61,831 44,408
EERA Operating income 5,368,405 4,872,539
RBRE RS HFHE Net insurance claims and expenses 11 (2,031,995) (2,068,080)
HNBRREREZEERA Total operating income net of insurance claims 3,336,410 2,804,459
EiEXH Operating expenses 12 (2,054,423) (1,711,038)
NBRBEE IR 2 & EEF Operating profit before impairment losses 1,281,987 1,093,421
EFREBEREMEERE Loan impairment losses and
other credit provisions 15 (143,681) (181,082)
B EEBEZ 2 EEER Operating profit after impairment losses 1,138,306 912,339
HETERAMETEER Net gain/(loss) on disposal and revaluation
TESEGZF W/ (B18) of premises and other fixed assets 16 1,066 (770)
HEREMERAEANTERARZ Net gain on disposal of and fair value
Flas adjustment on investment properties 17 159,522 89,349
HEFBHILEZF (B18) Wt Net (loss)/gain on disposal of
investments in securities 18 (29,355) 85,933
(B S N E 2 EE Share of results of an associate 490,806 353,404
FEA R TS 2 %45 Share of results of jointly controlled entities 13,385 12,687
BREBDERR Profit before taxation 1,773,730 1,452,942
#E Taxation 19 (174,888)  (148,850)
FEmF Profit for the year 1,598,842 1,304,092
DB Attributable to:
R PEHIRERL R Non-controlling interests 362,438 283,288
/NS 1532 Shareholders of the Company 20 1,236,404 1,020,804
FEHF Profit for the year 1,598,842 1,304,092
B’E Dividends
Bk HAIRR S Interim dividend paid 21 85,993 84,913
Rk R B A% B Proposed final dividend 21 263,909 228,387
349,902 313,300
BRER Earnings per share
AR Basic 22 HK$4.20 HK$3.49
e Diluted 22 HK$4.20 HK$3.49

FT4EEFE 264 AZMEDAGARMBEIHRR 2 —

BBy e

consolidated financial statements.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |

The notes on pages 74 to 264 are an integral part of these
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BHE-_ZT——F+-A=1+—HILEE
(LABEET TALYIR)

For the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

KB
Restated
=B-=F —ZT—F
2012 2011
FE=F Profit for the year 1,598,842 1,304,092
FEHM2EKE Other comprehensive income for the year
BFRE Investments in securities
HeRPMER 2 AFEWKZ(EE)  Fair value gains/(losses) recognised in equity 903,647 (33,435)
EENORETREEER Fair value gains recognised in equity
MW BRI T 2 FE 5 upon reclassification of certain investments
WEZ A EERIRER in securities included in the loans and receivables
Rz 2 A ERE category to the available-for-sale category 54,621 -
AFE (s /Eﬂn HIH R Fair value (gain)/loss realised and
ER R R transferred to income statement upon:
—HEAHBEERS — Disposal of available-for-sale securities (110,510) (121,955)
— HERER A S 8RR - Disposal of held-to-maturity securities
ENOBEREIHES and investments in securities included in the
ReFEEEF R loans and receivables category which were previously
FEWRIB R R 2 I E reclassified from the available-for-sale category 87,025 36,054
—RAERYAIHREEER — Impairment of investments in securities
REFHSFEBEEER included in the loans and receivables category
R FEWE B R Rl &Y which were previously reclassified from
BHREZRE the available-for-sale category 3,723 -
L& B HEE B (), Deferred income tax assets (released)/recognised
R ZIEERIEEE on movements in investment revaluation reserve (152,770) 16,037
785,736  (103,299)
1E Premises
R w2 A ERE Fair value gains recognised in equity 1,103,166 623,512
TEEMG#EE Deferred income tax liabilities recognised on
MiERZELERIBAE movements in premises revaluation reserve (64,672) (23,160)
1,038,494 600,352
BEGIMEBT SRR MIELZE  Exchange differences arising on
translation of the financial statements of foreign entities 28,040 118,946
HBRFIIRE 2 FEH M2 AW Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 1,852,270 615,999
HBpHRER 2 EEIWRSETE Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 3,451,112 1,920,091
SBEAAT ¢ Attributable to:
VRIS REIR R Non-controlling interests 779,571 458,390
PN/ ) 5SS Shareholders of the Company 2,671,541 1,461,701
HBRHRER2EFEEKREEAT Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 3,451,112 1,920,091
FI4EEF 264 B 2 WX ARG A BRzT 72 — The notes on pages 74 to 264 are an integral part of these
) consolidated financial statements.

AremEEFRAR |
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(LABEET TALYIR)

As at 31 December 2012

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

AN B W

KET|
Restated
M —T—=fF Z—Z——F
Note 2012 2011
BE ASSETS
W RERITHEESR Cash and balances with banks 23 13,685,824 12,217,645
EHRIT—ZE + 8 A A EHA 173K Placements with banks maturing between
one and twelve months 4,181,218 5,184,325
FIEEBERARRNE Trading securities 24 6,139,363 5,700,541
EEAAFEFEAHES Financial assets designated at fair value
FABENEREE through profit or loss 24 8,707,702 7,172,700
TESRTE Derivative financial instruments 25 703,309 696,033
%IE‘*,?K&EW%E B Advances and other accounts 26 98,848,918 92,743,974
At E Available-for-sale securities 28 22,362,554 17,665,252
FFELH K% Held-to-maturity securities 29 7,274,750 8,398,022
ik /NTE g Investment in an associate 31 2,437,031 1,961,365
R T IE Investments in jointly controlled entities 32 54,246 68,650
Pﬁ% Goodwill 34 950,992 950,992
EREE Intangible assets 34 92,988 98,663
TERHEMETEEE Premises and other fixed assets 35 5,069,259 3,839,778
"EME Investment properties 36 693,434 650,865
BNERATH IR & B Current income tax assets 930 8,358
BEERIREE Deferred income tax assets 46 7,259 50,069
RHSREB 2 BXREEE Value of in-force long-term
life assurance business 37 1,771,156 1,787,252
EEST Total assets 172,980,933 159,194,484
=L LIABILITIES
HRITFR Deposits from banks 2,645,620 2,384,503
PTESRIT A Derivative financial instruments 25 1,525,198 1,579,599
FHEBEERBRNEBE Trading liabilities 39 2,278,044 3,045,202
BPEER Deposits from customers 40 116,526,636 111,629,094
B EITHFRE Certificates of deposit issued 41 5,752,462 3,164,067
BEB{THNEKES Issued debt securities 42 2,712,907 2,718,320
&IEE Subordinated notes 43 3,935,562 3,654,487
HAb AR B &TaR Other accounts and accruals 44 6,129,058 4,252,944
BNEAi IR A& Current income tax liabilities 117,880 31,669
RIETIEE & Deferred income tax liabilities 46 277,746 83,477
HERARBEAOAREFREAZAR Liabilities to policyholders under
long-term insurance contracts 45 8,743,271 7,458,562
aEa5 Total liabilities 150,644,384 140,001,924
s EQUITY
R HIREARR Non-controlling interests 4,544,750 3,877,422
AATRRELERE Equity attributable to the Company’s
shareholders
N Share capital 49 593,053 585,609
G Reserves 50 16,934,837 14,501,142
BORREAIR S Proposed final dividend 50 263,909 228,387
BRRES Shareholders’ funds 17,791,799 15,315,138
EREE Total equity 22,336,549 19,192,560
BEREEAT Total equity and liabilities 172,980,933 159,194,484
BEERRN - =F=-A-t+A#EREER Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20
i March 2013.
F¥E HEM David Shou-Yeh Wong Hon-Hing Wong
EE EEx b Director Managing Director
FBT4EEE 264 B 2 M ARG E MBIz 2 — The notes on pages 74 to 264 are an integral part of these
5 o consolidated financial statements.
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BFSIRR

—E—=—+=A=+—H As at 31 December 2012
(LABE T Th5IR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
iz =—=TB—=F =—Z=—F
Note 2012 2011
BN RIE Investments in subsidiaries 33 4,138,030 3,956,713
MENVE E Current assets
RITAERR Bank balances 45,352 8,962
FEUAR R B A AR B Accounts receivable and other accounts 3,613 364
FEUSHH B A R 5IE Amounts due from subsidiaries 33 1,053,258 1,087,728
1,102,223 1,097,054
BB E Current liabilities
TEIRB A MEMRE Accrued expenses and other accounts 10,134 9,067
FERTH B A =508 Amounts due to subsidiaries 33 232,247 57,588
242,381 66,655
B EE Net current assets 859,842 1,030,399
4,997,872 4,987,112
E EQUITY
N Share capital 49 593,053 585,609
i Reserves 50 4,140,910 4,173,116
PR B Proposed final dividend 50 263,909 228,387
Emast Total equity 4,997,872 4,987,112
BERN S =—E=-A - tHR#LERSER Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20
fib March 2013.
FFE =Em David Shou-Yeh Wong Hon-Hing Wong
- E T s Director Managing Director
BIABEE 264 H 2 M ARG AP SRR — The notes on pages 74 to 264 are an integral part of these
#o o consolidated financial statements.

AremEEFRAR |



BHE-_ZT——F+-A=1+—HILEE

(CABEE T ThFIR)

For the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

KARRRELER
Attributable to the shareholders of the Company

GARKEDE

RIEHIE
BR
A& R EE Hibfite REEF Non- ERAT
Share Share Other Retained  controlling Total
capital premium reserves earnings interests equity
“Z-“E-B-HE& Balance at 1 January 2012,
WA 28K as previously reported 585,609 2,686,531 1,941,878 10,056,198 3,861,459 19,131,675
BHBR IS Change in accounting policy
—REEesr el - Adoption of HKAS 12
F125 25 amendment - - 2,443 42,479 15,963 60,885
“E-"E-B-A&HK Balance at 1 January 2012,
&85 as restated 585,609 2,686,531 1,944,321 10,098,677 3,877,422 19,192,560
FERENGES Total comprehensive income
for the year - - 1,435,137 1,236,404 779,571 3,451,112
AR AR A E R Provision for equity-settled
H M2 B share-based compensation - - 97 - 33 130
ROENEMESIEER Premises revaluation reserve
EELN transferred to retained earnings
for depreciation of premises - - (46,055) 46,055 - -
NEERRBEALE Premises revaluation reserve
TEmER realised on disposal of premises - - (2,353) 2,353 - -
MEARAMELRAHERRRZRE  Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries - - - - (88,704) (88,704)
R B 5t Additional net assets acquired
BALFEE via scrip dividend arrangement - - 215,519 - 48,766 264,285
AR B AT &I B Subscription of additional interest in
TELH-HBAR a subsidiary via scrip dividend
LIER arrangement at a discount - - (181,317) - (72,338) (253,655)
BRIARR S BT Issue of ordinary shares pursuant to
LERRn scrip dividend arrangement 7,444 77,757 - - - 85,201
“T——ERERE 2011 final dividend - - - (228,38) - (228387)
ZE-CETERE 2012 interim dividend - - - (85,993) - (85,999)
—E-—#+-F=+-H Balance at
23 31 December 2012 593,053 2,764,288 3,365,349 11,069,109 4,544,750 22,336,549
BEt-R=t-HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-C —E——F
2012 2011
BERARBEFIAZ Proposed final dividend
BERERE included in retained earnings 263,909 228,387

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |
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BE-_T——F+-_A=t+—HBLEFEE)

(CABEE T ThFIR)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

NS E S
Attributable to the shareholders of the Company

RIEGIE
6
e B E HtfEf REEF Non- B
Share Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserves earnings interests equity
“T——5-f-HA&H Balance at 1 January 2011,
ulTE= as previously reported 585,609 2,686,531 1,519,465 9,364,780 3,496,771 17,653,156
SHBR I HE Change in accounting policy
~REE e Es - Adoption of
F125 287 HKAS 12 amendment - - 2,451 31,326 12,117 45,894
—E—5-f-A&H Balance at 1 January 2011,
Y] as restated 585,609 2,686,531 1,621,916 9,396,106 3,508,888 17,699,050
FEREYEER Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 440,897 1,020,804 458,390 1,920,091
ROEREmMERTEER Premises revaluation reserve
REZREBRA transferred to retained earnings
for depreciation of premises - - (18,492) 18,492 - -
WEASALSAHERRRZRE  Dividend paid to non-controlling
interests of a subsidiary - - - - (89,856) (89,856)
“Z-TERERE 2010 final dividend - - - (251,812) - (251,812)
E—E0HRE 2011 interim dividend = = = (84,913) = (84,913)
Z8-—FtZA=1-H Balance at
33 31 December 2011 585,609 2,686,531 1,944,321 10,098,677 3,877,422 19,192,560
FI4EEF 264 B2 WG EMBEHRE 2 — The notes on pages 74 to 264 are an integral part of these
5 o consolidated financial statements.
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HE-_T——HF+-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2012
(LABE T Th5IR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
= Z=2—=F —T——%F
Note 2012 2011
EEBH2EERE Cash flows from operating activities
Z“‘%/EEJJ (FTA),/ FABR & F5E Net cash (used in)/from operating activities 51(a) (195,513) 5,852,947
RETBHZHRERE Cash flows from investing activities
BETE  REVER Purchase of premises, investment properties

HibEE&E and other fixed assets (218,775) (357,315)
HETE  "EMEREM Proceeds from disposal of premises,

Bl EEEFBRIE investment properties and other fixed assets 8,266 26,867
KA EBTAR R Net cash used in investing activities (210,509) (330,448)
METE2RERE Cash flows from financing activities
BITIE AR Certificates of deposit issued 4,696,129 2,276,535
B B TF 3 RE Certificates of deposit redeemed (2,299,037) (3,875,186)
BITREER Issue of subordinated notes 1,403,052 =
BRRERE Repayment of subordinated notes (1,163,535)  (1,166,595)
S BBEITRERR Interest paid on subordinated notes

REREZZHE and debt securities issued (292,715) (254,149)
BITERES Issue of debt securities - 777,000
Bt I8 2 =] 1) L2 4 I R AR R Dividends paid to non-controlling

IR EE AR B interests of subsidiaries (78,074) (89,856)
k2 BB AR R Dividends paid on ordinary shares (229,179) (336,725)
BMETERA(FTA) RS FH Net cash from/(used in) financing activities 2,036,641 (2,668,976)
REeERERRESERIEMFEE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,630,619 2,853,523
FURERERRESIEHR Cash and cash equivalents

at beginning of the year 15,323,872 12,318,288
EXRFE o HE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 27,100 152,061
FRESRERESEE Cash and cash equivalents

at end of the year 51(b) 16,981,591 15,323,872
FETABEF 264 B 2 WA TIAGREMBERE 2 — The notes on pages 74 to 264 are an integral part of these
2B o consolidated financial statements.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) provide banking, insurance,
financial and other related services in Hong Kong, Macau, and the
People’s Republic of China.

The Company is an investment holding company incorporated in
Hong Kong. The address of its registered office is 36th Floor, Dah Sing
Financial Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by
the Board of Directors on 20 March 2013.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the reporting years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs” is a collective term which includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
properties (including investment properties), available-for-sale
financial assets, fair value-hedged loans and receivables, financial
assets and financial liabilities held for trading, and financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) designated at fair
value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. Changes in assumptions
may have a significant impact on the financial statements in the
period the assumptions changed. Management believes that the
underlying assumptions are appropriate and that the Group’s financial
statements therefore present the financial position and results fairly.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(@ New and amended standards adopted by the Group

In December 2010, the HKICPA amended HKAS 12, “Income
taxes”, to introduce an exception to the principle for the
measurement of deferred tax assets or liabilities arising on
an investment property measured at fair value. HKAS 12
requires an entity to measure the deferred tax relating to an
asset depending on whether the entity expects to recover the
carrying value of the asset through use or sale. The amendment
introduces a rebuttable presumption that an investment
property measured at fair value is recovered entirely by sale.
The amendment is applicable retrospectively to annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2012.

The Group has adopted this amendment retrospectively.
Previously, the Group measured deferred tax on investment
properties on the basis that their carrying values were to be
recovered through use.

The effect of the change on the consolidated statement of
financial position was to reduce overall deferred tax liabilities
as at 1 January 2012 by HK$60,885,000 (1 January 2011:
HK$45,894,000) and to increase retained earnings, premises
revaluation reserve and non-controlling interests as at 1 January
2012 by HK$42,479,000 (1 January 2011: HK$31,326,000),
HK$2,443,000 (1 January 2011: HK$2,451,000), and
HK$15,963,000 (1 January 2011: HK$12,117,000) respectively.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(@ New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(Continued)

The effect on the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2011 was to reduce
tax expense and to increase profit for the year attributable to
shareholders by HK$11,153,000.

In respect of the Group’s financial position as at, and results
for the year ended, 31 December 2012, the impact from the
adoption of the amendment is a reduction in tax charge of
HK$34,761,000 which represented the tax liability otherwise
required to be calculated on the increase in cumulative fair value
gains on the Group’s investment properties from the level as at
31 December 2011 had the amendment not been adopted.

There are no other new standards and amendments to
standards effective for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2012.

(b) The following new standards, new interpretations and
amendments to standards and interpretations have been
issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning
1 January 2012:

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentations of Financial
Statements”

Amendments to HKAS 1, “Presentations of Financial
Statements”, regarding other comprehensive income (“OCI”)
require entities to aggregate items presented in OCI on the basis
of whether they are potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss
subsequently (reclassification adjustments). The amendments
do not address which items are presented in OCI.
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2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) The following new standards, new interpretations and
amendments to standards and interpretations have been
issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning
1 January 2012: (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 32 “Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities”

Amendments to HKAS 32, “Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities”, issued in December 2011 clarified the
requirements for offsetting financial instruments and addressed
inconsistencies in current practice when applying the offsetting
criteria in HKAS 32 “Financial Instruments: Presentation”. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2014 with early adoption permitted and are
required to be applied retrospectively. The Group is yet to

assess the full impact of these amendments.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 “Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities”

Amendments to HKFRS 7, “Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities”, issued in December 2011
requires disclosures about the effect or potential effects of
offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities and related
arrangements on an entity’s financial position. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013 and interim periods within those annual periods. The

amendments are required to be applied retrospectively.

HKAS 19 (2011) “Employee Benefits”

HKAS 19, “Employee Benefits”, was amended in June 2011.
The impact will be to immediately recognise all past services
costs, and to replace interest cost and expected return on plan
assets with a net interest amount that is calculated by applying
the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability (asset). This
standard is not relevant to the Group.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) The following new standards, new interpretations and
amendments to standards and interpretations have been
issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning
1 January 2012: (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments”, addresses the classification,
measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities. HKFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and
October 2010. It replaces the parts of HKAS 39 that relate to
the classification and measurement of financial instruments.
HKFRS 9 requires financial assets to be classified into two
measurement categories: those measured at fair value and
those measured at amortised cost. The determination is made
at initial recognition. The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing its financial instruments and the

contractual cash flow characteristics of the instrument.

For financial liabilities, the standard retains most of the HKAS
39 requirements. The main change is that, in cases where the
fair value option is taken for financial liabilities, the part of a fair
value change due to an entity’s own credit risk is recorded in
other comprehensive income rather than the income statement,
unless this creates an accounting mismatch.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment on the
impact and so far has not decided to early adopt the standard,
which shall be effective for the financial year beginning on or
after 1 January 2015.

HKFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements”

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements”, builds on
existing principles by identifying the concept of control as the
determining factor in whether an entity should be included
within the consolidated financial statements of the parent
company. The standard provides additional guidance to assist
in the determination of control where this is difficult to assess.
The Group is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 10
but it is expected that the overall impact of HKFRS 10 on the
consolidated financial statements is immaterial.
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2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) The following new standards, new interpretations and
amendments to standards and interpretations have been
issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning
1 January 2012: (Continued)

HKFRS 11 “Joint arrangements”

HKFRS 11,
financial reporting by parties to a joint arrangement, and

“Joint arrangements”, establishes principles for
requires a party to a joint arrangement to determine the type of
joint arrangement in which it is involved by assessing its rights
and obligations arising from the arrangement.

The standard requires a joint operator to recognise and measure
the assets and liabilities (and recognise the related revenues
and expenses) in relation to its interest in the arrangement in
accordance with relevant HKFRSs applicable to the particular
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. It requires a joint
venturer to recognise an investment and to account for that
investment using the equity method in accordance with HKAS
28, “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”, unless
the entity is exempted from applying the equity method as
specified in that standard. The Group is yet to assess HKFRS
11’s full impact and intends to adopt HKFRS 11 no later than the
accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 12 “Disclosures of interests in other entities”

HKFRS 12, “Disclosures of interests in other entities”, includes
the disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in other
entities, including joint arrangements, associates, special
purpose vehicles and other off balance sheet vehicles. The
Group is yet to assess HKFRS 12’s full impact and intends to
adopt HKFRS 12 no later than the accounting period beginning

on or after 1 January 2013.
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2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) The following new standards, new interpretations and
amendments to standards and interpretations have been
issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning
1 January 2012: (Continued)

HKFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”

HKFRS 13, “Fair value measurement”, aims to improve
consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise
definition of fair value and a single source of fair value
measurement and disclosure requirements for use across
HKFRSs. The requirements do not extend the use of fair value
accounting but provide guidance on how it should be applied
where its use if already required or permitted by other standards
within HKFRSs. The Group is yet to assess the full impact
of HKFRS 13 which shall be effective for the financial year
beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

There are no other HKFRSs or HK(IFRIC) interpretations that
are not yet effective that would be expected to have a material
impact on the Group.

(c) Revised presentation of advances to customers and trade
bills

To align with market practice, trade bills which were previously
included as part of gross advances to customers are now
reported as a separate item under “Advances and other
accounts” and do not form part of advances to customers.
In addition, bills receivable representing acceptances which
were previously included as part of trade bills are now reported
as part of other accounts and do not form part of trade bills.
Comparative figures including impaired loan ratio, overdue loan
ratio, rescheduled loan ratio, loan to deposit ratio, etc. have
been restated accordingly to conform with current period’s
presentation.
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(@)  Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing
whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations by the Group. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred. ldentifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over
the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the consideration is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the statement of comprehensive income.
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(@)  Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less allowances
for impairment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

(b)  Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as
transactions with equity holders of the company. For purchases
from non-controlling interests, the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or significant influence,
any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair
value, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit
or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally accompanying
a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The
Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill (net of any
accumulated impairment loss) identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in the income statement, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associates.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in associate are recognised in the
income statement.

In the Company’s statement of financial position the
investments in associates are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses. The results of associates are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(d)  Jointly controlled entities

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity, which is
subject to joint control and none of the participating parties has
unilateral control over the economic activity.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
are accounted for using equity method of accounting. The
consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share
of the results of jointly controlled entities for the year, and
the consolidated statement of financial position includes the
Group’s share of the net assets of the jointly controlled entities.

2.3 Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement
for all instruments measured at amortised cost, available-for-sale
securities and certain financial assets/liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash
flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepayment options) but does not consider future credit
losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
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2.4 Fee and commission income and expense

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Loan syndication fees are
recognised as revenue when the syndication has been completed and
the Group retained no part of the loan package for itself or retained
a part at the same effective interest rate as the other participants.
Wealth management, financial planning and custody services that are
continuously provided over an extended period of time are recognised
rateably over the period the service is provided.

2.5 Dividend income

Dividends are recognised in the income statement when the Group’s
right to receive payment is established.

2.6 Financial assets
2.6.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the investments were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its investments at initial recognition, except for
subsequent reclassification meeting specified definition of relevant
asset reclassification.

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for
trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or loss
at inception.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or if so
designated by management. Derivatives are also categorised as
held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |



BRI oE

(AR F Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

26 SREE@®@
2.6.1 B3 @)

2.6 Financial assets (Continued)

2.6.1 Classification (Continued)

(FF) URFlart2 AAZE A Rmr)z
FEE (8)

AREEBRTE T ZGEER - RnHE
REEEEHEEREENAFEFER
HEB AR AR FETIRER)

(i)  BEBERRSARBHUREATRIER S
FEREE  LEREBEMEIRT
—H2ER (HEA [tk ])

@iy  BEIIAZ @B RN IEE R E R
— S REE WAL FEAERT
HERE - RIEREREERNEEERE
B(EEE RITHER) IRHEBHE
ERIREPER 3k

(i) ARITETRNSREEM ZARIT
ATHREZRFEREREE AW IFE
EmRER -

EAUATEIIER R S BABNI
HRFHR A [T AT ENEALED
AN SIAE] -

(Z) BEXREWNTE

ERREEFIA R B ERTISREL A
BlERAEERARSBANETLESRE
E BRF)ZFAKEEENFANE
HALEL D BRFEEERENERE
B RZREASEENRERREE SN
RFEFEREEHFABRSNEREE
(L) ZEAEEENRBERRIEE R M
HENEMEE  R(A)ZFAEERE
EE R TRRASNZ RE M A8 W = 946 %
BEX2810 -

AremEEFRAR |

(@ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

The Group designates a financial asset upon initial recognition
as designated at fair value through profit or loss (fair value
option) if the following criteria are met:

(i) It eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mis-match”) that would otherwise arise from
measuring assets or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases;

(i) A group of financial assets is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy, and
this is the basis on which information about the assets is
provided internally to the key management personnel such
as the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer; or

(i)  Financial assets with embedded derivatives where the
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are
not closely related to the host contracts.

Financial assets for which the fair value option is applied are
recognised in the statement of financial position as “Financial
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss”.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market, other than: (a) those that the Group intends to sell
immediately or in the short term, which are classified as held
for trading, and those that the Group upon initial recognition
designates as at fair value through profit or loss; (b) those that
the Group upon initial recognition designates as available-
for-sale; or (c) those for which the Group may not recover
substantially all of its initial investment, other than because of
credit deterioration.



(LABREFThz5IR)

26 SREE@®@
2.6.1 D% @)
(A) ATEHE

A BE TV R B UL IR R
R AEARMER 2 T MEE -
A IR A TR B RS A A
REREE S HMBRFIE  ExRBREE
RSB LRS-

(T) #2215

FrEDER A TY B BT o AT B R AN RRE I
BEZHMA  MAKEEREEAERSM
RENBEZRZITESTREE -

pay
x
pay
x

262 EFf K

AEETEELFHEEERRERTEHROE—
BRNTESHMEE  WEZEREETHRIER
HEERZ eREERAEHE-—HEITSER
BAIETEBNE-FHNERBERT » FTAK
HERFBIEEERERRNTENDE - o
AEEEERFAERERELAIH T S8R5
TEFOBRNEERRERFATEZERE
B IEAEERERRAAEEAGRNER
AARRKEZINHERAEXEFTEE - NEBIRA]
B BREERARRTSBRENTTENE
BARERNERTE . eREERTHEES
BEE -

EMHEREEFOHEAZAFEAR - BEAR
FERSFHRANMERERKAE - EFOHEA
Rl A FER GRS BB AR REL DR - &
FOBERER R EYGRIBEMFSEDHEN SR
BEZERENEREFOEREE - ERHBZH
e — TN - ZEREEZERFRAE
HFHEE

B R& PoE
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2.6 Financial assets (Continued)
2.6.1 Classification (Continued)
(c) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. Available-for-sale investments are those
intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may
be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest
rates, exchange rates or equity prices.

(d)  Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that
the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability
to hold to maturity.

2.6.2 Reclassification

The Group may choose to reclassify a non-derivative trading financial
asset out of the held-for-trading category if the financial asset is no
longer held for the purpose of selling it in the near term. Financial
assets are permitted to be reclassified out of the held-for-trading
category only in rare circumstances arising from a single event that
is unusual and highly unlikely to recur in the near term. In addition,
the Group may choose to reclassify financial assets that would meet
the definition of loans and receivables out of the held-for-trading
or available-for-sale categories if the Group has the intention and
ability to hold these financial assets for the foreseeable future or until
maturity at the date of reclassification. The Group may also reclassify
financial assets that no longer qualify for recognition as loans and
receivables to available-for-sale if the financial assets become quoted
in active market.

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the reclassification date.
Fair value becomes the new cost or amortised cost as applicable, and
no reversals of fair value gains or losses before reclassification date
are subsequently made. Effective interest rates for financial assets
reclassified to loans and receivables and held-to-maturity categories
are determined at the reclassification date. Further increases
in estimates of cash flows from the financial assets will require
adjustment to the effective interest rates prospectively.
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2.6 Financial assets (Continued)
2.6.2 Reclassification (Continued)

On reclassification of a financial asset out of the “at fair value through
profit or loss” category, all embedded derivatives are re-assessed
and, if necessary, separately accounted for.

2.6.3 Recognition and measurement

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade
date - the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed
in the income statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The bases for the determination of fair value of financial assets are set
out in Note 3.5(a).

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated at fair
value at inception are included directly in the income statement
and are reported as part of “Net trading income”. Interest
income and expense derived from and incurred on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are included under “Net
interest income” in the consolidated income statement.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost less any
impairment loss. For loans and receivables that are subject
to fair value hedge arrangements, the hedged elements of the
loans and receivables hedged are carried at fair value.
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2.6 Financial assets (Continued)

P

2.6.3 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

(c) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recognised at
fair value which is the cash given including any transaction
costs. They are measured subsequently at fair value with
gains and losses (except for impairment losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses on monetary assets classified
as available-for-sale) recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity until the financial assets are
derecognised.

If an available-for-sale financial asset is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
equity is reclassified into the consolidated income statement.

Interest is calculated using the effective interest method and
recognised in the consolidated income statement. Foreign
currency gains and losses on monetary assets classified as
available-for-sale are recognised in the consolidated income
statement. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognised in the consolidated income statement under
“Other operating income” when the Group’s right to receive
payment is established.

(d)  Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are initially recognised at fair
value including direct and incremental transaction costs and are
measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. They are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows have expired.

Interest is included in the consolidated income statement
and is reported as “Net interest income”. If a held-to-maturity
investment is determined to be impaired, the impairment
is reported as a deduction from the carrying value of the
investment and recognised in the separate income statement as

impairment charge on held-to-maturity investments.
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2.7

Impairment of financial assets
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset

or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is

objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

o Delinquency in contractual payments of principal and
interest;
o Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower (for

example, high debt-to-equity ratio, low net income as a
percentage of sales);

. Breach of loan covenants or conditions;

o Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position;
° Deterioration in the value of collateral; and

o Downgrading below investment grade level.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, it includes that asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to
be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.
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2.7

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement. If
a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined under the contract.
As a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment
on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable

market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows
that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and
selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment,
financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk
characteristics (i.e. on the basis of the Group’s grading process
that considers asset type, collateral type, overdue status and
other relevant factors). Those characteristics relevant to the
estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by
being indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due
according to the contractual terms of the assets are considered.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the
basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the group
and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data
to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the
period on which the historical loss experience is based and to
remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do
not currently exist.
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Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in
related observable data from period to period (for example,
changes in unemployment rates, property prices, payment
status, or other factors indicative of changes in the probability of
losses in the group and their magnitude). The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed
regularly by the Group to reduce any differences between loss
estimates and actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectable, it is written off against the related
allowances for loan impairment. Such loans are written off
after all the necessary procedures have been completed and
the amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off decrease the
amount of the allowances for loan impairment in the income
statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the
allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in

the income statement.
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2.7

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(b)  Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity
investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is considered in determining whether the assets are
impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the income
statement, is removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the
income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of
a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and
the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through the income statement.

(c)  Renegotiated loans

Loans that are either subject to collective impairment
assessment or individually significant and whose terms have
been renegotiated are no longer considered to be past due but
are treated as new loans. In subsequent periods, the asset if
past due again is considered to be and disclosed as past due
loans.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.8 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other financial
liabilities. All financial liabilities are classified at inception and
recognised initially at fair value. The bases for the determination of fair
value of financial liabilities are set out in Note 3.5(a).

(@)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial liabilities held
for trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or
loss at inception.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred
principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the short term. It
is carried at fair value and any gains and losses from changes in

fair value are recognised in the income statement.

A financial liability is typically classified as fair value through
profit or loss at inception if it meets the following criteria:

(i) It eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mis-match”) that would otherwise arise from
measuring liabilities or recognising the gains and losses
on them on different bases; or

(i) A group of financial liabilities is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and this is the basis on which
information about the liabilities is provided internally to
the key management personnel such as the Board of
Directors and Chief Executive Officer; or

(iii)  Financial liabilities with embedded derivatives where the
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are
not closely related to the host contracts.
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2.8 Financial liabilities (Continued)

(@) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
include the Group’s own debt securities in issue and deposits
received from customers that are embedded with certain
derivatives. Financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss are carried at fair value and any gains and losses
from changes in fair value are recognised under “Net trading
income” in the consolidated income statement.

(b)  Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
net of transaction costs incurred and are subsequently carried
at amortised cost. Any difference between proceeds net of
transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in
the consolidated income statement over the period of the other
financial liabilities using the effective interest method.

If the Group purchases its own debt, it is removed from the
statement of financial position, and the difference between
the carrying amount of a liability and the consideration paid
is accounted for as a gain or loss in the consolidated income
statement.

2.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at their fair value. The bases for the determination of fair
value of derivative financial instruments are set out in Note 3.5(a). All
derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as

liabilities when fair value is negative.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

(Continued)

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments, such
as the conversion option in a convertible bond where it is not settled
by exchanging a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for
a fixed number of own equity instrument, are treated as separate
derivatives when their economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract
is not carried at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement unless the Group chooses to
designate the hybrid contracts at fair value through profit or loss.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The
Group designates certain derivatives as hedges of the fair value
of recognised assets or liabilities. Hedge accounting is used for
derivatives designated in this way provided certain criteria are met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well
as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment,
both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the
derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective
in offsetting changes in fair values of hedged items.

(@)  Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income
statement under “Net trading income — Net loss arising from
financial instruments subject to fair value hedge”, together
with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset that are
attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for
which the effective interest method is used is amortised to
profit or loss over the period to maturity and remains in retained
earnings until the disposal of the hedged item.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

(Continued)
(b)  Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative
instrument that does not qualify for hedge accounting are
recognised immediately in the income statement under
“Net trading income”. For derivatives that are managed in
conjunction with designated financial assets or financial
liabilities, the gains and losses arising from changes in their fair
value are included under “Net trading income-Net gain arising
from financial instruments designated at fair value through profit

or loss”.

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

2.11 Sale and repurchase agreements

The liability to counterparties in respect of securities sold subject
to repurchase agreements (“repos”) is included in amounts due to
other banks, deposits from banks, or other accounts and accruals,
as appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements to resell
(“reverse repos”) are recorded as loans and advances to other banks
or customers, as appropriate. The difference between the sale and
repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of
the agreements using the effective interest method. Securities lent to
counterparties are also retained in the financial statements.

Securities borrowed are not recognised in the financial statements,
unless these are sold to third parties, in which case the purchases and
sales are recorded with the gain or loss included in trading income.
The obligation to return them is recorded at fair value as a trading
liability.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.12 Repossessed assets

Loans on which collateral assets have been repossessed are not
derecognised and are carried in the statement of financial position
with appropriate amounts of impairment allowances made. In the case
of delinquent loans on which collateral assets have been foreclosed
and repossessed by the Group pursuant to legal arrangements or
court orders, and with the legal title of the assets having been passed
to the Group, such loans are derecognised. The foreclosed assets
held for resale are included in “Other assets”.

2.13 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The
chief operating decision maker is the person or group of persons that
allocates resources to and assesses the performance of the operating
segments of an entity. The Group has determined the Chief Executive
and members of the Executive Committee as its chief operating
decision maker.

All transactions between operating segments are conducted on
an arm’s length basis, with inter-segment revenues and costs
being eliminated on consolidation. Income and expenses directly
associated with each segment are included in determining operating
segment performance.

Based on the requirements of HKFRS 8, the Group has the following
segments: Personal Banking, Commercial Banking, Treasury,
Overseas Banking, Insurance Business, and Others.

2.14 Foreign currency translation
(@)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK dollars, which is the Group’s presentation
currency and the functional and presentation currency of the
Company and major part of the Group.
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(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the relevant entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement.

All foreign exchange gains and losses recognised in the income
statement are presented net in the income statement within
the corresponding item. Foreign exchange gains and losses
on other comprehensive income items are presented in the
statement of comprehensive income within the corresponding
item.

In the case of changes in the fair value of foreign currency
denominated monetary assets classified as available-for-sale,
a distinction is made between translation differences resulting
from changes in amortised cost of the assets and other changes
in the carrying amount of the assets. Translation differences
related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in the
income statement, and those related to changes in the carrying
amount, except for impairment, are recognised in equity.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as
investments in equity instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation difference on certain other non-monetary items,
such as equities classified as available-for-sale financial assets,
are included in the fair value reserve in equity.
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Exchange differences arising from the above processes are
reported in shareholders’ equity under “Exchange reserve”.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the income statement
as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.15 Premises and other fixed assets

Leasehold properties comprising land and buildings held on which
a reliable estimate is not available on the split of the carrying value
attributable to each of the land and building elements are accounted
for as finance leases and shown at fair value, based on periodic, and
at least triennial, valuations by external independent valuers, less
subsequent depreciation. Any accumulated depreciation at the date
of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the
asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the
asset. All other property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in the income
statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of premises
are credited to premises revaluation reserve in shareholders’
equity. Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset
are charged against fair value reserves directly in equity; all other
decreases are expensed in the income statement.

Depreciation of premises and other fixed assets is calculated using

the straight-line method to allocate cost or revalued amounts to their

residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

- Premises Over the shorter of 50 years or
remaining period of lease

- Furniture, fittings, equipment  Over the estimated useful lives

and motor vehicles generally between 3 and 10

years

The difference between depreciation based on the revalued
carrying amount of premises charged to the income statement and
depreciation based on the premises’ original cost is transferred from
premises revaluation reserve to retained earnings.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.15 Premises and other fixed assets (Continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each end of the reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.18).

2.16 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in the
consolidated Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating lease and
buildings held under finance lease.

Land held under operating lease is classified and accounted for as
investment property when the rest of the definition of investment
property is met. The operating lease is accounted for as if it were a

finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related

transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value.
Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If this information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are performed in
accordance with the guidance issued by the International Valuation
Standards Committee. These valuations are reviewed annually by
external valuers. Investment property that is being redeveloped for
continuing use as investment property, or for which the market has
become less active, continues to be measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental

income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.16 Investment properties (Continued)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as premises and other fixed assets, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of premises and other fixed assets becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting
between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the
date of transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation of premises
and other fixed assets under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
income statement.

2.17 Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the acquiree as at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested annually for impairment. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination on which the goodwill arose.

Intangible assets arising from an acquisition are recognised
separately from goodwill when they are separable or arise from
contractual or other legal rights, and their value can be measured
reliably. They include core deposits, contracts and customer
relationships intangible assets, and trade names. Intangible assets
are stated at cost less amortisation, and/or accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated based on estimated useful life
ranging from 5 to 12 years using a diminishing balance method.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.18 Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available
for use are not subject to amortisation, but are tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicated that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels (cash-generating units) for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Company’s financial statements, impairment testing of the
investment in a subsidiary or associate is also required upon receiving
dividend from that entity if the dividend exceeds the Company’s share
of the total comprehensive income of that entity concerned in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of that entity
in the Company’s balance sheet exceeds the Company’s share of the
carrying amount of that entity’s net assets including goodwill in its
consolidated balance sheet.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
In such case, the tax is recognised in other comprehensive income

within the corresponding item.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period
and that are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. The tax effects of income tax
losses available for carry forward are recognised as an asset when it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
these losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax related to investment properties is measured
according to the tax consequence on the presumption that they are
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-
for-sale investments, which is charged or credited directly to equity,
is also credited or charged directly to equity and is subsequently
recognised in the income statement upon the realisation of relevant
investments.
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(@)  Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme and a
number of defined contribution plans, the assets of which are
generally held in separate trustee-administered funds. These
pension plans are funded by payments from employees and by
the relevant Group companies.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident fund
schemes and defined contribution retirement schemes are
expensed as incurred. Other than mandatory provident fund
contribution, the Group’s contributions may be reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave prior to
vesting fully in the contributions.

(b)  Share-based compensation

The Group has the choice to pay the intrinsic value of the share
option or to issue new shares to a grantee at the date of exercise
under the share-based compensation plans. The total amount to
be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference
to the fair value according to settlement type.

For cash-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is
the fair value of the options granted, with re-measurement at
each reporting period with any change in the cost recognised
in the income statement, with a corresponding credit or
adjustment to the “Liabilities”.

For equity-settled share-based compensation, the total cost
is measured and recognised based on the fair value of the
equity options at the grant date, with a corresponding credit to
the “Share-based compensation reserve” in the shareholders’
funds. The total cost, which is fixed based on the fair value at
the grant date, is charged to income statement in accordance
with the terms of the vesting of the options over time. When
the options are exercised, the Company will issue new shares
to settle its obligation, and transfer applicable amount from the
“Share-based compensation reserve” to the “Share premium”
account, in addition to the booking of paid-up capital at par for
each new share to be issued upon the exercise of the option.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)
(c) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service
leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

(d)  Bonus plans

Liabilities for bonus plans due wholly within twelve months after
the end of the reporting period are recognised when the Group
has a present or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised
when: the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease
termination penalties and employee termination payments. Provisions

are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.22 Leases

(@) Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are expensed in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Where the Group is a lessor under operating leases, assets
leased out are included in fixed assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position. They are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on a basis consistent with similar owned
fixed assets. Rental income (net of any incentives given to
lessees) is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

(b)  Finance lease

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at
the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to
achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are
included as liabilities. The investment properties acquired under
finance leases are carried at their fair value.

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, the amounts
due under the leases, net of unearned finance income, are
recognised as a receivable and are included in “Advances and
other accounts”. Finance income implicit in rentals receivable is
credited to the income statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment
outstanding for each accounting period.
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2.23 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary
capacities that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of
individuals, trusts and other institutions. These assets are excluded
from the Group’s financial statements, as they are not assets of the
Group.

2.24 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability in the
financial statements in the period in which they are approved by
shareholders.

2.25 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity
from the date of acquisition, including: cash, balances with banks
and other financial institutions, treasury bills, other eligible bills and
certificates of deposit and investment securities which are readily
convertible to cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.26 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and other bodies
on behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facilities, and to other parties in connection with the performance of
customers under obligations related to contracts, advance payments
made by other parties, tenders, retentions and the payment of import
duties.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of the amount determined
in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets and the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation recognised. Any changes in the liability relating to
financial guarantees are taken to the income statement.

2.27 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised
as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the

control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable. When such inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.28 Insurance contracts

The Group issues contracts that contain insurance risk or both
insurance and financial risks. Insurance contracts are those contracts
that transfer significant insurance risk. Such contract may also
transfer financial risk. As a general guideline, the Group defines as
significant insurance risk the possibility of having to pay benefits on
the occurrence of an insured event that are at least 10% or more than
the benefits payable if the insured event did not occur.

Insurance contracts are accounted for as follows:

(@ Premiums

Premiums for long-term insurance business are recognised
as revenue when they become due. Premiums for general
insurance business are accounted for in the period in which
the risk commences. Unearned premium is provided and is
calculated on a time-apportioned basis as the proportion of
the business underwritten in the accounting year relating to the
period of risk after the end of the reporting period. Reinsurance
premiums are accounted for on the same basis as gross
premiums.

(b) Commission expenses

Commission expenses for securing new contracts are charged
to the income statement on a basis consistent with premium
revenue recognition and are presented in the income statement
under “Net insurance claims and expenses”.

(c) Claims and benefits

Claims for general insurance business consist of paid claims
and movement in provisions for outstanding claims with related
claims handling expenses. For long-term insurance business,
claims and benefits are accounted for on notification of claims
or when benefits become payable. Liabilities to policyholders
under long-term insurance contracts are the amount recognised
for future claims and benefits of life insurance contracts as
estimated by appointed actuary in compliance with regulatory
requirements. Reinsurance recoveries are accounted for on the
same basis as the related claims or benefits.
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(d)  Value of in-force long-term life assurance business

The value of in-force long-term life assurance business is the
present value of expected future earnings to be generated from
in-force business, using appropriate assumptions. Movements
in the value of in-force long-term life assurance business are
reported as “Net insurance premium and other income”.

(e) Liability adequacy test

At each end of the reporting period, liability adequacy tests are
performed to ensure the adequacy of the contract liabilities. In
performing these tests, current best estimates of future cash
flows relating to insurance contracts and claims handling and
administration expenses, as well as investment income from the
assets backing such liabilities, are used.

() Reinsurance contracts held

Contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurers under
which the Group is compensated for losses on one or more
contracts issued by the Group and that meet the classification
requirement for insurance contracts are classified as

reinsurance contracts held.

The benefits to which the Group is entitled under its reinsurance
contracts held are recognised as reinsurance assets. These
assets consist of short-term balances due from reinsurers,
as well as longer term receivables that are dependent on
the expected claims and benefits arising under the related
reinsured insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or
due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the amounts
associated with the reinsured insurance contracts and in
accordance with the terms of each reinsurance contract.
Reinsurance liabilities are primarily premiums payable for
reinsurance contracts and are recognised as an expense when

due.
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2.28 Insurance contracts (Continued)
()  Reinsurance contracts held (Continued)

The Group assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment on an
annual basis. If there is objective evidence that the reinsurance
asset is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount of
the reinsurance asset to its recoverable amount and recognises
that impairment loss in the income statement. The Group
decides whether an insurance receivable is impaired based on
its age and relevant information on the financial health of the
counter party. If the Group deems an insurance receivable to be
impaired a full and specific provision will be made against the
balance in question.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and
those activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and
management of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Taking
risk is core to the financial business, and operational risks are an
inevitable consequence of being in business. The Group’s aim is
therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return
and minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

The Group’s risk management policies are designed to identify and
analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and
to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and
up-to-date information systems. The Group regularly reviews its risk
management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets,
products and emerging best practice.

Risk management is carried out pursuant to the overall strategy
and policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Executive
Committee and the Risk Management and Compliance Committee
(“RMCC”) under the authority delegated by the Board oversee and
guide the management of different risks which are more particularly
managed and dealt with by the Group Risk Division and different
functional committees. In addition, Internal Audit is responsible for the
independent review of risk management and the control environment.

The most important types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market

risk, operational risk and insurance risk. Market risk includes currency
risk, interest rate and other price risk.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments

The Group accepts deposits from customers at both fixed and floating
rates, and for various periods, and seeks to earn positive interest
margins by investing and lending these funds in a wide range of
assets. The Group seeks to increase these margins by consolidating
short-term funds and lending for longer periods at higher rates, while
maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet all claims that might fall due.

The Group also seeks to apply its interest margins through its
lending to commercial and retail borrowers and to charge customers
appropriate fees and commission, taking into consideration credit risk
and market conditions. Such exposures involve not just on-balance
sheet loans and advances, as the Group also enters into guarantees
and other commitments such as letters of credit, performance and
other bonds.

The Group also trades in financial instruments where it takes positions
in exchange-traded and over-the-counter instruments, including
derivatives, to take advantage of short-term market movements in
equities and bonds and in currency, interest rate and commodity
prices. The Board places trading limits on the level of exposures
that can be taken in relation to market positions. Apart from specific
hedging arrangements, foreign exchange and interest rate exposures
are normally offset by entering into counterbalancing positions
(including transactions with customers or market counterparties), or
by the use of derivatives, thereby controlling the variability in the net
cash amounts required to liquidate market positions.

The Group also uses interest rate swap and other interest rate
derivatives to mitigate interest rate risk arising from changes in
interest rates that will result in decrease in the fair value of fixed rate
assets or increase in the fair value of fixed rate liabilities. Certain
of these financial instruments are designated in whole or in part as
fair value hedges, and the terms of hedge including hedged item,
amount, interest rates, hedge period and purpose are determined
and documented at the inception of each fair value hedge. Hedge
effectiveness is assessed at inception on a prospective basis and
is reassessed, on an ongoing basis, based on actual experience
and valuation. Fair value hedge relationships that do not meet the
effectiveness test requirement of hedge accounting are discontinued
with effect from the date of ineffectiveness of the fair value hedge.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.2 Credit risk

The Group’s main credit risk is that borrowers or counterparties
may default on their payment obligations due to the Group. These
obligations arise from the Group’s lending and investment activities,
and trading of financial instruments (including derivatives).

The Group has a Group Credit Committee for approving major credit
exposures. The Credit Management Committee and the Treasury &
Investment Risk Committee are the committees responsible for credit
policy formulation and portfolio monitoring of the loan and treasury
businesses respectively. These committees are all chaired by the
Dah Sing Bank’s Chief Executive with certain Executive Directors
and senior business and credit officers as members. Credit risk
measurement, underwriting, approval and monitoring requirements
are detailed in credit policies.

The Group manages all types of credit risk on a prudent basis. Credits
are extended within the parameters set out in the credit policies
and are approved by different levels of management based upon
established guidelines and delegated authorities. Credit exposures,
limits and asset quality are regularly monitored and controlled by
management, credit committees and Group Risk Division. The
Group’s internal auditors also conduct regular reviews and audits
to ensure compliance with credit policies and procedures, and
regulatory guidelines.

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement
(@ Loans and advances

In measuring credit risk of loans and advances to customers and
to banks and other financial institutions at a counterparty level,
the Group focuses on three components, namely (i) credit risk
of the client or counterparty; (ii) current exposures to client or
counterparty; and (iii) the amount of impairment allowances.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

(@
0}

(ii)

(iii)

(b)

Loans and advances (Continued)

The Group assesses the credit quality of corporate clients
using an internal rating tool. It is developed internally and
combines general credit analysis and judgements of credit
officers, and is reviewed, where available, by comparison
with externally available data. The Group’s rating scale
has 13 grades which are segmented into three broad
rating classes as shown in Note 3.2.3. Credit exposures
migrate between credit grades and rating classes as the
assessment of credit quality on the borrower and business
environment changes. The rating tool is kept under review
and upgraded as necessary.

Credit quality of personal clients is assessed using
established criteria in credit policies and external
market data from credit bureau. Loans to individuals are
monitored on portfolio basis primarily based on their
delinquency status.

Current exposure represents the actual utilisation of a
credit facility and contractual obligations including both

current exposure and undrawn commitment.

The assessment of individual and collective impairment is
detailed in Note 3.2.3.

Credit-related commitments

Credit related commitments include bank guarantee,

documentary letter of credit, standby letter of credit and

undrawn commitment on legally bound facilities. Their credit

risk is similar to loans except for documentary letters of credit

which are usually short term and self-liquidating and carry a low

level of credit risk and capital charge.
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3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

P e

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

(c) Debt securities and treasury bills

For debt securities and treasury bills, external credit ratings
from international credit rating agencies such as Standard &
Poor’s are used to assist in credit risk assessment on top of
internal credit analysis. These investments help to diversify
risk exposures and income streams, and to maintain a readily
available source of liquidity to the Group.

(d)  Derivatives

In the normal course of business, the Group enters into a variety
of derivative transactions including forwards, futures, swaps
and options transactions in the interest rate, foreign exchange
and equity markets. Derivative transactions are conducted for
both trading and hedging purposes. The Group’s objectives in
using derivative instruments are to meet customers’ needs by
acting as an intermediary, to manage the Group’s exposure to
risks and to generate revenues through trading activities within
acceptable limits.

The Group is exposed to counterparty risk arising from its
positions in derivative financial instruments, which is either
“valuation risk” for the credit risk on receiving mark-to-market
gains upon the default of a counterparty prior to scheduled
settlement, or “settlement risk” for the possibility of not
receiving the expected cash flow of a derivative transaction
upon the expiry of a derivative contract on the settlement date.

The notional amounts of financial instruments do not necessarily
indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current
fair value of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate
the Group’s exposure to credit or price risks. The derivative
instruments become favourable (assets) or unfavourable
(liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market interest rates,
foreign exchange rates, equity prices and credit market
conditions. The aggregate contractual or notional amount of
derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to which
instruments are favourable or unfavourable, and thus the
aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities,
can fluctuate significantly from time to time.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)
(d)  Derivatives (Continued)

The Group maintains strict control limits on net open derivative
positions (i.e., the difference between purchase and sale
contracts), by both amount and term. At any one time, the
amount subject to credit risk is limited to the current fair value of
instruments that are favourable to the Group (i.e., assets where
their fair values are positive), which in relation to derivatives is
only a small fraction of the contract, or notional values used to
express the volume of instruments outstanding.

3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group has an established framework to manage and control
concentrations risk with respect to individual borrower or
counterparty group, industry or country. Exposure limits by borrower
or counterparty group, industry or country are in place and their
exposures are monitored and reported to credit committees regularly.

The large exposure limits to borrower or counterparty groups are
capital based while the limits for industry and country are relative to
the size of the overall credit portfolio. All these limits aim to achieve a
more balanced portfolio.

To mitigate credit risk and where appropriate, the Group will obtain
collateral to support the credit facility granted. To control credit risk
exposure to counterparty arising from derivative positions, the Group
limits its derivative dealings with approved financial institutions, and
uses established market practices on credit support and collateral
settlement to reduce credit risk exposure to derivative counterparties.
Overall credit risk limit for individual financial institution counterparty,
including valuation limit for derivatives, is approved by the Group
Credit Committee with reference to the financial strength and
credit rating of individual counterparty. The acceptable types of
collateral and their characteristics are established within the credit
policies, as are the respective margins of finance. Enforceable legal
documentation establishes the Group’s direct, irrevocable and
unconditional recourse to any collateral, security or other credit
enhancements provided.
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3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)

In relation to lending commitments that are unconditionally
cancellable without prior notice, the Group would assess the
necessity to withdraw the credit line in case where the credit quality
of a borrower deteriorates. Accordingly, these commitments do not
expose the Group to significant credit risk.

Irrespective of whether collateral is taken, all credit decisions are
based upon the customer’s or counterparty’s credit profile, cashflow
position and ability to repay.

(@ Loans and advances

The Group has guidelines on the acceptability of specific
classes of collateral for securing loans and advances. The
principal collateral types are:

° Mortgages over properties;

o Charges over business assets such as premises, inventory
and accounts receivable;

° Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities
and equities; and

. Charges over deposits.

In addition, in order to minimise credit loss, the Group will,
where possible, seek additional collateral from the counterparty
as soon as impairment indicators are noticed on relevant
individual loans and advances.

(b)  Debt securities

Debt securities and treasury bills are generally unsecured,
with the exception of asset-backed securities and similar
instruments, which are secured by portfolios of financial
instruments or underlying assets.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |
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3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
(c) Derivatives

Since all counterparties for derivatives trading are financial
institutions, the risk is managed as part of the credit risk control
and monitoring process in respect of financial institutions
including credit controls such as setting individual limit for
valuation risk, daily settlement limits and performing periodic
credit assessment for individual counterparty. Moreover, the
Group requires all derivative contract counterparties to enter
into International Swaps and Derivatives Association (“ISDA”)
Agreement in order to follow the standardised market practice
of close-out netting arrangement in the event of default or early
termination.

Collateral arrangements with selected counterparties are also
in place to limit our unsecured derivative exposures to these
counterparties.

3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies

Impairment allowances are recognised for loans, securities and
derivative exposures which have objective evidence of impairment at
the end of the reporting period for financial reporting purposes (see
Note 2.7).

In determining whether objective evidence of impairment exists under

HKAS 39, the following criteria are assessed:

° Delinquency in contractual payments of principal or interest;
° Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower (e.g. equity to
debt ratio, net income percentage of sales);

° Breach of loan covenants or conditions;

o Initiation of bankruptcy proceedings;

o Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position; and
° Deterioration in the value of collateral.
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3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

The Group’s policy requires the review of individual financial assets
that are above pre-set thresholds at least annually or more regularly
when individual circumstances warrant. Individual impairment
allowances on all individually significant accounts are determined by
an evaluation of the incurred loss at the end of the reporting period
on a case-by-case basis. The assessment normally encompasses
collateral held (including re-confirmation of its enforceability) and
the anticipated receipts from liquidating collaterals for that individual

account.

Collectively assessed impairment allowances are provided for:
(i) portfolios of homogenous assets that are individually below
materiality thresholds; and (ii) assets that are individually assessed but
do not have individual impairment.

The table below shows the percentage of the Group’s on-balance
sheet items relating to loans and advances and the associated
impairment allowances (both individually and collectively assessed)
covering on- and off-balance sheet amounts for each of the three
broad internal rating classes.

—B-——fF —E——F
2012 2011
HEES BEZER
IHE R BB T
BERREX Botk EXRREBHK ERasd
Bt Impairment B2 Impairment
Loans allowance Loans allowance
and as a % of and as a % of
&8 Group advances loan balance advances loan balance
% % % %
451 Class

1—E8 1 - pass 99.2 0.1 98.9 0.2
2—HR5RIEEE 2 — special mention 0.3 5.7 0.4 10.5
3—IRBEIAT 3 - sub-standard or below 0.5 25.1 0.7 37.9

100.0 100.0
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

As far as the commercial banking business of the Group is concerned,
the credit ratings are broadly categorised as follows:

Class 1 “pass”, which covers Grade 1 to 9 of the Group’s internal loan
grading system, represents loans for which borrowers are current in
meeting commitments and for which the full repayment of interest and
principal is not in doubt.

Class 2 “special mention”, which covers Grade 10 of the Group’s
internal loan grading system, represents loans with which borrowers
are experiencing difficulties and which may lead to credit losses to the
Group if the deterioration in loan quality cannot be contained.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers Grade 11 to 13
of the Group’s internal loan grading system, represents loans in
which borrowers are displaying a definable weakness that is likely
to jeopardise repayment; or collection in full is improbable and the
Group expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking
into account the fair value of collateral less cost to sell; or loans that
are considered uncollectible after all collection options have been
exhausted.
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3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.4 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held

or other credit enhancements

BT
Restated
—B——-F ZT—F
£8 Group 2012 2011
EREEABRANEEZEERBRENT ! Credit risk exposures relating to
on-balance sheet assets are as follows:
e RERITHAEER Cash and balances with banks 13,685,824 12,217,645
ERIT—ZE+ZEAREIEH Placements with banks maturing
EopE e between one and twelve months 4,181,218 5,184,325
HIEEBERRNES Trading securities 6,139,363 5,700,541
EENAAFEFZEAHE ST AER Financial assets designated at fair value
K& mEE through profit or loss 8,707,702 7,172,700
PTHESRTAE Derivative financial instruments 703,309 696,033
EFEERRBR Loans and advances to customers
BAER Loans to individuals
—fEAR - Credit cards 4,425,525 4,261,547
—RIBER - Mortgages 23,749,843 23,017,708
—HAth — Others 5,422,866 4,338,395
PEER Loans to corporate entities
—GHER - Term loans 24,257,026 22,231,984
—HRIBER - Mortgages 11,866,854 11,132,055
—Bo5mE — Trade finance 5,360,541 5,223,525
—Hh - Others 11,090,926 10,662,014
BHEE Trade bills 4,329,872 1,559,061
HmmEE Other assets 5,362,781 3,903,238
PREER R Investments in securities included in
RN GRTBLE R 2 BHIE the loans and receivables category 3,402,239 6,899,300
A EE S Available-for-sale securities
— & E S - debt securities 21,660,684 16,992,532
FEIEF S Held-to-maturity securities 7,274,750 8,398,022
161,621,323 149,590,625
EHEEREBRINER Credit risk exposures relating to
ZEERBENT off-balance sheet items are as follows:
WBEREEMMEERRBEZ Financial guarantees and other credit
SARBE related contingent liabilities 2,744,878 2,491,029
B FORHE R H At Loan commitments and other credit
EEARR 2 APE related commitments 59,987,212 54,285,718
62,732,090 56,776,747
+=-—A=+—H At 31 December 224,353,413 206,367,372

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.4 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements (Continued)

The above table represents a worse case scenario of credit risk
exposure for the Group at 31 December 2012 and 2011 without taking
into account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements
attached.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for financial assets recognised
on the statement of assets and liabilities is the carrying amount.
For contingent liabilities, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the
maximum amount the Group would have to pay if the instrument is
called upon. For undrawn facilities, the maximum exposure to credit
risk is the full amount of the undrawn credit facilities granted to

customers.

The Group’s exposures to credit risk, measured using the expected
gross credit exposures that will arise upon a default of the end obligor,
are shown in the disclosures required under the Banking (Disclosure)
Rules.

The results of credit performance of the Group can be further
assessed with reference to the following:

° 7% of the loans and advances portfolio are categorised in the
top grade of the internal rating system (2011: 8%).

° Mortgage loans, which represent the biggest group in the
portfolio, are backed by collateral;

° 98%of the loans and advances portfolio are considered to be
neither past due nor individually impaired (2011: 98%)

o Loans and advances to customers that are either individually
or collectively impaired constituted 0.35% (2011: 0.48%) of the
total loans and advances to customers; and

. 71% (2011: 66%) of the investments in debt securities and other

bills have at least an A-credit rating.
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3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.25 Loans and advances

P

Loans and advances to customers are summarised as follows:

—T——F ZT—F
8 Group 2012 2011
8 HA K AR E R R E Neither past due nor individually
impaired 84,546,524 79,312,873
B HRB R (E B Rk E Past due but not individually impaired 1,343,765 1,182,323
&R E Individually impaired 283,292 372,032
Fab-c) Gross 86,173,581 80,867,228
W ORIEEE Less: allowance for impairment (258,442) (382,598)
FRE Net 85,915,139 80,484,630
—B--F —"T——F
&= Group 2012 2011
BEER KRR Impaired loans and advances
— ERIRE (G (F)) — Individually impaired (Note (a)) 283,292 372,032
—RAREGE(Z)) - Collectively impaired (Note (b)) 16,251 13,652
299,543 385,684
REZEE Impairment allowances made
— &R (52 () - Individually assessed (Note (c)) (90,726) (190,220)
—iREFHE (FE(2)) — Collectively assessed (Note (b)) (14,948) (12,392)
(105,674)  (202,612)
193,869 183,072
FEEHRATE" Fair value of collaterals held* 221,109 213,682
BEERKBRERFESR R Impaired loans and advances
ARBEB A as a % of total loans and
advances to customers 0.35% 0.48%
* BEHRGATFEDREEAGTEREFRERR & Fair value of collaterals is determined as the lower of the market value of

B MEPREEEE

collateral and outstanding loan balance.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.2

3.2.5

Note:
(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

Loans and advances (Continued)

Individually impaired loans are defined as those loans having objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss
event has an impact on the estimated cash flows of the loans that can be
reliably estimated.

Collectively impaired loans and advances refer to those unsecured loans
and advances assessed for impairment on a collective basis and which
have become overdue for more than 90 days as at the reporting date.
The collective impairment allowance for these impaired loans, which is a
part of the overall collective impairment allowances, is shown above.

The above individual impairment allowances were made after taking into
account the value of collaterals in respect of such advances as at 31
December.

The total impairment allowance for loans and advances is
HK$258,442,000 (2011: HK$382,598,000), comprising an allowance
of HK$90,726,000 (2011: HK$190,220,000) for the individually
impaired loans and the overall collective impairment allowances
of HK$167,716,000 (2011: HK$192,378,000) provided on loans

assessed on a collective basis. Further information on the impairment

allowances maintained for each of loans and advances to customers,

and other accounts is provided in Note 26.
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3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

(@) Loans and advances neither past due nor individually
impaired

The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances that
were neither past due nor individually impaired is normally
assessed based on the three broad gradings mentioned in Note

3.2.3.
RFERR
fiA(BEEF) i - BYAE
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Total loans
RRF 5% and
£ Group Credit  BEER At BHER  BRBER Trade At advancesto
ZE-ZETZAST-B  At31 December 2012 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others  customers
a5 Class:
1-IE% 1-pass 4366,370 23404414 5334977 24210841 11,654,895 5285287 10,264,912 84,521,696
-HHIER 2-special mention - - - - 18,076 1,338 3,349 22,763
3-REFUT 3-sub-standard or below = 344 195 = 1526 = = 2,065
At Total 4366370 23404758 5335172 24210841 11674497 5286625 10,268,261 84,546,524
EFEFR
fIA(ZEZF) % ages
Indlividual (retail customers) Corporate entities Total loans
iR B5mE and
£8 Group Credit — REEH i EHER  REEX Trade Eft advances to
ZT——E+ZR=t—H  At31 December 2011 cards  Mortgages Others ~ Temloans  Mortgages finance Others  customers
i Class:
1-E% 1-pass 4213274 22688999 4258910  22,134333  10987,030 5172187 9,830,109 79,284,842
-RAEE 2-special mention - - - - 13,376 - 5428 18,804
3-REFUT 3-sub-standard or below - 367 - - 8,158 = 702 9,227
&t Total 4213274 22689366 4258910  22,134333  11,008564 5172187 9,836,239 79312873

FEIRAREIA T HA RN 2 218

EFEEBEE

a2 BERKEESRRIE

Mortgage loans in the sub-standard or below class were
assessed as not impaired after taking into consideration the
value and recovery of collaterals.
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3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

(b) Loans and advances past due but not impaired

RFERR
fiA(ZEEF) i - BRER
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Total loans
=ik E5HE and
£E Group Credit — REER Ht  BHER  REER Trade At advances to
ZE-ZETZAST-B  At31 December 2012 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others  customers
AE-EAZAT Past due up to 1 month 39,810 300,674 63,283 26,928 177,990 32,961 555,224 1,196,870
RE-MANLE=RA Past due more than 1 month
and up to 3 months 10,950 26,156 15,779 - 4916 12,842 32,463 103,106
BR=-ANLE EAR Past due more than 3 months
and up to 6 months 5,230 4,816 5,553 - - 85 15,178 30,862
QEAEANE Past due more than 6 months 3,165 541 782 - = 48 8,391 12,927
At Total 59,155 332,187 85,397 26,928 182,906 45936 611,25 1,343,765
RRERRZATE" Fair value of collaterals* - 331,958 1,480 1,863 182,876 16,107 440,920 975,204
EPEFR
fEA(ZERP) % axes
Indlividual (retail customers) Corporate entities Total loans
HiNS B5mE and
£H Group Credit  EER Hh  EHER  REER Trade Eft  advancesto
Z2——EfZA=t-H  At31 December 2011 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others  customers
AE-EAZAT Past due up to 1 month 31,021 283,660 58,676 66,068 122,699 22,031 40047 1,024,208
RE-MANLE=MA Past due more than 1 month
and up to 3 months 8,584 35,061 15,597 - - 570 50,772 110,584
BR=ANLE EA Past due more than 3 months
and up to 6 months 5,735 282 2,604 - - 6,401 5,480 20,502
QEAEANE Past due more than 6 months 2,927 12 782 - = 6,242 16,366 27,029
=H Total 48213 319,715 77,659 66,068 122,699 35,244 512,665 1,182,328
REERR ATE" Fair value of collaterals* - 319,483 7,688 4,405 122,670 18,539 444,305 917,090

* ERmz A FEDREERRTELER
REEES > MEPREEME -

IR E R R BRE - HEERR A
FEDKBEFEBEREEZGETAN
o BEREE ZBERBZAFEDNZE
M5B FEE R -

AFEemEERFRAR |

value of collateral and outstanding loan balance.

Fair value of collaterals is determined as the lower of the market

Upon initial recognition of loans and advances, the associated

collateral is valued based on valuation techniques for the

particular assets. In subsequent periods, the fair value of such

collateral is updated by reference to market price or indexes of

similar assets.
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(A) 1EFREC ZFEEZHR 2

REBERFARBIFRERZRS KA
ZERIRERFER MBI A 283,292,000
BT (ZF——4 : 372,032,000/87T) °

BERREERRBR BRRAEE AR

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

(c)

P

Loans and advances to customers individually impaired

The individually impaired loans and advances to customers of

the Group before taking into consideration the cash flows from
collateral held is HK$283,292,000 (2011: HK$372,032,000).

The analysis of the gross amount of individually impaired loans

EERZEEERR AT EIRER S A and advances by class, along with the fair value of the related
N collateral held by the Group as security, is as follows.
HEER-
fEA(2EZF) % fERI
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Impairment
E5E allowances -
£F Group By BHER  REER Trade Efy At individual
ZE-ZETZAST-B At31 December 2012 Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others Total ~ assessment
{ERREES Individually impaired loans 2,297 19,257 9,451 21,980 211,409 283,292 90,726
FRERR ATE" Fair valug of collaterals* - 1,276 9,024 14,963 182,998 221,109
WEER-
fAA(BERP) =3 ERITE
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Impairment
EUET allowances -
£H Group A AHER  REER Trade i A3 individual
ZE——EfZA=t-H  At31December 2011 Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others Total  assessment
{ERIHEER Individually impaired loans 1,826 31,583 792 16,094 313,110 372,032 190,220
RRARRZATE" Fair value of collaterals* - 8,05 780 3122 193,211 213,682

*

ERmZ A FEDREERRMELER

REESY  MEPREEME -

Fair value of collaterals is determined as the lower of the market

value of collateral and outstanding loan balance.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

(d) Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months

(i) Gross amount of overdue loans

&5
Restated
—E-=F =%
2012 2011
BHEREER AR EE
EXNBH B
Gross Gross
amount of {5#%  amount of (b
overdue Bk overdue Ao
£ Group loans % of total loans % of total
REEEPEK Gross advances to customers
4R - B which have been overdue for:
—=ERANKLEEREA — six months or less but
over three months 70,549 0.08 49,794 0.06
—~NERU EE—F — one year or less but
over six months 33,986 0.04 254,138 0.31
——F N E — over one year 195,040 0.23 78,912 0.10
299,575 0.35 382,844 0.47

AFEemEERFRAR |
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(AR Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3.2 SERk @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 BHRRB (&) 3.25 Loans and advances (Continued)

(T ) BH=EHULZENRBL (E) (d) Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months

(Continued)
(i) BHREEERRDRZBELEHR (i)  Value of collateral held and impairment allowances
P if mE against overdue loans and advances
EXRBR B HEREE -

KEBEE B gl gl HfhiEE {4
Outstanding Current  FrAEDH REREDH EBRHEEE  Imparment

amount of market Portion  Portion not Other allowances -

&8 Group loans and valueof  coveredby  covered by creditrisk individually

“E-“H+ZA=1-H At31 December 2012 advances collateral collateral collateral mitigation assessed
BHKEEEPESREF  Overdue loans and advances

to customers 299,575 379,646 242,553 57,022 - 78,668

ERRBH Bfm HEEE-

AEEEE B ERR ERR AfbfzE EIRISHE

Outstanding Curent  FrAMEED ReAEDH ERFERE  Imparment

amount of market Portion Portion not Other  allowances -

3] Group loans and valueof  coveredby  covered by creditrisk  individually

ZZ——Ff+ZA=+—H At31December 2011 advances collateral collateral collateral mitigation assessed
AEAEREEERRER  Overdue loans and advances

to customers 382,844 320,045 235,326 147,518 - 173,957

FRfs M £ EREMIF R IZBME Collateral held mainly represented pledged deposits and

mortgage over properties.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

() Rescheduled advances net of amounts included in
overdue advances shown above

{H48%8 IG4a%E
—E-—F Bolkk —Z——F Baokt
&5 Group 2012 % of total 2011 % of total
EFEX Advances to customers 147,594 0.17 169,644 0.21
DERIER Impairment allowances = 900
326 ESEE 3.2.6 Trade bills

R-ZE——&E+-A=+—H X~EEWERE
B HAEEHA-HAZESER (=T ——
F )

327 WEIH g

RERFH ZWEERRLOT -

As at 31 December 2012, there were no trade bills that were impaired
or overdue for more than 3 months (2011: Nil).

3.2.7 Repossessed collateral

Repossessed collateral held at the year-end is as follows:

—E——F =—ZT——f

£® Group 2012 2011

BELE Nature of assets
ek Repossessed properties 73,702 19,400
Hib Others 6,760 5,804
80,462 25,204

WEHERRRATERERHE - BUGKIBAMN
WIEB R Z BRAREBEET -

fhEt AT # R RE K 72,342,000 8 T 2 £ B A
METEMYE(ZF——F : &) DAKER
iR B A AR B M 2 RS 1T AR (B 1 2
mld - ZEIF A2 IAMEI8 2 A EE R
THREBLEZEE - B2 ERD WA L

Bl

AFEemEERFRAR |

Repossessed collaterals are sold as soon as practicable with the
proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness of the
borrowers concerned.

Certain other properties in the Mainland China with a total estimated
realisable value of HK$72,342,000 (2011: Nil), which had been
foreclosed and repossessed by the Group pursuant to orders issued
by courts in the Mainland China, represent assets held by the Group
for resale and have been reported under “Other assets” in Note 38.
The relevant loans had been derecognised.
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(AR Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.2 FERM @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

328 EHEF 3.2.8 Debt securities
(FF) HFFREIEIS T 2 R AT (a)  Analysis by rating agency designation
TRIWFTRZE—=—FR-_E—F+= The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by rating
A=+ RIS REEEZTEITZ agency designation at 31 December 2012 and 2011.

BT

BFEE REN THEERE BZIHRE B3R
BiEEE  AVEMHE  Available- Held-to- ElE

£E Group Trading  Designated for-sale maturity  Loans and H
“E-ZE+ZH=1-H At31 December 2012 assets  atfairvalue investments investments  receivables Total
AAA AAA - 335,390 530,906 121,102 - 987,398
AA-Z AA+ AA- to AA+ 5,797,593 1,580,282 7,333,770 753,484 - 15,465,129
A-ZA+ A-to A+ 149 3,052,810 9,513,340 3,348,571 83,743 15,998,613
B BERA- Rated but lower than A- 119,996 1,188,679 3,394,775 1,117,094 3,261,957 9,082,501
AETR Unrated - 440,618 887,803 1,934,499 56,539 3,319,549
ait Total 5917,738 6,597,779 21,660,684 7,274,750 3,402,239 44,853,190

HIFEE BELN FRLERE HEIBRE Bak

ARdE  DYVERNE Available- Held-to- fElsoR
£F Group Trading  Designated for-sale maturity ~ Loans and ast
“Z——%+-A=+—-H At31December 2011 assets  atfairvalue  investments  investments receivables Total
AAA AAA 90,285 583,473 1,203,138 109,620 - 1,986,516
AA-Z AA+ AA- to AA+ 5,315,729 843,759 7,476,517 491,962 - 14,127,967
A-ZA+ A-to A+ 162 2,828,739 6,382,741 3,102,890 806,708 13,121,240
B RBERA- Rated but lower than A- 110,054 898,044 1,460,749 2,800,244 5,960,616 11,229,707
FETR Unrated - 185,377 469,387 1,893,306 131,976 2,680,046
At Total 5,516,230 5,339,392 16,992,532 8,398,022 6,899,300 43,145,476

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.8 Debt securities (Continued)
(b)  Analysis by overdue period

Investments in securities which were classified as loans and
receivables upon initial recognition, and were overdue at
the time of recognition, and which remain overdue as at 31
December are shown below:

—E-—F —E=—4F
2012 2011
RUERERE D EAEER K Investments in securities classified as
JEW R IB 2 BHIRE loans and receivables upon
initial recognition
#EHA Overdue for
——F N E - over one year 56,539 59,441

R N6 HERR BT 0 B R B 5k I B R IR 2 3B
FREBEMAA RO RERD LAAMBR
&2 BEEMBARNKER

AFEemEERFRAR |

The entire portfolio of investments in securities classified as
loans and receivables upon initial recognition was recognised
in the statement of financial position at a value after taking into
account the above overdue status.



P

(AR Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.2 SERk @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

329 MBS ERBZEHEEZEBE 3.2.9 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
HREE exposure
(F) B (a) Geographical sectors
BERFERZRESTIHIBED ZRRAKRE Advances to customers by geographical area are classified
BR2RGEFAEHDE - —RME - according to the location of the counterparties after taking into
EERMERFEREIZHFIRZE account the transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies
A - BRI ES o when an advance is guaranteed by a party located in an area

which is different from that of the counterparty.

TRABFPEFEERREIG DN - The following table analyses gross advances to customers by
geographical area.

—E-—F —E——F
+=A=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
At 31 Dec 2012 At 31 Dec 2011

BREETEE Gross advances to customers

— &5 - Hong Kong 64,568,498 65,184,854
—HE - China 12,313,706 6,927,228
— &P - Macau 8,412,400 7,578,182
—Hft - Others 878,977 1,176,964

86,173,581 80,867,228

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.9 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
exposure (Continued)

(@ Geographical sectors (Continued)

The following table analyses the cross-border claims of
the banking subsidiaries of the Group in relation to loans
and advances, investments in securities, and balances and
placements with banks.

RITRHA
SRS
Banks DNERE
and other Public
ZB--H+=ZA=+—H At31Dec 2012 financial sector Hity et
BEBT In millions of HK$ institutions entities Others Total
TAE  TeEEBEA Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong 20,697 154 15,317 36,168
EERFEE North and South America 2,109 = 2,854 4,963
BOM Europe 3,751 80 1,475 5,306
26,557 234 19,646 46,437
RIT R EAM
SRS
Banks NE RS
and other Public
—E——%+=-HA=1+—H At31Dec 2011 financial sector Hit Bt
BEATL In millions of HK$ institutions entities Others Total
TAE  TEEEBEA Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong 19,028 147 12,457 31,632
tEREE North and South America 1,393 - 2,776 4,169
BOM Europe 4,581 89 2,228 6,898
25,002 236 17,461 42,699

tREEERAHRERELARNEE
&+ ARIBE 58T O AR 0 T R R S 61
WRBHFREEENAR - —BAE -
EXSUFHEELHETRAERY S —
FHER - RETEER—MRETHENS
7 MELHLERTRANER 1 &
RERE-AREBEE AR -

AFremEEFRAR |

The above information of cross-border claims discloses
exposures to foreign counterparties on which the ultimate
risk lies, and is derived according to the location of the
counterparties after taking into account any transfer of risk.
In general, transfer of risk from one country to another is
recognised if the claims against a counterparty are guaranteed
by another party in a different country or if the claims are on
an overseas branch of a bank whose head office is located in a
different country.
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3.2 EERKE @)

329 BEEEEREZEHBEEZ AREE
HREE (&)

(Z2) 7% (b)  Industry sectors

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.9 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
exposure (Continued)

BRERRIE—RITEREFRES Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified

according to the usage of loans

—B--F —E—F
£E Group 2012 2011
EEBFERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
ITR<R Industrial, commercial and financial
—MEER - Property development 1,662,651 902,519
—ERE - Property investment 14,047,519 14,857,643
— Rl - Financial concerns 336,280 916,269
—RELKL — Stockbrokers 100,240 31,372
—BEEEERTE - Wholesale and retail trade 3,219,507 2,020,735
—REH - Manufacturing 1,996,894 1,647,656
— B R EH R - Transport and transport equipment 4,635,150 4,192,698
—RELEE) - Recreational activities 287,610 302,656
— BB - Information technology 8,703 2,864
—HAt — Others 2,894,403 2,678,926
29,188,957 27,553,338

EA Individuals
—BE [FEEHEHNE] - Loans for the purchase of flats in

[FLAZEEREEE] Home Ownership Scheme, Private

& [BEEERFE] Sector Participation Scheme and

BFER Tenants Purchase Scheme 1,123,393 1,147,664

—BEHMEZYWEER

- Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties

16,026,972 15,935,118

—(=AREXK — Credit card advances 4,240,329 4,107,677
—HAb - Others 5,465,362 4,413,867

26,856,056 25,604,326
ERAERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong 56,045,013 53,157,664

HEHmE GE(—))
EEBUIMERMNER(GE(D))

Trade finance (Note (1))
Loans for use outside Hong Kong
(Note (2))

5,024,007 5,091,959

25,104,561 22,617,605

86,173,581 80,867,228
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SRR

(LABREFThz5I7R)

3.2 EERKE@m

329 BEECEREZEHBEES AREE
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(Z) 7% #&)

(—)

LR ZBESRERSERECHER
BIEEEERDBELZAEBIESIMS
¥ REABBER  RABLONED
MEE  URERBEIREFZER -

BT —F ZZEBRREZIHE
E¥BEERzRREBERRTEIEARS
REFESMEERN - MESFHESE -

R-E——F+_-_A=+—H@E
1,766,805,000 8 L 2 B 5 E1E K EWE
BERERETIRIEEESIMEZAUFTEZ
T—_Fznf -

THREABZESREBRBEEAE
336,534,000/ (= F — —F + = A
=+—H :131,566,000/87T) D IER [
BERLIMERMERIET »

EEBSMERNERBERTEERR
BEEBUIMEBZER
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.9 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
exposure (Continued)

(b)  Industry sectors (Continued)

Note:

(1) Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance
of imports to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong
Kong and merchandising trade classified with reference to the
relevant guidelines issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(“HKMA?).

Starting 2012, trade bills and bills receivable associated with trade
finance activities are not classified and included as trade finance
lending to customers, and are separately disclosed.

Trade bills and bills receivable amounting to HK$1,766,805,000 as
at 31 December 2011 are excluded from trade finance to conform
with the 2012 classification.

Trade finance loans not involving Hong Kong totalling
HK$336,534,000 (31 December 2011: HK$131,566,000) are
classified under Loans for use outside Hong Kong.

) Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to
customers located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside
Hong Kong.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk of losses in assets, liabilities and off-balance
sheet positions arising from movements in market rates and prices.

Market risk exposure for different types of transactions is managed
within various risk limits and guidelines approved by the Board,
the RMCC and the Treasury & Investment Risk Committee (“TIRC”)
under the authority delegated from the Board. Risk limits are set at
the portfolio level as well as by products and by different types of
risks. The risk limits comprise a combination of notional, stop-loss,
sensitivity and value-at-risk (“VaR”) controls. All trading positions are
subject to daily mark-to-market valuation. The Risk Management and
Control Department (“RMCD”) within the Group Risk Division, as an
independent risk management and control unit, identifies, measures,
monitors and controls the risk exposures against approved limits and
initiates specific actions to ensure positions are managed within an
acceptable level. Any exceptions have to be reviewed and sanctioned
by the appropriate level of management-TIRC, RMCC or the Board, as
stipulated in the relevant policies and procedures.

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. (“BCM”) and Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited (“DSB China”), which are subsidiaries of Dah Sing Bank,
Limited (“DSB”), run their treasury functions locally under their own
set of limits and policies and within the overall market risk controls
set by DSB. The RMCD of DSB oversees and controls the market risk
arising from the treasury operations of BCM and DSB China.

The Group applies different risk management policies and procedures
in respect of the market risk arising from its trading and banking
books.

3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book
The following descriptions relate to DSB and BCM.
In the Group’s trading book, market risk is associated with trading

positions in foreign exchange, debt securities, equity securities and

derivatives.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)

(@

Market risk measurement technique

In the management of market risk, the Group measures market

risks using various techniques commonly used by the industry

and control market risk exposures within established risk limits.

The major measurement techniques used to measure and

control market risk are outlined below.

@

Value at risk

The Group applies a VaR methodology, which is a
statistically based estimate, to measure the potential loss
of its trading portfolio from adverse market movements. It
expresses as the maximum amount the Group might lose
given a certain level of confidence, which for the Group
is 99% for a one day holding period. There is therefore a
specified statistical probability that actual loss could be
greater than the VaR estimate. Hence, the use of VaR does
not prevent losses outside the VaR limits in the event of
extreme market movements.

The VaR model assumes a certain “holding period” (one
day in the case of the Group) until positions can be closed.
It is calculated based on the current mark-to-market value
of the positions, the historical correlation and volatilities
of the market risk factors over an observation period of
250 days (or over one year) using a method known as
parametric VaR methodology.

The VaR model is continuously validated by back-testing
the VaR results for trading positions. All back-testing
exceptions are investigated and back-testing results are
reported to senior management.

As VaR constitutes an integral part of the Group’s market
risk control regime, VaR limits are established and
reviewed by the Board and its delegated committees
at least annually for all trading positions and allocated
to business units. Actual exposures, including VaR, are
monitored against limits on a daily basis by Group Risk
Division. Average daily VaR for the Group for all trading
activities during the year was HK$2,140,000 (2011:
HK$2,946,000).
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3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)

(FF) MEBREEGEE75% (&) (a)  Market risk measurement technique (Continued)
(i) BRI (i)  Stress tests

BRI R EERIE R T AR 2
BEBRRZHHE - EEEREETH
BARARERE  ARERENAH -
TERESRBRERN BT IEEN
BE RERBAAH - TERNA
ERUEENEREFERAZAES
EITAE -

BAARZERAESSREAREL
ZESTEHIEM -

Stress tests provide an indication of the potential size
of losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The
stress tests carried out by Group Risk Division include:
risk factor stress testing, where stress movements are
applied to each risk category; and scenario stress testing,
which includes applying possible stress events to specific
positions or portfolios.

The results of the stress tests are reviewed by the Board
and its delegated committees regularly.

(Z) TEEEEZE (b)  VaR summary of trading portfolio

BE-Z2——-—F+=-H=+—-B #H=E=E_ZT——F+-A=+—H

LE+=M@A IE+={EA
12 months to 31 Dec 2012 12 months to 31 Dec 2011
F15 BS BIE 15 = 5 4i
£H Group Average High Low Average High Low
SN [ fx Foreign exchange risk 1,709 3,589 913 1,419 2,850 876
== @ Interest rate risk 1,265 3,143 377 2,637 3,962 1,722
e iEl All risks 2,140 4,692 1,092 2,946 4,277 1,914
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book

In the Group’s banking book, market risk is predominantly associated
with positions in debt and equity securities.

(@)  Market risk measurement technique

Within the risk management framework and policies established
by the Board and its delegated committees, various limits,
guidelines and management action triggers are established to
control the exposures of the Group’s banking book activities
to foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, and price risk. In
particular, position and sensitivity limits and price triggers are
in place to control the price risk of the investment securities. In
addition, sensitivity analysis and stress testing covering shocks
and shifts in interest rates on the Group’s on- and off-balance
sheet positions are regularly performed to gauge and forecast
the market risk inherent in the Group’s banking book portfolios
against the established control measures.

VaR methodology is not currently being used to measure and
control the market risk of the banking book.

(b)  Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group has limited net foreign exchange exposure
(except for USD, Macau Pataca (“MOP”) and Renminbi
(“RMB”)) as foreign exchange positions and foreign
currency balances arising from customer transactions are
normally matched against other customer transactions or
transactions with the market. Foreign exchange exposure
in respect of MOP and RMB arise mainly from the
operation of overseas subsidiaries in Macau and Mainland
China. The net exposure positions, both by individual
currency and in aggregate, are managed by the Treasury
of the Group on a daily basis within established foreign
exchange limits.

Long-term foreign currency funding, to the extent that this
is used to fund Hong Kong dollar assets, or vice versa,
is normally matched using foreign exchange forward
contracts to reduce exposure to foreign exchange risk.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(b)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)

(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2012, if HK$ had weakened by 100
pips against MOP and RMB with all other variables held
constant, the profit after taxation for the year and equity
would have been HK$8 million higher (2011: HK$12 million
higher), mainly as a result that the foreign exchange
gain on translation of MOP and RMB denominated
financial assets outweighed the foreign exchange losses
on translation of MOP and RMB denominated financial
liabilities.

Conversely, if HK$ had strengthened by 100 pips against
MOP and RMB with all other variables held constant, the
profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$8 million lower (2011: HK$12 million lower).

(i)  Interest rate risk

From an earnings perspective, interest rate risk is the
risk that the net income arising from future cash flows of
a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. From an economic value
perspective, interest rate risk is the risk that the economic
value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group takes on
interest rate risk from both perspectives in the banking
book. As such, the interest margins or net interest income
and the economic value of the capital may increase or
decrease as a result of such changes or in the event that
unexpected movements arise. The Board and the Assets
and Liability Management Committee (“ALCQO”) set limits
on the level of mismatch of interest rate repricing that may
be undertaken, which are monitored regularly by RMCD.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(b)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

The framework adopted by the Group to measure interest
rate risk exposures arising from its banking book positions
is consistent with that set forth by the HKMA for reporting
interest rate risk exposures. In this framework, deposits
without a fixed maturity are assumed to be repayable
and to reprice on the next working day whereas loan
prepayments are not considered when allocating loan
balances into respective interest repricing time bands.

At 31 December 2012, if HK$ and US$ market interest
rates had been 200 bps higher with other variables held
constant, the profit after tax over the next 12 months and
the economic value would have been HK$80 million lower
(2011: HK$104 million lower) and HK$605 million lower
(2011: HK$499 million lower) respectively.

The method and assumptions used in the above sensitivity

analysis on foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk are on
the same basis for both 2011 and 2012.

In addition to foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk, the

Group’s investments in debt securities and equity securities

are also exposed to other price risks. Consequently, the value

of such investments could change significantly depending on

a variety of factors including liquidity risk, market sentiment

and other events that might affect individual or portfolios of

exposures.
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(AT TAIYIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3.3 WHEE @ 3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.3 JME R R 3.3.3 Currency risk
TRT|ANEFIR SRS RSB E[ED| L > The table below summarises the Group’s financial assets and
SRHEENBESE - liabilities translated into equivalent HK$ amounts, categorised by
currency.

&8 Group B in bkt AR¥ 2t &%
—2-“#+-f=1-H At 31 December 2012 HKD usb MOP RMB Others Total
8E Assets
BeRERTNER Cash and balances with banks 4077979 1,572,833 342,634 5424371 2,268,007 13,685,824
ERT-E+=EAR Placements with banks maturing

HE#RER between one and twelve months 1,595,744 477,284 50,485 1,550,778 506,927 4,181,218
BEEERRNES Trading securities 5,892,434 240,788 - 546 5,595 6,139,363
RENATEHEARE Financial assets designated

SIABRNEREE at fair value through profit or loss 1,288,387 7,317,117 = 98,683 3,515 8,707,702
fTAESRIA Derivative financial instruments 34,617 527,926 = 7 140,759 703,309
REEFREMER Advances and other accounts 70243638 13413604 3914867 8545972 2,730,837 98,848,918
o EES Available-for-sale securities 2,978,863 18,529,708 490 567,911 285,582 22,362,554
BEIHHES Held-to-maturity securities 428,080 5,197,506 869,731 43,412 736,021 7,274,750
SREEA Total financial assets 86,539,742 47,276,766 5,178,207 16,231,680 6,677,243 161,903,638
8% Liabilities
RITHER Deposits from banks 110,386 1,685,016 38,902 771,586 39,730 2,645,620
fTASRIA Derivative financial instruments 8,768 1,229,430 - - 287,000 1,525,198
FIEEERENER Trading liabilities 2,278,044 - - - - 2,078,044
RPEH Deposits from customers 74,448,821 15,136,484 5,665,045 13,826,541 7,449,745 116,526,636
BETNERE Certificates of deposit issued 4,410,874 1,331,019 10,569 = = 5,752,462
BRETHESES Issued debt securities - 2,712,907 = = = 2,712,907
hiEREK Subordinated notes - 2,511,993 - = 1,423,569 3,935,562
HifR B RER Other accounts and accruals 2,690,488 2,177,398 687,862 462,994 110,316 6,129,058
SREEAT Total financial liabilities 83,947,381 26,784,247 6,402,378 15,061,121 9,310,360 141,505,487
BEAERLEATE Net on-balance shest positions 2592361 20492519  (1,224171)  1,170559  (2,633,117) 20,398,151

BESERIMERERTFE" Off-balance sheet net notional

positions* 9,034,953 (11,174,908) - 152,725 2,220,441 233,211

EERR Credit commitments 54,147,462 4,738,582 479,075 3,180,948 186,023 62,732,090
* BEABERIIMNGEERR FREXIZANAKER * Off-balance sheet net notional positions represent the net notional
SNEZ RS 2 INESRITET AR BEFE - amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments which

are principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency
movements.
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3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.3 Currency risk (Continued)

£E Group BT e R ARE it =
“E——#+-A=1-H At 31 December 2011 HKD usb MOP RMB Others Total
BE Assets
Be RERTHER Cash and balances with banks 1,665,707 1,853,584 505,856 6,787,762 1,404,736 12,217,645
ERT-ZET=MAARK Placements with banks maturing

HERTR between one and twelve months 219,999 1,766,896 = 3,197,430 = 5,184,325
FIEEERANES Trading securities 5,474,744 220,318 - 674 4,805 5,700,541
BENATEHEAEEY Financial assets designated

STABENEREAE at fair value through profit or loss 816,277 6,297,307 - 56,343 2,773 7,172,700
fTAESRIA Derivative financial instruments 41,461 420,035 - 46,537 188,000 696,033
REER AR Advances and other accounts 66,355,665 15,837,745 3,113,518 4,038,025 3,399,021 92,743,974
EHERS Available-for-sale securities 5711542 10,741,413 490 547,473 664,334 17,665,252
BEEHEES Held-to-maturity securities 32,218 5,344,814 1,649,729 6,126 1,365,135 8,398,022
SHEEA Total financial assets 80,317,613 42,482,112 5269593 14,680,370 7,028,804 149,778,492
B Liabilities
BITER Deposits from banks 104,116 1,909,060 10,004 360,313 1,010 2,384,503
fTASRIA Derivative financial instruments 5,759 1,218,411 - 34,017 321,412 1,579,599
FIEEERANERE Trading liabilities 3,045,202 - - - - 3045202
REEHR Deposits from customers 71,085210 13,474,458 5,636,546 12,735,909 8,696,971 111,629,094
BEINENE Certificates of deposit issued 3,149,791 - 14,276 - - 3,164,067
BERTNERES Issued debt securities - 2,718,320 - = - 2,718,320
BERK Subordinated notes - 3654487 = = - 3,654,487
HilR B RER Other accounts and accruals 2,314,111 1,102,985 417,103 277,100 141,645 4,252,944
¢BEEA: Total financial liabilities 79,704,189 24,077,721 6,077,929 13,407,339 9,161,038 132,428,216
EERBRLRETE Net on-balance sheet positions 613,424 18,404,391 (808,336) 1,273,031 (2,132,234) 17,350,276
BEABRRINGREE RS Off-balance sheet net notional

positions* 10,487,344 (10,984,772) - 112,000 3,436,768 3,051,340

EERE Credit commitments 48,608,138 5,138,177 628,114 2,231,465 170,853 56,776,747
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.4 Interest rate risk

The table below summarises the Group’s exposure to interest rate
risks. Included in the table are the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual
repricing or maturity dates.

=EAML —E)E
E-F Eif
ZEAFUT Over Over RENE T8

58 Group 3 months 3 months 1 year Over  Non-interest it
ZE-ZEtZRZ1-H At 31 December 2012 or less to1 year to 5 years 5 years Bearing Total
BE Assets
ReRERINES Cash and balances with banks 12,765,821 - 15,502 = 904,501 13,685,824
ERT-ET=fRAR Placements with banks maturing

E0ER between one and twelve months 3,510,207 661,302 9,709 = = 4,181,218
RIEEERROES Trading securities 813,086 4,700,030 384,812 19,810 221,625 6,139,363
EENATEHEEEEY Financial assets designated

TABRNEREE at fair value through profit or loss 472 219,435 1,301,785 5,052,563 2,133,447 8,707,702
fTEERIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 703,309 703,309
FEERREMEE Advances and other accounts 75,607,831 7,680,768 9,754,947 487,741 5,207,631 98,848,918
EHEES Available-for-sale securities 851,542 1,383,436 15,383,099 4,038,781 705,696 22,362,554
FEIEES Held-to-maturity securities 3,282,823 1,961,453 1,982,237 48,237 = 7,274,750
SREEAH Total financial assets 96,921,782 16,606,424 28,832,091 9,647,132 9,896,200 161,003,638
8 Liabilities
KOER Deposits from banks 2,325,523 314 - - 319,783 2,645,620
fEeBIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,525,198 1,525,198
RIEEERRVAR Trading liabilties 1,436,569 646,446 195,029 - - 2,078,044
EFEH Deposits from customers 96,645,272 14,838,589 721,034 - 4,315,741 116,526,636
BERERE Certificates of deposit issued 1,521,356 3,559,124 671,982 - - 5,752,462
BRNERES Issued debt securities 2,712,907 - - - - 2,712,907
REREH Subordinated notes - - 1,934,029 2,001,533 - 3,935,562
EthER RER Other accounts and accruals 366,158 - - - 5,762,900 6,129,058
SREEAT Total financial liabilities 105,007,785 19,044,473 3,528,074 2,001,533 11,923,622 141,505,487
NEgBEEAT (REHR) Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)*  (3,086,003) (2438,049) 25304017 7,645,599
NEfETEANZEE Effect of interest rate derivative contacts 3,705,070 3,358,526 (5,408,185) (1,620,921)
NESRERA (£%) Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* (4,380,933) 920477 19,895,832 6,024,678

* AERBENEEBEENREERBRRNEEN
BEMNKAEEETE - KRABMNEGRBEEEFTA
SRR T R @2 1T M R OTE T AS KR
B

W Far

38>

*

Unadjusted interest sensitivity gap is determined based on positions of
on-balance sheet assets and liabilities. Adjusted interest sensitivity gap
takes into account the effect of interest rate derivative contracts entered
into to mitigate interest rate risk.
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3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.4 Interest rate risk (Continued)

=RANE —Ei L
E-£ BRE
ZERFMNT Over Over REE iR

£E Group 3 months 3 months 1 year Over  Non-interest At
Z5——%+ZR=1-H At 31 December 2011 or less to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Bearing Total
EE Assets
B RERTRES Cash and balances with banks 11,870,368 161 - - 347,116 12,217,645
ERT-E+=fRR Placements with banks maturing

HEeER between one and twelve months 2,726,261 2,458,064 - - - 5,184,325
RIEEERRYVES Trading securities 1,048,736 3,186,148 359,720 21,626 184,311 5,700,541
KENATEI2EERY Financial assets designated

TABRNEHEAE at fair value through profit or loss 329,197 283,693 1,101,389 3,617,000 1,841,421 7,172,700
fTEERMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 696,033 696,033
BEETREMEE Advances and other accounts 74,261,361 4,209,184 7,984,698 2,120,026 4,168,705 92,743,974
A ERS Available-for-sale securities 777,839 602,350 12,286,022 3,322,245 676,796 17,665,252
HENEES Held-to-maturity securities 3,940,932 1,375,109 2,882,057 199,724 - 8,398,022
SREERH Total financial assets 95,854,604 12,114,709 24,614,086 9,280,621 7914382 149,778,492
i Liabilities
ROER Deposits from banks 1,732,063 378,396 - - 274,044 2,384,503
TEERTEA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1579,599 1579,599
HEEERANER Trading liabilties 1,975,365 969,257 100,580 - - 3,045,202
EPEH Deposits from customers 92,210,777 15,218,662 1,209,878 = 2,989,777 111,629,094
BERENE Certficates of deposit issued 1,181918 957,093 971,163 53,693 - 3,164,067
BEANGREES Issued debt securities 2,718,320 - - - - 2,718,320
) Subordinated notes - 1,170815 - 2,483,672 - 3,654,487
HiE RER Other accounts and accruals 346,805 - - - 3,906,139 4,250,944
SREEAT Total financal liabilities 100,165,248 18,604,423 2,081,621 2,537,365 8749559 132428216
MEBBEE A (RERE) Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)* (4,310,554) (B579714) 22,332,465 6,743,256
MEfTETARH 2 Effect of interest rate derivative contacts 931,816 6,140,694 (4,368,578) (2,705,862)
HEgREE A (B5E) Total interest sensitivity gap (acjusted)" (3,378,738 (4300200 17,063,887 4,037,394
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its payment
obligations associated with its financial liabilities when they fall due
and to replace funds when they are withdrawn. The consequence
may be the failure to meet obligations to repay depositors and fulfil
commitments to lend.

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process

The Group manages its liquidity on a prudent basis with the objective
to ensure that there is adequate liquidity and funding capacity to meet
normal business operations and to withstand a prolonged period
of liquidity stress of not less than a month. During the period, the
Group had maintained a sufficiently high liquidity ratio well above the
statutory minimum of 25%.

Moreover, the Group has further enhanced the liquidity risk
management framework in accordance with the requirements set
forth in the Supervisory Policy Manual (“SPM”) LM-2 on “Sound
Systems and Controls for Liquidity Risk Management” issued by
the HKMA in April 2011. The SPM LM-2 is developed to implement
the liquidity sound principles formulated by the Basel Committee
on Banking Supervision (“Basel Committee”), in light of the lessons
learned from the financial crisis in 2007, to strengthen the liquidity risk

management standards of banks.

Liquidity risk management is governed by the policy and framework
approved by the Board, which delegates to the Group’s ALCO to
oversee liquidity risk management. The ALCO regularly reviews the
Group’s loan and deposit mix and changes, funding requirements
and projections, and monitors a set of liquidity risk metrics,
including the liquidity ratio and maturity mismatch on an ongoing
basis. Appropriate limits or triggers on these risk metrics are set
and sufficient liquid assets are held to ensure that the Group can
meet all short-term funding requirements. The Treasury Division is
responsible for the day-to-day management of funding and liquidity
position while the RMCD is responsible for the measurement and
monitoring of liquidity risk exposures on a daily and monthly basis,
and also conducting liquidity analysis and stress testing. The Financial
Control Division handles regulatory reporting in relation to liquidity
risk, and coordinates the regular forecast of loans and deposits, and
liquidity ratio, budget and analysis relating to liquidity and funding

management.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

The Group’s funding comprises mainly deposits of customers,
certificates of deposit and medium term notes issued. The issuance
of certificates of deposit and medium term notes helps lengthen
the funding maturity and reduce the maturity mismatch. Short-term
interbank deposits are taken on a limited basis and the Group is a net
lender to the interbank market.

The monitoring and reporting take the forms of cash flow
measurements and projections for different time horizons, including
the next day, week and month, which are key periods for liquidity
management. The starting point for those projections is an analysis
of the contractual maturity of the financial assets and liabilities as
well as the expected maturity of these assets and liabilities based
on historical observations. The cash flow projections also take into
account the historical behaviour of off-balance sheet items, including
undrawn lending commitments and contingent liabilities such as
standby letters of credit and guarantees. The Group performs stress
testing regularly, which includes an institution-specific crisis scenario,
a general market crisis scenario and a combination of these crisis
scenarios in order to assess the potential impact on its liquidity
position under stressed market conditions and has formulated a
contingency plan that sets out strategies for dealing with liquidity
problems and the procedures for making up cash flow deficits (e.g.
conducting repo transactions or liquidation of assets held for liquidity

risk management purpose) in emergency situations.
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3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.2 Maturity analysis

The table below analyses the Group’s assets and liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the

BfE - end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date or, where
applicable, the earliest callable date.
-fRNL ZREARL
B=@ANT E-£ -EiE
P5EE  -@AINT  3monthsor Over gk

1] Group Repayable Upto lesshbutover Imonths  Over1 year EENE gl ait
ZE-ZETZB=T-R  At31 December 2012 on demand 1 month 1 month to1 year to5years  Over5years Indefinite Total
BE Assets
ReRESANER Cash and balances with banks 2,444,504 11,200,757 25,061 - 1,502 - - 13,685,824
ESA-ET-fAR Placement with banks maturing

SEhER between one and twelve months - 61,450 3,448,758 651,593 19417 - - 4,181,218
BERERENER Trading securities - 159,494 650,443 4,694,242 393,749 19,810 221,625 6,139,363
BEALTENEEAES  Financial assets designated

FABRNEHAR atfar value through proft orloss - - 14,75 92 1187315 545 20024 8707702
fEeRIA Derivative financial instruments - 83,750 43,842 41,361 195,093 339,263 - 703,309
REEHRAMER Advances and other accounts 7,304,105 7,727,864 9285585 14715964 30,167550 27,309,591 2338259 98,848918
A ERA Available-for-sale securities - 38,794 99,228 1,422,570 16,057,485 4038781 705,696 22,362,554
RENEES Held-to-maturity securities - 21,815 129120 2,396,425 4,431,311 56,079 - 7,274,750
SENAIRE Investment in an associate - - - - - = 2,437,031 2,437,031
LEZHERRE Investments in jointly controlled entities - - - - - - 54,246 54,246
HE Goodwil - - - - - - 950,092 950,092
EVEE Intangible assets - - - - - - 92,988 92,988
ERENETEE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 5,069,259 5,069,259
RENE Investment properties - - - - - - 693,434 693,434
fEEEE Current income tax assets - - - 930 - - - 930
ERfEEE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 7,259 - - 7,259
REEREHL Valug of in-force long-term

BHREEE Ife assurance business - - - - - = 1,771,156 1,771,156
BEAT Total assets 9,748,609 19,533,924 13,726,793 24,098,027 52,474,681 37,021,939 16,376,960 172,980,933
Bf Liabilties
ROER Deposits from banks 146,583 872,226 812,626 314 813,871 - - 2,645,620
fEeRIE Derivative financial instruments - 34,048 34,996 39,851 1,129,006 287,297 - 1,525,198
RIEEERIENAE Trading liabilties - 18,500 1,418,069 646,446 195,029 = = 2,278,044
RPEH Deposits from customers 34,135,445 4479424 25,343918 14,840,815 727,034 = - 1165526,63%
BEANERE Certficates of deposit issued - 253,929 13,363 4,813,188 671,982 - - 5,752,462
BEAHERES Issued debt securtes - - - 1,987,792 775,115 - - 2,712,007
f&EEH Subordinated notes - - - - 510,460 3,425,102 - 3,935,562
HfiRE RER Other accounts and accruals 289,136 748,334 1,541,853 925,877 167,879 - 2,455,979 6,129,058
PEfEaE Current income tax liabilties - - - 117,880 - - - 117,880
EiHEaE Deferred income tax liabilties - - - - 277,146 - - 277,746
URERBAOREFAA  Liabiities to policyholders under

a1 long-term insurance contracts - - - - - = 8743271 8743271
84 Total liabilities 34,571,164 43,406,461 29,164,825 23,322,163 5,268,122 3,712,399 11,199,250 150,644,384
FRBEEE Net liquidity gap (24,822,555) (23,872,537) (15,438,032) 775,864 47,206,559 33,309,540 5171,110 22,336,549
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3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

—EANE ZRANE
{B=@AZNT -F —&lt
MEEE  —EAINT  Imonthsor Over 3ik:

58 Group Repayable Upto  lessbutover Smonths  Over 1 year RENE a gl E
ZE-—ErZ=1-A(HEj]) At31 December 2011 (Restated) on demand 1 month 1 month to 1 year to5years  Over5years Indefinite Total
gE Assets
ReRERTNER Cash and balances with banks 4,340,854 7,840,163 36,467 161 - - - 12,217,645
ERIT-ET-EAR Placement with banks maturing

S|y between one and twelve months - - 2,726,265 2,458,060 - - - 5,184,325
RIEEERRNES Trading securities - 76,991 1,868,905 3,186,146 362,562 21,626 184311 5,700,541
BEALTEIEEEEE  Financial assets designated

TAERNEREE at fair value through profit or loss - 267,185 40,692 219,679 1,068,118 3,683,716 1,833,310 7,172,700
it eRIE Derivative financial instruments - 67,124 141 475 75,743 140,689 271,002 - 696,033
EBETREREE Advances and other accounts 6,888,289 7,416,964 8,453,197 11,415,328 28,573,163 28,323,173 1,673,860 92,743 974
IHHERR Available-for-sale securities - 124,281 135,123 602,349 12,804,456 3,322,246 676,797 17,665,252
BRHERA Held-to-maturity securities - 553,281 486,510 2,041,034 4,812,160 505,037 - 8,398,022
BEnaRE Investment in an associate - - - - - = 1,961,365 1,961,365
LR EERA Investments in jointly controlled entiies - - - - - - 68,650 68,650
[ Goodwill - - - - - - 950,992 950,992
BEE Intangible assets - - - - - - 98,663 98,663
EREMETEE Premises and other fixed assets - - - = - - 3839778 3839778
KEnE Investment properties = - = S = = 650,865 650,865
JERELE Current income tax assets - - - 8,358 - - - 8,358
ERfEEE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 50,069 - - 50,069
RESRER Valug of in-force long-term

ERRERE Ife assurance business - - - - - - 1,787,252 1,787,252
BEAT Total assets 11,229,143 16,345,989 13,888,634 20,066,858 47811217 36,126,800 13,725,843 159,194,484
8k Liabilties
ROER Deposits from banks 14,495 1,076,582 477,923 815,503 - - - 2,384,503
it eRIE Derivative financial instruments - 34417 49,485 26,733 1,288,753 180211 - 1,579,599
FEEERRNER Trading liabilities - 1,500,975 474,389 969,267 100,581 - - 3,045,202
EPEH Depostts from customers 26,313,633 41,696,084 27,015,485 15,304,016 1,200,876 - - 111,629,004
RS Oettifcates of deposttissted - 537,200 W% 111205 971,163 53,603 - 316407
BEANEEES Issued debt securities - - - - 2,748,320 - - 2,718,320
KERK Subordinated notes - - - 1,170,815 - 2,483,672 - 3,654,487
HARA RER Other accounts and accruals 40439 730,507 542,781 803,057 354,488 - 1,381,582 4,250,944
HsfEaE Current income tax liabilties - - - 31,669 = = = 31,669
EiEak Deferred income tax liabiliies - - - - 83477 - - 83477
HRERBANREZEA  Liablties to policyholders under

pa-i long-term insurance contracts - - - - - - 7,458,562 7,458,562
BEAH Total liabilities 26,768,567 45,575,855 29,049,799 20,323 325 6,726,658 2,717,576 8,840,144 140,001,924
il Netiuidity gap (155044 (29229868 (15,161,165) 6467 4084550 3340924 485G 19192560
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3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

In respect of certificates of deposit held for investment purpose
and included in total assets as at the end of the reporting period,
the relevant balance, analysed based on the remaining period to

contractual maturity, is shown as follows:

-fRNL ZREARL
B=ERIAT 3£ -t
PHEE  -@EAIUT  3monthsor Over it
Repayable Upto lessbutover Imonths  Over1 year BENE #HAH it
&8 Group on demand 1 month 1 month to1year to5years  Over5years Indefinite Total
ZE-ZE{ZR=t-B  At31 December 2012
FrERan Certficates of deposit held included in:
RHERS Available-for-sale securities - - - 5 2 = = 5
RENEES Held-to-maturity securities - - - - 399,701 - - 399,701
- - - - 39701 - - 39701
ZT—EFZR=T-A  At31December 2011
TEEaa Certificates of deposit held included in:
IfHERS Available-for-sale securities - - - 24270 - - - 24,210
BEYHEA Held-to-maturity securities - - 6,126 = = = = 6,126
- - 612 270 - - - 303%

BERABEHR RN ENBRMZZOERLE S
EEREE+HER - ARETHERRSKESR
THEENHREARER - HRTME - =248
RHERIE N ER - THENFERARESR
Mg - Eh g NEERE -

AEMEBENE JHHEI&LA/\IEE’JEXZK’S&@JHEZ
B E%E’Jéé rEEERDES REEF
ERERSBIRERBNEZRE -

H&EBE—RABRE=FeREE@BE2EH
R&E® - FEHW%W%H%F% BIH T PATRR SRIEH

REBESHEREIRAENSE AR RZEE
AERIISSRIEEBESAES - AR
HEBEZEEAENRENEGLNBSBARVER
HErBESHRR -

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and
interest rates of assets and liabilities are fundamental to the
management of the Group. It is unusual for banks to be completely
matched, as businesses transacted are often of uncertain term
and of different types. An unmatched position potentially enhances
profitability, but also increases the risk of losses.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at
an acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature are
important factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its

exposure to changes in interest rates and exchange rates.

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and
standby letters of credit are considerably less than the amount of the
commitment because the Group does not generally expect the third
parties to fully draw funds under the agreement. The total outstanding
contractual amount of commitments to extend credit does not
necessarily represent future cash requirements, as many of these
commitments will expire or terminate without being funded.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual or expected
maturities

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under
non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities that
will be settled on a net basis and derivative financial instruments that
will be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual maturities at
the end of the reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Group
manages the inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted
cash inflows.

The Group’s derivatives that normally will be settled on a net basis
include:

o Foreign exchange derivatives: over-the-counter (OTC) currency
options, currency futures, exchange traded currency options;

° Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps, forward rate
agreements, OTC interest rate options, interest rate futures and
other interest rate contracts; and

° Equity derivatives: equity options.

The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a gross basis include:

o Foreign exchange derivatives: currency forward, currency
swaps;
° Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps and cross currency

interest rate swaps; and
° Credit derivatives: credit default swaps.



P

(AT TAIYIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3.4 FREBESES @ 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
343 BEHNB AR EAHAZKMEE 3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual or expected
B0 () maturities (Continued)
—-fEALLE  =EANL
SEEETN B-F —F0E
—BAZUT  3Imonths or Over ZRE
&8 Group Upto1 lessbutover ~ 3months  Over1 year BENE fit
“E-Z¥+ZA=t-H At 31 December 2012 month 1 month to 1 year to5years  Over 5 years Total
FTETARSR Non-derivative cash flow
afE Liabilities
RITHER Deposits from banks 824,561 580,914 236,630 1,031,766 - 2673871
ZFEH Deposits from customers 75,433,985 25,016,099 15,842,120 1,256,317 88,955 117,637,476
KIEEERANEE Trading liabilities 18,500 1,419,154 648,239 193,257 = 2,279,150
BRTNERE Certificates of deposit issued 262,534 22,753 5,376,135 680,714 = 6,342,136
BRENERES Issued debt securities 11,468 - 1,971,003 780,744 - 2763215
REER Subordinated notes - 106,381 105724 2653237 1948171 4813513
HEHRBANREFBEAZAR  Liabilities to policyholders under
long-term insurance contracts 131,551 61,088 830,841 3,557,996 20,371,170 24,952,646
AfEE Other liabilities 921,823 1,248,001 921,355 142,055 - 3,283,234
BEAE(A0IER) Total liabilities (contractual
maturity dates) 77,604,422 28,454,390 25,932,047 10,296,086 22,408,296 164,695,241
(TETERER Derivative cash flow
BEBEETESRTE Derivative financial instruments
settled on net basis (8,337) (12,221) (66,489) (21,950 - (108,997)
BOBEE TESHTE Derivative financial instruments
settled on a gross basis
it st Total outflow 17,131,745 || 17,961,498 || 27,706,942 || 4,848,241 505,369 || 68,243,795
WAL Total inflow (17,162,878) | | (17,951,241) || (27,462,799) || (3,952,574) (578,679) || (67,108,171)
(31,133) 10,257 244,143 895,667 16,690 1,135,624

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |




BRI

(LAEBEFThz5I7R)

3.4 FREBESES @
343 BAKWBH AR B BB A ZKE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual or expected

B2 ) maturities (Continued)
—EANLEE  ZEAML
ZEAIMUT E-F —FN)E
—ERZT 3 months or Over ZRE

£H Group Upto less but over 3months  Over 1 year AFENE A
ZE——%+ZA=1-H At 31 December 2011 1 month 1 month tolyear  to5years Over5 years Total
FTETARER Non-derivative cash flow
BfE Liabilities
RITHEH Deposits from banks 994 421 589,544 833,409 3,212 - 2420586
ZFEH Deposits from customers 68,731,606 27,192,220 15,644,974 1,269,128 - 112,837,928
REEERENER Trading liabilities 1,501,000 474,918 970,249 100,453 - 3,046,620
BEINENE Certificates of deposit issued 649,156 750,527 982,873 998,727 51,765 3,433,048
BEINGEEES Issued debt securities 12,008 - 34,127 2,770,030 - 2,816,165
G Subordinated notes - 105,125 1,266,668 568,111 2,551,321 4,491,225

HEHRBANREFBEAZAR  Liabilities to policyholders under
long-term insurance contracts

AfEE Other liabilities
BEAE(A0IER) Total liabilities (contractual
maturity dates)
(TETERER Derivative cash flow
REBREEZTESRIA Derivative financial instruments
settled on net basis
RABEEZITEERIA Derivative financial instruments
settled on a gross basis
e Total outflow
MARE Total inflow

ARARENAEAEREAERENEEREZE
ESRERE EPRRITNGH  EREZIER
kEEES  RITERRBR  NIEFPERKE
K EABEBT  BHREOGHEAN—FA
NEZEFPEFEEEH - 1o BEFEFLE
EEFEREFARERESE - AKELTES
HERAFBBEIINESRE(PIM : @BEME)
AENREBEEESFRL -

AFEemEERFRAR |

29,365 59,825 443,164 3,797,144 19,193,321 23,522,819
1,041,264 274,344 521,630 333,844 = 2,171,082

72,958,820 29,446,503 20,697,094 9,840,649 21,796,407 154,739,473

37,958 (29,666) 15,041 73,524 2,644 99,501

19441518 |[ 13,895,176 |[ 9585427 |[ 2,441,227 605,655 |[ 45,939,003
(19,452,009) || (14,016,609) || (9,363,932) || (1445883) || (546,238 || (44,824,671)

(10,491) (121,433) 171,495 995,344 79,417 1,114,332

Assets available to meet all of the liabilities and to cover outstanding
loan commitments include cash, central bank balances, items in
the course of collection and treasury bills; loans and advances to
banks; and loans and advances to customers. In the normal course
of business, a proportion of customer loans contractually repayable
within one year will be extended. In addition, debt securities and
treasury bills have been pledged to secure liabilities. The Group
would also be able to meet unexpected net cash outflows by selling
securities and accessing additional funding sources such as asset-
backed markets.
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3.4 REBELERR @ 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

344 BEABEXKIEE 3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items

TREFEATIAER : Included in the table below are the following items:

. ERHEETRPEEREMRE 2 EFX . Loan commitments by reference to the dates of the contractual
EEEREAEBEEABRINGRIAZ amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial instruments
B8R BE) that commit it to extend credit to customers and other facilities;

. RERB BB BERIETMEA T 2 B i J Financial guarantees based on the conditions existing at the
1% reporting date as to what contractual payments are required;

o AREEASFABEAZTAIBURKE L ALE S
MARREXN Z HEEENRERE - &

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of operating lease commitments
where a Group company is the lessee; and

. BEREENRME 2 EAERIE - . Capital commitments for the acquisition of buildings and
equipment.
—FEH0R —FL% BEENE
£ Group No later ERE Over =
—EB-—f+ZA=t—H At 31 December 2012 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
BRRE Loan commitments 54,319,767 5,654,776 12,669 59,987,212
BR AR REME RS Guarantees, acceptances
and other financial facilities
—HH - Acceptances 1,024,085 - - 1,024,085
—ERRERER - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 356,464 545,879 83,217 985,560
—REREEERT - Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 735,233 - - 735,233
EETFER Forward forward deposits placed - - = =
IR TR A Operating lease commitments 145,478 253,561 58,161 457,200
BAH I Capital commitments 216,416 = = 216,416
Bt Total 56,797,443 6,454,216 154,047 63,405,706
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3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items (Continued)

—FR —FE PR RELAE
£E Group No later EREF Over =5
—E——F%+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2011 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
B e Loan commitments 51,030,689 3,239,398 9,871 54,279,958
FER - A R EA S B ARTES Guarantees, acceptances
and other financial facilities
—HH - Acceptances 34,954 - - 34,954
— R & ERERE - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 314,365 312,018 83,217 709,600
—IREREEERL - Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 1,746,475 = = 1,746,475
EHEFER Forward forward deposits placed 5,760 - - 5,760
BT A AR Operating lease commitments 108,065 125,876 78,946 312,887
BIESE Capital commitments 241,859 = = 241,859
At Total 53,482,167 3,677,292 172,034 57,331,493

35 TRMEEREEBEZAYE
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(@)  Determination of fair value

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
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Fair values are subject to a control framework that the Board is
held responsible for ensuring proper valuation governance and
controls processes of the Group. It delegates the responsibility
for overseeing the valuation process for financial instruments
to the TIRC. Valuation is performed independently by RMCD
and the valuation results are periodically verified to ensure the
integrity of the fair value measurement process.

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement
date under current market conditions regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation
technique.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on observable market quotations.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(@)  Determination of fair value (Continued)

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or
regulatory agency. A quoted price in an active market provides
the most reliable evidence of fair value and shall be used
whenever available. If a financial asset or a financial liability has
a bid price and an ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread
that is most representative of fair value in the circumstances is
used by the Group.

Where observable market quotation of financial instruments is
not directly available, the Group estimates the fair value of such
financial instruments by using appropriate valuation techniques
that are widely recognised including present value techniques
and standard option pricing models. In applying valuation
techniques for these financial instruments, the Group maximizes
the use of relevant observable inputs (for examples, interest
rates, FX rates, volatilities, credit spreads) and minimizes the
use of unobservable inputs. The fair value of interest-rate swaps
is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash
flows. The fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts is
generally based on current forward rates while other derivatives
are valued using appropriate pricing models, such as Black-
Scholes option pricing model.

The Group uses external price quotes and its own credit
risk spreads in determining the current value of its derivative
liabilities and other liabilities for which it has elected the fair
value option. When the Group’s credit spreads widen, the Group
recognises a gain on these liabilities because the value of the
liabilities has decreased. When the Group’s credit spreads
narrow, the Group recognises a loss on these liabilities because
the value of the liabilities has increased.

Price data and parameters used in the measurement process
are reviewed carefully and adjusted, if necessary, to take
consideration of the current market developments.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(®)

Fair value hierarchy

The Group measures fair values using the following

hierarchy that reflects the significance of the observable and

unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement:

Level

Descriptions

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities. This level includes equity
and debt securities that are listed on exchanges or
regularly quoted in the market, and exchange traded
derivatives like futures.

Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices). This level includes the majority of the
over-the-counter derivative contracts.

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs). This
level includes equity and debt securities with significant

unobservable components.
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(AR Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.5 sREERAGEZAFE®@®
(Z2) RFEERE) (b)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

BEAFEMAEZEERARE Assets and liabilities measured at fair value:

£H

Group

1R

g

ERE

A

=]
—E--f+-A=1+-H At 31 Dec 2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
A Descriptions
WATEEFTEAE Financial assets at fair value
SE ABRNEREE through profit or loss
HEBERS Held for trading
BEREH Debt securities - 5,917,738 = 5,917,738
B ME S Equity securities 214,878 6,747 - 221,625
EEUAATFEFERH Designated at fair value
ZH ABR through profit or loss
ERES Debt securities - 6,597,779 - 6,597,779
BaES Equity securities 1,308,737 516,186 285,000 2,109,923
PTEERMIA Derivative financial instruments
BIEEERS Held for trading - 273,560 = 273,560
AR Held for hedging - 429,749 - 429,749
AHEeREE Available-for-sale financial assets
EBES Debt securities - 21,656,856 3,828 21,660,684
ERMEES Equity securities 393,675 233,086 75,109 701,870
BOFEEZEEA Total assets measured at fair value 1,917,290 35,631,701 363,937 37,912,928
WATEFEREES) Financial liabilities at fair value
FAERNERERE through profit or loss
HEEERE Held for trading - 2,278,044 - 2,278,044
BENAATEFEEH Designated at fair value through
R ABR profit or loss = = = =
TESMTA Derivative financial instruments
RIEEERZ Held for trading - 268,334 = 268,334
AR Held for hedging - 1,256,864 = 1,256,864
BATEFECABEAG Total liabilities measured at fair value - 3,803,242 = 3,803,242

REREIFHEEZIHEESREER
FLTERUEFREFKRE - HRER
FETRAIFEAE UL ESRMEER
FXAMEDN TR ©

The available-for-sale financial assets classified as Level 3
assets represent investments in unlisted equity securities and
debentures. They are stated at cost as the fair value of these
financial assets cannot be reliably measured.

HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—HBRZZE
—F+ZA=+—HILFE HESH
EERBEEBASEEAFEBRZRNES
&R BREEZEBAINEEH R E

e

For the year ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011,
there were no transfers of financial assets and liabilities into or
out of the Level 3 fair value hierarchy. The changes in carrying
value represent the exchange revaluation gains/losses.
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(LAEBEFThz5I7R)

3.5

THMEEREBEZAFE®
(Z2) AFEERE)

RAERFIRFNEEZIEENAFEE
EEHEEH A ABENECREE AR
ER—BREBARMNERERS - ZF
BERZE—ZF+ZA=+—HZA
F1E 5 285,000,0008 (- & ——4F:
313,942,0008 7T) ° hERKZRR AT
ABSRBEB 2T EBAEERRME

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(b)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The financial asset designated at fair value through profit
or loss classified as a Level 3 asset represents investment
in the equity security of an insurance company with a fair
value of HK$285,000,000 as at 31 December 2012 (2011:
HK$313,942,000). It is valued on the basis of the appraisal value
of the life assurance business of the insurance company.

%8 Group R FoMk F3 &%
“T—F+-A=+—H  At31Dec 2011 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AR Descriptions
AT EFERE Financial assets at fair value
SO A ERNEREE through profit or loss
HEBERS Held for trading
Tif%é’}'f\ 5 Debt securities - 5,516,230 - 5,516,230
R EE Equity securities 177,903 6,408 = 184,311
? NFEFERHE Designated at fair value
""""" uﬂ\?ﬁ = through profit or loss
LE KBS Debt securities - 5,339,392 = 5,339,392
ERIEE Equity securities 1,283,782 235,584 313,942 1,833,308
PTEERMIA Derivative financial instruments
BEEERE Held for trading - 329,420 - 329,420
AR Held for hedging - 366,613 = 366,613
AEHEZEBEE Available-for-sale financial assets
EE S Debt securities - 16,988,454 4,078 16,992,532
BRUES Equity securities 407,388 190,100 75,232 672,720
BATEFEZEEAR Total assets measured at fair value 1,869,073 28,972,201 393,252 31,234,526
AR FEFEEEEZE) Financial liabilities at fair value
FABRNERERE through profit or loss
BEEERE Held for trading - 3,045,202 - 3,045,202
EENATERFER Designated at fair value through
ZE AR profit or loss - 1,170,815 - 1,170,815
TES@MTA Derivative financial instruments
HEEERE Held for trading - 241,683 - 241,683
BB REL Held for hedging - 1,337,916 - 1,337,916
BNTEFEZBERR Total liabilities measured at fair value - 5,795,616 = 5,795,616

AFEemEERFRAR |
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(AR Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

35 SRMEEREBZAFE @ 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(Z) RNFERBRE) (b)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
TRINTETFAEMBRZEEREARTF The following table shows the sensitivity in respect of the equity
B2 AHEH T ABR 2 ESZEEZSFRN securities designated at fair value through profit or loss on Level
FEIRANFTEHNGRE ¢ 3 measurements to some possible alternative assumptions:

U R R R
Reflected in

income statement EENIREE
EE#{ BHEE(t Resultant

Favourable Unfavourable Carrying
FERE Main assumptions changes changes value
—E2-—_—%+-HA=1+—8 At 31 December 2012
REEHRILIN0.1% Increase in investment returns by 0.1% 14,532 = 299,532
KEBRRD0.1% Decrease in investment returns by 0.1% - (14,769) 270,231
S HIEIN10% Increase in expenses by 10% - (8,257) 276,743
TR 10% Decrease in expenses by 10% 8,004 = 293,004
T, FAREIEN10% Increase in lapse/surrenders etc. by 10% - (11,065) 273,935
il BRERD10% Decrease in lapse/surrenders etc. by 10% 11,105 - 296,105
T BREENA.0% Increase in mortality/morbidity by 1.0% - (263) 284,737
T BRERA 1.0% Decrease in mortality/morbidity by 1.0% 38 - 285,038
[\ B35 R 12 901.0% Increase in risk discount rate by 1.0% - (46,883) 238,117
[E B BE IR %5 0 1.0% Decrease in risk discount rate by 1.0% 55,237 = 340,237
—E——ft+ZHA=t1—H At 31 December 2011
HELRENNO0.1% Increase in investment returns by 0.1% 16,531 = 330,888
KEBHRBD0.1% Decrease in investment returns by 0.1% - (16,973) 297,384
S HIEIN10% Increase in expenses by 10% - (9,946) 304,411
TR 10% Decrease in expenses by 10% 9,945 = 324,302
T, FAREIEN10% Increase in lapse/surrenders etc. by 10% - (13,343) 301,014
T BERERD10% Decrease in lapse/surrenders etc. by 10% 13,580 = 327,937
T BREENA.0% Increase in mortality/morbidity by 1.0% - (352) 314,005
T RRERA1.0% Decrease in mortality/morbidity by 1.0% 353 - 314,710
[ 2 B3R =32 011.0% Increase in risk discount rate by 1.0% - (52,893) 261,464
[E B BE IR %5 0 1.0% Decrease in risk discount rate by 1.0% 60,674 = 375,031
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(b)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

EEUQTEFE
BH#BHEA
BRNERMEE
Financial assets
designated at fair value
through profit or loss
PR TR 35

Equity securities

—FT——F—HF—H
NF{EEE

—FFFTZA=1—H

BREERERAGEAN _T——F
TZA=1T—BHEZHE IR

ANFEAIBA
—2——4-A-A
ATEREA

—E——#+t-A=+-A
BEEREENEBR =7

TZA=1T—BRHEZHE IR
BENFEARER

AFEemEERFRAR |

At 1 January 2012 313,942
Fair value loss (28,942)

At 31 December 2012 285,000

Total loss for the year included in profit or loss for
Level 3 assets held at 31 December 2012

(28,942)
At 1 January 2011 367,000
Fair value loss (53,058)
At 31 December 2011 313,942
Total loss for the year included in profit or loss for
Level 3 assets held at 31 December 2011
(53,058)



P

(AR Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
35 SRMEEREBZAFE @ 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(A) RIERFEGFTECZHTA (c)  Financial instruments not measured at fair value
TR RZ R AR R B B SR 5 2R IR A The table below summarises the carrying amounts and fair
NPEIRZ eBEEREBEZREEMN values of those financial assets and liabilities not presented
NEE - ERBEFFERE  HEQAFE in the Group’s statement of financial position at their fair
TR R (RN A ) A5 B DA E Wy T 35 7 R Bh value. For disclosure purposes, these fair values have been
HERZEMITARKEENHNTHNEES R estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at
s MR ERE S 5 - KM HERK the current market interest rate that is available to the Group
REEBT - for similar financial instruments, if applicable, or in the case of

investment securities, determined based on market prices or
price quotations.

BREE AVE
Carrying value Fair value
- -—T——4% CE--f& —T——F
&8 Group 2012 2011 2012 2011
SREE Financial assets
R e RERITH AR Cash and balances with banks 13,685,824 12,217,645 13,685,683 12,219,542
ERIT—ZE+EAX Placements with banks maturing
B EmER between one and twelve months 4,181,218 5,184,325 4,184,420 5,198,154
HFER Advances to customers
AAER Loans to individuals
—EAFR - Credit cards 4,425,525 4,261,547 4,426,032 4,262,025
—RIBEN - Mortgages 23,749,843 23,017,708 23,749,762 23,017,369
—HAth - Others 5,422,866 4,338,395 5,391,286 4,325,076
EER Loans to corporate entities
—BHERN - Term loans 24,257,026 22,231,984  24,245669 22,229,930
—ZBER - Mortgages 11,866,854 11,132,055 11,867,031 11,131,636
—BoRE - Trade finance 5,360,541 5,223,525 5,358,190 5,223,594
—Hft - Others 11,090,926 10,662,014 11,085,702 10,539,857
BHERE Trade bills 4,329,872 1,559,061 4,387,616 1,566,410
@%E EA e Investments in securities included
ARl BEHIRE in loans and receivables category 3,402,239 6,899,300 2,998,742 5,819,503
#’r HE S Held-to-maturity securities 7,274,750 8,398,022 7,286,471 8,039,076
cRARE Financial liabilities
RITE Deposits from banks 2,645,620 2,384,503 2,644,960 2,385,887
EYSHET Deposits from customers 116,526,636 111,629,094 116,548,358 111,717,179
BEITHFRGE Certificates of deposit issued 5,752,462 3,164,067 5,759,413 3,160,814
BRITHNERES Issued debt securities 2,712,907 2,718,320 2,732,129 2,637,460
BERE® Subordinated notes 3,935,562 2,483,672 3,913,611 2,200,467
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(c)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value (Continued)

(i) Placements with and advances to banks

The fair value of floating rate placements and overnight
deposits is their carrying amount. The estimated fair value
of fixed interest bearing deposits is based on discounted
cash flows using prevailing money-market interest rates
for debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity.

(i)  Loans and advances to customers, and trade bills

The estimated fair value of loans and advances and trade
bills represents the discounted amount of estimated future
cash flows expected to be received. Expected cash flows
are discounted at current market rates to determine fair

value.

(i) Investment securities

Investment securities include interest-bearing assets
included in the loans and receivables, and held-to-
maturity categories. Fair value of held-to-maturity assets
and loans and receivables is based on market prices or
broker/dealer price quotations. Where this information is
not available, fair value is estimated using quoted market
prices for securities with similar credit, maturity and yield
characteristics.

(iv) Deposits and balances from banks, deposits from
customers, certificates of deposit issued and other
borrowed funds

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated
maturity, which includes non-interest bearing deposits,
is the amount repayable on demand. The estimated
fair value of fixed interest-bearing deposits and other
borrowings not quoted in an active market is based on
discounted cash flows using interest rates for new debts
with similar remaining maturity.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.5

3.6

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(c)  Financial instruments not measured at fair value (Continued)

(v)  Debt securities in issue including subordinated
notes issued

For those notes where quoted market prices are not
available, the present value technique is used based on
current yield curve appropriate for the remaining term to
maturity to estimate fair value.

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

To comply with the capital requirements set by the banking and
insurance regulators in the markets where the entities within the
Group operate;

To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue its business as a
going concern;

To maximise returns to shareholders and optimise the benefits
to other stakeholders; and

To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of
its business.

3.6.1 Banking business

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the Group’s

Hong Kong banking subsidiaries are monitored regularly by the

Group’s management, employing techniques based on the guidelines

developed by the Basel Committee, as implemented by the HKMA, for

supervisory purposes. The required information is filed with the HKMA

on a quarterly basis.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.6 Capital management (Continued)
3.6.1 Banking business (Continued)

The HKMA requires DSB to maintain a ratio of total regulatory capital
to the risk-weighted amount (i.e. the capital adequacy ratio) at or
above the internationally agreed minimum of 8%. DSB’s regulatory
capital as managed by the Group’s management is divided into two
tiers:

° Core capital: share capital, profit and loss, and reserves created
by appropriations of retained earnings. The book value of
goodwill and other intangible assets is deducted in arriving at
core capital; and

° Supplementary capital: qualifying perpetual and term subordinated
debts, collectively assessed impairment allowances, regulatory
reserve, and fair value gains arising on revaluation of holdings
of land and buildings and available-for-sale equities and debt

securities.

Investment in subsidiaries, significant investments in non-subsidiary
companies and shares, exposures to connected companies and
investments in other banks’ equity are deducted from core capital and
supplementary capital to arrive at the regulatory capital.

Risk-weighted amount is the aggregate of the risk-weighted amounts
for credit risk, market risk and operational risk, and covers both on-
balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposures. On-balance sheet
exposures are classified according to the obligor or the nature of each
exposure and risk-weighted based on the credit assessment rating
assigned by an external credit assessment institution recognised by
the HKMA or other rules as set out in the Banking (Capital) Rules,
taking into account the capital effects of credit risk mitigation.
Off-balance sheet exposures are converted into credit-equivalent
amounts by applying relevant credit conversion factors to each
exposure, before being classified and risk-weighted as if they were
on-balance sheet exposures.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the Group’s
Macau banking subsidiary, BCM, and banking subsidiary in China,
DSB China, are monitored regularly by the Group’s management,
employing techniques based on the guidelines provided by the
Autoridade Monetaria de Macau (“AMCM”) and the China Banking
Regulatory Commission (“CBRC”) respectively for supervisory
purposes.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.6 Capital management (Continued)
3.6.1 Banking business (Continued)

The required information is filed by BCM with the AMCM and by
DSB China with the CBRC on a quarterly basis. The AMCM requires
BCM and the CBRC requires DSB China to maintain a ratio of own
funds or capital base to total risk-weighted exposures (i.e. the capital
adequacy ratio) not lower than the agreed regulatory minimum of 8%.

Certain non-banking subsidiaries of the Group are also subject to
statutory capital requirements from other regulatory authorities, such
as the Securities and Futures Commission.

3.6.2 Insurance business

In each market in which the Group’s insurance subsidiaries operate,
the local insurance regulator specifies the minimum amount and type
of capital that must be held by each of the subsidiaries in addition
to their insurance liabilities. The minimum required capital must be
maintained at all times throughout the year. The Group’s subsidiaries
are subject to insurance solvency regulations in the markets in
which they issue insurance and investment contracts, and where
they have to comply with the local solvency regulations. The Group
has embedded in its asset and liability management framework the
necessary tests to ensure continuous and full compliance with such
regulations. The solvency requirement of each insurance company in
each market is subject to local requirements, which may differ from
jurisdiction to jurisdiction.

In Hong Kong, the required margin of solvency for the Group’s life
insurance subsidiary, Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited, is
determined by the Group’s appointed actuary in accordance with the
Hong Kong Insurance Companies (Margin of Solvency) Regulation.
In addition, dynamic solvency test is also required by Insurance
Authority to identify the solvency position of the company on a going
concern basis and plausible threats to satisfactory financial condition.
For both 2012 and 2011, the results of dynamic solvency test are
satisfactory.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.7 Fiduciary activities

The Group provides custody, trustee, wealth management and
advisory services to third parties, which involve the Group making
allocation and purchase and sale decisions in relation to a variety
of financial instruments. Those assets that are held in a fiduciary
capacity are not included in the Group’s financial statements. These
services could give rise to the risk that the Group could be accused of
mal-administration.

3.8 Insurance risk
3.8.1 Frequency and severity of claims

For contracts where death is the insured risk, the most significant
factors that could increase the overall frequency of claims are
epidemics or wide spread changes in lifestyle, resulting in earlier or
more claims than expected.

For contracts with fixed and guaranteed benefits and fixed future
premiums, there are no mitigating terms and conditions that reduce
the insurance risk accepted. For contracts with discretionary
participating features, the participating nature of these contracts
results in a significant portion of the insurance and financial risks
being shared with the insured party.

The Group charges for mortality risk on a monthly basis for all
insurance contracts without a fixed term. It has the right to alter
these charges based on its mortality experience and hence minimise
its exposure to mortality risk. Delays in implementing increases in
charges and market or regulatory restraints over the extent of the
increases may reduce its mitigating effect.

The Group manages these risks through its underwriting strategy and
reinsurance arrangements.

The Group’s underwriting strategy seeks diversity to ensure a
balanced portfolio and is based on a portfolio of similar risks over
a number of years and, as such, it is believed that this reduces the
variability of the outcome. Premium pricing is set at an appropriate
level that corresponds with the underlying exposure of the risks
underwritten. The Group has a company-wide retention limit on any
single life insured. The Group reinsures the excess of the insured
benefit over the limit for standard risks (from a medical point of view)
under an excess of loss reinsurance arrangement.
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3.8 Insurance risk (Continued)
3.8.1 Frequency and severity of claims (Continued)

Within the insurance process, concentrations of risk may arise where
a particular event or series of events could impact heavily upon
the Group’s liabilities. Such concentrations may arise from a single
insurance contract or through a small number of related contracts,
and relate to circumstances where significant liabilities could arise.

The Group is subject to concentration risk arising from accidents
or epidemics on policies taken out by its policyholders. Therefore,
to cover the risk, catastrophe reinsurance arrangements have been
made by the Group.

3.8.2 Sources of uncertainty in the estimate of future benefit
payments and premium receipts

Uncertainty in the estimation of future benefit payments and
premium receipts for long-term insurance contracts arises from the
unpredictability of long-term changes in overall levels of mortality and
the variability in contract holder behaviour.

The Group uses appropriate industry tables of standard mortality
adjusted according to the type of contract being written. An
investigation into the actual experience of the Group is carried out
annually. Realistic estimates of future mortality are made based on
standard industry tables adjusted for the Group’s overall experience
with appropriate margins.

3.8.3 Assumptions and sensitivity of long-term insurance
contracts

Estimates are made in calculating the future insurance liabilities under
insurance contracts.

Key assumptions are summarised below:
— Mortality

An appropriate table of standard mortality is chosen with adjustment
for the Group’s own experience with appropriate margins.

- Valuation interest rates
The valuation interest rates as at 31 December 2012 range from

1.00% to 2.90% (2011: 1.00% to 3.19%) depending on type of plans
and varies with changes in the appropriate risk free rates.
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3.8 Insurance risk (Continued)

3.8.3 Assumptions and sensitivity of long-term insurance
contracts (Continued)

Change in assumption

The valuation interest rates change with variations in the appropriate
risk free rates at each end of the reporting period. Valuation interest
rates in 2012 changed by -0.31% to -0.24% (2011: -0.98% to +0.35%)
depending on types of plans from 31 December 2011 to 31 December
2012. The impact of changes in valuation rates and other changes
in actuarial assumption increased the future insurance liabilities
under insurance contracts as at 31 December 2012 and reduced the
net profit for 2012 by HK$356,177,000 (2011: increased the future
insurance liabilities under insurance contracts and reduced the net
profit for 2011 by HK$594,171,000).

Sensitivity analysis

The following table sets out the sensitivity of value of future insurance
liabilities under insurance contracts to movements in the key
assumptions used in the estimation of future insurance liabilities

under insurance contracts.

=F-=F —B——F
2012 2011

RARAR B AR

EEE2H BEE

Change in Change in
ped ¢ ) future FRFEH future  JFa & E)
Change in insurance Change in insurance Change in
variable liabilities net profit liabilities net profit
T EREL Worsening of mortality 1% +6,809 -6,797 +839 -832

HENETHE Decrease in valuation

interest rates 0.1% +167,259 -166,837 +108,233 -108,052

AT THIRE — R RR LR E B M AT A AR
REFTEMEL - BR L EBRTATES
L A TRERNES ] RERE—FImA =2
PRTEZS)  KYANERFIETRES) -

AFEemEERFRAR |

The above analyses are based on a change in an assumption while
holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to
occur, and change in some of the assumptions may be correlated — for
example, change in interest rate and change in market values; change
in lapses and future mortality.
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4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Changes in estimates and assumptions may
have a significant impact on the results of the Group in the periods
when changes are made. The application and selection of different
estimates and assumptions, and their subsequent changes, could
affect the Group’s profit and net asset value in the future. The Group,
based on its high-level assessment of the sensitivity impacts on the
reported assets and liabilities of the Group arising from the changes
in critical accounting estimates and assumptions, believes that the
estimates and assumptions adopted are appropriate and reasonable,
and the financial results and positions presented in the Group’s
financial statements are fair and reasonable in all material respects.

(@) Impairment allowances on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment at
least on a quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment
loss should be recorded in the income statement, the Group
makes judgements as to whether there is any observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a portfolio of loans before the decrease
can be identified with an individual loan in that portfolio.
This evidence may include observable data indicating that
there has been an adverse change in the payment status of
borrowers in a group, or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on assets in the Group. Management uses estimates
based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to
those in the portfolio when estimating its future cash flows of
recoverable amounts. The methodology and assumptions used
for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows
are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss
estimates and actual loss experience.
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4.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)
(b)  Fair value of financial instruments

A majority of the Group’s investments in debt securities carried
at fair value are valued based on observable market quotations.
As a consequence of the difficulties in financial markets caused
by the 2008 global financial crisis, the Group had witnessed
observable declines in market liquidity and the range of market
quotations for certain securities have widened. The Group
applies judgement in selecting the most appropriate quotation
for valuation purposes based on its assessment of the range
of observable quotations, recent observable transactions, the
reliability and quality of the pricing source, and the value of
securities of a similar nature.

(c)  Goodwill and intangible asset valuation

For business combinations, subsequent to initial recognition
of goodwill and intangible assets, any major change in the
assumptions in relation to future benefits to be generated from
the intangible assets, including future cash flow of benefits
to be generated from the acquired entities, or discount rates
which could be caused by major changes in market conditions
and outlook, could result in adjustments to the carrying values
of such assets. In the event that the expected recoverable
amounts of goodwill and intangible assets are significantly lower
than their carrying values, impairment of such assets would
have to be recognised.
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4.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(@

Value of long-term life assurance business

Estimates are made in calculating the value of long-term life

assurance business.

Key assumptions are summarised below:

(iii)

Mortality. An appropriate base table of standard mortality
is chosen with adjustment for the Company’s own
experience.

Discount rate. A discount rate of 8.25% (2011: 8.50%)
being the risk free rate plus an appropriate equity risk
premium is applied.

Investment return. Investment return assumption ranges
from 3.40% to 5.40% per annum (2011: 4.00% to
6.50% per annum) depending on risk characteristics of
investments matching the liabilities of different plans.
Renewal expenses. Renewal expenses based on actual
experience and with reference to future business plan are
adopted.

Change in assumptions:

Assumptions are reviewed on a regular basis and adjusted

based on the actual experience and new forecasts.
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4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(d)  Value of long-term life assurance business (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis:

The following table represents the sensitivity of value of

long-term life assurance business to movements in the key

JEfE - assumptions used in the estimation of value of long-term life
assurance business.
—E-CF —T——F
2012 2011

RESKRES RESHER

ZERRE ZERRE

EE2% EEZE

Change in Change in

value of value of
Az# long-term FRASE long-term FRHEE
Change in assurance Change in assurance Change in
variable business net profit business net profit
BRE 2 Increase in discount rate +1% (186,608) (186,262) (192,103) (191,768)
R 2R Worsening of mortality +1% (22,576) (22,574) (18,736) (18,734)
RERR, T Decrease in investment return ~ -0.1% (90,121) (89,819) (99,150) (98,875)
BRI Increase in renewal expense +10% (32,612) (32,440) (16,480) (16,358)
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4.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(e) Estimate of future benefit payments and premiums arising
from long-term insurance contracts

The determination of the liabilities under long-term
insurance contracts is dependent on estimates made by
the Group. Valuation interest rates are determined from a
prudent assessment of the yield on existing assets and the
expected yield taking into account the Insurance Companies
(Determination of Long Term Liabilities) Regulation. Estimates
are made as to the expected number of deaths for each of the
years in which the Group is exposed to risk. The Group bases
these estimates on standard industry mortality tables that reflect
recent historical mortality experience with margin, adjusted
where appropriate to reflect the Group’s own experience. The
estimated number of deaths determines the value of the benefit
payments and the value of the valuation premiums. A main
source of uncertainty is that epidemics such as AIDS, SARS
and wide ranging lifestyle changes, such as in eating, smoking
and exercise habits, could result in future mortality being
significantly worse than in the past for the age groups in which
the Group has significant exposure to mortality risk offset by
continuing improvements in medical care and social conditions.

For contracts without fixed terms, the Group will be able to
increase mortality risk charges in future years in line with
emerging mortality experience.

Estimate of critical iliness related morbidity is based on industry
data with margin, adjusted where appropriate to reflect the
Group’s own experience. The uncertainty is greater for mortality
due to a smaller pool of insured, shorter history of the coverage,
medical advances and change in treatment as well as wide-
ranging lifestyle changes, such as in eating, smoking and
exercise habits.

The Group reserves the right to increase the premium rates in
future years for all contracts providing such coverage during the
premium term.
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policies

(@) Distinction between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property. In making its judgement, the Group
considers whether the property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by an entity. Owner-
occupied properties generate cash flows that are attributable
not only to property but also to other assets used in the
production or supply process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held to
supply services or for administrative purposes. If these portions
can be sold separately (or leased out separately under a finance
lease), the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions cannot be sold separately, the property is accounted
for as investment property only if an insignificant portion is held
to supply services or for administrative purposes. Judgement
is applied in determining whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as investment
property. The Group considers each property separately in
making its judgement.

(b) Impairment assessment on available-for-sale equity
securities, and investments in debt securities included
in the available-for-sale, held-to-maturity and loans and
receivables categories

The Group has conducted assessment of its available-for-sale
equity securities, and investments in debt securities included
in the available-for-sale (“AFS”), held-to-maturity (“HTM”)
and loans and receivables (“LNR”) categories as of the end
of the year and up to the date of the approval of the financial
statements of the Group. Assessment for any impairment, on
individual and collective basis, is made with reference to the
financial strength and credit rating of each issuer, industry
development and market conditions, and historical loss
experience of a portfolio of similar credits provided by rating
agencies. Apart from the LNR debt securities having been
assessed as impaired, the Group has concluded that there are
no objective or specific indications that any of its AFS, HTM and
LNR securities is individually impaired.
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policies (Continued)

(b) Impairment assessment on available-for-sale equity
securities, and investments in debt securities included
in the available-for-sale, held-to-maturity and loans and
receivables categories (Continued)

Given the continuing uncertain conditions in global credit
markets, the Group has conducted an assessment of its debt
securities on a collective basis. Based on its judgement, the
Group identified certain information indicating a possible
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a certain
group of debt securities, even though the decrease cannot
yet be identified with an individual debt security. The
judgement formed by the Group takes into account the
nature of the securities held and its evaluation of the impact
of market volatility, changes in credit conditions and market
developments on the recoverable amounts. Based on its
evaluation, a collective impairment allowance had been
recognised for a group of debt securities at the end of 2011,
and such a collective impairment allowance continued to be
maintained as of the end of 2012.

(c)  Held-to-maturity securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This
classification requires significant judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates its intention and ability to
hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to keep
these investments to maturity other than for the specific
circumstances — for example, selling an insignificant amount
close to maturity - it will be required to reclassify the entire
class as available-for-sale. The investments would therefore be
measured at fair value, not amortised cost.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies (Continued)

(d)  Assessment of claims and contingencies

Judgement is needed to determine if provision for
compensation to certain customers who had bought structured
investments distributed (but not originated or arranged) by the
Group need to be recorded in accordance with the requirements
of HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets”. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates the
information relating to each or similar cases, and the likelihood
and estimated amount of outflow of resources which may be
incurred to settle the obligation after considering factors such as

recent settlement experiences and advice from legal counsel.

Segment reporting by the Group was prepared in accordance
with HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”. Information reported to the
chief operating decision makers, including the Chief Executive and
other Executive Committee members, for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, is determined on the basis
of banking business and insurance business. For banking business,
operating performances are analysed by business activities for
local banking business, and on business entity basis for overseas
banking business. For insurance business, resources allocation and
performance evaluation are based on insurance business entity basis.

Considering the customer groups, products and services of local
businesses, the economic environment, and regulations, the Group
splits the operating segments of the Group into the following
reportable segments:

° Personal banking business includes the acceptance of deposits
from individual customers and the extension of residential
mortgage lending, personal loans, overdraft and credit card
services, the provision of insurance sales and investment
services.

° Commercial banking business includes the acceptance of
deposits from and the advance of loans and working capital
finance to commercial, industrial and institutional customers,
and the provision of trade financing. Hire purchase finance and
leasing related to equipment, vehicle and transport financing are
included.
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° Treasury activities are mainly the provision of foreign exchange
services and centralised cash management for deposit taking
and lending, interest rate risk management, management of
investment in securities and the overall funding of the Group.

° Overseas banking businesses include personal banking,
commercial banking business activities provided by overseas
subsidiaries in Macau and China, and the Group’s interest in a
commercial bank in China.

o Insurance business includes the Group’s life assurance and
general insurance businesses. Through the Group’s wholly-
owned subsidiaries in Hong Kong and 96% owned subsidiaries
in Macau, the Group offers a variety of life and general insurance
products and services.

° Others include results of operations not directly identified under
other reportable segments, corporate investments and debt
funding (including subordinated notes).

For the purpose of segment reporting, revenue derived from
customers, products and services directly identifiable with individual
segments are reported directly under respective segments, while
revenue and funding cost arising from inter-segment funding
operation and funding resources are allocated to segments by way
of transfer pricing mechanism with reference to market interest rates.
Transactions within segments are priced based on similar terms
offered to or transacted with external parties. Inter-segment income
or expenses are eliminated on consolidation. Starting from 2012,
only segment’s net interest income is disclosed, as this is the basis
of reviewing business segment performance by the Group’s chief
operating decision makers. Certain comparative amounts have been
revised to conform with the current year’s presentation.

All direct costs incurred by different segments are grouped under
respective segments. Indirect costs and support functions’ costs are
allocated to various segments and products based on effort and time
spent as well as segments’ operating income depending on the nature
of costs incurred. Costs related to corporate activities that cannot be
reasonably allocated to segments, products and support functions
are grouped under Others as unallocated corporate expenses.
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BRI oE

(LABREFThz5IR)

BE-_ZE-——_f+t-A=1t—-HLEE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

BARS BERT BIMRAT RBEH #iER
Personal ~ Commercial BEEE  Overseas  Insurance At Inter- @it
Banking Banking Treasury Banking Business Others segment Total
FHERA/ (i) Net interest
income/(expenses) 983,375 794,491 305,964 392,840 284,389 (267,495) - 2,493,564
FHEMA/ (KiH) Non-interest
income/(expenses) 313,599 156,803 208,250 78,224 82,427 73,985 (70,442) 842,846
NhRERE & Total operating
WA/ (i) income/(expenses)
net of insurance claims 1,296,974 951,294 514,214 471,064 366,816 (193,510) (70442 3,336,410
BE(H)/MA Operating (expenses)/
income (1,009,200 (300,075  (135,839) (365492  (217,787) (96,522) 70442 (2,054,429
TRREFE EE Operating profit/loss)
a7l (58) before impairment losses 287,774 651,219 378,375 105,572 149079 (290,032) - 1,281,087
EHREEERANEEAR Loan impairment losses
(1=8)/ % and other credit provisions
(charged)/written back (118,800) 57,880 (61,966) (20,857) - 62 - (143,681)
MEREES Operating profit/(loss)
k2@ / (BB) after impairment losses 168,974 709,099 316,409 84,715 149,079 (289970) - 1,138,306
HETE  RENERABER Net (loss)/gain on disposal
BEREATERELF of and fair value adjustment
(B8)/ & on premises, investment
properties and other
fixed assets (1,549) - - 965 158,835 2,331 - 160,588
HEFFRES (BR) /i Nt (loss)/gain on disposal
of investments in securities - - (64,127) - 18,350 16,422 - (29,355)
FEBELR $E Share of results of an associate - - - 490,806 - - - 490,806
EhiREEE 28 Share of results of ointly
controlled entities - - - - - 13,385 - 183,385
REER/(B8) Profit/loss) before taxation 167,425 709,099 252,082 576,486 326,064 (257,826) - 1TI37%0
A (i) /B Taxation (expenses)/credit (26,733 (117,022) (41,657) (18,265) (15,088) 43877 - (174:889)
BHgER /(B8 Profit/loss) after taxation 140,692 592,077 210,625 558,201 3176 (213,949) - 1508842
HECE-ZF For the year ended
TZAZT-RLER 31 December 2012
HERERER Depreciation and amortisation 57,504 26,774 13,614 53,646 9,819 46,708 = 208,065
R-EB-—&+-A=t-H At 31 December 2012
PREE Segment assets 20634802 49797444 49757413 26,306,191 15280237 6,875,990  (4,671,144) 172,980,933
PRk Segment liabilities 65,553,628 28,983,016 13101445 20,031,758 11,696,988 15,948,693  (4,671,144) 150,644,384
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(LABREFThz5IR)

HE-ZT——FT-A=1T—HIEFE (K=E7])

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

B R& PoE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Restated)

EIN:iSh TR MR [Rax% EIER
Personal ~ Commercial BEZH  Overseas  Insurance =) Inter- w2t
Banking Banking Treasury Banking Business Others segment Total
EFHSMA/ (L) Net interest
income/(expenses) 876,561 616,468 246,998 388,200 263,577 (206,240) - 2,185,564
FHEMA/ (KiH) Non-interest
income/(expenses) 248,624 126,323 12,171 74,643 84,939 37,575 (65,380) 618,895
NhRERE & Total operating
WA/ (i) income/(expenses)
net of insurance claims 1,125,185 742,791 359,169 462,843 348,516 (168,665) (65,380) 2,804,459
BE(H)/MA Operating (expenses)/
income (809,793)  (259,537) (107,740  (326,285)  (182,631) (90,432) 65,380  (1,711,038)
TRREFE EE Operating profit/loss)
E1l/(58) before impairment losses 315392 483254 250429 136,558 165885 (259,097) - 1003421
EHREEERANEEAR Loan impairment losses
(1=8)/ % and other credit provisions
(charged)/written back (73,046) 43815 (100,000) (51,851) - - - (181,08
MhREERRZ Operating profit/(loss)
BEET/ (BB after impairment losses 242,346 527,069 151,429 84,707 165885 (259,097) - 912,339
&R RENERAM Nt (loss)/gain on disposal
EREEREATERE of and fair value adjustment
25 (BR)/ b on premises, investment
properties and other
fixed assets (1) - - (177) 76,345 12,422 - 88,579
HEFFRES (BR) /i Net (loss)/gain on disposal
of investments in securities - - (28,175) - 102,761 11,347 - 85,933
N P Share of results of an associate - - - 353,404 - - - 353,404
EhiREEE 28 Share of results of ointly
controlled entities - - - - - 12,687 - 12,687
REER/(B8) Profit/loss) before taxation 242,335 527,069 123,254 437,934 344,991 (222,641) - 1452042
BB (k) Taxation (expenses)/credit (39,195) (86,987) (20,499) (13414 (16,581) 27,828 - (148850)
BHgER /(B8 Profit/loss) after taxation 203,140 440,082 102,755 424520 38410 (194,815) - 1,304,002
He %-—-F For the year ended
TZAZT-RLER 31 December 2011
HERERER Depreciation and amortisation 54,110 19,469 12,283 48,751 8,348 37,857 = 180,818
R-E-——%+ZA=t-H At 31 December 2011
PREE Segment assets 28,558,556 43816206 48,481,204 23954589 13145798  6,625391  (5,387,350) 150,194,484
PRk Segment liabilities 67216050 22,917,174 14610339 18477379 9857933 12310399  (5387,350) 140,001,924
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BRI oE

(LABREFThz5IR)

BBE S ZN-HRE SRS 2 M Th A E AR
E%  RFRFEZ RITNBAANRRLEE
EREEY  REEEEN - FRME  AER
A BHRAS

TREHZRESFEERZER  RETREREE
RSNEPE PIRERT - HEABER S KRBT BIE
R TE S 2 P FE b 1 R o

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

More than 90% of the revenues from external customers were
contributed from banking subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Macau and
People’s Republic of China, with major products and services
including deposit taking, extension of credit, asset-based finance,
securities investment services offered to customers.

The following tables provide information by geographical area, which
was determined with reference to the domicile of the legal entities
within the Group with business dealing and relationship with, and

services to external customers.

B 5 EM
8
EERHM Inter-
Hong Kong B segment st
and Others Macau elimination Total
HE-Z2——F For the year ended
+-A=1+—-HLEFE 31 December 2012
HBRRBREE 2 EERA Total operating income
net of insurance claims 3,028,509 308,495 (594) 3,336,410
BRI A Profit before taxation 1,654,427 119,294 9 1,773,730
R-B--F+=A=+—H At 31 December 2012
BEAG Total assets 159,153,814 15,356,267 (1,529,148) 172,980,933
BEAR Total liabilities 139,450,816 12,722,716 (1,529,148) 150,644,384
BREEREE Intangible assets and goodwill 318,667 725,313 - 1,043,980
kA B R RAIE Contingent liabilities and
commitments 64,338,720 2,056,834 - 66,395,554
(@135 18 A
G|
BENEAM Inter-
Hong Kong B segment FEE
and Others Macau elimination Total
HE-ZT——F For the year ended
+—A=+—HLFE 31 December 2011
TR RBRE 2 EERA Total operating income net
of insurance claims 2,518,435 286,445 (421) 2,804,459
BREL AR Profit before taxation 1,359,192 93,750 = 1,452,942
RZE——F+-A=+—H At 31 December 2011
BEA (KE5) Total assets (restated) 146,512,307 14,270,367 (1,588,190) 159,194,484
aEA (KE5) Total liabilities (restated) 129,682,023 11,908,091 (1,588,190) 140,001,924
BREERDE Intangible assets and goodwill 318,667 730,988 - 1,049,655
A B R RAE Contingent liabilities and
commitments 59,014,094 1,953,302 - 60,967,396
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B R& PoE

(AT TAIYIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
—E—_—F —ZE——%
2012 2011
FIEWA Interest income
& R RITH AR Cash and balances with banks 347,134 341,358
BHIRE Investments in securities 939,558 820,757
BPMIRITER Advances to customers and banks 2,861,944 2,406,391
4,148,636 3,568,506
FIEZH Interest expense
BITER BEEX Deposits from banks/Deposits from
customers 1,414,430 1,214,187
BRI GE Certificates of deposit issued 43,706 38,977
BEITHERES Issued debt securities 48,446 40,459
&IEER Subordinated notes 141,109 78,456
HAth Others 7,381 10,863
1,655,072 1,382,942
FEWAEE Included within interest income
ETRE 2 FBUWA Interest income on listed investments 760,903 674,920
JEEMIRE 2 FI B A Interest income on unlisted investments 178,655 145,837
939,558 820,757
RARNFEFZE B EEBT AEBE Interest income on financial assets not
& & E M EBA at fair value through profit or loss 3,873,512 3,316,000
BEEEFBUA Interest income on impaired assets 3,688 9,296
FMEZHEE Included within interest expenses
RUAFEFEBEEH B Interest expenses on financial liabilities
MNemaBEsMex T not at fair value through profit or loss 1,487,526 1,217,291
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BRI

(LAEBEFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

T —ZT——F
2012 2011
REERASKRA Fee and commission income
RUAAFEAEBEEH A Fee and commission income from
BmemEERAEBZ financial assets and liabilities not
R & kKA A at fair value through profit or loss
—EEEBEZREENRES — Credit related fees and commissions 74,661 69,741
—EZmE - Trade finance 51,203 44,327
—ERR - Credit card 271,386 280,567
Hb AR & KA KA Other fee and commission income
—BHEL L Ee - Securities brokerage 59,065 49,414
—TEREBES KU EEERY - Retail investment and wealth
management services 93,246 73,521
—RITIREELRFES - Bank services and handling fees 44,537 40,925
—Hib R & — Other fees 97,735 47,593
691,833 606,088
REERASEH Fee and commission expense
RUARNFEFZEBEEHTABEDN Fee and commission expense from
TREERABBZREERASSH financial assets and liabilities not
at fair value through profit or loss
—FEERAS - Handling fees and commission 206,808 210,501
— BN EMmiREER - Other fees paid 12,563 12,797
219,371 223,298

AEBERE=FRHAE X7t bEEERK
BEERY - REUREBEABGNHAZEEL T
BEEMFHHERRA -

The Group provides custody, trustee, corporate administration, and
investment management services to third parties. Those assets that
are held in a fiduciary capacity are not included in these financial

statements.
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(LAEBEFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

P

—E—_—F —ZE——%
2012 2011
NEEFEBEZ S ABRR Dividend income from financial assets
imﬂﬁéZwauﬂU\ at fair value through profit or loss
— FTRE - Listed investments 55,270 30,212
—JLETRE - Unlisted investments 74 29
HNE B B R W Net gain arising from dealing in
foreign currencies 222,797 241,948
HIEEBERBRNEF 2 FWaE (B18) Net gain/(loss) on trading securities 61,081 (26,368)
BEEERRNITET A ZFE /(B18) Net gain/(loss) from derivatives
entered into for trading purpose 13,878 (41,246)
N EEHRRAES R TR 2 FEE Net loss arising from financial instruments
subject to fair value hedge (65,084) (57,075)
EENARTEFEBEZSF AEBRED Net gain arising from financial
R T A 2FRER instruments designated at fair
value through profit or loss 504,943 84,538
792,959 232,038
—E--F —F——F
2012 2011
Bk —RiR%E sk —fRiRE
Life General At Life General =
Insurance Insurance Total Insurance Insurance Total
REWAEHE Gross written premiums 1,624,135 568,526 2,192,661 1,559,744 412,587 1,972,331
RAURNZREEE) Movement in unearned premiums - (142,650) (142,650) - (47,500) (47,500)
ERRRERS Gross earned premiums 1,624,135 425,876 2,050,011 1,559,744 365,078 1,924,822
REWABE 2 HMRNE Gross written premiums ceded
to reinsurers (268,190) (287,330) (555,520) (163,800) (221,742) (385,542)
KRN REZE 2 HROE Reinsurers’ share of movement
in unearned premiums - 69,194 69,194 - 19,524 19,524
BRBRELE L HRNE Reinsurers’ share of gross
earned premiums (268,190) (218,136) (486,326) (163,800) (202,218) (366,018)
REWAFE Net insurance premium income 1,355,945 207,740 1,563,685 1,395,944 162,860 1,558,804
RESREH 2 AWRE Change in value of in-force
BBz 2 long-term life assurance business (16,096) - (16,096) 468,935 = 468,935
B Total 1,339,849 207,740 1,547,589 1,864,879 162,860 2,027,739
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A5 R R I

(LABEEF o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

—E-——F =—=—4F
2012 2011
A EFERSFEE ZREA Dividend income from investments
in available-for-sale securities
— k& — Listed investments 10,681 5,378
—FEEMEE - Unlisted investments 6,673 6,434
REYH 2 AL RAERE Gross rental income from
investment properties 23,316 20,645
H S UA Other rental income 6,815 7,081
HAth Others 14,346 4,870
61,831 44,408
—E--% —E——%
2012 2011
2R -RER =k —RiRR
Life General |t Life General A
Insurance Insurance Total Insurance Insurance Total
BERZRE  FERERR Claims, benefits and
surrenders paid 590,956 123,489 714,445 410,170 183,954 594,124
Ehed Movement in provisions 1,428,181 78,087 1,506,268 1,729,620 (28,899) 1,700,721
RRZEEERYRE Gross insurance claims
BEABEZE and movement in liabilities
to policyholders 2,019,137 201,576 2,220,713 2,139,790 155,055 2,294,845
BEREE  FEkERZ Reinsurers’ share of claim,
MRV benefits and surrenders paid (15,171) (29,676) (44,847) (11,290) (106,863) (118,153)
EELEY I HROE Reinsurers’ share of movement
in provisions (202,269) (38,548)  (240817)  (265614) 50340 (215.274)
RBRZEERHREREA Reinsurers’ share of insurance
BEEH HRNE claims and movement in
liabilities to policyholders (217,440) (68224) (285664  (276,904) (6523)  (333427)
RERERHREREA Net insurance claims and
BEEH B movement in liabilities to
policyholders 1,801,697 133,352 1,935,049 1,862,886 98,532 1,961,418
ReEeS HFE Net insurance commission expenses 86,739 10,207 96,946 99,311 7,351 106,662
&t Total 1,888,436 143,559 2,031,995 1,962,197 105,883 2,068,080
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(CABREFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

P e

—E—_—F —ZE——%
2012 2011
EEFMEEMNLZ L (BIEESH) Employee compensation and
(MizE13) benefit expenses (including
directors’ remuneration) (Note 13) 1,190,146 1,034,973
TEREMBETEESH - Premises and other fixed asset
TERENE expenses, excluding depreciation
—1TEZHE® - Rental of premises 113,356 98,403
—Hfh - Others 112,188 96,845
P& (M5E35) Depreciation (Note 35) 202,390 164,649
EE R EE S N Advertising and promotion costs 93,759 116,569
ENfl « XA REE Printing, stationery and postage 47,810 67,797
B EERHEER Amortisation expenses of
(K5 34) intangible assets (Note 34) 5,675 16,169
Z SR BN & Auditors’ remuneration 8,899 8,360
Hth Others 280,200 107,273
2,054,423 1,711,038
—B-—=-F —ZT—F
2012 2011
B AEER Salaries and other staff costs 1,110,890 989,325
LARRAD A B R SR B iR (= 88) Provision for share-based
(MI3E54) compensation
charged/(reversed) (Note 54) 10,637 (14,826)
RIKE T Pension costs — defined
— R EHKETE contribution plans 68,619 60,474
1,190,146 1,034,973
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BRI

(LAEBEFThz5I7R)

EaMesAfLAL :

(i) Biest

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals:

(i) The aggregate emoluments

—T——F —ZT—F
2012 2011

e BE - BYWAHE&EMmER Salaries, housing, benefits
in kind and other allowances 66,100 60,528
RIRE Pensions 2,234 2,080
68,334 62,608

iy FAUFEBRAATHBSERIAT

(i)  The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals are within
the following bands:

A

Number of individuals

—EB-—F =—T—%F

2012 2011
B ITHKS

11,000,001 - 11,500,000 _ 1
11,500,001 - 12,000,000 1 1
12,000,001 - 12,500,000 - 1
12,500,001 - 13,000,000 1 -
13,000,001 - 13,500,000 1 1
14,000,001 - 14,500,000 1 1
15,500,001 - 16,000,000 1 -

5 )

EAfUs&EMERAZALTA  AORUL(ZF
——F O AEBES - ERENEEHE
EBREERER ZHE14R -

RERN - NREBYERAEALLZSBAALT
NS - (FRIMASRINE AR R RE N

=y
g o

bBRAusERBAALTOHSBRBEREEZF
B R BRIE AR B 2 FE N IAIR BB TEA -

AFEemEERFRAR |

Included in the emoluments of the five highest paid individuals were
the emoluments of 4 (2011: 4) Directors. Their respective Directors’
emoluments have been included in Note 14 below.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the year.

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals shown above
included incentive bonuses accrued in respect of the services
rendered and the Group’s performance for the financial year.



P

(AT TAIYIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BESZ2HMn T The remuneration of each Director is set out below:
EBEM
REHE2
RREBIEAL
Incentive
R bonuses
Bl accrued
Salary, in respect HWRBA &t
allowances of services ERmxf (&1)
ESHE  andbenefits  renderedin  Share-based e Total
BE-S-ZET-A=T-HLEE  Yearended 31 December 2012 Directors’ Fee in kind the year payment Pensions (Note 1)
iE Chairman
IFEEE David Shou-Yeh Wong 1,000 3,960 9,500 - - 14,460
HnEs Executive directors
EERLE Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) - 8,000 3,300 - 650 11,950
TEELE Roderick Stuart Anderson - 1,650 = = 524 2174
TRERE Gary Pak-Ling Wang - 4,920 8,000 = 492 13412
REELE Nicholas John Mayhew - 4,560 7,500 - 456 12,516
FUnES Non-executive directors
ERRALE Akimitsu Ashida 45 - - - - 45
FHELE Tekashi Morimura 180 - - - - 180
i Hidekazu Horikoshi 7 - - - - 7
AEERRE Hidemitsu Otsuka 108 - - - - 108
AERLE John Wai-Wai Chow 250 - - - - 250
BukdnES Independent non-executive directors
LEREE Robert Tsai-To Sz 600 - - - - 600
VYN i3 Tai-Lun Sun (Dennis Sun) 180 - - - - 180
3 i Lon Dounn 438 - - - - 438
PHBREE Seiji Nakamura 105 - = = = 105
Hrdt Yuan Shu 14 - - - - 14
BABLE Nicholas Robert Sallnow-Smith 31 - - - - 31
CE Total 3,303 23,090 28,300 - 2,122 56,815
[ Note:
1. EREFRRTMARNTRITEBGRA A REKE 1. For directors who are also directors of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
RARIZESE  HAZZEMBARINZHHER or its subsidiaries, remuneration paid by these subsidiaries are included
BE LI ZEEHMERTA - in the consolidated total remuneration set out above.
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BRI

(LAEBEFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

EBER
RithE 2
RRRETA
Incentive
2R bonuses
Bl accrued
Salary, in respect WRA =
allowances of services B (&1)
2% and benefits renderedin  Share-based e Total
HE-E2-—F+-A=+-HIEE  Yearended 31 December 2011 Directors’ Fee in kind the year payment Pensions (Note 1)
Ik Chairman
TFERE David Shou-Yeh Wong 1,000 3,960 8,500 - - 13,460
HiES Executive directors
FEREE Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) - 8,000 3,000 = 638 11,638
ZEETE Roderick Stuart Anderson - 3,950 1,000 - 665 5615
Thaks Gary Pak-Ling Wang - 4665 7,000 - 459 12,124
BEEEE Nicholas John Mayhew - 4,320 6,500 - 432 11,252
FHTES Non-executive directors
FREALE Akimitsu Ashida 180 - - - - 180
RABERE Kunio Suzuki - = = = = =
FHELE Takashi Morimura 13 - - - - 13
BHELE Tatsuo Tanaka 167 - - - - 167
AEERREE Hidemitsu Otsuka 180 - - - - 180
BllE-%E Eiichi Yoshikawa - - - - - =
AERLE John Wai-Wai Chow 21 - - - - 21
it b Yiu-Ming Ng 7 - - - - 72
BUkuES Independent non-executive directors
Peter G. Birch £ & Peter Gibbs Birch 120 - - - - 120
FERLE Robert Tsai-To Sze 600 - - - - 600
VN Vi Tai-Lun Sun (Dennis Sun) 180 - - - - 180
Bhmrt Nicholas Robert Sallnow-Smith 1,394 - - - - 1,394
&t Total 4121 24,895 26,000 - 2,19 57,216
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(LAEBEFThz5I7R)

P

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Feg=cgd
Restated
—B——-F =—ZT—F
2012 2011
EFUREEE Loan impairment losses
BERREARR B REBERFRE (B#) Net charge/(reversal) of
impairment losses on
advances and other accounts
—H5FK - Trade bills 1,067 (1,358)
—REEX - Advances to customers 80,523 85,070
— FERT A2 R E Ab AR B — Accrued interest and other
accounts 117 (2,630)
81,707 81,082
BRREMER B R EEET (25), e Net (reversal)/charge of impairment
losses on advances and
other accounts
— (&R FTAd — Individually assessed (1,496) 108,772
— iR A FHE - Collectively assessed 83,203 (27,690)
81,707 81,082
BHEE Of which
— % R REINEM - new and additional allowances
(BRERENEEMIE 2 25) (including amounts directly
written off in the year) 176,026 191,205
— Bl - releases (38,954) (35,389)
— g [l - recoveries (55,365) (74,734)
81,707 81,082
Hib{z B84 Other credit provisions
PREFRERFIEERN 2 EHIEE Net charge of impairment losses on
R EEEF IR investment in securities included
in the loans and receivables category
— {& Bl FHE - Individually assessed 61,974 -
— R EFHE — Collectively assessed = 100,000
61,974 100,000
W s BR UF Net charge to income statement 143,681 181,082
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BRI

(AR Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
—EB--F —T—%F
2012 2011
TEEHZBERBERE (RE) Deficit reversed/(charged)
on revaluation of premises 2,011 (582)
HEITE 2 F e Net gain on disposal of premises 1,163 -
HEHMETEEEFEE Net loss on disposal of other
fixed assets (2,108) (188)
1,066 (770)
—E-—-F =—ZZT—F
2012 2011
S EMENTEPE 2 FWE Net gain on fair value adjustment of
investment properties 159,522 89,613
HEREYE 2 FER Net loss on disposal of investment
properties = (264)
159,522 89,349
—B——F =—ZT—F
2012 2011
& A I B AR IR E Net gain on disposal of available-
for-sale securities 110,510 121,955
HEBRBREER K ERGIE Net loss on disposal of investments
Rz BHREFEE in securities included in the loans
and receivables category (107,284) (38,515)
HERFEREESF (B8) a6 Net (loss)/gain on disposal of
held-to-maturity securities (Note) (32,581) 2,493
(29,355) 85,933
N Note:
RIZE—ZFR-T——F7HENKERABRR X The disposals in 2012 and 2011 were made after considering risk and external
IMEREZE © factors.
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(LAEBEFThz5I7R)

B 7S TS B T 1R BB 1 AT B ER A U ) DA B =R
16.5% (T ——4F : 16.5%) B EMRE - /BIN
A TR G N IMEETERBUR R A S B &
EEBHER 2 RITREGE o

BEEHBRRAABEEIAERHEZR - RERRE
RIARER BN EEN THREMERZH
RIERBRER ©

P

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2011:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on
overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable
profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under
the liability method at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.

K&
Restated
—BE-——-F —ZF——%F
2012 2011
REFRHIA Current income tax:
— BERRFH - Hong Kong profits tax 137,633 141,549
—/BHNETE — Overseas taxation 19,330 15,753
—RIBAFE (B5E) /TR 2B — (Over)/under-provision in
prior years (1,712) 2,347
RIERIIE (M FE46) Deferred income tax (Note 46):
— R YR EEMNEE RER - Origination and reversal
of temporary differences 20,744 (8,464)
— R BEE - Recognition of tax losses (1,107) (2,335)
sl Taxation 174,888 148,850
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A5 R R I

(LABEEF o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
KREEBBRHEINGEN 2 FHIBEAJNGAE R R A Nk The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
EETR R E 2 IBREEB T ¢ theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax

rate applicable to profits of the consolidated companies as follows:

K&
Restated
—B-——F =—ZIT—F
2012 2011
B F B | Profit before taxation 1,773,730 1,452,942
ZE AR SRR Tax calculated at domestic tax
MR E 2 FiIA rates applicable to profits in the
respective countries 292,665 239,735
MIE AR Tax effects of:
SREE 2 TRRTIRE Different tax treatment of results
of life insurance business (32,264) (38,359)
HABR 2 TR = Different taxation rates in other
countries (4,598) (5,121)
RN WA Income not subject to taxation (12,811) (35,335)
TEEFRAI S Expenses not deductible 19,235 45,694
LAR 18 EEfE 2 3R 2 Bk i A ) Results of associates and jointly
LERZEGI TS 5 controlled entities reported
net of tax (83,192) (60,405)
REERELERIBE ENHR SRR Tax losses for which no deferred
tax asset was recognised 399 294
ERBTEREERNKER Utilisation of previously unrecognised
tax losses (2,834) -
RIBAFE (B5), /TR 2 #iE (Over)/under-provision in prior years (1,712) 2,347
I8 Taxation 174,888 148,850
IR ARA M B®RERNZ KRR EWG R The profit attributable to shareholders is dealt with in the financial
/239,940,000 ;t( = & — — F: & Al statements of the Company to the extent of HK$239,940,000 (2011:
357,902,000 7T) ° profit of HK$357,902,000).
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(LABEEF o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
—E—_—F —ZE——%
AF Company 2012 2011
EIRFHIRE - SRRE @R 0.29 8T Interim dividend paid of HK$0.29
(ZZ—%F : 0.29%7T) (2011: HK$0.29) per ordinary share 85,993 84,913
FRAREARE - BREAEAR0.89 8 T Proposed final dividend of HK$0.89
(ZZ—% :0.78%7T) (2011: HK$0.78) per ordinary share 263,909 228,387
349,902 313,300
K&
Restated
=B--F _—_T—F
2012 2011
(Bx) (%B7T)
(HK$) (HK$)
TR EF Earnings per share
L 9N Basic 4.20 3.49
e Diluted 4.20 3.49
BERABINEERHESEF DIZBAET The calculation of basic earnings per share and fully diluted
1,236,404,000/%8 0 ( —ZF——%4: 1,020,804,000 earnings per share is based on earnings of HK$1,236,404,000 (2011:
BIT) REFEARNDBITEERIIRG ZNEFHEH HK$1,020,804,000) and the weighted average number of 294,635,053
294,635,053% (=& ——4: 292,804,486/% ) &t (2011: 292,804,486) ordinary shares in issue during the year.
Bz2-T——FRr-_ZT——F+-_A=1+—HIt The share options outstanding during the years ended 31 December
FRAZATERRAEL LB 2 hiEFH 2012 and 31 December 2011 have no dilutive effect on the weighted
W EEETE o average number of ordinary shares.
=B--F _—_T—F
8 Group 2012 2011
e RERITHAEER Cash and balances with banks 2,373,588 4,530,785
AR HER Money at call and short notice 11,312,236 7,686,860

13,685,824 12,217,645
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(CABREFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

—E--F =—T—%F
£ Group 2012 2011
RIEEERBMFES Trading securities:
BEI%E 7 Debt securities:
— AR LM - Listed in Hong Kong 548,781 533,415
—3E LT — Unlisted 5,368,957 4,982,815
5,917,738 5,516,230
SRS Equity securities:
—&BBEm - Listed in Hong Kong 95,238 69,243
—BBLINET - Listed outside Hong Kong 119,640 108,660
— kLT - REESHER - Unlisted, interests in investment
funds 6,747 6,408
221,625 184,311
HIEE B ARMNESEE Total trading securities 6,139,363 5,700,541
EEAAFEFEEHE Financial assets designated at fair
TAEENERMEE value through profit or loss:
BEBES Debt securities:
—BALM - Listed in Hong Kong 960,496 624,437
— BB T - Listed outside Hong Kong 3,230,197 3,195,830
—3kLT - Unlisted 2,407,086 1,519,125
6,597,779 5,339,392
MRS Equity securities:
—BALM - Listed in HonOg Kong 281,472 284,110
— BB T - Listed outside Hong Kong 1,000,920 974,651
—3kLT - Unlisted 827,531 574,547
2,109,923 1,833,308
EENATEGNEZ BHEBF ABED Total financial assets designated
SREELTE at fair value through profit or loss 8,707,702 7,172,700
BIEEERENIFRIEEUATENE Total trading securities and financial
BHEH A A BRNeREEERE assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss 14,847,065 12,873,241

AremEEFRAR |




P e

(LABEEF o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
—E--F =—T—%F
&£E Group 2012 2011
BREEEBESFNEA - Included within debt securities are:
—BREFIEEERSES — Government bonds included
Z BT ES in trading securities 5,795,924 5,404,319
— BT ES — Other government bonds 882,874 879,730
—HEBESH — Other debt securities 5,836,719 4,571,573

12,515,517 10,855,622

RZE——HFR_FT——F+_A=+—0" & As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, there were no certificates of
MERBHFREEHRAT BEIEFEFRE - deposit held included in the above balances of investments in debt
securities.
HIEEERSMBESFREENUATEFEEEE Trading securities and financial assets designated at fair value
B ABENSREEREITERBER S TN through profit or loss are analysed by categories of issuers as follows:
T
—B--F —T——fF

e Group 2012 2011
— R R B AR R R T - Central governments and

central banks 6,678,798 6,284,049
— RN - Public sector entities 1,409 1,433
—IRIT R E A S S - Banks and other financial

institutions 1,520,280 1,293,822
— b - Corporate entities 6,646,578 5,293,937

14,847,065 12,873,241
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(LAEBEFThz5I7R)

RIB-——H+-A=+—BRIBMITEIAA
MzBBEAEZREAFEWNT

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts

and their fair values as of 31 December 2012 were as follows:

&R/
£ESHE AYVE
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE 8%
- Group amount Assets Liabilities
1) HEEBERBZITETA 1) Derivatives held for trading
R SMESTHETA a) Foreign exchange derivatives
BHRHEED Forward and future contracts 65,320,773 133,628 (73,179)
Bkt Currency swaps = = =
B8 A\ R N A Currency options purchased and written 43,336,993 71,746 (71,809)
L) FIET4TA b) Interest rate derivatives
FIRHE Interest rate futures 1,550,230 116 =
sty Interest rate swaps 10,192,212 60,127 (117,702)
BARH =R Interest rate options purchased and written 1,027,028 554 (1,022)
N) EmtiTETR ¢) Equity derivatives
AR R A Equity options purchased and written 39,874 621 (621)
T)EEMITETR d) Credit derivatives
ERENRBAD Credit default swaps 389,851 6,768 (4,001)
?%1’&“525%52%5@1,& Total derivative assets/(iabilities) held
&/ (afE) A for trading 121,856,961 273,560 (268,334)
2) H’E”ﬂ\}*}ﬂ%ﬁz%ﬁilﬂ 2) Derivatives held for hedging
B)EENU L TFEE R ITETR a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
ﬂ—%?ﬁ,ﬁﬂ Interest rate swaps 18,685,659 397,412 (1,256,864)
g Currency swaps 1,427,468 32,337 =
FEERAG 2 TET A Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/(BF)A held for hedging 20,113,127 429,749 (1,256,864)
3) EEIERANFEELH 3) Derivatives not qualified as hedges for
g BEIEENATE accounting purposes but which
AR B RYNCE:Y are managed in conjunction with
SHIE-REBZTETER the financial instruments designated
at fair value through profit or loss
MEEH Interest rate swaps = = =
PRHEEE R ZITAETA Total derivative assets not
BEARG qualified as hedges = = =
Eﬁ@?&ﬂifiﬁ%ﬂlﬂ Total recognised derivative financial
BE/(8F) At assets/(liabilities) 141,970,088 703,309 1,525,198
)
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(AR Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

R-EB—F+-_A=1+—BRBBHTETES The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts
Nz 2BASREATERT and their fair values as of 31 December 2011 were as follows:
a8,/
| AYE
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE BE
] Group amount Assets Liabilities
1) HEEERBITETA 1) Derivatives held for trading
R SELTETA a) Foreign exchange derivatives
BEHRBESH Forward and future contracts 43,260,933 237,677 (103,546)
Bitklah Currency swaps 189,270 = (21,753)
B8 A\ R (T N HA Currency options purchased and written 1,554,859 4,317 (4,299)
L) FIEETA b) Interest rate derivatives
Fl=mE Interest rate futures 3,300,805 270 =
F&i=H Interest rate swaps 10,988,142 32,834 (107,086)
B A\ R ) 2R R Interest rate options purchased and written 472,209 4,394 (3,782)
R) EmtiTE TR c) Equity derivatives
AR R H Equity options purchased and written = = =
T)EEMIT£TR d) Credit derivatives
ERENRBEN Credit default swaps 583,776 20,051 (1,217)
FEEERBZITETR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
&/ (afE) A held for trading 60,349,994 299,543 (241,683)
2) FEEHRRGZITETA 2) Derivatives held for hedging
B ETUR FEH 2 5TETR a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
sty Interest rate swaps 15,288,995 366,613 (1,337,916)
Bi=ih Currency swaps = = -
FEE AR ZITETIR Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held
BE/(BR)A for hedging 15,288,995 366,613 (1,337,916)
3) EEHERAFAELH 3) Derivatives not qualified as hedges for
B BEEENATE accounting purposes but which are
FEREEEHABEY managed in conjunction with the financial
SRIA-—REEZITETA instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss
st i Interest rate swaps 1,164,990 29,877 -
TRAfEE AR ITETA Total derivative assets not
BEA qualified as hedges 1,164,990 29,877 =
ERRITESRTIA Total recognised derivative financial
B/ (afF) &5 assets/(liabilities) 76,803,979 696,033 (1,579,599)
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(LAEBEFThz5I7R)

REMETIAZATEREZEARZEEFE
REZH(ER) W E -

B RIBEEMERN NG E RARFFARKER L
ZEEFHREE L (WMER) R ECEERE
RIMNABWEERMBINESEE - 250 ¢

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

The effect of bilateral netting agreements, where applicable, has been
taken into account in disclosing the fair value of derivatives.

The credit risk weighted amounts of the above off-balance sheet
exposures calculated under Basel Il basis and, where applicable,
without taking into account the effect of bilateral netting arrangements
that the Group entered into, are as follows:

—E-—F —=——%F

£E Group 2012 2011
EREGH4 Exchange rate contracts 966,474 438,344
MEEH Interest rate contracts 199,840 191,269
Hthaa Other contracts 12,319 15,685
1,178,633 645,298

HWETEZANBEERENBEHRNRS
E UTMRKREEREE -

EERBINEHBEN2EFTESEREHZ(R
TRER)RADMEFEZHE  AEME 28
BARTFXHHFRERSOEMBIEME

AR BRI T AR 2.9 B EE -

REEBRA AR RN 2 AT EE R
BEEERRERGIBER 2 FHEE - A
EEBBLHREETEEZSMNBEFERR -
Y50 T B 2 %518 /4581,425,000/8 0 (— T ——4F -
E518/5 143,529,000 % 7T) © )R8 B FE(G R E
% 2 W55 516,341,000 8 L (ZF ——F : &
#386,454,000/87T) © ILEHEE 25 RKEE8 2
[ARFES AR T A2 FEE] A -

AFEemEERFRAR |

The contract amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of
transactions outstanding as at the end of the reporting period. They
do not represent the amounts at risk.

The credit risk weighted amounts are the amounts that have been
calculated with reference to the Banking (Capital) Rules issued by the
HKMA. The amounts calculated are dependent upon the status of the
counterparty and the maturity characteristics of each type of contract.

The hedging practices and accounting treatment are disclosed in Note
2.9.

The Group hedges a portion of its existing interest rate risk in
investments in securities included in the loans and receivables
category, available-for-sale debt securities and issued liabilities
by fair value hedges in the form of interest rate swap. The losses
on the hedging instruments were HK$81,425,000 (2011: losses of
HK$143,529,000). The gains on the hedged item attributable to the
hedged risk were HK$16,341,000 (2011: gains of HK$86,454,000).
The net impact is disclosed in “Net loss arising from financial
instruments subject to fair value hedge” in Note 8.



P

(AR Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
KE5|
Restated
—g2-—=-F ZE—%F
%8 Group 2012 2011
BAAER KRB Loans and advances to individuals
—fEAKR — Credit cards 4,425,525 4,261,547
—RIBER - Mortgages 23,749,843 23,017,708
—HAb - Others 5,422,866 4,338,395
EEERKRBK Loans and advances to corporate
entities
—EHER — Term loans 24,257,026 22,231,984
—IZIBE R - Mortgages 11,866,854 11,132,055
—EFmE — Trade finance 5,360,541 5,223,525
— Efth - Others 11,090,926 10,662,014
EFEERMEE Gross advances to customers 86,173,581 80,867,228
E5ER Trade bills 4,329,872 1,559,061
HAh& 2 (FIE38) Other assets (Note 38) 5,362,781 3,903,238
bk : BEEE Less: impairment allowances
— &R FE A - Individually assessed (90,726) (190,859)
— iR A T - Collectively assessed (170,578) (193,994)
(261,304) (384,853)
BIREEER M EWIELER Investments in securities included
ZEFIEE (KisE27) in the loans and receivables
category (Note 27) 3,243,988 6,799,300
FHEERKEMEE Advances and other accounts 98,848,918 92,743,974
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(CABREFThz5I7R)

() EFERKBRREZRBEZERE (@)

BREHRE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

and advances to customers and trade bills

BB — 18RI FFE

Impairment allowances
- Individual assessment

Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans

REEX Hits a%
&8 Group Mortgages Others Total
BAERRBRBEEEZEE Movement in impairment allowances on loans
and advances to individuals
—T—F-R—HMEH Balance at 1 January 2011 805 594 1,399
ERE (B#),/1RE Impairment losses (reversed)/charged (1,777) 524 (1,253)
R EEERMIEE Loans written off as uncollectible - (1,179) (1,173)
WREIEREFHME 2 ER Recoveries of advances written off in previous years 1,364 672 2,036
—T—%+-A=+—H At 31 December 2011 392 617 1,009
—E——F-R—HMAER Balance at 1 January 2012 392 617 1,009
RERE (B8 /R Impairment losses (reversed)/charged (779) 246 (533)
REEBERMEE Loans written off as uncollectible = (229) (223)
WEIE AT FMEER Recoveries of advances written off in
previous years 644 515 1,159
—¥--H+=A=t-H At 31 December 2012 257 1,155 1,412
REERE - RETME
Impairment allowances
- Collective assessment
ER+ REEX Hity &%
&8 Group Credit cards Mortgages Others Total
BAERRBRBEEEZEE Movement in impairment allowances
on loans and advances to individuals
—T——E—- B0 Balance at 1 January 2011 25,611 5,559 35,463 66,633
WERERE(E#) Impairment losses charged/(reversed) 51,794 (339) 23,892 75,347
RELERE M HE Loans written off as uncollectible (66,866) - (55,613) (122,479)
KRB R EFMEZER Recoveries of advances written
off in previous years 13,770 = 27,151 40,921
BE 5 I ELAh R Exchange and other adjustments - - 6 6
—T——%+-A=+—H At 31 December 2011 24,309 5,220 30,899 60,428
—T——F-F—HN#EH% Balance at 1 January 2012 24,309 5,220 30,899 60,428
REBBRE () Impairment losses charged/(reversed) 52,232 (495) 66,962 118,699
ReeBEERIMHE Loans written off as uncollectible (61,983) - (77,577) (139,560)
WEIBREFME 2 EX Recoveries of advances written off
in previous years 12,471 - 20,575 33,046
B 5 R H A% Exchange and other adjustments - - 4 4
“E--“H+-A=t+-H At 31 December 2012 27,029 4,725 40,863 72,617
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(LABEEF o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans

() EFERKBRREZFBEZBRE (@)

HBEREHER@® and advances to customers and trade bills (Continued)
AEER - ERIEG
Impairment allowances - Individual assessment
BHER E5RE
Term BRER Trade Hth fi
&8 Group loans Mortgages finance Others Total
TEEFR B Movement in impairment
AEERZ2D allowances on loans and

advances to corporate entities
“T—%- PR Balance at 1 January 2011 10934 816 21,535 56,721 90,006
HESERE/ (T8) Impairment losses

charged/(reversed) 4,609 (718) (3,769) 109,903 110,025
AR ERE T HE Loans written off as uncollectible (609) - (7,915) (34,292) (42,816)
KEEREFHE 2 ER Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years 2,214 204 5,062 24,258 31,738
AR Exchange adjustments 258 - - - 258
“F—F+-A=1+-H At 31 December 2011 17,406 302 14,913 156,590 189,211
“Z-—5-A-BNEH Balance at 1 January 2012 17,406 302 14,913 156,590 189,211
REERRE/(T8) Impairment losses

charged/(reversed) 1,958 987 1,939 (5,785) (901)
RELERETMER Loans written off as uncollectible (14,275) - (2,004) (104,217) (120,496)
REE R ER Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years 3,065 - 956 17,135 21,156
B 5 A% Exchange adjustments 46 - - 208 344
—E-“#+-f=1-H At 31 December 2012 8,200 1,289 15,804 64,021 89,314

HEER-FETMH
Impairment allowances - Collective assessment
BHEX E5RE
Term BBEX Trade Heh fi
&8 Group loans Mortgages finance Others Total
TEEFRBH Movement in impairment
AEEREZED allowances on loans and

advances to corporate entities
—E——F-f-AMES Balance at 1 January 2011 32,876 58,122 30,611 112,362 233,971
REBBE Impairment losses reversed (12,295) (49,398) (11,153) (27,561) (100,407)
AEBRETHES Loans written off as uncollectible - - - ) (1)
REE R ER Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years - - - 39 39
L e Exchange and other adjustments 169 6 ) 103 275
“F—%+-A=t-H At 31 December 2011 20,750 8,730 19,455 84,172 133,107
- -R-RNER Balance at 1 January 2012 20,750 8,730 19,455 84,172 133,107
HEEERE/ (28) Impairment losses charged/

(reversed) 6,870 (2,624) 1,965 (41,886) (35,675)
ReLERETMEE Loans written off as uncollectible - - - (281) (281)
KEEREFHIE 2 ER Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years - - - 4 4
L EE Exchange and other adjustments 9 3 - 69 168
“E-“E+-R=1-H At 31 December 2012 21,716 6,109 21,420 42,078 97,323
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(LAEBEFThz5I7R)

(2) BetFEREMARE 2 BIRERIRE
R

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(b) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on

accrued interest and other accounts

RE5|
HEZER - HEERE-
e, B BIFEE
Restated
Impairment Impairment
allowances - allowances -
Collective Individual
assessment  assessment
et RIS R S RER
HAtiR A HAtBR B
Accrued Accrued
interest interest
and other and other
55 Group accounts accounts
EstRIEREMmERE Movement in impairment
RHEEGEZED allowances on accrued interest
and other accounts
—E——F-A—BwEH Balance at 1 January 2011 3,089 639
Rl (5 18 [l Impairment losses reversed (2,630) =
—E—f+_H=1—H At 31 December 2011 459 639
“T-—F-A—HmNEH Balance at 1 January 2012 459 639
REEERE(25) Impairment losses charged/(reversed) 179 (62
REE(E R ER R R Amounts written off as uncollectible - (577)
—B-—f+ZA=t—H At 31 December 2012 638 -
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P

(AT TAIYIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
(R) BREEEFERRB I EHEE (¢) Loans and advances to customers include finance
BRI - lease receivables as follows:
—B——-F =—ZT—F
£ Group 2012 2011
RETRMERE v EIAREEE - Gross investment in finance
lease receivable:
—F AR Not later than 1 year 2,295,716 2,200,221
—FAEERF Later than 1 year and not later
than 5 years 3,402,918 3,109,630
FEE Later than 5 years 3,282,471 3,022,982
8,981,105 8,332,833
BEMRE 7 RKFRE B & WA Unearned future finance income
on finance leases (1,244,734) (1,061,732)
MEREREFHE Net investment in finance leases 7,736,371 7,271,101
BEREREFHEPR 2 ATET The net investment in finance
leases is analysed as follows:
—F AR Not later than 1 year 2,007,751 1,930,704
—FUEERSF Later than 1 year and not later
than 5 years 2,995,360 2,757,379
HEE Later than 5 years 2,733,260 2,583,018
7,736,371 7,271,101
RZE——F+=-A=+—H LilrREHE There is no unguaranteed residual value included in the gross
REBBANWRERERFSREBR(ZS—F ¢ investment in finance lease above as at 31 December 2012 (2011:Nil).
M) o
RZE——F+-_A=+—H0 AXEEZEXK The allowance for uncollectible finance lease receivables included
WEEEREATKE s ERERIERELD in the impairment allowances as at 31 December 2012 of the Group
H) Y #A 5t £524,585,00078 T ( — T — — & : amounted to HK$24,585,000 (2011: HK$110,432,000).

110,432,000/87T) °
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(LAEBEFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

=B-=F ~—ZT——F
8 Group 2012 2011
A HHERREN DB EFRE Investments in securities reclassified
from the available-for-sale category
— IR AR E T A TE AR — At fair value under fair value hedge
(for hedging interest rate risk) 2,227,771 4,580,292
— RN TI R — At amortised cost 1,117,929 2,259,567
3,345,700 6,839,859
OBk ¢ REZERE Less: impairment allowances
— &R F Ay - Individually assessed (58,251) -
— kR ERHE — Collectively assessed (100,000) (100,000)
(158,251) (100,000)
3,187,449 6,739,859
R ERR S ERENR Investments in securities classified
RIEWFIR 2 BHIRE (FE) as loan and receivables upon initial
recognition (Note) 56,539 59,441
3,243,988 6,799,300

G

RANEHER R D RAE R R EYRIR 2 BEHIREERER
KBS RN —F+_A=+—HRZZT—F
TZA=1+—R ZERECHEHBBE—F -
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Note:

Investments in securities classified as loans and receivables upon initial

recognition were overdue at the time of recognition. As at 31 December 2012

and 2011, these investments were overdue for more than one year.



P

(AR Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BRESFRERFIBEN 2 EHIEE DT Investments in securities included in the loans and receivables
1k category are analysed as follows:
=F-=F —T——F
5 Group 2012 2011
BEEES Debt securities:
— BB LT - Listed in Hong Kong - 862,149
—BENUINET — Listed outside Hong Kong 3,102,803 5,669,217
—3E LMW — Unlisted 299,436 367,934

3,402,239 6,899,300

Bk« REZEE Less: impairment allowances
— BRI & — Individually assessed (58,251) =
—RERHE - Collectively assessed (100,000) (100,000)
(158,251)  (100,000)
3,243,988 6,799,300
h#EAsEzTE Market value of listed securities 2,770,374 5,692,801
NR-ZE——FR-_FT——F+=-_A=+—H" t As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, there were no certificates of
MERESEEESRANEREREEFNE deposit held included in the above balances of investments in debt
securities.
BIEEER M ERFIELER Investments in securities included
ZEFEEREITREER ST in the loans and receivables

category are analysed by
categories of issuers as follows:

—RTT R H Ath & Bl — Banks and other financial
institutions 2,282,015 3,614,285
—1% — Corporate entities 1,120,224 3,285,015

3,402,239 6,899,300
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(LAEBEFThz5I7R)

() BREERRERRERRN ZRZSR
BEeERERREBRE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(@) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on
investments in securities included in the loans and
receivables category

AEES
Impairment allowances
18 5l 714 ARG
Individually Collectively

—F——F—-A—BHNER
LB 1R HE R
RHERERARER
AESH B

up

[E S

=F——%t=RA=t-H

—E——F—A—HOEH
EE R IR

—E—_H+=-A=+-—H
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assessed assessed
Balance at 1 January 2011 78,221 -
Impairment losses charged - 100,000
Allowance written off upon
disposal of underlying investments
in securities (84,150) -
Exchange adjustments 5,929 -
At 31 December 2011 - 100,000
Balance at 1 January 2012 - 100,000
Impairment losses charged 58,251 -
At 31 December 2012 58,251 100,000




(LAEBEFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

P

—gB-—-F —E——%F
£E Group 2012 2011
BEES Debt securities:
—&BEm - Listed in Hong Kong 8,960,807 7,607,297
— BN ETH — Listed outside Hong Kong 11,631,680 8,183,274
—3JE LT - Unlisted 1,068,197 1,201,961
21,660,684 16,992,532
SRS Equity securities:
— AR LM - Listed in Hong Kong 258,174 236,940
—BBASN ETH — Listed outside Hong Kong 135,502 170,448
—3JE LT - Unlisted 308,194 265,332
701,870 672,720
Al EES AR Total available-for-sale securities 22,362,554 17,665,252
BIEEEBKES Included within debt securities are:
— BT RE - Certificates of deposit held - 24,270
—HEKFESH — Other debt securities 21,660,684 16,968,262
21,660,684 16,992,532
AN EFES Available-for-sale securities are
WBEITHBERSTOT analysed by categories of issuers
as follows:
— R RET A R ERTT — Central governments and central
banks 2,867,068 5,814,123
—NEHE - Public sector entities 294,279 199,393
—RIT R EH A & RikiE - Banks and other financial
institutions 6,184,662 4,950,871
—{bZ — Corporate entities 13,015,017 6,699,337
— Efth - Others 1,528 1,528
22,362,554 17,665,252
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

—E—_—F —ZE——%
£E Group 2012 2011
BEEES Debt securities
— AR LM - Listed in Hong Kong 711,921 240,544
— BB £ - Listed outside Hong Kong 4,797,430 5,757,491
—3JE LT - Unlisted 1,765,399 2,399,987
7,274,750 8,398,022
h#EAsEzTE Market value of listed securities 5,536,303 5,624,025
BIEEEBKES Included within debt securities are:
— BT RE — Certificates of deposit held 399,701 6,126
—HMEKFES — Other debt securities 6,875,049 8,391,896
7,274,750 8,398,022
REIEFS Held-to-maturity securities are
WEITHBERSITNT analysed by issuer as follows:
— PR AR R RAT - Central governments and
central banks 910,343 1,691,869
— N - Public sector entities 222 527 223,436
—RIT R H A & RS - Banks and other financia
institutions 3,953,927 4,326,499
— b - Corporate entities 2,187,953 2,156,218
7,274,750 8,398,022
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RZE—Z—ZF+=—A=+8 AEEREFK
W IBEREH S EETRAER A H
ERRzeRMEE(ZE——F  UEEHH
HemEE) ZZeREEREN»HBHZ
A EMEBEES 5 A1,829,247,000 % 7T &
1,774,626,000 87T - ENHERKEEZ A TFE
Iz 54,621,000 BT E S EE D 2 E M o

FRR_ZZENFR_TTAFRAIH L ER5
B BREERREURHBERRIMNR T ——F

FTZA=T—BNARBzEREE  WEEH
DEZEMEEN_T——_F+=-A=+—HZ
AFENMERED B4 2,942,202,000 8 L (= F
—— % :4,113,663,000% 7T ) & 3,345,700,000
BT (ZZ——4 : 5,045,013,000/87T) °

MEBAZFERTEESH BN LSREER
AR ERENEERRERFIELER - BlfEfEs
FRAZ EfhE1E 21 h0407,755,000 B0 (=F
——1F : 3%10934,700,000 % 7T) °

P

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

On 20 December 2012, the Group reclassified certain financial assets
that qualified for recognition as available-for-sale out of the loans and
receivables category (2011: no reclassification of financial assets was
made). The fair value and carrying value of these financial assets at the
date of reclassification were HK$1,829,247,000 and HK$1,774,626,000.
The fair value gain of HK$54,621,000 generated upon the reclassification
has been taken to other comprehensive income.

For the financial assets reclassified from the available-for-sale
category into the loans and receivables category in 2008 and 2009
that remained outstanding as at 31 December 2012, the fair value
and carrying value of these reclassified financial assets as at 31
December 2012 were HK$2,942,202,000 (2011: HK$4,113,663,000)
and HK$3,345,700,000 (2011: HK$5,045,013,000) respectively.

If reclassification of the above financial assets from the available-for-
sale category into the loans and receivables category in prior years
had not taken place, the revaluation deficit in equity would have been
HK$407,755,000 higher (2011: HK$934,700,000 higher).

=F-=F —T——F
£E Group 2012 2011
EREEFE Share of net assets 2,092,408 1,616,742
EES Goodwill 344,623 344,623
A&F Total 2,437,031 1,961,365
—B——-F —ZT—F
- Group 2012 2011
—H—H At 1 January 1,961,365 1,558,791
FEMRBRTRIE SR Share of results, net of tax 490,806 353,404
BRI R I E BAHE Share of investment revaluation
reserves, net of tax (7,000) 8,507
AR S Dividend received (24,540) (24,278)
EHER Exchange differences 16,400 64,941
+=-—A=+—~” At 31 December 2,437,031 1,961,365
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(AT TAIYIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
RIE——-FR-_TE——F+_A=1+—"HH The following is the key information relating to the associate as at 31
ERRZEZERAT December 2012 and 2011:
FEf R & E i B FTEXEK bR B DL
B8 Place of incorporation Principal Percentage of
Name and operation activities interest in ownership
BEIRIT hEE AR HAFE HR1T 20%
Bank of Chongqing People’s Republic of China Banking
—B-——-F —ZF——%F
£E Group 2012 2011
SE ETRRE - R Unlisted shares, at cost 20,000 20,000
BRT—HRAEEE Loan to a jointly controlled entity - 20,429
20,000 40,429
FEMR U 14 15 Share of post-acquisition reserves 34,246 28,221
54,246 68,650
RZE——-FR-_T—F+-_A=1t—HHH The following are the jointly controlled entities as at 31 December
RIfEGIERMT : 2012 and 2011:
hEAECEDL
FEEBRRKE B Percentage of
=g =T i it 25 Principal activities and effective interest
Name Place of incorporation place of operation in ownership
IREEIZEIR B R A A BB REZR - BF 13.333%
Bank Consortium Hong Kong Investment holding,
Holding Limited Hong Kong
SISt AR AR B BEEEK BE 13.333%
Bank Consortium Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund
Trust Company Limited business, Hong Kong
R REAR AT BB BELER - BB 13.333%
BCT Financial Limited Hong Kong Mandatory provident

fund business, Hong Kong

AFremEEFRAR |
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AEBERBERBER AR 2 EmmBARKR
FIRTTRA - MRBELTARIALRBEEHE
RARTRBIERER AR 22 EMBRF] °

ERTHARZEGHERAEEMN AR-—RER
[EEICS Nt

P e

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

The Group’s interest in Bank Consortium Holding Limited is held by
DSB, a subsidiary of the Company. Bank Consortium Trust Company
Limited and BCT Financial Limited are the wholly owned subsidiaries
of Bank Consortium Holding Limited.

The loan to a jointly controlled entity is secured and is extended based
on normal commercial terms.

—E-—F =—T—%F

AT Company 2012 2011
& A Investments at cost:

BB WG Shares listed in Hong Kong 3,669,197 3,487,879

JE LTS Unlisted shares 468,833 468,834

4,138,030 3,956,713

R THE Market value of listed shares 7,868,966 6,088,632

FElFE I B A R 2 SES A EIER - 28R
RERE -

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand.
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REZZ——F+ZRA=+—8 ' ARARIZHBEA

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

The following is a list of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31

AT : December 2012:
FERBES BRTEBRRE
2 Percentage of shares held Particulars of
ARER TEER Place of EE Bk issued ordinary
Name of company Principal activity incorporation Directly  Indirectly share capital
AFRTEEERAR REER BB
Dah Sing Banking Group Limited* Investment holding Hong Kong 74.6% - HK$1,251,371,105
AFEEBRAA REEZR BB
Dah Sing Company Limited Investment holding Hong Kong 100% = HK$1,000,000
AFRE (1976) R A R BE
Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976) Limited General insurance Hong Kong 100% - HK$196,000,000
REZR BRE
Dah Sing Holdings Limited Investment holding Bermuda 100% - US$100,000
AFRBRREERAA RipE BB
Dah Sing Insurance Agency Limited Insurance agency Hong Kong 100% = HK$500,000
RERBIRBER DA R PR% BE
Dah Sing Insurance Services Limited Insurance services Hong Kong 100% - HK$20
REZR BRE
Dah Sing International Limited Investment holding Bermuda 100% - US$100,000
ATABRBERAR ASRR BRE
Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited Life assurance Bermuda 100% = US$25,000,000
RERK RBRURS
Dah Sing Medical Science Investment Inc. Investment holding British Virgin Islands 100% - US$50,000
Tme% BE
Dah Sing Secretarial Services Limited Dormant Hong Kong 100% - HK$2
TEex B
DSE Investment Services Limited Dormant Hong Kong 100% - HK$1,000,000
(Note (a)) (7 (7))
REER B2
Filey Investment Corporation Investment holding Panama 100% = us$2
NERE RBRURE
High Standard Investment Limited Property investment  British Virgin Islands 100% - US$2
MAXERERRAA Emaz &R
Newinner Investments Limited Dormant Hong Kong 100% - HK$2
AFREERAA Tmax BRE
Dah Sing Insurance Company Limited Dormant Bermuda 100% = HK$51,000,000
TEaZ BE
WOF Escrow Limited Dormant Hong Kong 100% - HK$25,000,000
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P

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Fris RO E 2t

BRTLBERRA

aEfi it B Percentage of shares held Particulars of

ARER TEEK Place of EE EiF issued ordinary

Name of company Principal activity incorporation Directly  Indirectly share capital
YN RERKR B

World Prosper Limited Investment holding Hong Kong 100% = HK$1
RERK RBRAES

Upway Wealth International Limited Investment holding British Virgin Islands 100% - US$1
TEmex BE

DSFH Limited Dormant Hong Kong = 100% HK$2
REERKR RBRURS

DSGl (1) Limited Investment holding British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1
RERK RBRAES

DSLI (BVI) (1) Limited Investment holding British Virgin Islands = 100% US$1
REER RERLEE

DSLI (2) Limited Investment holding British Virgin Islands = 100% US$1
RERKR RBRURS

DSMI Group Limited Investment holding British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1
EBEXBRALA TEaz BB

Luen Fung Investment Company, Limited Dormant Hong Kong - 100% HK$303,000
BPIRBARAF R B

Macau Insurance Company Limited General insurance Macau = 96% MOP120,000,000
BPIASRRERAA ASRE B

Macau Life Insurance Company Limited Life Insurance Macau = 96% MOP92,000,000
AHRITBRRA /1T B

Dah Sing Bank, Limited Banking Hong Kong = 74.6% HK$5,000,000,000
AR (FE)BERAF R1T thEE AR HAE

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited Banking People’s Republic = 74.6% RMB1,000,000,000
of China
LH(1931) BRAR (FIBLRRTERAR)  NERE EE

MEVAS (1931) Limited Property investment Hong Kong = 74.6% HK$400,000,000

(formerly, MEVAS Bank Limited)

BPRRRITRNERRA R1T B

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. Banking Macau = 74.6% MOP225,000,000
TEaz RERAES

Channel Winner Limited Dormant British Virgin Islands = 74.6% US$1
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

RERBES BRTEERRE

aEfi it B Percentage of shares held Particulars of

ARER TEEK Place of EE EiF issued ordinary

Name of company Principal activity incorporation Directly  Indirectly share capital
AHEREZGERDA MERE B

Dah Sing Computer Systems Limited Property investment Hong Kong - 74.6% HK$20
AHHBEBERAA TEEX B

Dah Sing Finance Limited Dormant Hong Kong - 74.6% HK$25,000,000
AEREERAR AR RipELR B

Dah Sing Insurance Brokers Limited Insurance broking Hong Kong - 74.6% HK$200,000
HE EBRELHS

Dah Sing MTN Financing Limited Financing British Virgin Islands - 74.6% US$1
AHEEBRAA KB AR B

Dah Sing Nominees Limited Nominee services Hong Kong - 74.6% HK$100,000
REERKR B

Dah Sing Properties Limited Investment holding Hong Kong - 74.6% HK$9,998
HE EBRELHS

Dah Sing SAR Financing Limited Financing British Virgin Islands - 74.6% US$1
RERKR B

DSB BCM (1) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong - 74.6% HK$1
RERKR B

DSB BCM (2) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong - 74.6% HK$1
TEEX EBRELHS

DSLI (1) Limited Dormant British Virgin Islands - 74.6% US$1
AHERBRAF EREE B

Dah Sing Securities Limited Securities dealing Hong Kong - 74.6% HK$10,000,000
REB AR B

MEVAS Nominees Limited Nominee services Hong Kong - 74.6% HK$50,000
hRENE (BE)ARAH BEE B

Pacific Finance (Hong Kong) Limited Inactive Hong Kong - 74.6% HK$450,000,000
ZENBERAF & B

OK Finance Limited Money Lending Hong Kong - 74.6% HK$1,000
NERE EEBRLHS

Cycle Chance Limited Property investment  British Virgin Islands 100% - US$2
NERE EBRELHS

Dragon Tiger Limited Property investment  British Virgin Islands - 74.6% US$2
NERE EBRELHS

Estoril Court Limited Property investment  British Virgin Islands - 74.6% Us$2
NERE EEBRELHS

Grandmart Investments Limited Property investment  British Virgin Islands - 74.6% US$2

AFEemEERFRAR |



(LAEBEFThz5I7R)

P

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

RERBES BRTEERRE

aEfi it B Percentage of shares held Particulars of

ARER TEEK Place of EE EiF issued ordinary

Name of company Principal activity incorporation Directly  Indirectly share capital
ZEBRAA MERE RS

River Long Limited Property investment  British Virgin Islands - 74.6% Us$2
HNBEEEERAF NERE B

Modern World Holdings Limited Property investment Hong Kong - 74.6% HK$1
HHEEEERAA NERE B

Modern Bright Hong Kong Limited Property investment Hong Kong - 74.6% HK$1
RS EBRLHS

Shinning Bloom Investments Limited Dormant British Virgin Islands - 74.6% US$1
NERE EBRLHS

Skill Sino Limited Property investment  British Virgin Islands - 74.6% US$2
BEARAR NERE EBRLHS

Solar China Limited Property investment  British Virgin Islands - 74.6% US$2
MERE RS

Superb Future Limited Property investment  British Virgin Islands — 74.6% us$2
TmEx EEBRLHS

South Development Limited Dormant British Virgin Islands - 74.6% US$1
NERE EEBRLHS

Talent Union Holding Limited Property investment  British Virgin Islands — 74.6% us$2
BEREHRAA e e BB

Vanishing Border Investment Services Limited ~ Property investment Hong Kong - 74.6% HK$20
NERE EEBRLAHS

Well Idea Enterprises Limited Property investment  British Virgin Islands — 74.6% US$1
TmEx EERLHS

Yield Rich Group Limited Dormant British Virgin Islands - 74.6% US$1
HE REAS

D.A.H. Hambros (Channel Islands) Limited Financing Guernsey - 56.3% US$15,000
RERKR BRE

D.A.H. Holdings Limited Investment holding Bermuda - 56.3% US$1,000,000

* EEBMARSMBRAR LT

Listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
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BRAFTRTT (R E) BRAR « SRPIRZERITARD
BMRAF] * D. A. H. Hambros (Channel Islands)
Limited (DAHCI)) - RFIRERBR A 7 KR
ASREBR AR R L5 BAEEE AN
SHATIIN B AR ERBLE -

BRAFRTEBERARRAFMBITERAEE
RBER ARSI LA AR RMAREH
TR B & LASM T TS - BB B R
FXALZ AAA R AR A FALL o

ARFRIT(PE)BRAFR -ZZNFLAES
BAM MR - EREREARKMBEZER
HMATERAR] (BHEE  FEIRM 2L
RHE) -

L (1931)BR AR (283 (1931)] - ATEZAAER
TERARRERNRFEREREEEEZR
TR YR ——F+— A+ ZBHAHF
RIE AR IEPK BERTT -

e
(F) DSE Investment Services Limited 2577 X AL
AN INEEITHA(E 7008 TTRIE AR ©
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Except for Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited, Banco Comercial de
Macau, S.A., D.A.H. Hambros (Channel Islands) Limited (“DAHCI”),
Macau Insurance Company Limited, Macau Life Insurance Company
Limited, and companies incorporated outside Hong Kong specified
above, all other companies operate in Hong Kong.

Except for Dah Sing Banking Group Limited and Dah Sing Bank,
Limited which are public limited companies, all the above companies
are private companies or, if incorporated outside Hong Kong, have
substantially the same characteristics as a Hong Kong incorporated
private company.

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited was incorporated in Mainland China in
July 2008. It is registered as “Limited liability company (solely funded
by Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau corporate body)” under the laws of
the People’s Republic of China.

MEVAS (1931) Limited (“MEVAS (1931)”, formerly known as MEVAS
Bank Limited) applied for voluntary revocation of its banking licence in
Hong Kong in the year and ceased to be a bank with effect from the
close of business on 22 November 2012.

Note:
(a) In addition to the ordinary shares issued by DSE Investment Services
Limited, it also has preference shares in issue totalling HK$700.
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P

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

BOER EFBR
& BREE EVEE

BREE Core  Customer
HE Contract deposit  relationship ik £%
] Group Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles  Trade name Total
A Cost
—F-—f-f-HkK At 1 January 2012 and
I 31 December 2012 950,992 26,499 80,583 69,256 80,927 1,208,257
ZHRE/ B Accumulated impairment/
amortisation
“T-“%-A-H At 1 January 2012 - 26,499 80,583 51,520 - 158,602
FRZ (1 12) Charge for the year (Note 12) = = = 5,675 = 5,675
ZZ—EfZA=1-H At 31 December 2012 - 26,499 80,583 57,195 - 164,277
REE Carrying value
=%-=£+=A=t+-A At 31 December 2012 950,992 - - 12,061 80,927 1,043,980
B EFBE
af B AE BV AR
mlEE Core Customer
mE Contract deposit  relationship ki A
£H Group Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles  Trade name Total
A Cost
“FT—5-f-Hk At 1 January 2011 and
Rt A=1-H 31 December 2011 950,992 26,499 80,583 69,256 80,927 1,208,257
ZHRE/ B Accumulated impairment/
amortisation
“T——%-A-H At 1 January 2011 - 26,499 70,982 44,952 - 142,433
ERX M (M 12) Charge for the year (Note 12) - - 9,601 6,568 - 16,169
ZE——%+ZA=1-H At 31 December 2011 - 26,499 80,583 51,520 - 158,602
REE Carrying value
—Z—%f+ZA=1-H At 31 December 2011 950,992 - - 17,736 80,927 1,049,655

EERBRZBVEEBREALN  BOEREE
FRREVEESURBEREZRENTREE
ToFZARFHEE o BRARERARYE
FEUH R ERERAKR AR 28 REEE

IR e

Intangible assets of finite life include contract intangibles, core
deposit intangibles and customer relationship intangibles, and are
amortised over their useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years using a
diminishing balance method. Trade name is carried as an asset of
indefinite life and is tested annually for impairment losses. It is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment loss.
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BESEERERNITTIRRELE —BNEBHD
HERAZHLEABMN([BLEASMN]) -
BARBEZ5A0T -
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU”)
identified according to business segments in line with the internal
management reporting structure. A summary of goodwill allocation is
presented below.

—E——H+ZA=+—HEK
—E-——_H+=-A=t+-—H
At 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2012

[GE3::35) EARTT BIMRIT
Commercial Personal Overseas R B &t
£H Group Banking Banking Banking Insurance Total
BB Hong Kong 196,478 122,189 - - 318,667
JBRFT Macau - - 493,023 139,302 632,325
196,478 122,189 493,023 139,302 950,992

HEESFERENR  HHERBFE2ERAE
BEMEEZHCEABEMNIEKRESHE - ZTEE
AEsEEREABMGS - NAFTEl 2B
e KEBRBAGFHEEERHUEEFIERE
2% HRAERFIUNBREKE - ZAFTEBHEE
EBABERHEUBERSEESBN 2R
FETEPATE RIS EA A BB (RIS R 2 ST AT AR &l o FT
FERAZAREDEERNAEEARERITERSHE
SEABMN 2 EBEBER 2 ERKARNETES
o RITEBRSELEMZMIBEEXRE7% (=
T——4F 1 12.59%) * MRBEFRSEE LN
R EE96% (T ——F 1 12.57%) °

BEFETIREARDEA2RBRRAAEBR
SZBRAENERER(RITEERI% - RERE
B 22%) KA EET 8| 2 TR A - BUARE
FIREXR2%HAFRFINEENE - FIEMAZ
EREDZERAEERHERITEE 2 EARKA
RIS - AR EIWETZ EBERIm N F
9.6% E9.7% ZH °

EFEYEEIABELARIBEBR(ZF
——F i\

AFEemEERFRAR |

Impairment testing in respect of goodwill is performed annually by
comparing the recoverable amount of CGU determined based on
value in use calculation. The calculations use cash flow projections
prepared by the Senior Management based on a 5-year business plan,
taking into account projected annual growth rate, and in perpetuity
with 2% constant growth rate after the fifth year. The 5-year business
plan was developed by the Senior Management based on their
evaluation of the businesses of the relevant CGU and the conditions
in which such businesses will operate over the projected period. The
discount rate used is based on the Group’s and its Banking Group’s
weighted average cost of capital depending on type of businesses
carried out by CGU, which are 9.7% (2011: 12.59%) for CGU under
banking business and 9.6% (2011: 12.57%) for CGU under insurance
business.

For trade name, impairment testing is performed annually using pre-
tax royalty rates of 3% for banking business and 2% for insurance
business with reference to similar business transactions, projected
revenue in the medium-term plan, and in perpetuity with 2% constant
growth rate after the fifth year. The discount rate in the range of
9.6% t0 9.7% used is based on the Group’s and its Banking Group’s
weighted average cost of capital depending on type of businesses
carried out.

No impairment losses on goodwill and trade name were identified in
the year (2011: Nil).



P

(AR Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
A
BERAE
Furniture,
equipment
TE and motor =5
58 Group Premises vehicles Total
BE-Z——F+-A=1+—HLEE Year ended 31 December 2011
FYREFE Opening net book amount 2,805,016 203,089 3,008,105
g Additions 119,473 137,138 256,611
ENMDEREMERTE Reclassification from investment
properties to premises 117,000 - 117,000
EEREBR KRR Revaluation deficits taken to income
statement (582) - (582)
EHAR Revaluation surplus 623,512 = 623,512
HE Disposals = 219) (219)
FELZH (F12) Depreciation charge (Note 12) (91,296) (73,353) (164,649)
FRIREFE Closing net book amount 3,573,123 266,655 3,839,778
—2——f+=-A=+-H At 31 December 2011
A/ Cost/valuation 3,573,427 629,966 4,203,393
RIEME Accumulated depreciation (304) (363,311) (363,615)
BREFE Net book amount 3,573,123 266,655 3,839,778
BE-ZE-—F+-A=1+—-HLEE Year ended 31 December 2012
FHREFE Opening net book amount 3,573,123 266,655 3,839,778
i Additions 43,332 175,443 218,775
ENMDEREMERTE Reclassification from investment
properties to premises 116,953 - 116,953
BE [N EESERE & Previous revaluation deficits reversed from
income statement 2,011 - 2,011
EHRH Revaluation surplus 1,103,166 — 1,103,166
it Disposals (3,922) (5,289) 9,211)
FE L (HF12) Depreciation charge (Note 12) (122,217) (80,173) (202,390)
ERER Exchange difference 177 = 177
FREAFE Closing net book amount 4,712,623 356,636 5,069,259
—EB-—f+ZA=t—H At 31 December 2012
A/ A Cost/valuation 4,713,459 761,043 5,474,502
ZETE Accumulated depreciation (836) (404,407) (405,243)
IREFE Net book amount 4,712,623 356,636 5,069,259
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
AREBTESHMZHGER-_ZE——F+_A8 The Group’s premises were last revalued at 31 December 2012.
=+ —H#TT - WRHEBRB T EESIA SRS Valuations were made on the basis of open market value by
— KPR (HEREXRER) BRAT (B independent, professionally qualified valuer Savills (Valuation and
REBRPERRNZME) RE—KFRBLELS R Professional Services) Limited for premises in Hong Kong and
FIER AR (BMUNRFI 2 ) IE AR HE Mainland China, and by Savills (Macau) Limited for premises in
BEEEEST - Macau.

WITEIREBRKAEEY|R - EEZEHT If premises were stated on the historical cost basis, the amounts

would be as follows:

—E——F —ZT——f
£® Group 2012 2011
B Cost 1,674,454 1,517,094
RIETE Accumulated depreciation (262,486) (227,773)
BREFE Net book amount 1,411,968 1,289,321
RT+ZRA=+—H  TERHEMETEE 2K At 31 December, the cost or valuation of premises and other fixed
SEEDTOT assets is as follows:
58 Group
& -
FERAE
Furniture,
equipment
7&  and motor &5t
—E-CF 2012 Premises vehicles Total
LR At cost 435 761,043 761,478
BEE-—T——F At valuation — 2012 4,713,024 - 4,713,024
4,713,459 761,043 5,474,502
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
R
ZERRE
Furniture,
equipment
77E  and motor A&t
—F——%F 2011 Premises vehicles Total
£ DN At cost 435 629,966 630,401
REE-——T—F At valuation — 2011 3,572,992 - 3,572,992
3,573,427 629,966 4,203,393
TEZEREHFERRE : The net book value of premises comprises:
—B--F =—ZT—F
£E Group 2012 2011
FHEH Leaseholds
EERFA 2 FEHEL Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(Et+tzR+52M) lease (between 10-50 years) 3,726,502 2,824,312
TEBELAINE A 2 R BT AT Held outside Hong Kong on medium-
(Et+tzR+52M) term lease (between 10-50 years) 986,957 749,115

4,713,459 3,573,427
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(LAB¥EFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

—g-=—f —FT——F

£E Group 2012 2011

—H—H At 1 January 650,865 604,648
i Additions - 100,704
HE Disposals = (27,100)
E-RoiboR Reclassification (116,953) (117,000)
BHAFERE Fair value gains on revaluation 159,522 89,613
+=-—A=+—H At 31 December 693,434 650,865

AEBREVESRH 2 GHEER_FT——F+_A
=+—HET - HHERBIERETAEMSE
—ARFEAER (HEREXER)GRAR (B
REBEBRFEBEARZYE) ME—KFE#H OR
FARAR (RAMNMRFIZME) RARTISE
BREEETT -

The Group’s investment properties were last revalued at 31 December
2012. Valuations were made on the basis of open market value by
independent, professionally qualified valuer Savills (Valuation and
Professional Services) Limited for investment properties in Hong Kong
and Mainland China, and by Savills (Macau) Limited for investment
properties in Macau.

KEMEZ RAFERTE The net book value of investment properties comprises:
=B-=F ~—ZT——F
8 Group 2012 2011
THfEH Leaseholds
EEREFA 2T EHELY Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(E+ERTEF2M) lease (between 10-50 years) 583,597 565,636

EEBAIMNGE 2 IR

Held outside Hong Kong on medium-

(E+ERTH2M) term lease (between 10-50 years) 109,837 85,229
693,434 650,865

—E--F —=T——F

£E Group 2012 2011
—H—H At 1 January 1,787,252 1,318,316

FRFREESEZIEM Additions from current year

new business 273,847 209,186
SMEKA MRS 2 # Movement from in-force business 673 (12,889)
=i Others (290,616) 272,639
+=-—A=+—H At 31 December 1,771,156 1,787,252
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

AR5 RR PoE

KE5|

Restated

—EB--F —T—%F

&= Group 2012 2011

DIREE Reinsurance assets 900,979 590,969

EUFIAENTEMNTER Accounts receivable and prepayments 3,357,012 2,264,113

FEETIRA Accrued income 710,079 720,779

HAth Others 394,711 327,377

5,362,781 3,903,238

=F-=F —T——F

5 Group 2012 2011
HMEREERERBEEES Short sales of treasury bills and

treasury bonds 2,278,044 3,045,202

=F-=F —T——F

5 Group 2012 2011

o BT R R A SR AT R Demand deposits and

current accounts 16,038,818 11,748,699

HEER Savings deposits 18,084,091 14,570,122

TEH - BA R ETE Time, call and notice deposits 82,403,727 85,310,273

116,526,636 111,629,094

BEPFP OB SEWIFEAD(EAET A A
¥ 2 G 2 73021,979,000/8 0 (=T ——4F
6,017,000/ 7T) °

BEH - BAMREMERIN
BRFBFER -

A BB P ER

Included in customer accounts were deposits of HK$21,979,000

(2011: HK$6,017,000) held as collateral for irrevocable commitments

under import letters of credit.

Other than time, call and notice deposits, all other customer deposits

carry variable interest rates.
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(LABREFThz5IR)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

—E—_—F —ZE——%

£E Group 2012 2011
LA X @ T A TESI R At fair value under fair value hedge

(for hedging interest rate risk) 4,463,338 2,676,942

R At amortised cost 1,289,124 487,125

5,752,462 3,164,067

RIB——FR-ZF—FR AEEREGRY
RERREEEMNERITERERARTFEFE
BEZ ABE -

AEEE I EE BITFEREEPRIE S DR
SEE A F P77 2 BREE (K 17,000,000 7T (=
T ——14F : {£24,000,000/87C) °

During 2012 and 2011, the Group did not designate on initial

recognition any certificates of deposit issued at fair value through

profit or loss.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at

maturity to the holders of these certificates of deposit is HK$17 million

lower (2011: HK$24 million lower) than the above carrying amount.

—E—_—F —ZE——%
£E Group 2012 2011
250,000,000 0% 824 (7£ (F)) US$250,000,000 Floating Rate
Notes (Note (a)) 1,937,792 1,941,660
100,000,000 & 70)% B2 (£ (7)) US$100,000,000 Floating Rate
Notes (Note (b)) 775,115 776,660
2,712,907 2,718,320
R A BR At amortised cost 2,712,907 2,718,320
o Note:
() WARFBITEB/ARIRITZBONT B R ERRE (@  This represents US$250 million Floating Rate Notes (the “Notes”) issued

FTEIBTT - WEFMER S ((FRAT]) Lz
250,000,000 0% BER([RE]) - ZEEA
EIEH  REIMAA-—ZT—=F+A+tH -Z
EROMAINET  BER_E—TF+AtA
#172.175,000,000 X T KN =ZE—FF+— A
+H H%172 75,000,000 3£ T °

(Z) WhHAFRITR=_ZE—FHA=-+/\BBEBKX
FTRIT 2 BN T35 7 AR IR ET B34 T - WEFR
Fir £ 17,2 100,000,000 % 0% B 2 ([ BE ) ©
ZEEAEER  BEINHEA-T—MFMA
—+NR-

AremEEFRAR |

(b)

by DSB under DSB’s Euro Medium Term Note Programme, and are
listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange Trading Limited (“SGX”). The
Notes are unsecured and have a final maturity on 7 October 2013. The
Notes were issued in two series, comprising US$175 million issued on 7
October 2010 and US$75 million issued on 15 November 2010.

This represents US$100 million Floating Rate Notes (the “Notes”)
issued by DSB on 28 April 2011 under DSB’s Euro Medium Term Note
Programme, and are listed on the SGX. The Notes are unsecured and
have a final maturity on 28 April 2014.



(LABREFThz5IR)

B R& PoE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

—E—_—F —ZE——%
2012 2011
150,000,000 = Tt —ZF —EF EHi A US$150,000,000 Subordinated Fixed
EEREGERGE(R)) Rate Notes due 2017 (Note (a)) - 1,170,815
225,000,000 T E B1& US$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed
BE®K(GE(L)) Rate Notes (Note (b)) 2,001,533 1,967,542
200,000,000 E LKA E BB EER (FF(A)) US$200,000,000 Perpetual
Subordinated Fixed Rate
Notes (Note (c)) 510,460 516,130
225,000,000 10T =5 = — F X HIR S$$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed
EBREGRGE(T)) Rate Notes due 2022 (Note (d)) 1,423,569 =
3,935,562 3,654,487
BENARTEFEBEE8 AER Designated at fair value through
profit or loss - 1,170,815
A= @ g T A EI R At fair value under fair value hedge
(for hedging interest rate risk) 3,935,562 2,483,672
3,935,562 3,654,487

R ER-F——FR  AEERERY)
R E M EES AU AT E B AR
BEE AL -

During 2012 and 2011, the Group did not designate on initial

recognition any subordinated notes at fair value through profit or loss.
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(LABREFThz5IR)

it
(B)

WD ARFRITR=_ZTRAFENATNBETZ
150,000,000 35 7T 4 8.5.451% f£ & Fx (B2 5 FIr
EWWHARE AN ME RN E S BEGS (&
%) WEEBZEBEAE-_S—LtFENATN
e AKIRITER=ZZ—=F/N\A+N\B(EE
MEER) 2HRBUHERS -

DAFMBIR_E—ZTF_A+—BHETZ
225,000,000 3 7T £ ¥ 32 At _E i 30 48 52 58 A T N
BARNESBEES ([EK]) - LEEBER=
TTF-_A+—HEH - F2/R6.625% ' T
FERB—IK o RFRITINE B —BIRERITEI L
Fs s By & QIS B8 EE A SRR A E TR
TREFEAERZEF SR -

W ARFRITR =TT LFE A+ AETZ
200,000,000 E LA F AT LMW RE A= E
MifnE AR A E B EEER ([EF]) - EE
BrREHEEe AT —+tF_A++tH -H
BIOTHEHERUEER  £52/86253% ' &
FERB—IK - HiE - WEFRERBEERA
BEE - FROFEEETA=EAPETETR
EREN—BNTET BEESEESEREL
O - KFTIRTTAI R IBIEEE B kAR S IE B
RAENRBAZEBEBERAAE GERD) &
% o RERITIAEEH— BB RITEI VAR HEHE
IS ES R E E F BB A ETTIRTTRIER S
REE)ZEF SR -

RZE-—TERZTTNEF - RKIRITAKRIEE
EEaEokilESeaEleVeris: fink-EF Nt
51 /75,000,000% 7T % 70,000,000% 7T * MA
BrERBEEBRNESEBERZELIER
EEEeH o

AremEEFRAR |

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Note:
(a)

This represents US$150,000,000 5.451% Subordinated Fixed Rate
Notes qualifying as supplementary capital of DSB issued on 18 August
2005 (the “Notes”), which were listed on the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange. The Notes had a maturity date on 18 August 2017 and had
been fully repaid by DSB on the optional redemption date on 18 August
2012.

This represents US$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes
qualifying as supplementary capital of DSB issued on 11 February 2010
(the “Notes”), which are listed on the SGX. The Notes will mature on
11 February 2020. Interest at 6.625% p.a. is payable semi annually. An
interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the
Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into with
an international bank.

This represents US$200,000,000 Perpetual Subordinated Fixed Rate
Notes qualifying as upper supplementary capital of DSB issued on 16
February 2007 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the SGX. The Notes
carry an optional redemption date falling on 17 February 2017. Interest at
6.253% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue date to the optional
redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not redeemed, the interest
rate will reset and the Notes will bear interest at 3-month LIBOR plus
190 pips. DSB may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA,
redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on the optional
redemption date or for taxation reasons on interest payment date. An
interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the
Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into with
an international bank.

In 2010 and 2009, DSB repurchased a portion of the Notes with a total
notional principal of US$75,000,000 and US$70,000,000 respectively
at a discount after unwinding an identical notional amount of interest
rate swap. Such repurchased Notes were cancelled after receiving prior
approval of the HKMA.



(LABREFThz5IR)

7 (')

(T) BEDAFROR-_ZE—_-_F-_ANBETZ
225,000,000 ¥ h14 7T 7E ¥ 32T _E 045 SR E A
MmEAME S RERE(EH]) - LEEH
BR-_E-—F - ANAEH - REUHEERA
—T—tHFZANB - ABTHAEZHRENES
B £8/4875%  B¥FRHE—IK - Hi% -
HEBAERELEERERD  TENFEEE
A AERAFHFMBCREEEEN=81t+
BT  BEERBESSERBEAIME  KFRITA
RBZHEEZASEARGEARFE KB INE
EEEEE A (ML) EH - AFETHE
3 — BB SR 1T 5T 3 FI| K45 B 401G B 75 B0 [E 2 7
BB ANETRITRER SAEMEZEF R
R

BEAATE & B HZ S ABm 2 REEK
A RN TS ER S E (Fl - FE - SME)
RAEBEERAZE 2 AFEEZHRBE-Z
——F+tZ A=+ HLEFERNEEEEAC
T——FNATN\HH A A 36,811,000%
TL(=ZZ——% : Ig2555,494,000% 1) k&8
29,501,000/ 7T (ZZF——% : [&18 25,334,000
HIT) ©

REBENSREBSIBRIZENENNSE
B4 _EATY) 2 BRE{E (K 382,000,000/8 0 (= F—
—%F : {£.358,000,000/87T) °

B R& PoE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Note: (Continued)

(d) This represents S$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes
qualifying as supplementary capital of DSB issued on 8 February 2012
(the “Notes”), which are listed on the SGX. The Notes will mature on 9
February 2022 with an optional redemption date falling on 9 February
2017. Interest at 4.875% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue
date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not
redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will bear interest
at the then prevailing 5-year Singapore Dollar swap rate plus 376 basis
points. DSB may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA,
redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on the optional
redemption date or for taxation reasons on interest payment date. An
interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the
Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into with
an international bank.

The change in the fair value of subordinated notes designated at fair
value through profit or loss in the year ended 31 December 2012 up
to the date of redemption of 18 August 2012 attributable to changes
in external market prices (e.g. interest rate, currency) is a gain of
HK$36,811,000 (2011: a gain of HK$55,494,000) and that attributable to
the Group’s own credit standing is a loss of HK$29,501,000 (2011: a loss
of HK$25,334,000) respectively in the year ended 31 December 2012.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
maturity to the holders of these subordinated notes is HK$382 million
lower (2011: HK$358 million lower) than the above carrying amount.

—g—-5 —2——F

£ Group 2012 2011

REELZ Other liabilities under
EmAEE insurance contracts 2,100,617 1,738,342
Hitb Others 4,028,441 2,514,602
6,129,058 4,252,944
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RRENZEMBBEDINT

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Other liabilities under insurance contracts are analysed below:

—E——-F
2012
PR EE
% Reinsurers’ FEE

- Group Gross Share Net
—RREE General Insurance
KA BRI Z REFE Unearned premium reserve 353,224 (176,810) 176,414
BE2F2RE Notified claims 322,518 (172,065) 150,453
EERMNERERIRE Claims incurred but not reported 58,493 (6,326) 52,167
KIE R < Unexpired risk reserve 1,449 1,580 3,029

735,684 (353,621) 382,063
B Life
REEES Policy provisions 1,364,933 (6,806) 1,358,127
&5t Total 2,100,617 (360,427) 1,740,190
—RREE General Insurance
KUK ZRERFE Unearned premium reserve
—H—H At 1 January 210,574 (107,616) 102,958
REBA Written premiums 568,736 (287,330) 281,406
EREZRE Earned premiums (426,086) 218,136 (207,950)
+=-—A=+—H At 31 December 353,224 (176,810) 176,414
EERECEANERERZ2RE & Notified and incurred but not reported

RERRES 2 F#E claims, and unexpired risk reserve

BEE2HRRE Notified claims 268,548 (134,842) 133,706
BERMNERERIRME Claims incurred but not reported 31,966 (4,469) 27,497
ENENE Unexpired risk reserve 3,858 1,047 4,905
—H—H At 1 January 304,372 (138,264) 166,108
ExXRE Claims paid (123,489) 29,676 (93,813)
BEENRE Claims incurred 201,577 (68,223) 133,354
+=-—A=+—H At 31 December 382,460 (176,811) 205,649
EE2E®mIRE Notified claims 322,518 (172,065) 150,453
BEMERE2H 2 RE Claims incurred but not reported 58,493 (6,326) 52,167
FIERER 2 Unexpired risk reserve 1,449 1,580 3,029

382,460 (176,811) 205,649
PN Life
REEES Policy provisions
—H—H At 1 January 1,223,396 (6,225) 1,217,171
BEXfHRE Claims paid (590,956) 15,171 (575,785)
EEINESES Claims incurred 732,493 (15,752) 716,741
+=-—A=+—H At 31 December 1,364,933 (6,806) 1,358,127

AremEEFRAR |
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(AR F Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
—E——F
2011
DIRIDER
4% Reinsurers’ R
e Group Gross Share Net
— AR General Insurance
R 2 (REE Unearned premium reserve 210,574 (107,616) 102,958
EE2®mIEE Notified claims 268,548 (134,842) 133,706
EANEREHRZRE Claims incurred but not reported 31,966 (4,469) 27,497
KIERER 2 Unexpired risk reserve 3,858 1,047 4,905

514,946 (245,880) 269,066

10 Life

RELEHD Policy provisions 1,223,396 6,225) 1,217,171
&5t Total 1,738,342 (252,105) 1,486,237
—RRER General Insurance

KRR ZRERE Unearned premium reserve

—HA—H At 1 January 163,065 (88,092) 74,973
REBUA Written premiums 412,587 (221,742) 190,845
EREZRE Earned premiums (365,078) 202,218 (162,860)
+=-A=+—8 At 31 December 210,574 (107,616) 102,958

EERRERNERERZERE K Notified and incurred but not reported

KERRR 2B claims, and unexpired risk reserve
BEE2RCRE Notified claims 307,840 (180,996) 126,844
BERMERZ2HRE Claims incurred but not reported 24,538 (9,073) 15,465
KIE R 2 Unexpired risk reserve 893 1,465 2,358
—HA—H At 1 January 333,271 (188,604) 144,667
BEXNRE Claims paid (183,954) 106,863 (77,091)
BEAMNRE Claims incurred 155,055 (56,523) 98,532
+=-—A=+—~” At 31 December 304,372 (138,264) 166,108
BEEHRIRE Notified claims 268,548 (134,842) 133,706
ERMNERERIRE Claims incurred but not reported 31,966 (4,469) 27,497
KIE R < Unexpired risk reserve 3,858 1,047 4,905
304,372 (138,264) 166,108
1574 Life
REEES Policy provisions
—A—H At 1 January 1,023,877 (7,747) 1,016,130
BEXNRE Claims paid (410,170) 11,290 (398,880)
BEANRE Claims incurred 609,689 (9,768) 599,921
+=-—A=+—H At 31 December 1,223,396 6,225) 1,217,171

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |



BRI

(AR F Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
=F-=F —T——F
£8 Group 2012 2011
HRARBREOREFEAZARREBERTE Gross future liabilities to policyholders
under long-term insurance contracts 8,743,271 7,458,562
DIRDEE Reinsurers’ share (540,552) (338,864)
HERBRREOREREAZRKBEFHE Net future liabilities to policyholders

under long-term insurance contracts 8,202,719 7,119,698

RERBENREFBAZRKEE 2 EBH The movement in future liabilities to policyholders under long-term
LU insurance contracts is summarised as below:

=F-=F —T——F

8 Group 2012 2011
—H—H At 1 January 7,119,698 5,857,056
REREERE S Change in provisions for
future liabilities 1,083,021 1,262,642
+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 8,202,719 7,119,698
BEERBEEMBENEE I EER S EHITHE Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
A EARITE B E MBI B & & RRER E legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against
HA[R) — B IS A R S Al #ErT o HEEHz %W current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
N relate to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:
&7
Restated
—E-—F =—=—%F
£ Group 2012 2011
RAEF IR E = Deferred income tax assets 7,259 50,069
RIERIAEE Deferred income tax liabilities (277,746) (83,477)

AremEEFRAR |
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EXERREENRBBERBERZE 2 HAER K

Bl 2 TBEF B EIDATAAT

P

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities analysed based on the

underlying category of temporary differences and the expected date
of recovery and settlement are as follows:

LET
Restated
—B--F —E——%F
£ Group 2012 2011
REFI TR EE - Deferred income tax assets:
—AE+Z@ABKE 2 ELEMRIEE E — Deferred income tax assets to
be recovered after more than
12 months 86,525 236,905
REFI A E - Deferred income tax liabilities:
—EE+T-ERREECELERIEAE - Deferred income tax liabilities
to be settled after more than
12 months (357,012) (270,313)
(270,487) (33,408)

EERIARR B ABEN T -

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as

follows:
—g-=fF =FT—F

£8 Group 2012 2011
—A—H  WR2#HK At 1 January, as previously reported (94,293) (82,978)
AR 2 — Change in accounting policy — Adoption

RNER G ERIE 1258 2 85] of HKAS 12 amendment 60,885 45,894
—H—H ' &&7 At 1 January, as restated (33,408) (37,084)
RUEEERRIE () /B Tax (charged)/credited to the income

(M3E19) statement (Note 19) (19,637) 10,799
R #R BR AR 18 32 H Tax charged to equity (217,442) (7,123)
+=—A=+—H At 31 December (270,487) (33,408)
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(AR F Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BEEREEERBEANEE 288 ~8ER The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during
MHRIFUEEERE N RE 2 &SR0T the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances

within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

IRERIEEE : Deferred income tax assets:
BB
EHEREE EEXH
Impairment RHAM
allowances BBEE REEM Deferred
and Tax Investment  expenses =5
£H Group provisions losses revaluation and others Total
—2—%F—H—H At 1 January 2011 41,498 1,164 157,256 - 199,918
U 2R BR P [B] 48 Credited to the
income statement 75 2,335 - 18,420 20,830
PAREZR AR A [0 B8 Credited to equity - - 16,157 = 16,157

—ZT——F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2011

;r=—ZT—=—%—H—H and 1 January 2012 41,573 3,499 173,413 18,420 236,905
PUZEERA (), 1% (Charged)/credited to

the income statement  (10,695) 1,107 - 8,519 (1,069)

AR BR S Charged to equity - - (149,311) - (149,311)

—ZE—-f+=-H=+—H At31 December 2012 30,878 4,606 24,102 26,939 86,525
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

B R& PoE

IRIERIBEE RS : Deferred income tax liabilities:
MERBTE RENXELH
Accelerated TEEfE  Investment REER
BE tax  Premises  properties  Investment 2t ait

£E Group Provisions ~ depreciation  revaluation  revaluation revaluation Others Total
“E——£-f-0 WH2H At1 January 2011, as previously reported 4,643 26,095 196,515 55,121 35 167 282,896
SRR E - RhER e Change in accounting policy - Adoption

RAIF10% 26 of HKAS 12 amendment - (4.331) (3,306) (38,257) - - (45,894)
ZZ-—5-f-A L&) At 1 January 2011, as restated 4,643 21764 193,209 16,864 355 167 237,002
N Charged to the income statement 298 1,826 4128 3,779 - - 10,031
REERAZ Charged to equity - - 23,160 - 120 - 23,280
25+ A=1-H At 31 December 2011 and

R=Z-%-A-H 1 January 2012 4,941 23,590 220,497 20,643 475 167 270,313
“F-"5-B-R IHER At 1 January 2012, as previously reported 4,94 29,881 223,792 71,942 475 167 331,198
S HR NE - RER e Change in accounting policy - Adoption

ERIE 128254 of HKAS 12 amendment - (6,291) (3,295) (51,299) - - (60,885)
“2-—%-f-B £Ej At1 January 2012, as restated 4,941 23,590 220,497 20,643 475 167 270,313
PERRTH Charged to the income statement 1,266 11,694 1,900 3,708 S = 18,568
RERFRT Charged to equity - - 64,672 - 3,459 = 68,131
“E-CE+CAZt-A At 31 December 2012 6,207 35,284 287,069 24,351 3,934 167 357,012
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(AR F Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
T ERNRESERN(ZE), /B ZIEER The deferred income tax (charged)/credited to equity during the year
15 is as follows:
&5
Restated
=F-=F —T——F
£E Group 2012 2011
RIEER s 2 A AR Fair value reserves in shareholders’ equity:
—1TE — premises (64,672) (23,160)
—AHEERS - available-for-sale securities (152,770) 16,037
(217,442) (7,123)
SR RN R BIEEARRNT ZHB AT 24 Included in the following statement of financial position captions are
SRFEFI0T balances with a subsidiary of the Company detailed as follows:
—EB--F =—T——%F
AT Company 2012 2011
RITHE B Bank balances 45,332 8,942
() EXREE (a) Capital commitments
R+ A=+—BHERBRDREREEEEE Capital expenditure in respect of projects and acquisition of fixed
BERBABRTEECEARRERNT : assets as at 31 December but not yet incurred is as follows:
—EB--F —T——%F
£ Group 2012 2011
BREBRBHZHXY Expenditure authorised but
not contracted for 53,057 100,733
BEYOEREEEE ZFX Expenditure contracted but
not provided for 163,359 141,126

216,416 241,859
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(AR F Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(Z) EE&RE (b) Credit commitments

AEFBBEEABRIMVERETEPZERMTA
BREEREGERBRINESENT

The contract and credit risk weighted amounts of the Group’s off-
balance sheet financial instruments that commit it to extend credit to

customers are as follows:

EHEE
Contract amount
=B—=-F ~—ZT——%F
£ Group 2012 2011
HEEERESR Direct credit substitutes 478,535 461,738
B 5 K AIEE Transaction-related contingencies 507,025 247,862
B8 S EE 2 S AEE Trade-related contingencies 1,759,318 1,781,429
A HEUE M A ETR L Commitments that are
Bz A unconditionally cancellable
without prior notice 52,779,971 50,057,972
H At Other commitments with an
[RASEARR /& - original maturity of:
—LR—F —under 1 year 5,604,862 3,109,602
——FRNAE -1 year and over 1,602,379 1,112,384
REAERR Forward forward deposits placed - 5,760
62,732,090 56,776,747
EE RIS
Credit risk
weighted amount
—B-——-F —ZT——%F
£E Group 2012 2011
SABERAFE Contingent liabilities and
commitments 2,589,868 1,338,349
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(W) BEERZEE

TRTRRAEEEINERESBEBELFNEER R
MSEFKADMBREEESERZIINEESE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(c) Assets pledged

Exchange Fund debts pledged with the HKMA to facilitate the Group’s
trading and market-making activities in Exchange Fund debts are as

BiEE follows:
—B——-—F —ZT—F
£E Group 2012 2011
BIEEERBZES Trading securities 2,548,496 3,103,841
AIEHER S Available-for-sale securities 132,544 155
2,681,040 3,103,996

TRTIBREEGRER TIERESREE 2
BUHES M AR & E 2 REE

The carrying amounts of the non-government bonds pledged with
unrelated financial institutions under repurchase agreements and the
associated liabilities are as follows:

—B-—F —=E—F
£ Group 2012 2011
EEE R N2 IEWEE - Assets pledged under repurchase
agreements:
AR ERES Available-for-sale securities 256,838 428,356
REIEFS Held-to-maturity securities 51,970 37,896

BREEERRERFIEER
ZBHRE

HEARIE :
Hibfz B KR IEEE

BB RS LEABREN R FERER 2ES
MEREEMES -

REBEHZEMA  ARETEER - BEHER
A EES  THHER ZEFNETANERER

B o

AFEemEERFRAR |

Investments in securities
included in the loans and
receivables category - 65,655

308,808 531,907

Associated liabilities:

Other accounts and accruals 295,955 504,411

The fair value of the transferred securities and associated liabilities
approximate the carrying amount of the transferred securities.

The Group cannot use, sell or pledge the above securities for the
duration of the repurchase agreements and is exposed to the credit
risk of the issuers of the transferred securities.



P

(AR Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
(T) REHERE (d) Operating lease commitments
MAEBEAAEA BT BUBMELEREM Where a Group company is the lessee, the future minimum lease
MRARRABAL 7 HIEHEESMRAEENT ¢ payments under non-cancellable building operating leases are as
follows:
—E--F —ZT——F
£E Group 2012 2011
—F R Not later than 1 year 145,478 108,065
—FLEEREF Later than 1 year and not
later than 5 years 253,561 125,876
HE Later than 5 years 58,161 78,946
457,200 312,887
MAEEAEFAA BT ABUEMEKETREM Where a Group company is the lessor, the future minimum lease
RARBZ N 2 HEBERNFHABERAT payments under non-cancellable building operating leases are as
follows:
—B--F —T——F
5 Group 2012 2011
—FUA Not later than 1 year 18,649 19,009
—FLAEERSF Later than 1 year and not
later than 5 years 13,259 27,188

31,908 46,197
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

—E—_—F —ZE——%
2012 2011
SEERRA Authorised:
500,000,000 A% & A% 500,000,000 ordinary shares of
FRREE 2T HK$2 each 1,000,000 1,000,000
—E-=F =4
2012 2011
RE [N & [N
ERTRBERE : Issued and fully paid: Number of Share  Number of Share
ZER SREE2ET Ordinary shares of HK$ 2 each shares capital shares capital
—H—H At 1 January 292,804,486 585,609 292,804,486 585,609
BUARR BT8P 31T Issue of shares pursuant to
A% (D scrip dividend arrangement 3,722,152 7,444 = =
+=—RA=+—H At 31 December 296,526,638 593,053 292,804,486 585,609

RARRBEZZE——F+T_A=1T—HIEFE
BEFREARPE((ZZT—FXKHE ) HRK0.78
BT W TIREEERE ARG EBEH T
—ZFNAMBIFBEARRT ZEARE - ATHER
KRR ZARNARFIEETRORBEBE SRS (T
RESEED - URREFEERZZE—Z4F
FAZTHEHBRZRRBFRSERRIE o
RZT—=—F+ARA  REUABRRSTEIEE
R B0 22.89 /8 T 2 BB E R UER B ARD LA
BREIN T ——FRBEZRRERZH
3,722,152 IRAN R EIFT D ©

*ﬁ%U%Eh%ﬁﬂD*@%%h%ﬁﬂ

FTOAZR - 701 (ZF——4F : 5510 ) RRBELAR
#4,105,195 K (=& — — % : 3,705,195 /K ) &
BREE2ETZARRRGD  ERTFHNDESK
SEENERRTHRAE - BZAEXNIERET
f—¢+—ﬁ:+f5¢vw@%—?ff¢:

D) RALHE LA RAE 2,746,245 % (— T —— 4

ZM&M%ﬂﬂhﬁ@Q%EZ$AQh@E%
el

AremEEFRAR |

The Company recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.78 per share for the year ended 31 December 2011 (“Final
Dividend 2011”), with an option to receive the newly issued and fully
paid shares in lieu of the cash dividend (the “Scrip Dividend Scheme”)
in respect of the individual shareholdings held in the Company on 4
June 2012 being the record date. The Scrip Dividend Scheme was
approved by the shareholders at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 25 May 2012. On 5 July 2012, a total of 3,722,152
new shares of the Company under the Scrip Dividend Scheme were
allotted to the shareholders who elected to receive the scrip shares at
a conversion price of HK$22.89 per share in lieu of the Final Dividend
2011 paid in cash.

Pursuant to the new Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) approved
by the shareholders on 28 April 2005, 70 (2011: 55) options to
subscribe for 4,105,195 shares (2011: 3,705,195 shares) of HK$2
each of the Company had been granted to certain directors and senior
executives of the Group since the inception of the Scheme. Up to
31 December 2012 and since the incorporation of the Scheme, 30
(2011: 30) options to subscribe for 2,746,245 shares (2011: 2,746,245
shares) of HK$2 each of the Company have lapsed or expired.



P e

(LABEEF o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
RENBHESRSRITHABIFE ZRRER A Movements in the number of the Company’s shares in the share
NEIEmE R ZEBaT options held by directors and senior executives during the year are as
follows:
RREPROHAE
Number of shares
in the options
—E——F —ZT——f
2012 2011
—H—H At 1 January 958,950 2,455,195
RERNRT Granted during the year 400,000 750,000
REREI Bk KK Expired or lapsed during the year - (2,246,245)
+—-—A=+—H At 31 December 1,358,950 958,950
RTZA=+—BMRETEZRBREFS 0 Particulars of the outstanding options as at 31 December are as
1k follows:
ARERRAGEE
AREHE Number of shares
Number of options in the options
=E-=F —ET——F =ZE-=ZFf —T——F
BFERITEE Date of grant and exercise price 2012 2011 2012 2011
—EEEFNAZFTNA - 28 September 2007, at an exercise
BITEE TR 59.28 BT price of HK$59.28 per share* 10 10 208,950 208,950
—E——%+=ZA+=H" 12 December 2011, at an exercise
BT E =A% 40.00 8T price of HK$40.00 per share 15 15 750,000 750,000
—E——F+-_A=+—8" 21 December 2012, at an exercise
BITEEEM33.25 8T price of HK$33.25 per share 15 - 400,000 -
40 25 1,358,950 958,950
* TEBEERER T ——Ft+ - Ak 2 H®HkE * the exercise price is restated to take into account the effect of the rights
LW EHTFHE - issue completed in December 2011.
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(ABEET TThALFR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
fEEf,  REEfR HRHERE  REEA
1] i ] BEMERE (&)
RGEE  Premises Investment  EXEE  EARE  -REE Resenefor  Retained
Share  Revaluation Revaluation  Exchange Capital General share-based  Earnings aif
&0 Group Premium Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve compensation Note (i) Total
ZE-CE-F-B o WAZH  At1January 2012, as previously reported 2,686,531 1,877,160 (611,466) 191,895 - 484,289 - 10,056,198 14,684,607
SRR ZAE-FHEE  Change in accounting policy - Adoption
SHENFE0FEZBT  of HKAS 12 amendment - 2443 - - - - - 42,479 44,922
“T-—F-F—H £%5| Balanceat 1 January 2012, as restated 2,686,531 1,879,603 (611,466) 191,895 - 484,289 - 10,098,677 14,729,529
TEEERSZATENE  Fairvalue gains on available-for-sale securities - - 6945% - - - - - 6945%
?@%ﬁﬁ MEET  Fair value gains recognised in equity upon
EXREMEEEANZ  reclassiication of certain investments n
ﬁ%&ﬁ?ﬁ%fﬂ £85  securities included in the loans and receivables
BIVERTMED category to the available-for-sale category - - 40,744 - - - - - 40,744
LATEERNEREE  Fairvalue loss realised and transferred to income
1EWEW* statement upon disposal of investments in
SHREYGUEEARSE  securties included in the loans and receivables
W%EWZS%&ﬁi” category and held-to-matury category which
REHENER Were previously reclassified from the
available-for-sale category - - 64,661 - - - - - 64,661
LTEEENAZETHNE  Fairvalue loss realised and transferred to income
BRINEHNAEAERL  statement upon impairment of investments in
BUGUERR 25 securities included in the loans and receivables
RERERSAR category which were previously reclassified
ERZNEE from the avalable-for-sale category - - o1 - - - - 5 21m
HEMRLERS Disposal of available-for-sale securities - - (91,020) - - - - - (91,0
REERREZE Deferred income tax assets recognised on
ik ERREARE movements in investment revaluation reserve - - (114474 - - - - - (114474
EEh ATENG Fair value gains on revaluation of premises - 865200 - - - - - - 865200
{TEEHREZHMEDL  Deferred income tax liabiites recognised on
EiEcR movements in premises revaluation reserve - (48254 - - - - - - (48254
RAEREMEHEERE  Revaluation reserve transferred to retained
EREEA earnings for depreciation of premises - (46,055 - - - - - 46,055 -
‘fﬁf’ﬂ% RHEAEMEE  Revaluation reserve realised on disposal of premises - 2,359) - - - - - 2,353 -
AERMER AN Exchange differences arising on translation
HRNERZE of the financial statements of foreign entities - - - 20917 - - - - 20917
TBREEBEAZFEE  Additional net assets acquired via scrip
dividend arrangement - - - - 215,519 - - - 215,519
PR EHERTEEE  Subscription of additional interest in a subsidiary
—WBAR s via scrip dividend arrangement at a discount - - - - (181317 - - - (181317)
TARR BB ZE8  Issue of ordinary shares pursuant to scrip
ki3 dividend arrangement 71,757 - - - - - - - 71,757
DIRES IR IEAZHE  Provision for equity-settled share-based
R compensation - - - - - - 97 - 9
ERaT Profit for the year - - - - - - - 1206404 1,206,404
“E——EXERS 2011 final dvidend - - - - - - - (208387 (228387)
“E-CERERS 2012 interim dividend - - - - - - - (35999 (85999
Z§-ZE+ZBZt-B ALt December 2012 TBA8 26814 (14250 2282 M2 484289 o 11069109 17,198,746

AFemEEFRAA]
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(AT TAIYIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
fiEEf REEf REER
Ei #E (#0)
RIVAE Premises Investment EiE —fREE Retained
Share  Revaluation  Revaluation Exchange General Earnings At
] Group Premium Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Note (i) Total
i 2 R T At 1 January 2011, as
previously reported 2,686,531 1,425,967 (494,547) 103,756 484,289 9,364,780 13,570,776
SRR NE - RAEES:E  Change in accounting policy -

F125.267] Adoption of HKAS 12 amendment - 2,451 - = S 31,326 B777
—2-—%-8-R £&) Balance at 1 January 2011, as restated 2,686,531 1,428,418 (494,547) 103,756 484,289 9,396,106 13,604,553
AfHERR Fair value losses on available-for-sale

NYEER securities - - (35,795) - - - (35,795)
ATEEENLERZ Fair value loss realised and transferred o

AT ERAIA income statement upon disposal of

ENAEAEH investments in securities included in the

RERGERRREE loans and receivables category and

BRI RARAR held-to-maturity category which were

FRRERURE previously reclassified from the

available-for-sale category - - 26,728 - - - 26,728
HETHEERS Disposal of avalable-for-sale securities - = (119,925) - - = (119,925
REBHREEIMERL Deferred income tax assets released on

EtiREE movements in investment revaluation reserve - = 12,073 = S = 12,073
NEERATENS Fair value gains on revaluation of premises - 486,846 - - - - 486,846
EEHEREEIMERL Deferred income tax liahilities recognised on

EiEHEak movements in premises revaluation reserve - (17,169) - - - - (17,169)
RTENEMEBEREERE Revaluation reserve transferred to retained

EREEA earnings for depreciation of premises - (18,492) - - - 18492 -
BESNHBAREE Exchange differences arising on translation

BREOERZE of the financial statements of foreign entities = = = 88,139 = = 88,139
FREA Profit for the year - - - - - 1,020,804 1,020,804
ZZ-ZERHRE 2010 final dividend - - - - - (251812 (251,812
“E—EhHRE 2011 interim dividend - - - - - (84913) (84,913)
“2—E1-f=1-A At 31 December 2011 and at

k=%--%-f-H 1 January 2012 2,686,531 1,879,603 (611,466) 191,895 484289 10,098,677 14,729,529
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(LAEBEFThz5I7R)

(i) REBR-_ZE—Z-_F+_A=+—HZ
RBRFNEOERBESRETBERREZ
EE®E1,771,156,0008 0 (= ——F :
1,787,252,000 % 7T) © IR R B FIEERIR K R A
1ERE R ©

(i) AEREZBFBERTHBARAUEERETL A4
FHREBMBREERMAIIN RERER
- BFREERBIOANATBRITEGI R
NEBEEERANZAMEERTE - REERE
RRAKETRRZFHESR - BERBE
AEEESERETHN  LERNERFHEEN
AR o

RZT—=—F+=_A=+—8 ' K#;EIT
BEE 1,286,675,0008 0 (=—F——F :
1,158,201,000 77T ) 2 £ RE1E R EE R T 8
HIRE —REE - HREBNTERBBAPIEE -
RZE——F+ZA=1+—8 @R )ELE
MIALBRIRITHER A A2 BB EERRRITR -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Note:

(i) Included in retained earnings of the Group at 31 December 2012
is the value of long-term life assurance policies in force totalling
HK$1,771,156,000 (2011: HK$1,787,252,000) which is currently not
available for distribution.

(ii) The Group’s Hong Kong banking subsidiaries are required to maintain
minimum impairment provisions in excess of those required under
HKFRS in the form of regulatory reserve. The regulatory reserve
is maintained to satisfy the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance and local regulatory requirements for prudential supervision
purposes. The regulatory reserve restricts the amount of reserves which
can be distributed to shareholders. Movements in the regulatory reserve
are made directly through equity reserve and in consultation with the
HKMA.

As at 31 December 2012, DSB has earmarked a regulatory reserve of
HK$1,286,675,000 (2011: HK$1,158,201,000) first against its general
reserve; and for any excess amount, the balance is earmarked against
its retained earnings. As at 31 December 2011, MEVAS (1931) had also
earmarked a regulatory reserve of HK$4,279,000 in its retained earnings
when it was still operating as a licensed bank in the name of MEVAS

B B EREBFFIETE 4,279,000 8702 & 58 Bank Limited.
EREEEREE -
R EE BEXfGHE REBF
Share Capital Retained &t
NG Company Premium Reserve Earnings Total
“Z—%-f—H At 1 January 2011 2,686,531 256,027 1,437,768 4,380,326
FEA Profit for the year - - 357,902 357,902
“E-TEREKRS 2010 final dividend - - (251,812) (251,812)
“E—EREkRE 2011 interim dividend - - (84,913) (84,913)
“E——F+-A=+—H At 31 December 2011 2,686,531 256,027 1,458,945 4,401,503
“ZT——5-R-H Wk At 1 January 2012, as above 2,686,531 256,027 1,458,945 4,401,503
RARRSEBIATET Issue of ordinary shares pursuant
LR, to scrip dividend arrangement 77,756 - - 77,756
FEHH Profit for the year - - 239,940 239,940
—T—EREKRE 2011 final dividend - - (228,387) (228,387)
“T-CFPERE 2012 interim dividend - - (85,993) (85,993)
“EB-Z§+ZH=+-H At 31 December 2012 2,764,287 256,027 1,384,505 4,404,819

BE-—NNA=ZF+-_A—BBRBAZEIREE
WEER—AN=F+-_A-TEHhaEERS =
Prtiz - N2 ERR & B HIR 256,027,000 4 7T
WeE = B RN EHERNA © 52256,027,000 % T i#
HERER S AR B R R N -

AFEemEERFRAR |

By a special resolution passed on 1 December 1993 and subsequently
approved by the Supreme Court of Hong Kong on 20 December 1993,
the share premium of the Company was reduced by HK$256,027,000
and this amount was transferred to a capital reserve account. On
consolidation the reserve of HK$256,027,000 has been applied
against goodwill.
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() NMRREBER 2 EERNRLEE

P

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(@) Reconciliation of operating profit after impairment

BREESRAFEHERER losses to net cash flows from operating activities
=F-=F —T—F
2012 2011
MBRREEERE 2 2 &R Operating profit after impairment losses 1,138,306 912,339
M BUA Net interest income (2,493,564) (2,185,564)
&% Bk s Dividend income (72,698) (42,053)
EFREBEREMEERE Loan impairment losses and
other credit provisions 143,681 181,082
e Depreciation 202,390 164,649
M EE Amortisation expenses of
intangible assets 5,675 16,169
R B U 1% 2 BRI F AR Advances written off net of recoveries (205,772) (92,505)
VARS HE 32 A DARR 193 VB 75 B 080 SR B 2 188 5 Provision for equity-settled
share-based compensation 130 -
B2 U & Interest received 4,051,036 3,260,083
BERAFE Interest paid (1,338,502) (963,639)
B AR R Dividend received 102,144 63,903
EEBENBEZERI 2 EE ST Operating profit before changes in
operating assets and liabilities 1,532,826 1,314,464
EEEENRBEZED Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
— REIEA A #8:8 =& A 2 A & 58 BT 5K — money at call and short notice
with an original maturity beyond
three months 98,266 (288,266)
—REE B BB =18 A 2 ERITEIFR - placements with banks with an original
maturity beyond three months 2,250,285 (915,022)
—RHIFEERBNES - trading securities (1,594,726) (494,923)
—PTES®MIA — derivative financial instruments (61,677) 239,865
—EENATEFE B HEZEHFT ABRN - financial assets designated at fair
ETREE value through profit or loss (1,535,002) (1,388,232)
—RBEEXR — advances to customers (8,077,164)  (9,885,045)
—EfthBRE - other accounts (1,470,242) (322,148)
— BREAEERRERGIELER — investments in securities included in
ZBETE the loans and receivables category 1,811,130 824,867
—ERXFT—HREEE L - loan to a jointly controlled entity 20,429 4,285
— A EFH — available-for-sale securities (1,957,167) 150,859
—RFEHHBES — held-to-maturity securities 1,140,298 732,197
—RHASREBZBRREEE — value of in-force long-term life
assurance business 16,096 (468,936)
—IRITER — deposits from banks 261,117 860,956
—REEERENEE - trading liabilities (767,158)  (1,655,691)
—BPTER - deposits from customers 4,897,542 15,502,453
—HMBR B R TEIR — other accounts and accruals 2,161,196 337,100
—HRIARBEOREREAZAR — liabilities to customers under
insurance contracts 1,284,709 1,529,779
ME Exchange adjustments (99,244) 60,496
HELES (FTA), mARNES Cash (absorbed by)/generated from
operating activities (88,486) 6,139,058
XTE TR RE ZF A Interest paid on certificates of
deposit issued (45,415) (61,716)
BEEEEREM Hong Kong profits tax paid (43,340) (210,863)
BBV Overseas tax paid (18,272) (13,532)
KETES (TR RARSFE Net cash (used in)/from operating
activities (195,513) 5,852,947
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() ERERBEERAN BEREFR
CHEEBERBERGE=ZEAZIN
TRz T oS REEESLCE
EXARATBEEEREREREH
B2BER -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(b) For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents comprise the following balances
with maturity of three months or less from the date of
acquisition, deposits that are readily convertible to
known amount of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

=F-=F —T——F

£8 Group 2012 2011
& RIERITHEE Cash and balances with banks 2,373,588 4,530,785

JREIER A=A A A T 2 B A A2 BT R

JREVEA B =Ml A 3 AN 2 FEIRITHY 73K

FHEEBRENRES

Money at call and short notice with an

original maturity within three months 11,122,236 7,398,594
Placements with banks with an original

maturity within three months 2,795,826 1,548,648
Trading securities 689,941 1,845,845

16,981,591 15,323,872

BREBNAEHFE161BIE  ERXTFTERAEZ Particulars of loans made to officers disclosed pursuant to section
BRBENT 161B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:
TZA=t+—H#&& FRERESER
Balance outstanding Maximum balance
at 31 December during the year
=E2-=F —ET——F =ZE-=ZFf —T——F
2012 2011 2012 2011
e A BAERERE Aggregate amount outstanding
in respect of principal
and interest 37,861 67,678 76,033 74,434
ERAERERE Aggregate amount outstanding
in respect of guarantees 651 149 651 149

AFEemEERFRAR |
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BEREALRZEALTARNERIERESS
— 77 S E - TEELYBREERR T ET
EERTES - WEEMTRALZEHKRZES
FHAEAFER  REALTRR/SEEEA
A

REZE—ZFR-T——F  AEEREFEK
PEEGHEATETRITERRS - AAFB
SEHITEEERBAAEE VB HRER B Y
ZENMTHF(R)MAEBRIFEEREZLR
SETEN ZEEFRBHBMERBERERE
B2l REEBHEEHEEIRZ HIREAR
SR EBER  B@EHZE  —MEEERRE
Bl - BAFAAERFEARD AR HE
77 °

HEBBEALZERRZSWT

() BNBARNKS

ARBRAEBEENBARNERNEI
2ERITMBRARE 2 IHEBERS (F
ERBEABERSMBRARES LR
(T EmHRA] E14A148) B R EA
THZWMARTH - ZERHZBERE
B A RE E W R AIE14A.3502) & &
14A.36(1) % * BRARAEB 2 FE LR o

P

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Related parties are those parties, which have the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence
over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.
Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to
common control or common significant influence.

During 2012 and 2011, a number of banking connected transactions
were entered into with related parties in the normal course of
business of the Group. These, as described in Note (a) below
and being continuing connected transactions, had been reviewed
by the Company’s independent non-executive directors in their
review of the financial statements of the Group. Based on their
review and enquiry with management, the Company’s independent
non-executive directors were satisfied that all of the continuing
connected transactions were conducted in the ordinary and usual
course business of the Group, on normal commercial terms, and
in accordance with relevant agreements on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as
a whole.

Details of the significant related party transactions are as follows:

(@) Transactions with subsidiaries

The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries within
the Group received and incurred the following income and
expense from the continuing connected transactions (within
the definition of Rule 14A.14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”)) entered into with the non-wholly-owned
banking subsidiaries during the year. The aggregate values of
these transactions are within or consistent with the respective
annual caps applicable to the Group pursuant to Rules
14A.35(2) and 14A.36(1) of the Listing Rules.
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() B ARNR S @)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(@) Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

=F-=F —T——F

&8 Group 2012 2011
BE4FIE (GE () Interest received (Note (i) 12,348 10,687
ERRITFES (FE() Bank charges paid (Note (i)) (5,739) (6,219)
ENHEREERAEEREE Rentals and related building
M F X (G (i) management fee and
charges paid (Note (i) (14,528) (12,539)
EHE REEREEREE Rentals and related building
NS (5 (i) management fee and
charges received (Note (iii)) 5,422 5,422
ERERE (F(v) Management fees paid (Note (iv)) (17,009) (16,315)
B RS (FE V) Insurance commission paid (Note (v)) (68,908) (40,934)
B IR R B (FE (vi) Insurance premiums received (Note (vi) 14,577 13,112

CX
0

RERFEE2ERTHEARREEER
B BEREPOAREAERRITRS

B A B T AR B Z M BB A R 77 U =
FE2EMBITHIB AR - KFERIT - L7
(1981)(R=F—=F+—A=+=ZHBK
LERR ARERAT) RORPI R S SRIT 2 TFRRE A
BIUA o FRZIFREREN Lt 2 s
47 o

AFRITEEZMBERTERTRETEE
BBaRPAETPRERRRITRERE
m WERBRERBEXIFR(2E
EHER IR RERABAFR) - EXR
HRTEEMNBROTERERANESE
BEARBZEBERERF - gt EHARRIM
F ARFRZEEKRERARERFR R
B EMARAE AT Z ERBRFERE

AremEEFRAR |

Note:
(i)

Arising from the extension of credit facilities and provision of
deposit taking and other standard banking services by non-
wholly-owned banking subsidiaries

Interest was received by the subsidiaries of the Company from
three non-wholly-owned banking subsidiaries, namely DSB,
Mevas (1931), which ceased to be a bank with effect from 22
November 2012, and BCM on deposits placed with them. The
balances of deposits outstanding as at the end of the year are set
out in Note 47 above.

The banking subsidiaries of DSBG provide commercial banking
services and products to their customers in the ordinary and usual
course of their businesses. Such services and products include
the taking of deposits (including fixed and floating term deposits
and deposits at call). Customers who place deposits with the
banking subsidiaries of DSBG include members of the Company.
For purposes of the Listing Rules, the placing of deposits
provided by members of the Company to DSBG’s banking
subsidiaries constitute continuing connected transactions, within
the meaning of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, for DSBG.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(@) Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(i)

Arising from the extension of credit facilities and provision of
deposit taking and other standard banking services by non-wholly
owned banking subsidiaries (Continued)

The Directors confirm that the deposits placed by members of
the Company at the banking subsidiaries of DSBG are at market
rates and on normal commercial terms that are comparable or no
more favourable than those offered to independent third parties
and that no security over the assets of DSBG is granted in respect
of such financial assistance. On that basis, such continuing
connected transactions are exempt from complying with the
reporting, disclosure and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.65(4) of the Listing Rules.

DSB and other members of DSBG provide standard banking
services to members of the Company including cheque
clearing, autopay, cheque and deposit bank accounts, credit
card merchant facilities, co-branded credit cards in respect of
DSLA and investment dealing. The banking services in respect
of cheque clearing, autopay, cheque and deposit accounts are
provided to the Company in the same way as they are provided
to other customers of DSBG under standard account opening
and other forms. The credit card merchant facilities and co-brand
credit card arrangements are provided under normal commercial
contracts and are at market standard. The standard market
practice for credit card merchant facilities is not to provide for
a fixed term, but allow for termination at the option of the bank
by giving written notice. The co-brand credit card arrangements
between DSBG and the Company can be terminated after the first
two years by either party giving not less than six months’ notice in
writing. All such banking services, by their nature, are not normally
provided for a fixed term. Accordingly, the banking arrangement
between DSBG and the Company are not for a fixed term.

The banking services provided by the banking subsidiaries of
DSBG to the companies within the Group are banking services
and arrangements normally provided by DSBG to its other
customers and are conducted on normal commercial terms. The
provision of such banking services by DSBG to the Company
enables DSBG to earn reasonable income consistent with the
nature and types of the banking services.
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Contracting parties
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Term of lease

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(@)

Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(i

Lease and sub-lease arrangements between DSIS, DSIA, DSLA
and MIC and DSB, VB and BCM

DSB, BCM and Vanishing Border Investment Services Limited
(“VB”) have leased and sub-leased certain of their owned and
rented properties to members of the Company, namely Dah Sing
Insurance Services Limited (“DSIS”), Dah Sing Insurance Agency
Limited (“DSIA”), DSLA and Macau Insurance Company Limited
(“MIC”) as their office premises. DSB, BCM and VB received from
DSIS, DSIA, DSLA and MIC the lease rentals, and air-conditioning
charges, building management charges and other utilities charges
based on the actual amount of costs incurred. The following table
summarises the leases and sub-leases that have been entered
into.

5AEE
(TEEERH
RABEZH)
Monthly rent

(exclusive of

BEZNE

Property subject to lease

management fees
and utility charges)

30 Dec 2010

RHRTEFARRRRS

—2—%-f-A%

~F-=%+-A=t-H

DSB leased to DSIS

REROTEFARRRRS

1 Jan 2011-31 Dec 2013

“2——f-A-RZ

—F-=F+-A=t-H

DSB leased to DSIS

AHBROETFARRRAE

1 Jan 2011-31 Dec 2013

—2—%-f-A%

“F-=F+-fA=t+-H

DSB leased to DSIA

AremEEFRAR |

1 Jan 2011 to 31 Dec 2013

Rl ARSESI0RABART/\BRE
HREAEER 14,426 THR o

The whole of the 18/F, Island Place Tower, 510 King’s Road,
North Point, Hong Kong with a lettable floor area of 14,426 square feet

BEAEZTEBHEE -
A RREEERS5838 TR -

A portion of the 20/F., Island Place Tower with a lettable floor area
of 5,838 square feet

BEAEZTHEBHEE -
MHRREEES2,186 F AR -

A portion of the 20/F., Island Place Tower with a lettable floor area
of 2,186 square feet

HK$447,206

HK$192,654

HK$65,580
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(@) Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)
(ii) Lease and sub-lease arrangements between DSIS, DSIA, DSLA
and MIC and DSB, VB and BCM (Continued)

=32k kA
(TEEEEE
RAKEBEXZH)
Monthly rent
(exclusive of
X7 A4 HE Yl HEHRR HE2NE management fees
Transaction date Contracting parties Term of lease Property subject to lease and utility charges)
—F-%F HERTAFAS e ERYRYBRS L1504 EHHER - QEEARA12F 5% -
+=A=+AH —Z-=%+=-A=t-H
30 Dec 2010 VB leased to DSLA 1Jan 2011 to 31 Dec 2013 A portion of Room 1504 of Shenzhen Development Centre, Shenzhen, HK$7,876
People’s Republic of China, with a gross floor area of 132 square metres
—2-ZF AHRTHET “ZENFTZRA—HZE BREFELITE18RAMEBT L=T=BHIEE -
+=RA=+H KRR R “Z-—F+—A=+H A[HAEERER604 TR -
(R=ZE——FNA—H
RELIL)
30 Dec 2010 DSB sub-leased to DSIS 1 Dec 2009 to 30 Nov 2012 A portion of 33/F., Dah Sing Financial Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, HK$20,355

(early terminated effective ~ Wanchai, Hong Kong with a lettable area of 604 square feet

on 1 Sep 2011)

—2-ZF REIEERTAT “2——%-f-H% BPTRPRERTAE TR T2
TZA=TH RFIRE “EZH+ZA=+—H AhEREERR24THK -
30 Dec 2010 BCM leased to MIC 1Jan 2011 to 31 Dec 2013  The whole of the 10/F. and 11/F., BCM Building, Macau with a total MOP123,000
lettable floor area of 924 square metres
—T—=f AFRIET “T-—FMA=HZF BEARETNEDHER -
MA=A KRR R “Z-=F+-A=1-H MHEEEERAS519FAR -
3 Apr 2012 DSB leased to DSIS 3 Apr2012 to 31 Dec 2013 A portion of the 19/F., Island Place Tower with a lettable floor area HK$207,165
of 5,919 square feet
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(a)

Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(i)

Leaseback of property by DSB from DSLA

As disclosed in DSBG’s announcement dated 30 December 2010,
a lease agreement was entered into by DSB with DSLA on 30
December 2010 pursuant to which DSB has leased from DSLA a
portion of Flat A on Basement and Portion AA on Ground Floor
of Thai Kong Building, No. 482 Hennessy Road, Hong Kong with
a lettable floor area of 2,340 square feet at a monthly rent of
HK$450,000 exclusive of management fees, government rates,
electricity service charges and air-conditioning charges for a term
of three years commencing on 28 December 2010 and ending on
27 December 2013.

Computer and Administrative Services Agreement with DSB and
BCM

On 30 December 2010, DSB (and its subsidiaries including BCM)
entered into a computer and administrative services agreement
with the Company. The services agreement was for a fixed term
of three years with effect from 1 January 2011.

Pursuant to the services agreement, DSB has agreed to
provide members of the Company with certain computer and
administrative services. These services principally consist of the
following:

o computer services including data processing, printing
and enveloping, system development, technical support,
disaster recovery and contract management;

L administrative, company secretarial, internal audit,
compliance, operational, risk management, investment
custodian and treasury operations; and

o secondment of, and provision of services by, staff to the
Company (collectively, the “Services”).

With the stronger pool of resources and functional expertise
of DSB which historically has been operating to provide
administrative and computer services to other companies within
the Group on a cost-recovery basis, the provision of the Services
to the Company at a fee enables DSBG to continue to expand its
scale and operational capabilities while costs incurred by DSBG
in providing the Services are recovered from the Company.
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BCM

On 30 December 2010, DSIS and DSIA entered into distribution
agreements and underlying agency agreements with each of DSB
and Mevas (1931) and MIC and Macau Life Insurance Company
Limited (“MLIC”) entered into distribution agreements and
underlying agency agreements with BCM for the marketing and
distribution of life and general insurance products through their
branch networks for a fixed term of three years with effect from 1
January 2011. The agreements entered into by Mevas (1931) were
terminated effective 30 June 2012.

Pursuant to the distribution agreements entered into by DSIS
with each of DSB and Mevas (1931) (the “DSIS Distribution
Agreements”), DSB and Mevas (1931) will market and distribute
such life assurance products as agreed between the parties from
time to time for the Company through their respective branch
networks.

Pursuant to the DSIS Distribution Agreements, each of DSB and
Mevas (1931) has entered into an agency agreement with DSIS
(the “DSIS Agency Agreements”) in respect of the sale of life
assurance policies in return for commission payments as agreed
between the parties from time to time. Under the terms of the
DSIS Agency Agreements, the commission payable by DSIS to
each of DSB and Mevas (1931) in respect of such life assurance
products shall vary, depending on the product type, between
0.1% and 50% of the first year’s premium received, plus up to
24% of the renewal premiums in respect of certain policies.

Pursuant to the distribution agreements entered into by DSIA
with each of DSB and Mevas (1931) (the “DSIA Distribution
Agreements”), DSB and Mevas (1931) will market and distribute
such general insurance and life assurance products as agreed
between the parties from time to time for the Company through
their respective branch networks.

Pursuant to the DSIA Distribution Agreements, each of DSB
and Mevas (1931) has entered into an agency agreement with
DSIA (the “DSIA Agency Agreements”) in respect of the sale of
certain general insurance and life assurance products in return for
commission payments, as agreed between the parties from time
to time. Under the terms of the DSIA Agency Agreements, the
commission payable by DSIA to each of DSB and Mevas (1931) in
respect of:

(1) general insurance products shall vary, depending on
the product type, between 1% and 30% of each year’s
premium received in respect of a new or renewal policy;
and
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(a)

Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

)

Distribution and Agency Agreements with DSB, Mevas (1931) and
BCM (Continued)

2) life assurance products shall vary, depending on the
product type, between 0.1% and 50% of the first year’s
premium received, plus up to 24% of the renewal premiums
in respect of certain policies.

Pursuant to the distribution agreement entered into by MLIC with
BCM (the “MLIC Distribution Agreement”), BCM will market and
distribute such life assurance products as agreed between the
parties from time to time for MLIC through its branch network.

Pursuant to the MLIC Distribution Agreement, BCM has entered
into an agency agreement with MLIC (the “MLIC Agency
Agreement”) in respect of the sale of life assurance policies
in return for commission payments as agreed between the
parties from time to time. Under the terms of the MLIC Agency
Agreement, the commission payable by MLIC to BCM in respect
of such life assurance products shall vary, depending on the
product type, between 0.5% and 40% of the first year’s premium
received.

Pursuant to the distribution agreement entered into by MIC with
BCM (the “MIC Distribution Agreement”), BCM will market and
distribute such general insurance products of MIC as are agreed
between the parties from time to time through its branch network.

Pursuant to the MIC Distribution Agreement, BCM has
entered into an agency agreement with MIC (the “MIC Agency
Agreement”) in respect of the sale of general insurance products
in return for commission payments, as agreed between the
parties from time to time. Under the terms of the MIC Agency
Agreement, the commission payable by MIC to BCM in respect of
general insurance products shall vary, depending on the product
type, between 10% and 50% of each year’s premium received in
respect of new or renewal policies.

In respect of each of the DSIS, DSIA, MLIC and MIC Distribution
Agreements (collectively the “Distribution Agreements”), DSIS
and DSIA shall each reimburse or pay on behalf of each of DSB
and Mevas (1931), and MLIC and MIC shall each reimburse or pay
on behalf of BCM, agreed expenses including the registration fees
for licences for the bank staff to sell insurance, sales incentives,
marketing expenses and other costs and expenses related to the
performance of the Distribution Agreements.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(@) Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

)

(vi)

Distribution and Agency Agreements with DSB, Mevas (1931) and
BCM (Continued)

The distribution and agency arrangements described above,
including the commission rates set out in the various sets of
Distribution Agreements and Agency Agreements, are consistent
with normal arrangements between banks and insurance
companies in the Hong Kong and Macau markets, and will provide
DSBG with insurance products and services to be offered to the
customers of the banking subsidiaries of DSBG. The distribution
of different types of insurance products through the respective
bank branch networks of DSB, Mevas (1931) and BCM in return
for a commission income to be paid by the Company will also
produce fee income which will be of benefit to DSBG.

Insurance services provided by DSI, DSI(1976), DSLA, MIC and
MLIC

The insurance policies underwritten by Dah Sing Insurance
Company Limited (“DSI”), Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976)
Limited (“DSI(1976)”) and MIC in the name, and for the benefit, of
DSB and other members of DSBG and their respective customers
are subject to renewal annually. The group life assurance policies
underwritten by DSLA and MLIC in relation to the provision
of insurance cover for the death and/or critical iliness of the
employees of DSB and other members of DSBG are subject to
renewal annually.

DSI and DSI(1976) underwrites general insurance policies in
the name, and for the benefit, of DSB and other members of
DSBG and their respective customers including policies covering
domestic motor, property all risks, public liability, money,
electronic equipment, employees’ compensation and group
personal accident. Such policies are subject to renewal annually.

DSLA underwrites insurance policies to cover the death and/
or critical iliness of certain borrowing customers of DSB and
Mevas (1931) and employees of DSB and Mevas (1931) and other
members of DSBG. The provision of the insurance cover for
customers is set out in the terms and conditions of the relevant
bank borrowing arrangement. Such policies can be terminated
within two months in the event of non-payment of premiums. MIC
underwrites insurance policies in the name, and for the benefit,
of BCM and its customers including policies covering medical,
personal accident, employees’ compensation, motor fleet,
properties, civil liability and money. Such policies are subject to
renewal annually.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(@)

Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(vi)

Insurance services provided by DSI, DSI(1976), DSLA, MIC and
MLIC (Continued)

MLIC underwrites life insurance policies to cover the death and/or
critical illness of BCM’s pension plan members and such policies
are subject to renewal annually.

The premiums payable under such insurance policies are payable
in arrears on a monthly basis and are calculated by reference to
the outstanding credit balances in respect of each of the products
to which they relate.

The insurance policies are procured by DSBG to enable certain of
the DSBG’s subsidiaries, namely DSB, Mevas (1931) and BCM, to
comply with relevant regulatory requirements in reducing the risks
to DSBG’s assets, businesses and operations and/or to provide
additional services to the DSBG’s customers. In addition, the
Directors consider that the insurance services by DSI, DSI(1976),
DSLA, MIC and MLIC are effective and the fees proposed by DSI,
DSI(1976), DSLA, MIC and MLIC respectively are comparable to
those offered by other insurance companies in the market.

On 30 December 2010, the Company entered into a cooperation
agreement with DSBG pursuant to which members of the Group
will provide insurance services to DSB and other members of the
DSBG Group. The agreement is for a fixed term of three years with
effect from 1 January 2011 and ending on 31 December 2013.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(b) Key management personnel

(i) Material transactions and balances with directors and key
management personnel

The Group provides credit facilities to, and takes deposits from
the Group’s key management personnel, their close family
members and entities controlled by them. For the year ended 31
December, the following balances were outstanding:

—E-—F Z=T—F
£5 Group 2012 2011
=G ONEEN Loans and advances 4,958 4,722
73k Deposits 185,300 280,640
REA 2 B0 Undrawn commitments 2,445 2,254
ER Guarantee 502 502
FRNEREBRZ ST Maximum aggregate amount of loans
and advances during the year 6,140 5,071

(i) ZEEANRHZ

AR TREEABLBNITES - HRM
EREERZFINME14 -

(R) BEREQAARAEEFHNERZIEZR
REER

FR AEEBRIBEHELNEERT
24,540,0007% T ( = T — — 4F : 24,278,000 %
TT)REBWA - £ REBERIG—HEEHE
BRBETARARZIIFER  MARZS—Z4F
T A=+—B1FR4E2 4,313,000 T (=
T ——14F : 82,236,000/ 7T ) - AL EIIRME(E
BT —HRAEHEEREIERERAR - R
FAYE] 109,000 87T (ZF——4F : 196,000 7%
TIZFBIA - ZEERER T —Z_F2H
HERZZE—F+ZA=+—H" 88AR
20,429,000 7T) °

(i)  Remuneration of key management personnel

Key management personnel of the Company are executive
directors and their remunerations are included under Note 14.

(c) Transactions and balances with associate and jointly
controlled entity

During the year, the Group received from Bank of Chongging,
an associate, dividend income of HK$24,540,000 (2011:
HK$24,278,000). During the year, the Group received deposits
from Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited, a jointly controlled
entity and as at 31 December 2012, the balance of deposit was
HK$4,313,000 (2011: HK$82,236,000). The Group also provided
credit facilities to Bank Consortium Holding Limited, a jointly
controlled entity and received interest income of HK$109,000 (2011:
HK$196,000) during the year. The credit facilities had been fully
repaid in 2012 (the balance outstanding under the facilities as at 31
December 2011 was HK$20,429,000).
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Share-based compensation, pursuant to the Company’s Share Option
Scheme (the “DSFH Scheme”) and the Share Option Scheme of
its wholly owned subsidiary, Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (the
“DSBG Scheme”), is available to directors and senior executives of
the Group. Details of the share-based compensation paid to directors
are disclosed in Note 14.

(@) DSFH Scheme

The Company issues to certain directors and employees of its
subsidiaries share options on terms that allow the Company the
choice of making cash payments, determined based on the intrinsic
value of each share option, instead of allotting newly issued shares
to the directors or employees at the date of exercise. The Company
has adopted the cash settlement practice and intends to continue this
practice in respect of the existing share options issued.

The share options are granted in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the new Share Option Scheme approved by the
shareholders of the Company on 28 April 2005. The exercise price
per option share is concluded by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee on behalf of the Board of the Company on the basis no
less exacting than the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“SEHK”) and is determined as no less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares traded on the SEHK
on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s
shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares of HK$2
each in the capital in issue. The exercise period is between the first
and sixth anniversaries form the date of grant.

(b) DSBG Scheme

DSBG issues to certain directors and employees of its subsidiaries
share options on terms that allow DSBG the choice of making cash
payments, determined based on the intrinsic value of each share
option, instead of allotting newly issued shares to the directors or
employees at the date of exercise. DSBG has the intention to adopt
cash settlement practice in respect of the share options granted prior
to year 2012. For share option issued in 2012, DSBG has the intention
to settle its obligations by issuing new shares.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(b) DSBG Scheme (Continued)

The share options are granted in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the DSBG Scheme. The exercise price per option share
is concluded by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee on
behalf of the Board of DSBG on the basis no less exacting than the
requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the SEHK and is determined as no less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of DSBG’s shares traded on the SEHK
on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of DSBG’s shares
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(i) the nominal value of DSBG shares of HK$1 each in the capital in
issue. The exercise period is between the first and sixth anniversaries
from the date of grant.

With respect to the cash-settled options granted under the two share
option schemes described above, the Group has recorded liabilities
of HK$11,093,000 (2011: HK$586,000) in respect of the fair value of
the share options at the reporting date. Such fair value is determined
by using the Trinomial Option Pricing Model, and based on the major
assumptions set out in the following tables.

With respect to the equity-settled options granted under the DSBG
Scheme described above, the fair value is determined by using the
Trinomial Option Pricing Model at the date when the options are
granted, and based on the major assumptions set out in the following
tables.

Share-based compensation charged to/(reversed from) income

i ([E1H) statement
—E--F =ZZT——F
2012 2011
LARR #E =2 A5F 2 SR AR Equity-settled options 130 =
IR & Xt 2 SR AR Cash-settled options 10,507 (14,826)
a5t Total 10,637 (14,826)
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(AR Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

ZERTERDRSENCHEZ RBER_-F
——F+A=t+—HBYERSEE (ZT——
FE) -

The total intrinsic value of the share options for which the grantees’
right to receive cash on a vested basis as of 31 December 2012 is nil
(2011: Nil).

BMAZTEAEEBERNZBHEET

The inputs into the Trinomial Option Pricing Model are as follows:

AFERETE
DSFH Scheme
—E-—F 2
2012 2011

—%-=f  ZB--F  CERtF  "T—F  CETLf
+=ZA=t-B +ZBt+=H AhAZ+NB FTZATZH AAZTNEH
DB & BBRE X DR S X NREX N NREYH
KTH Grant date 21 Dec 2012 12 Dec 2011 28 Sep 2007 12 Dec 2011 28 Sep 2007
SAES Settlement method Cash-settled ~ Cash-settled  Cash-settled ~ Cash-settled  Cash-settled

ARAIR+ZRA=1—H

Share price of the Company

ZRECET) as at 31 December (HK$) 34.95 34.95 34.95 23.25 23.25
1T1EE (Bm) Exercise price (HK$) 33.25 40.00 59.28 40.00 59.28
BRI GE() Expected volatility (Note (i) 45.15% 45.15% 45.15% 48.01% 48.01%
FH(F) Time to maturity (years) <6 <5 <1 <6 <2
R (G (i) Risk free rate (Note (ii)) 0.39% 0.32% 0.07% 1.11% 0.33%
FEETAR S (3 (iif) Expected dividend rate (Note (iii)) ~ 3.25% 3.25% 3.25% 1.66% 1.66%

AFRTEEE

DSBG Scheme

—E-Cf 25
2012 2011
~B-C-F ~B--% —FF
+=B=+-B +ZA+=ZB TZA+Z=H
DURREX A R F MBRE T
TR Grant date 21 Dec 2012 12 Dec 2011 12 Dec 2011

SNk Settlement method Equity-settled ~ Cash-settled  Cash-settled

AFRTEERNE T B CAREZ)
g+-A=t—RUAREXH)
2B ()

111B(8 (%)

TR IE (G ()

FH(F)

A2 3R 1 2R (R (i)

AR B (52 (i)

AFEemEERFRAR |

Share price of DSBG as at grant
date (for equity-settled) or
31 December (for cash-settled) (HK$)
Exercise price (HK$)
Expected volatility (Note (i)
Time to maturity (years)
Risk free rate (Note (i)
Expected dividend rate (Note (iii))

8.27
8.27
38.84%
<6
0.41%
3.42%

8.43
9.25
38.79%
<5
0.32%
3.20%

6.63
9.25
43.55%
<6
1.11%
1.54%
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Note:

(i) Expected volatility is determined by calculating the historical volatility

of the share price of the Company and DSBG, as applicable, during the

one year period immediately preceding the measurement date and is

based on the assumption that there is no material difference between

the expected volatility over the time to maturity of the options and the

historical volatility of the share prices the Company and DSBG as set out

above.

time to maturity.

(iii)

Risk free rate is the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes yield of relevant

Expected dividend rates are based on historical dividends.

Movements in the number of share options granted and their related

BN weighted average exercise prices are as follows:
KireRHE KHRTRETH
DSFH Scheme DSBG Scheme
%% Tf 325 Tf
2012 2011 2012 2011
RFTRE RFAEE R¥TRE RFAEE

KifeR il 332! PNk WEFS  KEROEE mEYE  AREGEE TS
AR 8 Rl fife8 B o ik g e
Rit&R (1) kiR (%7) BH#E () 8B (%7)
Number of Weighted Number of Weighted Number of Weighted Number of Weighted
DSFH shares average  DSFH shares average  DSBG shares average  DSBG shares average
in share exercise in share exercise in share exercise in share exercise
options price options price options price options price
granted (HKS) granted (HKS) granted (HKS) granted (HKS)
-A-A At 1 January 958,950 44.20 2,455,195 50.32 7,800,000 9.25 1,090,590 14.63
BT Granted 400,000 33.25 750,000 40.00 4,000,000 8.27 7,800,000 9.25
BAM Lapsed - - - - - - (259,665) 17.18
BTt Exercised - - - - - - - -
[REeL] Expired - - (2,246,245) 4949 - - (830,925) 13.84
+ZA=1-H At 31 December 1,358,950 40.98 958,950 4420 11,800,000 8.92 7,800,000 9.25
TZR=T-RUAE Exercisable at 31 December 358,950 51.22 167,160 59.28 1,560,000 9.25 - -
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

The Company’s share options outstanding as of 31 December
2012 have exercise prices in the range of HK$33.25 to HK$59.28
(2011: HK$40.00 to HK$59.28), and a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 4.61 years (2011: 5.04 years). In respect of directors
and senior executives of the Group, their applicable DSBG’s share
options outstanding as of 31 December 2012 have exercise prices in
the range of HK$8.27 to HK$9.25 (2011: HK$9.25), and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 5.30 years (2011: 5.95 years).

The Company’s share options granted during the year had a weighted
average fair value of HK$10.79 per option to purchase a share (2011:
HK$6.21). DSBG’s share options granted during the year had a
weighted average fair value of HK$2.33 per option to purchase a share
(2011: HK$1.87).
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The following information relates to the Group and is disclosed as part
of the accompanying information to the financial statements and does
not form part of the audited financial statements.

(@) Gross advances to customers by industry sector
classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
by percentage covered by collateral

E=|
Restated
—B—=F —E—F
+=A=+—H +=—A=+—H
At 31 Dec 2012 At 31 Dec 2011
ER4BE Bes
SZEARRE ZHEARRE
2B 2B
% of gross % of gross
REBEH advances REREH advances
Outstanding covered Outstanding covered
balance by collateral Balance by collateral
EBBERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
IHsR Industrial, commercial and financial
- MEER - Property development 1,662,651 70.4 902,519 46.2
—MERE - Property investment 14,047,519 98.4 14,857,643 94.6
-ERtE - Financial concerns 336,280 36.4 916,269 32.2
-RELL - Stockbrokers 100,240 90.0 31,372 52.2
—HBRTEX - Wholesale and retail trade 3,219,507 92.9 2,020,735 97.1
— Bl - Manufacturing 1,996,894 94.7 1,647,656 96.7
—BHRERRE - Transport and transport equipment 4,635,150 96.3 4,192,698 96.7
-E£E9 - Recreational activities 287,610 1.5 302,656 -
—BHRHR - Information technology 8,703 47.7 2,864 75.8
—Hfth - Others 2,894,403 80.8 2,678,926 95.9
29,188,957 92.1 27,553,338 90.6
BA Individuals
-BE [EEEHEHE] - Loans for the purchase of
[FLAZRERHE] & flats in Home Ownership
[AEBEHENE] EF Scheme, Private Sector
B Participation Scheme and
Tenants Purchase Scheme 1,123,393 100.0 1,147,664 100.0
-BEEMEENEER - Loans for the purchase of
other residential properties 16,026,972 99.9 15,935,118 99.9
~ERREX - Credit card advances 4,240,329 = 4,107,677 =
—Hft - Others 5,465,362 28.2 4,413,867 28.1
26,856,056 69.6 25,604,326 71.5
EBEFRONER Loans for use in Hong Kong 56,045,013 81.3 53,157,664 81.4
Bo5mE (GE(-)) Trade finance (Note (1)) 5,024,007 61.0 5,091,959 56.4
TEEBLAIMERNER Loans for use outside
(FE(2) Hong Kong (Note (2)) 25,104,561 64.8 22,617,605 69.0
86,173,581 75.3 80,867,228 76.4
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(a)

Gross advances to customers by industry sector
classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

Note:

(1) Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance
of imports to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong
Kong and merchandising trade classified with reference to the
relevant guidelines issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(“HKMA?”).

Starting 2012, trade bills and bills receivable associated with trade
finance activities are not classified and included as trade finance
lending to customers, and are separately disclosed.

Trade bills and bills receivable amounting to HK$1,766,805,000 as
at 31 December 2011 are excluded from trade finance to conform
with the 2012 classification.

Trade finance loans not involving Hong Kong totalling
HK$336,534,000 (31 December 2011: HK$131,566,000) are
classified under Loans for use outside Hong Kong.

(2) Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to
customers located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside
Hong Kong.
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(@) Gross advances to customers by industry sector
classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

For each industry sector reported above with loan balance
constituting 10% or more of the total balance of advances to
customers, the attributable amount of impaired loans, overdue loans,
and individually and collectively assessed loan impairment allowances
are as follows:

EREE

BEAEER
BB=A 18 344 GATE
Gross HEEE REEE

advances Individually Collectively
REEEH HWEER  overdue for assessed assessed
Outstanding Impaired over 3 impairment impairment
“B-—§+ZHA=t-H At 31 Dec 2012 balance loans months allowances allowances
EEBERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
IEsR Industrial, commercial
and financial
—-MERE - Property investment 14,047,519 - - - 6,657
A Individuals
—-BEHMEE - Loans for the
MEER purchase of other
residential
properties 16,026,972 - 541 - 7,594
B
BHAEE
HR=1EH 1A BT AT
Gross REERE REERE
advances Individually Collectively
REEHEH REER overdue for assessed assessed
Outstanding Impaired over 3 impairment impairment
—T——#+-fA=+—H At 31 Dec 2011 balance loans months allowances allowances
ERBERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
THESRE Industrial, commercial
and financial
—MERE - Property investment 14,857,643 - - - 7,531
fEA Individuals
—-BEHEMEE - Loans for the
MEEN purchase of other
residential
properties 15,935,118 - 649 - 808
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(R) RITESBEZ2EFERLE (UEXKA (@@ Gross advances to customers by industry sector
ZoERUZEFRRENE LD classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
) (3 by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

TREBRFENTWRERR I EEINREE The amount of new allowances charged to income statement, and the

KB TR 2 M SH BN

amount of impaired loans and advances written off during the year
were disclosed in the tables below.

BEBREF

AEEEBEER  MHZIEN
5%  Recoveries
Loans of advances

ERHE R written  written off in
Allowances off as previous
—E-—F 2012 written back uncollectible years
ERBFEANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TEea Industrial, commercial and financial
—MERE - Property investment = - -
fELA Individuals
-BEEMEEMEER - Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 171 - 336
171 - 336
W B2 REE
REEBER izl = G
MisEEE Recoveries
Loans  of advances
S E B written  written off in
Allowances off as previous
—E——F 2011 written back  uncollectible years
EEBGLANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
THEeR Industrial, commercial and financial
—MERE - Property investment = = =
fEA Individuals
—BEEMEEMEER - Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties - - 884
- - 884
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(AR F Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
(Z) B KEERITEEFNEREE (b) Non-bank Mainland exposures

—E-—H+=-H=+-H
At 31 Dec 2012

B BIFEAE
EERER EEAEXR REERE
A EREE SMHIERER Individually
On-balance  Off-balance assessed
sheet sheet #EXEE  impairment
REBFER Type of counterparties exposure exposure Total  allowances
B KRR Mainland entities 11,852,148 1,483,651 13,335,799 37,119
HAPE AR B R Companies and individuals
A - 5 REER outside Mainland where the
PR B KRESE A credits are granted for use
in the Mainland 10,294,395 329,327 10,623,722 37,873
Hi X SEFmAERR Other counterparties the
WASERTEBEANIERTT exposures to whom are
BEFRER considered by the Group
to be non-bank Mainland
exposures 76,028 - 76,028 -
—E——%+-A=+—H
At 31 Dec 2011
(EhIEEE
EEAER EEAEBX B LR
afipf o3 SNEEREE Individually
On-balance  Off-balance assessed
sheet sheet HEEE impairment
REHEFEE Type of counterparties exposure exposure Total allowances
B KRR Mainland entities 8,610,976 1,219,140 9,830,116 42,497
HAPBE AR B R Companies and individuals
A - mrREER outside Mainland where the
P B R RESE A credits are granted for use
in the Mainland 12,183,169 345,278 12,528,447 131,514
Hi X SEFmARR Other counterparties the
WASERTEBBENIERTT exposures to whom are
BEFRER considered by the Group
to be non-bank Mainland
exposures 160,624 - 160,624 -
T A ERREeREEPERAEREMEE,R Note: The balances of exposures reported above include gross advances and
BEz&® - other balances of claims on the customers.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(c) Analysis of gross advances to customers and overdue
loans by geographical area

Advances to customers by geographical area are classified according
to the location of the counterparties after taking into account the
transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies when an advance is
guaranteed by a party located in an area which is different from that
of the counterparty.

The following table analyses gross advances to customers,
individually impaired advances to customers, overdue advances to
customers and individually and collectively assessed impairment
allowances by geographical area.

B BB & 18 B 374 e

BEFEX AEEE RE%ERE

EFENAE Individually — BHEFER Individually Collectively

Gross impaired Overdue assessed assessed

advances to advances to advances to impairment impairment

“E-Z§+ZH=+-H At 31 December 2012 customers customers customers allowances allowances
BH Hong Kong 64,568,498 100,985 112,919 42,602 88,156
H China 12,313,706 152,742 152,742 37,124 41,047
RF Macau 8,412,400 29,513 33,862 10,979 36,223
Hfty Others 878,977 52 52 21 2,290
86,173,581 283,292 299,575 90,726 167,716

{E IR (E ERIFHE ERARHE

BEPER BB LR

RPEREE Individually — BEIEFER Individually Collectively

Gross impaired Overdue assessed assessed

—2—FF+=ZA=1—H At 31 December 2011 advances to advances to advances to impairment impairment
(& E7) (Restated) customers customers customers allowances allowances
0 Hong Kong 65,184,854 194,817 200,530 140,187 128,138
H China 6,927,228 152,271 153,209 36,861 22,447
RF Macau 7,578,182 19,778 23,939 10,325 38,469
Hft Others 1,176,964 5,166 5,166 2,847 3,324
80,867,228 372,032 382,844 190,220 192,378
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(d) Credit commitments and contingent liabilities analysed
by percentage covered by collateral

e e
2012 2011
ZiEAm S
EHEE RENEDL AR REMNED L
Contract % covered Contract % covered

amount by collateral amount by collateral

MBREREEMEERRE
FZRBE

contingent liabilities

EFREREMEERRE

Financial guarantees

Loan commitments

and other credit related

HE and other credit related

commitments

() K@ERTHR

AR ERREEARE THEYE NS EER
BOEREBIEENEE -

REEERFIRNEERR TmHAR - FXE
B RBESRR 8B T’EI—L - BEME KR
Rk - FERBRZELETIZRNAKEZEE
He HPaEmE HENTELE - #W
MEERE M B A2 B XS B A B E
%o

REHD R TZRR TR EED ot F BEARE
BEEAGBRAZEERGMNEEARBRINZE
EXRG (BRREPESCEBFER)ER -

) 2= L i 4 R R 2 ) A RV 2 8 ) 5| B SR B A B
BOIR S B LR o

RBETRARZELRMAEER 2 PBHRK

BERRTDEANBIZT - EIRRSZ T RER
BHINRNEMFMEEZERXAEERZA

e o
A

2,744,878 32.5 2,491,029 45.9
59,987,212 7.1 54,285,718 6.3

62,732,090 8.3 56,776,747 8.0

(A) Banking Group

The Group recognises the changing nature of risk and manages it
through a well-developed management structure.

Risk management is focused on credit risk, market risk, interest rate
risk, liquidity risk, operational risk and reputation risk and strategic
risk. Credit risk occurs mainly in the Group’s credit portfolios
comprising commercial, wholesale and retail lending, equipment
and hire purchase financing, and treasury and financial institutions
wholesale lending.

Market risk arises mainly from Treasury and is associated principally
with the Group’s on-balance sheet positions in the trading book, and
off-balance sheet trading positions including positions taken to hedge
elements of the trading book.

Interest rate risk means the risk to the Group’s financial condition

resulting from adverse movements in interest rates.

Liquidity risk arises across the Group’s statement of financial
position.

Operational risk is the risk of loss (direct or indirect) resulting from

inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from
external events.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(A) Banking Group (Continued)

Reputation risk is the risk arising from the potential that negative
publicity regarding the Group’s business practices, operational errors
or operating performance, whether true or not, could cause customer
concerns or negative view, decline in the customer base or market
share, or lead to costly litigation or revenue reductions.

Strategic risk generally refers to the corporate risk that may bring
significant immediate or future negative impact on the financial
and market positions of the Group because of poor strategic
decisions, unacceptable financial performance, and inappropriate
implementation of strategies and lack of effective response to the
market changes.

Apart from the description of financial risk management disclosed in
Note 3 to the financial statements, the other risk management aspects
are disclosed below.

(i) The risk management structure of the Group

The Board of Directors has the broad overall responsibility for
the management of all types of risk. The responsibilities of the
Board in relation to risk control are:

o the approval of the overall strategy and policies to ensure
that credit and other risks are properly managed at both
the transaction and portfolio levels;

. the management of risk, both financial and non-financial,
conducted through operational and administrative control
systems including the operation of the Group Audit
Committee; review of key results (against forecasts),
operational statistics and policy compliance; and

o financial performance by analysis against approved
budgets and analysis of variations in key non-financial

measures.

The Executive Committee has been delegated the authority
to oversee and guide the management of different risks which
are more particularly managed and dealt with by Group Risk
Division and different functional committees.
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(i) Group risk function

The independent Group Risk function is responsible for
ensuring that policies and mandates are established for the
Group as a whole. Group Risk Division monitors and reports
the Group risk positions to the Board via the Risk Management
and Compliance Committee and the Executive Committee,
sets standards for the management of financial risks and data
integrity and ensures that the financial risks are fully considered
in the product planning and pricing process. Group Risk Division
reviews and approves all credit and risk exposure policies for
the Group including the approval of exposures to new markets,
economic sectors, organisations, credit products and financial
instruments which expose the Group to different types of risks.
In determining risk policies, Group Risk Division takes into
account the guidelines established by the HKMA, business
direction, and risk adjusted performance of each business.
Group Risk Division is also represented on the lending or risk
committees of the Group’s operating divisions and businesses.

The Group’s risk management expertise continues to advance
the overall quality of the Group’s lending portfolios, and enables
the Group to meet the changing regulatory requirements
and enter into credit exposures with the confidence that it
understands the associated risks and rewards.

The Group is continuing to evolve its risk management
capabilities under the aegis of the Head of Group Risk Division,
increasing the focus of its risk strategy on risk and reward and
returns on capital. The Group uses a range of risk measurement
and analytical tools in its management of the various risks which
it faces in its day-to-day businesses and these are continually
being enhanced and upgraded to reflect the ever-changing
business needs and the requirements of the regulators. The
Risk Management and Control Department is part of Group Risk
Division and reports directly to the Head of Group Risk Division.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(A)

Banking Group (Continued)
(iii)  Credit committees

The Credit Management Committee and the Treasury &
Investment Risk Committee are the committees responsible for
approving and recommending policies, limits and mandates
for risk control in loans and treasury business respectively. The
credit risk function, while set up to support the business areas,
reports solely to the Group Risk Division.

(iv)  Market risk

The Group is exposed to various types of market risk. Details of
the risk management policies and procedures adopted are set
out in Note 3.3 to the financial statements.

(v)  Operational risk

The Group manages its operational risk through a management
structure comprising members of senior management, an
independent risk management team and operational risk
officers from each business and support function, and
operating through a set of operational risk policies, risk tool-
kits, operational risk incident reporting and tracking system, and
control self assessment and key risk indicator tools. Together
with a well established internal control system, operational
risk in most situations can be adequately identified, assessed,
monitored and mitigated. To allow the operational risk
framework to be clearly communicated to all levels within the
Group, awareness and training programs are conducted from
time to time.

To minimise the impact on the Group’s business in the event
of system failure or disasters, back-up sites and operational
recovery policies and plans have been established and tested
for all critical business and operations functions.

Operational risk framework is also supported by periodic
independent reviews of internal control systems by external
and internal auditors. The Group’s Risk Management and
Compliance Committee will overall assess the performance and
effectiveness of operational risk management.



REELRTIBE R

(AR F Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

() £EBRTERE @ (A)

Banking Group (Continued)

(i) EZEE

AEBEBERAT —RIEREERE
Rk : DASRIIARRESTE - MR EIEMA R
MERMREACEEAREEEERE
ERKF - UREBARERRLERF 12
HEZEZETRINEES  ZERERP
ZERFR DM UREAREZEEE
Bl o AR5 B 3P &5 0 2R T R AE N HIRT I
KRR WREBERRIZBIHS -

(vii)  EEEEE R

EEgARAEREEZ M TERAEEE
BRI - BEEHIFTEAKE MRS
B REEBRART RIS - R
AT EBREABRZE BIR - BEEREK
TR RMITAREGRE AN 2 AL B
B2 YRIRBRR - EEALER
NERAREEZBR  URREEEEA
B ERBUEE fE e ARE R o

iii) 754 EZEF I £ 7 ER)

BIEBIT 2 EA K RER (HERELS
IR =BT+ — B AR - KITBTT
FMREH HEEARRTSAR - R
R ERRREH HRERR - WS A
CRITE GRA) BB 2 BAT 3%
Bt AEBE2EREHRHAREBY
HERSHEERLBE -

(vi)  Reputation risk

The Group manages reputation risk through upholding a high
standard of corporate governance and management oversight,
maintenance of effective policies and procedures with emphasis
on internal control, risk management and compliance; proper
staff training and supervision; proper handling of customer
complaints or dissatisfaction; and adherence to sound business
practices. Standards are set and policies and procedures are
established by the Group in all areas, which operate to reduce
vulnerability to reputation risk.

(vij)  Strategic risk

The Board of Directors, assisted by senior management, is
directly responsible for the management of strategic risk.
Directors formulate the strategic goals and key direction of
the Group in line with the Group’s corporate mission, ensure
business strategies are developed to achieve these goals,
oversee the strategic development and implementation to
secure compatibility with the Group’s strategic goals, review
business performance, deploy proper resources to achieve
the Group’s objectives, and authorise management to take
appropriate actions to mitigate risks.

(viij Compliance with the Basel Ill Capital Standards

Since the revised capital adequacy framework known as Basel
Il has become effective from January 2007, DSB has adopted
the standardised approach for credit risk and market risk, and
the basic indicator approach for operational risk. These are the
default approaches as specified in the Banking (Capital) Rules.
Accordingly, the Group has overhauled its systems and controls
in order to meet the standards required for these approaches.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(A)

(B)

Banking Group (Continued)
(vii) Compliance with the Basel Il Capital Standards (Continued)

To implement the new international capital standards commonly
referred to as the “Basel IlI” rules, the HKMA has published
the Banking (Capital) (Amendment) Rules 2012 and revised
Supervisory Policy Manual (“SPM”) CA-G-5 on “Supervisory
Review Process” in the 4th quarter of 2012. The revised capital
standards and related regulatory requirements have come into
force for all locally incorporated authorized institutions in Hong
Kong starting from 1 January 2013. DSB has enhanced its
capital management and reporting framework for meeting the
new requirements. Moreover, DSB will also have to comply with
the modified disclosure requirements under Basel Il that are to
be finalized by the HKMA in 2013.

(ix) Launch of new product or service

The launch of every new product or service is governed by the
New Product Approval process stipulated under the Group Risk
Policy which requires the relevant business and supporting
units, including Group Risk Division, to review the critical
requirements, risk assessment and resources plan before the
launch. New products or services which could have a significant
impact on the Group’s risk profile should be brought to the
attention of the Board or its designated committee(s) before the
launch. The Group’s Internal Audit function performs regular
independent review and testing to ensure compliance by the
relevant units in the new product approval process.

Insurance Group

The Group’s insurance business is exposed to multiple risks,

including insurance risk, product risk, investment risk and business

risks. We believe that effective risk management is an integral part

of our insurance business’ control process and operations, and that

effective control of risks assists to maintain the profitability and

stability of our business.
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REEEBHEZRR MAABOZEHEFRDT The key risks of our insurance business and related risk control
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process are as follows:

(i) Insurance risk

The Group’s insurance operation is in the business of
underwriting insurance risk and retains various maximum
amounts per risk or event dependent on the type of risk with the
excess being reinsured through various reinsurance and related
agreements which are regularly reviewed. Catastrophe cover
arrangements are also in place whereby a number of claims
relating to a specific incident in aggregate would represent a
material risk to the Group are reinsured.

Underwriting and claims practices and procedures are
documented and reviewed. External independent actuaries are
engaged to evaluate the adequacy of the insurance reserves.

(i) Product risk

New products and major revisions to existing products undergo
a product approval process with the profitability being reviewed
and where appropriate assessed by internal and external
independent actuaries.

(iii)  Investment risk

Our investment practice is to maintain a conservatively invested
portfolio which attempts to maintain value whilst matching
assets and policyholder liabilities as appropriate, by yield,
duration and currency taking account of the associated risks,
taxation and regulatory requirements.

(iv)  Business risks

The Group’s Hong Kong insurance subsidiaries, DSLA and
DSI (1976), follow the policies and procedures of the Group in
assessing business risk in terms of contingency and interruption
planning as well as providing training for staff and agents to
comply with the relevant rules and regulations covering their
businesses. Macau Insurance Company Limited and Macau Life
Insurance Company Limited, which are insurance subsidiaries
of the Group operating in Macau, have their own policies and
procedures to comply with the relevant requirements in Macau.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(B)

(©)

Insurance Group (Continued)
(v)  Capital management

In each market in which the Group’s insurance subsidiaries
operate, the local insurance regulator specifies the minimum
amount and type of capital that must be held by each of
the subsidiaries in addition to their insurance liabilities. The
minimum required capital must be maintained at all times
throughout the year. The Group’s subsidiaries are subject to
insurance solvency regulations in the markets in which they
issue insurance and investment contracts, and where they have
complied with the local solvency regulations. The Group has
embedded in its asset and liability management framework the
necessary tests to ensure continuous and full compliance with
such regulations. The solvency requirement of each insurance
company in each market is subject to local requirements,
which may differ from jurisdiction to jurisdiction. In Hong Kong,
the required margin of solvency for the Group’s life insurance
subsidiary, Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited, is
determined by the Group’s appointed actuary in accordance
with the Hong Kong Insurance Companies (Margin of Solvency)
Regulation. In addition, dynamic solvency test is also required
by the Insurance Authority to identify the solvency position of
the company on a going concern basis and plausible threats
to satisfactory financial condition. For current and previous
reporting period/year, the results of dynamic solvency test are
satisfactory.

The role of Internal Audit

The Group’s Internal Audit Division is an independent, objective

assurance and consulting unit, which is designed to focus on

enhancing and sustaining sound internal control in all business and

operational units of the Group. The Division reports functionally to the

Group Audit Committee, which is chaired by an Independent Non-

Executive Director. The Division conducts a wide variety of internal

control activities such as compliance audits and operations and

systems reviews to ensure the integrity, efficiency and effectiveness

of the systems of control of the Group.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 67 to 264, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2012, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 March 2013
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